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PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION

In this annual report, references to “Lloyds TSB Group” are to Lloyds TSB Group plc and its subsidiary and associated
undertakings, references to “Lloyds TSB Bank” are to Lloyds TSB Bank plc; and references to the “Consolidated Financia
Statements’ are to Lloyds TSB Group's Consolidated Financial Statements included in this annual report. References to the
“Financial Services Authority” are to the United Kingdom (the “UK"™) Financial Services Authority.

Lloyds TSB Group publishes its Consolidated Financia Statements expressed in British pounds (“pounds sterling”,
“sterling” or “£"), the lawful currency of the UK. In this annual report, references to “pence” and “p” are to one-hundredth of
one pound sterling; references to “US dollars’, “US$” or “$” are to the lawful currency of the United States (the “US’);
references to “cent” are to one-hundredth of one US dollar; and references to “euro” or “€” are to the lawful currency of the
member states of the European Union that have adopted a single currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the
European Communities, as amended by the Treaty of European Union. Solely for the convenience of the reader, this annua
report contains trandlations of certain pounds sterling amountsinto US dollars at specified rates. These trandations should not be
construed as representations by Lloyds TSB Group plc that the pounds sterling amounts actually represent such US dollar
amounts or could be converted into US dollars at the rate indicated or any other rate. Unless otherwise stated, the translations of
pounds sterling into US dollars have been made at the noon buying rate in New Y ork City for cable transfers in pounds sterling
as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New Y ork (the “Noon Buying Rate”) in effect on 31 December
2001, which was $1.4543 = £1.00. The Noon Buying Rate on 31 December 2001 differs from certain of the actual rates used in
the preparation of the Consolidated Financia Statements, which are expressed in pounds sterling, and therefore US dollar
amounts appearing in this annua report may differ significantly from actual US dollar amounts which were trandated into
pounds sterling in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the UK.

RECENT SEC RELEASES

On 12 December 2001, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued ‘ Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure
About Critical Accounting Policies. The disclosures recommended by this advice are set out on pages 17 and 18 under * Critical
accounting policies'.

On 22 January 2002, the SEC issued ‘ Statement about Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations’. The disclosures recommended by this Statement have been incorporated into ‘ Operating and Financia
Review and Prospects on pages 63 to 65 in respect of liquidity and capital resources (including off-balance sheet arrangements
and disclosures about contractual obligations and commercial commitments) and on page 82 in respect of related party
transactions. Lloyds TSB Group does not hold significant non-exchange traded commaodity contracts which are accounted for at
fair value.



BUSINESSOVERVIEW

Lloyds TSB Group is a leading UK-based financial services group, whose businesses provide a comprehensive range of
banking and financial services in the UK and overseas. At 31 December 2001 total Lloyds TSB Group assets were
£236,539 million and Lloyds TSB Group had over 81,000 employees. Lloyds TSB Group plc’'s market capitalisation at that date
was some £41,500 million. The profit on ordinary activities before tax for the 12 months to 31 December 2001 wes
£3,550 million and the risk asset ratios as at that date were 9.2 per cent for total capital and 8.4 per cent for tier 1 capital.

The operations of Lloyds TSB Group in the UK were conducted through approximately 2,300 branches of Lloyds TSB
Bank, Lloyds TSB Scotland plc and Cheltenham & Gloucester plc at the end of 2001. International businessis conducted mainly
in the Americas, New Zealand and continental Europe. Lloyds TSB Group's services in these countries are offered through a
combination of branches of Lloyds TSB Bank and subsidiary companies, principally The Nationa Bank of New Zeadand
Limited, New Zealand's second largest bank measured by assets during 2001, and Losango in Brazil. Lloyds TSB Group also
offers offshore banking facilitiesin anumber of countries.

The following table shows the profit before tax of Lloyds TSB Group’'s UK Operations and its International Operations in
each of the last three years.

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

UK OPEFELIONS.....cvcviiieiirieieiririsisisisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssas 2,984 3,427 3,201
INtErNational OPErBIONS .......cccevuriieririrerieeie st se s 566 433 455
Profit DEFOIETAX ...viveceeeeiiececie sttt 3,550 3,860 3,656

Lloyds TSB Group's activities are organised into three segments. UK Retail Banking and Mortgages, Insurance and
Investments and Wholesale Markets and International Banking. Services provided by UK Retail Banking and Mortgages
encompass the provision of banking and other financia services to personal and small business customers, private banking,
stockbroking and mortgages. Insurance and Investments offers life assurance, pensions and investment products, general
insurance and fund management services. Wholesale Markets and International Banking provides banking and related services
for mgjor UK and multinational companies, banks and financia institutions, and medium-sized UK businesses, including venture
capita finance. It also provides asset finance and share registration services to persona and corporate customers, manages
Lloyds TSB Group’s activities in financial markets through its Treasury function and provides banking and financial services
overseas. Lloyds TSB Group measures the profitability of its segments using the concept of contribution. This concept is
explained under “ Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Line of business information - Summary”.

The following table shows the contribution of Lloyds TSB Group's UK Retail Banking and Mortgages, Insurance and
Investments and Wholesale Markets and International Banking segments and central group items in each of the last three fiscal
years.

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

UK Retail Banking and MOMQAgES........ccvrrririiiiseesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 1,588 1,665 1,657
INSUraNCe and [INVESEMENES ..ot e s bbb e e 1,601 1,425 843
Wholesale Markets and International BanKing..........coceeveeiieiince e 1,381 1,223 1,207
CaNtral GroUP ITEIMIS ..ottt ettt (108) (118) 119
(010 ] o 11110 10T 4,462 4,195 3,826

Contribution is defined as profit before tax before taking into account the unusual items set out under "Operating and
Financia Review and Prospects - unusual items'.

Lloyds TSB Group plc was incorporated as a public limited company and registered in Scotland under the UK Companies
Act 1985 on 21 October 1985 with the registered number 95000. Lloyds TSB Group plc’s registered office is Henry Duncan
House, 120 George Street, Edinburgh EH2 4LH, Scotland, and its principal executive offices in the UK are located at
71 Lombard Street, London EC3P 3BS, United Kingdom, telephone number 011 44 (0) 20 7626 1500.



SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial information set out in the table below has been derived from the annual reports and
accounts of Lloyds TSB Group plc for each of the past five years adjusted for subsequent changes in accounting policy and
presentation.

Following the merger in the UK of Price Waterhouse and Coopers & Lybrand, which was completed on 1 July 1998, the
resulting partnership has been conducting business under the name of PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Consolidated Financial
Statements for the years ended 31 December 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
independent accountants. The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 1997 have been audited by
Price Waterhouse, independent accountants.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP, which differ in certain
significant respects from US GAAP. A discussion of such differences and a reconciliation of certain UK GAAP amounts to US
GAAPisincluded in Note 48 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Profit and lossaccount data for the year ended
31 December (Em) )

NEL INEENES INCOME ..vvvvvvvveveveevsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssseees 4,944 4,587 4,783 4,398 4,144
ONEN INCOME 1ovvvvvvvvveessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssseees 3,882 3,937 3,195 2,777 3,247
Trading SUMPIUS ....oooeveeeee e eesessessesssssessesesesssssssssenns 4,502 4572 4,561 3671 3272
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts................cooereveeeeerrens (747) (541) (615) (555) (511)
Profit on ordinary activities Before tax .............cowcesneeeens 3,550 3,860 3,656 3,053 2,790
Profit on ordinary activities after taX ..............ccewe.erereevennneens 2,579 2,755 2,545 2,159 2,044
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders....................... 2,500 2,706 2,539 2,146 2,030
DIVIGENGAS 1 11vvvveeeeeereeeeessesssssssssssssssssssssssesessssssssssssssssssssssseee 1872 1,683 1,451 1,204 925
Balance sheet data at 31 December (Em)
Called-up share capital .........cccovevenenninnnnensnesesesese e 1,411 1,396 1,389 1,379 1,369
Shareholders’ funds (EQUILY) ....cccovvvvvrerenennenenenerereseesesese e 10,760 10,024 8,829 7,563 6,326
CUSIOMES BCCOUNES.....cvieeeerieerienerrisesee s sieeseesessesesseseeseseeenes 109,116 101,989 93,714 90,445 85,688
Undated subordinated loan capital ... 3,651 3,391 3,294 1,518 1,515
Dated subordinated loan capitd ..., 4,006 4,119 3,199 2,503 2,694
Loans and advances to CUSIOMENS..........cccverereeererenserenenesennenes 122,935 114,432 102,233 95,243 87,633
ASSEIE? .. 190,150 168,028 150508 144942 138,757
TOtAl @SSELS ....vceeeeireee et 236,539 219,113 177,050 168,634 158,803
Shareinformation
Basic earnings per ordinary share.........ccocoveveieenenenenineneneens 45.2p 49.3p 46.6p 39.7p 38.0p
Diluted earnings per ordinary Share..........ccoovevverenenenenensneneens 44.8p 48.8p 45.8p 39.0p 37.2p
Net asset value per ordinary share.........ccooveveeeneneceenenenens 191p 180p 159p 137p 116p
Dividends per ordinary share™ .............ccoomveecemmemreeessnenseenns 33.7p 30.6p 26.6p 22.2p 17.2p
Equivalent cents per share®@ @ _.......oooovvorvecesseeseecesseneninns 49.3c 44.2c 42.3c 36.7c 28.4c
Market price (Year-end) ......coovevrennrsinnenseeeneseesessesesnens 746p 708p 774p 855p 789p
Number of shareholders (thousands) ..., 981 1,026 1,024 1,028 1,047
Number of ordinary sharesinissue (millions)..........ccouevene. 5,564 5,507 5,475 5,435 5,396
Financial ratios® % % % % %
Dividend payOuL Fatio ........ccccvrrrerrcissnessseeseesese s 74.9 62.2 571 56.1 45.6
Post-tax return on average shareholders’ equity.........cccun... 235 281 30.0 29.7 345
Post-tax return On average aSSetS ... 1.46 174 172 155 151
Post-tax return on average risk-weighted assets ... 253 3.10 3.04 2.70 2.52
Average shareholders' equity to average assets........ocvvuvenne 6.0 6.1 5.7 52 4.3
Efficiency ratio® ... eeesseseeesses 49.0 46.4 428 4838 55.7
Capital ratios
Total CaPItAl ....ccveveverereieeieee e 9.2 94 15.2 114 10.9
Tier 1 CapItal..cvcvevcrcrcerceeere et 84 85 10.2 8.8 8.0




@

@
©)

@
Q)
©

Figures for 2000 and earlier years have been restated to reflect the implementation of FRS 12, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’, FRS 15, “Tangible Fixed Assets’, FRS 18, “Accounting Policies’, and other minor adjustments.

Assets exclude long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders.

Annual dividends are comprised of both interim and final dividend payments. Final dividends (which are aways paid in the following
year) are included in the year to which they relate rather than in the year in which they are paid.

Trandated into US dollars at the Noon Buying Rate on the date each payment is made.
Averages are calculated on a monthly basis from the consolidated financia data of Lloyds TSB Group.
The efficiency ratio is calculated as total operating expenses as a percentage of total income.

SELECTED USGAAP FINANCIAL DATA 2001 2000 1999

Income statement data for the year ended 31 December (Em)

Total rEVENUES, NEL Of INEErESE EXPENSE. . .cveeeveeeeeeseeeseeseseeseeseeseseeseseeseseesesessesessssessssaeees 9,180 10,298 9,715
Policyholder benefits and ClaimS EXPENSE...............rrrrreeeeeeiisessessseesessssesesssseesssssesesssenees (2,228) (1,735) (936)
Provision for bad and AOUBLFUI GEBES..............cvveeeeeereeeeeeeeeeseseeeeseeeeessssesessseeesssseesesseeeens (747) (541) (615)
INICOME DEFOFEEBX ... vvverereeeeeeeeeseeeeesesesseseessseseesssesessssesessssssesssseseesssssesssseseesssesesseseseesseneees 2,057 2,670 3574
NELINCOME ...ovoooevvraeveeseesessessssssess s essssseesssssessssssesssssessssssesssssesssssessssssesssssesssssesssssnnees 1,524 1,929 2,148
DIVIGENGS....vvvvvvreaeeeeeeesssssessssssssssssssseeesssssssssssssssssss s sessssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssnns 1733 1,522 1,285
Balance sheet data at 31 December (Em)

Sar€hOIAErS EOUITY ......vvveeereeerereeeeeseesesseseeessssesssssessssssssssssessssssessssssesssssnessssessssasnseees 13,421 13,708 13,162
DL o = YT 133419 117,473 110,545
L OGNS, NEL OF PIOVISIONS ..rrverreeeeeeerseeeeseeeessesesssesesessesessesssssssessessssseseeseassssssssssssssssssssssessens 122,485 110,788 99,120
QL0 I = = (OO 243346 225872 180,889
Shareinformation (pence per ordinary share)

BaSIC EAIMINGS «..vvereverseeeeeeeesseeseseesessesssseesessessssseseseesssseesessessssessesaesseseeseaesssseesesessssaessssasssens 275 352 394
DIlULE BBIMINGS -..vvvvovvveeereessenesssseeesssesssssseesssssssssssssssssesssssssssssessssssessssssssssssasssssssssssnanes 212 348 387
NEEBSIEE VBIUE. ......eoeeeeeeeeesseseesessesessssssssssssesssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssnsnssssssssees 238 246 237
DIVITENGS....vvvvvvseaeeeeeeessesssesssssssssssesssseesssssssssssssssssss s sessssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssnns 315 278 236
Financial ratios® % % %
DiIVIAENA PAYOUL FBLO .......eoooeeeeeeseseeeesseseeeeesessssssesessssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssses s sssssssssssees 1140 789 59.8
Post-tax return on average SharenOldErS EOUILY.......oveueveeeereeereeeseeeseeseseeeseeseseseseeseseseneens 112 14.4 16.9
POSE-taX FELUIN ON GVEFAJE BSSELS .........vvvereeeeeeseesssensssssesssssssssssssssssessssssssssssesssssssssssnnnes 0.67 0.95 1.21
Average shareholders equity 0 aVerage aSSELS.......cvreinnieeeeiee e reresenas 5.8 6.6 7.2
(1) Lloyds TSB Group does not have sufficient information to calculate US GAAP average balances on a monthly basis. Where applicable,

these financia ratios have been based upon simple averages of the opening and closing balances.



EXCHANGE RATES

In thisannual report, unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expressed in pounds sterling. For the months shown the US
dollar high and low Noon Buying Rates per pound sterling were:

2002 2001

April March February January December November

(USdollars per pound sterling)
HIGN oo 1.46 143 143 145 1.46 147
LOW.riiiiiiiiiic e 143 141 141 141 142 141

For the years shown the average of the US dollar Noon Buying Rates per pound sterling on the last day of each month were:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(US dollars per pound sterling)
F NV =0 = OSSP 144 152 161 1.66 164

On 1 May 2002, the latest practicable date, the US dollar Noon Buying Rate was 1.4621 = £1.00. Lloyds TSB Group makes
no representation that amounts in pounds sterling have been, could have been or could be converted into US dollars at that rate or
at any of the aboverates.



BUSINESS
Management and resour ces

Lloyds TSB Group recognises that it will create value for its shareholders if it creates value for its customers. Its constant
aim isto meet the rapidly changing needs and expectations of its customers. Lloyds TSB Group believes that success depends
upon service, consistency and commitment. Nothing is more important to Lloyds TSB Group’s business than maintaining the
trust and confidence of its customers and Lloyds TSB Group aims, wherever possible, to maintain long-term relationships with
its customers. Lloyds TSB Group has an established code of business conduct which is published and available, on request, to
the public. The policy defines the standards and values which are used to operate the business and covers Lloyds TSB Group’s
relationship with customers, suppliers, employees, the community, shareholders and competitors. The code is incorporated
within proceduresfor each area of the business and has been communicated to al employees.

Lloyds TSB Group operates in a marketplace which is continually changing. No organisation can successfully manage
change without the support and commitment of its staff. The pace and scope of change will not diminish as competition in the
financial services market continues to increase. Lloyds TSB Group recognises that it is the staff of the organisation who have
delivered, and will continue to deliver, its success and considers that one of its greatest competitive advantages is the ability of
its people to adapt to rapid and far reaching change.

Lloyds TSB Group recognises that long-term success depends on the quality of its management. It istherefore committed to
developing the potential of all managers, in particular ensuring that it has the succession management capability to meet future
needs for top management. It also believes that the knowledge and skills of its employeesis akey element of its organisationa
success and therefore investsin training, ensuring that it is accessible by everyone in the organisation.

Strategy of Lloyds TSB Group

The governing objective of Lloyds TSB Group is to maximise shareholder value over time. Lloyds TSB Group believe that
this objective can only be achieved by having clear strategic aims, plans capable of trandating strategy into shareholder value,
and the determination and ability to implement those plans. Lloyds TSB Group plans to accomplish this by a combination of
organic growth and acquisitions.

Lloyds TSB Group’ sthree strategic aims are to be aleader in our chosen markets, to be thefirst choice for its customers and
to reduce day-to-day operating coststo allow greater scope for investment in better products, enhanced service and multi-channel
distribution.

Tobealeader in its chosen markets

Lloyds TSB Group has pursued its aim to be a leader in its chosen markets by continuing to seek opportunities to

consolidate its position in businesses whereiit is aready strong by a combination of organic growth and acquisitions and
by divesting businesses in markets where it is not aleader and cannot aspire reasonably to leadership. The acquisition of

Scottish Widows in March 2000 has greetly enhanced Lloyds TSB Group’s market position in the life assurance market.
Based on figures provided by the Association of British Insurers, Lloyds TSB Group's share of the UK life and
pensions market in 1999 was 1.5 per cent, excluding Abbey Life. In 2000, following the acquisition of Scottish
Widows, thisroseto 5.2 per cent. The acquisition of Chartered Trust, a consumer finance and contract hire business, in
September 2000 has consolidated Lloyds TSB Group’s position as a market leader in the independent provision of

motor finance. In 1998, the acquisition of Countrywide Banking Corporation further strengthened Lloyds TSB Group's
position in New Zealand. Lloyds TSB Group has also divested businesses such as Mortgage Express, International

Factors, Black Horse Agencies, Schroder Miinchmeyer Hengst & Co and, in 2001, Lloyds TSB Asset Management S.A.

which were either duplicated or were businesses in markets in which Lloyds TSB Group did not wish to become a
leader.

To befirst choicefor its customers

Lloyds TSB Group aimsto be first choice for its customers by better understanding and meeting their needs. Central to
this objective is LIoyds TSB Group’s Customer Relationship Management programme, which brings together al the
customer information that Lloyds TSB Group holds so that it can build on its relationship with individual customers by
providing them with products, services and access suited to their individual requirements.

Lloyds TSB Group has continued to broaden its product range, which is supported by multiple distribution channels.
Lloyds TSB Group continues to extend its telephone banking and internet banking operations offering its customers an
extensive choice of when, where and how they want to transact their financia business, be it at a branch, over the
telephone or through the internet.



To reduce day-to-day operating costs

Reducing day-to-day operating costs alows Lloyds TSB Group greater scope for investment in products, enhanced
service and multi-channel distribution. 1999 saw the attainment of the £400 million per annum cost saving target
(compared to the 1995 base) which was promised at the time of the merger of Lloyds Bank Pic and TSB Group plc and
the integration of Lloyds Abbey Life plc. Building on this achievement, Lloyds TSB Group has identified further
opportunities to enable it to continue its focus on tightly controlling costs. The principal vehicle for this is a major
efficiency programme which Lloyds TSB Group commenced in 2000, primarily focussed on non-customer facing
activities, and subsequently expanded in February 2002. Lloyds TSB Group expects this programme to result in the
centralisation of large scale processing activities and the further consolidation and centralisation of support functions.
The enhanced efficiency programme is expected to result in a reduction of 5,000 staff in 2002, primarily from centra
and support areas, whilst staff numbers in customer facing sales and service areas are expected to increase by
approximately 2,000, creating a net reduction in headcount of 3,000. The programme is expected to be largely
completed by 2004.

Lloyds TSB Group continues to develop new strategies which will leverage the strength of its brands and its multi-channel
distribution capability, its enhanced understanding of what its customers want, and its cost advantage to deliver greater value to
customers.

Lloyds TSB Group remains aert for opportunities to participate in the further consolidation of the financial services
industry, both in the UK and overseas. Management believes that domestic consolidation in many overseas markets, particularly
in Europe, is entering its final phase and that, therefore, significant cross border mergers and acquisitions may happen in the
coming years. Lloyds TSB Group believesit will be well placed to participate in such cross border consolidation with potentia
to create value by exploiting its retailing and cost management skills.

Businesses and activities of LIoyds TSB Group
The main businesses and activities of LIoyds TSB Group’ s three segments are described bel ow.

UK Retail Banking and Mortgages

UK Retail Banking and Mortgages provided banking and financia services to some 15 million customers during 2001.
With approximately 2,300 branches of Lloyds TSB Bank, Lloyds TSB Scotland and Cheltenham & Gloucester at the end of
2001, Lloyds TSB Group provides comprehensive geographic branch coverage in England, Scotland and Wales. The
contribution, calculated as explained under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Line of business information—
Summary”, from UK Retail Banking and Mortgages in 2001 was £1,588 million. Lloyds TSB Group has continued to develop
aternative distribution channels, through the telephone (PhoneBank and PhoneBank Express, an interactive voice recognition
service) and theinternet (Iloydstsh.com). This enables Lloyds TSB Group to offer a broad range of access points for customers
in order to improve service and to enhance revenue growth. During 2001, Lloyds TSB Group completed the implementation of
an online real-time personal banking system enabling customers to get up-to-the minute information of their account balances
and allowing immediate clearance of persona chegques and immediate transfer of funds between LIoyds TSB accounts.

UK Retail Banking

The contribution, calculated as explained under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Line of business
information - Summary”, from UK Retail Banking in 2001 was £633 million.

Current accounts, savings and investment accounts, and consumer lending. The retail branches of LIoyds TSB Bank offer a
broad range of branded products, and Cheltenham & Gloucester provides retail investments through its branch network and a
postal investment centre. Lloyds TSB Group’s supermarket banking operation, branded ‘easibank’, continues to expand and
there were 22 branches in ASDA supermarkets or large shopping centres at the end of 2001. Lloyds TSB Group has a
relationship with the Post Office to alow Lloyds TSB Group persona customers to undertake banking transactions in post
officesin England and Wales.

Business banking. Small businesses were served by dedicated business managers based in 448 locations throughout the UK
at the end of 2001. Customers have access to a wide range of tailored business services including money transmission, lending
and deposits and insurance and investments. In addition, customers have access to a range of non-financial solutions to their
business problems such as Debtor Management service, providing legal support to help customers recover debts and Prospect
Finder providing customers with atailored list of potential customersfor their business. Lloyds TSB Group is aleading bank for
new business start-ups with around one in five opening accounts with L1oyds TSB Group.

Card services provides a range of card-based products and services, including credit and debit cards and card transaction
processing services for retailers. Lloyds TSB Group isamember of both the VISA and MasterCard payment systems and is the
third largest credit card issuer in the UK with a 10 per cent share of cardsin issue at 31 December 2001.

Cash machines. Lloyds TSB Group has one of the largest cash machine networks of any leading banking group in the UK
and, at 31 December 2001, persona customers of Lloyds TSB Bank were able to withdraw cash, check balances and obtain mini
8



statements through 4,350 Cashpoints at branches and external locations around the country. In addition, they had access to a
further 32,400 cash machinesvia LINK inthe UK and to cash machines worldwide through the VISA and MasterCard networks.

Telephone banking. Telephone Banking continues to grow and Lloyds TSB Group provides one of the largest telephony
servicesin Europe, interms of customer numbers. At the end of 2001, 2.5 million customers had registered to use the services of
PhoneBank and the automated voice response service PhoneBank Express. PhoneBank and PhoneBank Express handled some
25 million calls during 2001.

Internet banking. Internet Banking provides online banking facilities for persona and business customers and enables them
to conduct their financia affairs without the need to use the branch network. Lloyds TSB Group had 1.8 million online
customers of lloydstsb.comat the end of 2001. lloydstsh.comwas rated one of the most visited financial websites in Europe by
Jupiter MM XI.

UK Wealth Management. Private Banking provides a range of tailor-made wealth management services and products to
individuals from 40 offices throughout the UK. In addition to asset management, these include tax and estate planning, executor
and trustee services, deposit taking and lending, insurance and persona equity plan and individua savings account (ISA)
products. At 31 December 2001, total funds managed and administered totalled some £11,000 million. Lloyds TSB Group's
new wealth management brand, Create, was launched in October 2001. This offer aims to meet the specialised banking needs of
Lloyds TSB Group's affluent customers who will be the target market for the wealth management services. Lloyds TSB
Stockbrokers undertakes retail stockbroking through its Sharedeal Direct telephone service.

Mortgages

Cheltenham & Gloucester is LIoyds TSB Group’s specialist residential mortgage provider, providing a range of mortgage
products to personal customers through its own branches and those of Lloyds TSB Bank in England and Wales, as well as
through the telephone, internet and postal service, C& G TeleDirect. Lloyds TSB Group also provides mortgages through Lloyds
TSB Scotland and Scottish Widows Bank. During 2001, the contribution from Mortgages was £955 million. Lloyds TSB Group
is the third largest residential mortgage lender in the UK on the basis of outstanding balances, with mortgages outstanding at
31 December 2001 of £56,578 million, representing an estimated market share of 9.5 per cent. Lloyds TSB Group believes that
it isone of the most efficient mortgage providersin the UK; since Cheltenham & Gloucester’s acquisition by Lloyds TSB Group
in 1995, it has consistently had one of the lowest efficiency ratios (total operating expenses expressed as a percentage of total
income) compared to its competitors.

I nsurance and | nvestments

The contribution, calculated as explained under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Line of business

information - Summary”, from Insurance and Investments in 2001 was £1,601 million. This represented an increase of 12 per
cent against 2000.

Life assurance, pensions and investment. Scottish Widows is Lloyds TSB Group’s specialist provider of life assurance,
pensions and investment products, which are distributed through Lloyds TSB Bank’s branch network, through independent
financia advisers and directly viathe telephone and the internet. Before its acquisition in 2000, Scottish Widows was a leading
provider of life assurance, pensions and long-term savings products mainly distributed through independent financial advisers.
Following the acquisition, the Scottish Widows brand became the sole brand for Lloyds TSB Group's life, pensions, unit trust
and other long-term savings products, and Lloyds TSB Group extended the brand’s product range to LIoyds TSB Group's retail
banking branch network.

In common with other life assurance companies in the UK, the life and pensions business of each of the life assurance

companiesin the LIoyds TSB Group iswritten in along-term business fund. The long-term business fund is divided into a With-
Profits and a Non-Participating sub-fund.

With-profits life and pensions products are written from the With-Profits Fund. The benefits accruing from these policies are
designed to provide a smoothed return to policyholders who hold their policies to maturity through a mix of annual and fina (or
terminal) bonuses added to guaranteed basic benefits. The guarantees generaly only apply on death or maturity. The actual
bonuses declared will reflect the experience of the With-Profits Fund.

Other life and pensions products are generally written from the Non-Participating sub-fund. Examples include unit-linked
policies, annuities, term assurances and health insurance (under which a pre-determined amount of benefit is payable in the event
of an insured event such as death). The benefits provided by such linked policies are wholly or partly determined by reference to
aspecific portfolio of assets known as unit-linked funds.

General Insurance. Lloyds TSB Genera Insurance provides general insurance through the retail branches of Lloyds TSB
Bank and Cheltenham & Gloucester, and through a direct telephone operation and theinternet. Based on a survey conducted for
Lloyds TSB Group, Lloyds TSB General Insurance had a new business market share of 14 per cent of the new household
insurance market, selling more palicies in the twelve months to December 2001 than any of the other leading distributors. The



new household insurance market is defined as those customers switching suppliers, taking out first ever policies and customers
re-entering the household insurance market.

Scottish Widows Investment Partnership manages funds for Lloyds TSB Group's retail life, pensions and investment
products. Clients aso include corporate pension schemes, local authorities and other institutions in the UK and overseas. At
31 December 2001 funds under management amounted to some £78,000 million, compared to some £87,000 million a year
earlier. Thedecline has been primarily caused by the lower stockmarket levels experienced in 2001; LIoyds TSB Group remains
asignificant player in the asset management businessin the UK.

Wholesale Marketsand Inter national Banking

Wholesale Markets

The contribution, calculated as explained under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Line of business
information - Summary”, from Wholesale Marketsin 2001 was £937 million.

Lloyds TSB Group's relationships with major UK and multinational companies, banks and ingtitutions, and medium-sized
UK businesses, together with its activities in financial markets, are managed through dedicated offices in the UK and a number
of locations overseas, including New Y ork.

Treasury is aleading participant in the sterling money market. It isaso active in currency money markets, foreign exchange

markets and also in certain derivatives markets, primarily to meet the needs of customers. It also plays a centra rolein funding,
cash and liquidity management of LIoyds TSB Group.

Corporate and Commercial provides awide range of banking and related services, including el ectronic banking, large vaue
lease finance, share registration, correspondent banking and capital markets services to mgjor UK and multinational companies
and financial institutions, and, through a network of dedicated offices, to medium-sized businesses in the UK. The Agricultura
Mortgage Corporation provides long-term finance for the agricultural sector and through Lloyds TSB Development Capital,
venture capital financeis provided to developing companies.

Asset Finance enables companies to acquire the assets needed to run their businesses through the provision of leasing, hire
purchase and contract hire packages. Hire purchase, or instalment credit, is a form of consumer financing where a customer
takes possession of goods on payment of an initial deposit but the legal title to the goods does not pass to them until the agreed
number of instalments have been paid and the option to purchase has been exercised. Through its invoice discounting and
factoring subsidiary Lloyds TSB Commercial Finance, LIoyds TSB Group provides working capita finance for companies by
releasing to the company up to 90 per cent of the value of their unpaid invoices, with the balance payable, after deduction of a
service fee, once the invoices have been settled. Invoice discounting differs to factoring in that the company retains control of the
debt collection and the credit risk. At 31 December 2001, based on information maintained by the Factors and Discounters
Association, Lloyds TSB Commercia Finance Limited (which is a subsidiary of Lloyds TSB Bank) was the second largest
invoice discounting company in the UK with a market share of 19 per cent and the largest factoring company in the UK, with a
market share of 22 per cent.

Inter national Banking

The contribution, calculated as explained under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects - Line of business
information - Summary”, from International Banking in 2001 was £444 million.

New Zealand. The National Bank of New Zealand Limited (“NBNZ") was New Zealand's second largest bank measured by
assets during 2001 and provides a wide range of banking services through some 159 retail branch outlets. NBNZ serves retail
customers’ needs for current and savings accounts, credit cards, consumer lending and home loans. NBNZ also has a substantial
non-persona  business providing working capital, term lending, trade finance and treasury services to the business and
agricultural sector.

Europe. International Wealth Management provides services to wealthy individuals outside their country of residence. The
businessis conducted through branches of Lloyds TSB Bank located in Switzerland, Dubai, L uxembourg, Monaco and Gibraltar.
There are also private and corporate banking operations in Spain and France.

Offshore banking comprises Lloyds TSB Group's offices in the Channel Ilands and Isle of Man, aswell asits operationsin
Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia and representation in Belgium and the US. It provides a wide range of retail banking,
private banking and financial services to overseas residents and islanders, together with deposit services offshore for UK
residents.

The Americas. Lloyds TSB Group has operated in the Americas for over 130 years and has offices in Brazil, Argentina,
Colombia, Ecuador, Guatemala, Honduras, Panama, Paraguay and Uruguay. In addition Lloyds TSB Group has private banking
and investment operations in the US and the Bahamas. In Brazil, where Lloyds TSB Bank has 11 corporate banking offices,
Lloyds TSB Group’'s most substantial business is Losango, a consumer lending operation providing three retail products:
borrowing at the point of sale in stores, unsecured personal lending and borrowing to fund new and second-hand car purchases.
The Losango business is mainly conducted through Banco Lloyds TSB SA a locally incorporated subsidiary of Lloyds TSB
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Bank. Through its network of corporate banking offices, Lloyds TSB Bank aso provides specialist banking and treasury
products to corporate clientsin Brazil. In Argentinawhere Lloyds TSB Bank has 40 branches and Colombia, where Lloyds TSB
Bank’s subsidiary Lloyds TSB Bank SA has 20 branches, Lloyds TSB Group provides corporate banking services, including
trade finance, working capital loans, import finance, term deposits and money transmission. It aso provides retail banking
services through a network of branches, including current and savings accounts, credit cards, personal 1oans and mortgages.

Recent developments

In February 2000 Lloyds TSB Group announced a significant efficiency programme designed to support the Group's
strategic aim of driving down day-to-day operating costs to improve overdl efficiency and finance ongoing high levels of
investment in growth businesses. The programme is spread over four years and annualised cost benefits are on track, with the
targeted £75 million per annum achieved in 2001.

Lloyds TSB Group announced in February 2002 that a further review had been undertaken to identify all opportunities to
extend the efficiency programme to deliver further productivity gains. Annualised benefits from the combined programme are
now expected to rise by £190 million to £600 million in 2004. The combined efficiency programme will require tota
exceptional restructuring costs of approximately £300 million in 2002 and £100 million in 2003, largely to fund severance and
infrastructure costs. In 2004 and beyond no further exceptiona restructuring costs are anticipated as a result of this efficiency
programme. The further expenditure of approximately £170 million, which will now be incurred in 2002, will be covered by
additional cost benefits estimated at £155 million by the end of 2002, resulting in a payback of just over one year for these
further costs.

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Exceptional restructuring costs £m £m £m £m £m
Initial efficiency programme.........cocovvvvvvnnnnnsesesessenees 188 217 130 60 -
FUrther iNItTBEIVES......ccvreceerrererie e - - 170 40 -
TOE e 188 217 300 100 -
Expected annualised benefits
Initial efficiency programme (cumulative).........cocovvvererenene - 75 145 320 410
Further initiatives (CUMUIGLIVE).........ccvererenreeinreneerie s - - 155 180 190
TOLEA ..ttt - 75 300 500 600

The enhanced efficiency programme will result in a reduction of approximately 5,000 staff in 2002, primarily from central
and support areas, whilst staff numbers in customer facing sales and service areas will increase by approximately 2,000, creating
a net reduction in headcount of approximately 3,000. It is expected that the majority of these reductions will be achieved
through voluntary redundancy and norma staff turnover.

In December 2000, Lloyds TSB Group contacted Abbey National plc (“Abbey Nationa”) concerning a possible
combination between the two companies: after discussions between the two parties, Abbey Nationa rejected this proposal. On
31 January 2001, Lloyds TSB Group issued a statement setting out the terms of an offer for Abbey Nationa, which was
conditional upon, amongst other things, the proposed transaction being recommended to its shareholders by the board of Abbey
Nationa and not being referred to the Competition Commission. However, on 23 February 2001, the Secretary of State for
Trade and Industry (“the Secretary of State”) requested that the Competition Commission review the transaction. There was
concern that the attempted acquisition would lead to the elimination from the market of one of the most significant branch-based
competitors to the UK’ s four largest banks and that this might result in a substantial lessening of competition, particularly in the
market for current accounts. Furthermore, the merger would remove a potential competitor in the provision of banking services
to small and medium-sized companies. In July 2001, the Secretary of State acting upon the advice of the Competition
Commission, announced that the transaction would not be permitted to proceed because of the adverse effects that it would have
upon competition in these markets.

Properties

As at 31 December 2001, Lloyds TSB Group occupied 3,693 properties in the UK. Of these, 795 were held as freeholds, 95
aslong-term leaseholds and 2,803 as short-term leaseholds. Themajority of these properties (2,328) are branches and are widely
distributed throughout England, Scotland and Wales. The most significant of these properties are Lloyds TSB Group's head
office in London, together with administrative buildingsin Bristol, Gloucester and Edinburgh.

In addition, LIoyds TSB Group owns, leases or uses under licence properties for business operations el sewhere in the world,
principally in Argentina, Brazil, New Zedand, Spain and Switzerland.

On 14 March 2002, LIoyds TSB Group announced its intention to relocate its head office within the City of London, selling
its existing freehold head office and occupying along-leasehold property.
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L egal actions

Lloyds TSB Group and its properties are periodically subject to threatened or filed legal actions in the ordinary course of
business. Lloyds TSB Group does not expect the final outcome of any legal proceedings currently known to it to have a materia
adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate, on its consolidated results of operation or financial condition.

Provisionsfor redressto past purchasers of pension policies

During the late 1980s, the UK government became concerned about the burden on the state benefit system that will result
from the increasing size of the retired population. As ameasure to reduce this impact the government introduced, as part of the
UK Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988, legidation aimed at encouraging the working population to make their own private
pension arrangements. For several years following the introduction of this legisation, insurance companies and intermediaries
advised a large number of private customers to set up their own private pension plans, often by transferring out of, or choosing
not to join, occupational pension schemes offered by their employers. Asafurther way of relieving the possible pensions burden
on the state, individuals had been given the option, by the government, to forego their entitlement to the earnings related element
of state pension benefits - the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme (“SERPS”) - in return for having part of their National
Insurance contributions diverted into persona pension plans.

During the early 1990s, the UK government and regulatory authorities became increasingly concerned that many of these
customers had been given poor advice and that they would, in fact, have been in a better position if they had remained in, or
joined, employer sponsored pension schemes. The regulator of the UK pension industry, then The Securities and Investments
Board, carried out an industry-wide investigation into the conduct of business involving the transfer of pensions. The conclusion
of this investigation was that a large number of customers had been poorly advised by insurance companies and intermediaries
across the industry, such advice resulting in pension misselling: the sale of persona pensions where insufficient consideration
was given to the full value of an employer provided occupational pension scheme.

As aresult of its investigation, the regulator established an action plan for the UK pensions industry to follow in reviewing
all cases of possible misselling as described in the preceding paragraph and determining necessary compensation. For the
purposes of thisreview, al relevant cases were segregated into two classes:

Phase 1 cases (“priority cases’) — these were mainly cases where the customer had retired since taking out the private
pension plan, was approaching retirement or had since died.

Phase 2 cases (“non-priority cases’) — these cases primarily relate to younger customers who were not yet approaching
their expected retirement dates.

In common with a number of other banks and insurance companies, in January 1997 Lloyds TSB Bank was fined £325,000
by the Investment Management Regulatory Organisation Limited for regulatory breaches and failings in connection with the sale
of persona pensions between April 1988 and July 1993. Lloyds TSB Group does not expect any further fines or regulatory
investigationsin connection with the regulator’ s action plan for reviewing cases of possible misselling.

The most significant costs are the compensation of past purchasers of pensions. As the review of pension casesin Lloyds
TSB Group has progressed, provisions have been established for the cost of compensation to past purchasers of pensions.

Movements in the provisions established by the Lloyds TSB bancassurance business and Abbey Life over the last three
years have been asfollows:

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
L 0V a T - a0 T 352 397 472
Accrua of interest 0N the ProviSION..........enrnne s e 20 26 22
Additional amouNntS ProVided. ... ssens 70 100 102
COMPENSALION PAIC.......cueriierieiriririe st e e s a bbbt nb s (238) (173) (161)
Phase 1 QUAIANEEESY ...........ooveeeeeeeeseeeeeeesesseseessssesssss s seesssssess s sesesssssss s sesssssseees (1) 3 (38)
PHaSE 2 QUAKANTEESY .......oooeveeeeeeeeeeeseessseessssssssssssssssssess s sssssessssssss s sssss s ssesesssssses - 1) -
Provision at 31 DECEMBEr @ ... 203 352 397

(1) In some cases, rather than pay cash compensation directly into the customer’s private pension plan, Lloyds TSB Group has guaranteed to
‘top-up’ the customer’ s pension income, on retirement, to the level that they would have received under the relevant occupational scheme.
A separate provision for these amountsis carried in LIoyds TSB Group’s balance shest.

(2) This provision is included within the figure for the long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder (“embedded value®) in
Lloyds TSB Group’s balance sheet.



At the beginning of 1999 provisionstotalling £472 million were held in respect of Phase 1 and Phase 2 cases.

During the second half of 1999, the Financia Services Authority published revised assumptions to be incorporated into the
calculations of the continuing cost of redress reflecting the fact that the average life expectancy of pensioners had increased and

interest and inflation rates were lower. Applying these guidelines, the cost of redress was forecast to increase by a further
£102 million and an additiona provision of this amount was raised in the accountsfor the year ended 31 December 1999.

Towards the end of 1999, the Financial Services Authority published further revisions to the guidelines, particularly to the
way that compensation should be calculated for customers who had opted out of SERPS. At this stage, LIoyds TSB Group had
insufficient experience of such cases to be able to establish the need for any additional provisioning. During 2000, the Financia
Services Authority required that these revised SERPS guidelines be applied retrospectively to cases settled since the beginning of
1999. By thistime Lloyds TSB Group had aso gained further experience and improved knowledge as to the number and size of
compensation claims to be paid, both standard Phase 2 cases and those affected by the SERPS adjustment. Taking into account
all of these factors, the cost of redress was forecast to increase by a further £100 million and a provision of this amount was
raised in the year ended 31 December 2000.

A further review of the adequacy of the provision has been carried out as at 31 December 2001. Lower stock market levels
have had a significant impact on total redress costs as the cost of restitution into company pension schemes rises as persona
pension fund values reduce. As a result of this and the fact that there is now greater clarity as to the number and size of
compensation claims to be paid, an additional provision of £70 million has been made.

Following normal actuaria practice, each year the provisions have been increased to recognise the interest accruing upon the
assets held to match the liability. The increase in the provision amounted to £20 million in 2001, £26 million in 2000 and
£22 million in 1999, although there was no net effect on LIoyds TSB Group's profit and loss account.

Lloyds TSB Group is required to complete the review of al Phase 1 and Phase 2 cases by the end of June 2002. For Free
Standing Additional Voluntary Contribution (‘FSAVC') pension contracts, all offers of compensation must be made by
31 December 2002. The calculation of the provision is based upon a series of assumptions relating to the number and size of
cases requiring compensation, and on guidelines issued by the Financial Services Authority. LIoyds TSB Group was satisfied as
to the adequacy of the provision as at 31 December 2001, and believes that the remaining provision will be sufficient to cover its
outstanding liabilities. However changes to the guidelines issued by the Financia Services Authority, for example regarding
FSAVCs, or new information becoming available may result in adjustments being required to the provision.

Before its acquisition in 2000, Scottish Widows mainly distributed its products through independent financial advisers and
for this reason the liability of the business to pay redress to past purchasers of pension policies is less significant. At
31 December 2001 a provision of £11 million (2000: £39 million) was held within the With Profits Fund. Although Lloyds TSB
Group was satisfied that no further provision was required to be made at that date, if in the future it should prove necessary to
increase this provision for any reason, the cost will be met from assets held in the With Profits Fund and will therefore have no
financial impact upon Lloyds TSB Group.

Guaranteed annuity options

A guaranteed annuity option policy isapension policy that provides a cash benefit at retirement age, which can be converted
into an annuity at a specified minimum rate. Under UK GAAP aprovision is required when market rates fall below the specified
minimum and policyholder funds are not expected to be sufficient to meet the excess cost of the annuity at retirement. 1n 1998, a
provision was made within Abbey Life for liabilities under certain unit-linked products with guaranteed annuity options written
from the mid 1960s to the mid 1980s. Unit-linked insurance policies are insurance policies where the policyholder’s premiums
are used to buy unitsin afund run by the insurer. At 31 December 2001 this provision was £79 million; the Group is satisfied
that this remains adequate.

Considerable attention has a so been given to the implications of guaranteed annuity option contracts for the distribution of
profits in the form of bonuses to with-profits policyholders. The House of Lords clarified the position in its judgement on the
guaranteed annuities case, Equitable Life vs Hyman by ruling that a life company could not use its discretion to undermine or
negate a contractual guaranteed annuity rate, and that the cost of funding such rates could not be met by guaranteed annuity
option policyholders done. This ruling raised the issue of how terminal bonuses declared by the directors of alife company can
reflect the cost of aguaranteed annuity option.

After an extensive review of its existing practices carried out in the light of this judgement, it was announced that Scottish
Widows was revising the way it calculates benefits for guaranteed annuity policies with effect from 1 February 2002. Asaresult
of this change, the terminal bonuses for guaranteed annuity option policieswill be increased.

Under the terms of the transfer of Scottish Widows' business, a separate memorandum account was created within the With
Profits Fund called the Additional Account. This Account had a value at 31 December 2001 of approximately £1,700 million
and is available to meet any additional costs of providing guaranteed benefits on transferred policies, including guaranteed
annuity option policies. The assets alocated to the Additional Account include certain hedge assets, which are intended to
protect the With Profits Fund against the consequences of afuture fall in interest rates.
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The eventual cost of providing the enhanced benefitsis dependent upon a number of factors, including in particular:
The proportion of policyholders with a guaranteed annuity option policy who choose to exercise their options;
The effect of future interest rate and mortality trends on the cost of annuities; and
The future investment performance of the With Profits Fund.

Having considered a range of possible outcomes, Lloyds TSB Group believes that the most likely outcome is that the
balance in the Additional Account available for this purpose will be sufficient to meet the cost of the enhanced benefits payable
to the guaranteed annuity option policyholders, as well as other contingencies. This cost, currently estimated to be
approximately £1,400 million, will be paid out over many years as policies mature. In the event that the amount in the
Additional Account proves, over time, to be insufficient, the shortfall will be met by Lloyds TSB Group. At this time, no
provision is considered necessary for such risk.

Competitive environment

General

Lloyds TSB Group operatesin afinancial servicesworld that is experiencing consolidation at both national and international
levels. The last few years have seen the establishment of global players in the industry together with the beginnings of pan-
European consolidation and considerable consolidation within the US. Product manufacture and support in markets such as
credit cards, mortgages, savings and funds management will increasingly be driven on aglobal scale.

Globalisation and developments in technology are significantly expanding Lloyds TSB Group's range of competitors, by
removing many barriersto entry. These new entrants are expected to put LIoyds TSB Group’s margins under increasing pressure
with products becoming increasingly simplified and standardised. Nonetheless, LlIoyds TSB Group expects competition within
the industry to continue to be partially based on service and relationships as well as price, particularly for the core banking
services. Furthermore, complex products such as pensions are expected to be more resistant to standardisation and selling across
the internet. In addition, Lloyds TSB Group has significant strengths with which to counter the pressure on margins in its
portfolio of powerful brands, its existing customer base, its distribution capability and its purchasing power.

The UK

Lloyds TSB Group’s key markets are in the UK, predominantly in the retail sector, where the market for basic financial and
banking servicesisrelatively mature. The market for life and pensions productsis, however, experiencing strong rates of growth
with further growth potential. The general insurance market has also exhibited growth in a number of key sectors.

The remova of regulatory and financial barriers in recent years has blurred the traditional financial services industry lines
and alowed new competitors into the market. Lloyds TSB Group’'s competitors include all the mgjor stock and mutua retail
financia services and fund management companies operating in the UK. De-mutualised building societies which have become
banks and life assurers which have entered the banking market have become direct competitors in the provision of banking
products, whilst several UK banks have announced the launch of stand-alone internet banks to complement their existing
services. In the mortgage market competitors include the traditional banks and building societies and new entrants to the market,
with the market becoming increasingly competitive as both new entrants and incumbents endeavour to gain market share.
Lloyds TSB Group's competitors in the credit card market again include both the traditional banks and new entrants, including
overseas companies. In the last few years alarge share of new business has been acquired by US and new UK competitors. In
the provision of life, pensions and investments products Lloyds TSB Group has seen increased competition from new market
entrants, such as traditional retailers, primarily in specialist areas. The fragmented nature of the life, pensions and investments
market in the UK has resulted in some consolidation within the sector; government regulations on product charges and
competitive pressures are likely to drive further consolidation as providers seek to achieve the benefits of economies of scale. In
the general insurance sector, the market has seen significant consolidation amongst underwriters but continued fragmentation in
distribution and an increasing number of new market entrants including both overseasinsurers and direct operators.

In 1998, the UK government commissioned an investigation into competition in the banking industry whose findings were
published in March 2000. The investigation specifically examined the levels of innovation, competition and efficiency in
various sub-markets within the industry. The investigation found that the small and medium-sized business market was not
sufficiently competitive, with barriers to entry existing for new players. The provision of banking services to this sector was
referred to the UK Competition Commission under the Fair Trading Act 1973 for a full competition inquiry. Under the Fair
Trading Act, a“monopoly situation” isregarded as arising (among other cases) where one firm accounts for the supply of at least
one quarter of the reference services, known as a scale monopoly, or where several firms together account for at least one quarter
of the reference services and, whether voluntarily or not, and whether by agreement or not, they so conduct their affairs asin any
way to prevent, restrict or distort competition in connection with the supply of the reference services, known as a complex
monopoly. Since the announcement of the inquiry, there have been several statements by large-scale ingtitutions of their
intention to enter this market.
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In March 2001, the UK Competition Commission published a statement of its provisional conclusions on some of the
questions referred to it. In pursuing itsinvestigation, the UK Competition Commission provisionally decided to regard the small
and medium-sized business market to be comprised of sole traders, firms and companies generating an annual turnover of up to
£25 million. The statement provisionally identified a scale monopoly in favour of The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc. The
statement provisionally identified a complex monopoly situation in favour of a number of banks; principally LIoyds TSB Group,
Abbey National plc, Bank of Scotland plc, Barclays plc, HSBC Bank plc and The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc. There are
a number of operating units within Lloyds TSB Group engaged in the small and medium-sized business market, the largest of
which is Business Banking. Business Banking provides services to those businesses with an annual turnover of less than
£1 million. Research carried out by City Research Associates in September 2000 showed that Business Banking had a 20 per
cent share of this market.

On 14 March 2002, the Competition Commission’s report into the competitiveness of banking for small and medium-sized
enterprises (SME’'s) was published by the Government. The Competition Commission concluded that a number of specific
practices had the effect of restricting or distorting price competition between the main banks. Particular examples that were
identified included the similarity of pricing structures and the fact that in general no interest is paid on current account balances;
a pattern of differentiation in the charges made by the main banks, with free banking generally confined to certain categories of
SME such as new start-ups or customers switching banks, and the use of negotiation for those considering switching. The
Competition Commission also concluded that there were significant barriers to entry, in part caused by the lack of price
competition, but aso because of the unwillingness of SME's to change banks because of the perceived complexity. In the view
of the Competition Commission the restriction and distortion of price competition has led to excessive prices and profits. The
Government has accepted in full the recommendations made by the Competition Commission. To remedy this situation one of
the most significant proposals is that banks should offer any SME customer operating a current account in England and Wales,
either:

acurrent account that paysinterest of at least the Bank of England Base Rate, minus 2.5 per cent; or
acurrent account free of money transmission charges; or
a choice between the two.

The principal behavioural remedies intended to reduce barriers to entry and expansion are measures to ensure fast error-free
switching of accounts between banks. In addition, measures have been proposed limiting the bundling of services and improving
market information and transparency. The Competition Commission believes that these measures should not take more than six
months to implement. The Competition Commission has also recommended that three years after the implementation of these
remedies, the Director General of Fair Trading should review whether further measures are needed or, in light of market
developments, whether some or al of the remedies can be discontinued.

The implications for Lloyds TSB Group and its SME customers have not yet been fully assessed. Lloyds TSB Group's
position continues to be that it has always supported the principle of competition and believes that the market is extremely
competitive. Lloyds TSB Group has aready introduced, or is currently introducing, initiatives to address a number of these
remedies, such as ease of switching and transparency of charging, either on its own initiative or viathe Business Banking Code.

Other markets

Lloyds TSB Group also operates in other countries, principally in New Zealand and Latin America, where it is exposed to
different competitive pressures.

Lloyds TSB Group operatesin New Zealand through its wholly-owned subsidiary NBNZ. NBNZ’s competitors principally
comprise the magjor Australian banks each of which offer retail and wholesale products through branch networks and, more
recently, over the telephone and internet. Consolidation in the Australian banking industry would, therefore, have a direct effect
upon the competitive environment in New Zealand. The New Zealand economic environment, whilst enjoying a long period of
growth and low inflation, has suffered from a volatile currency leading to increasing interest rates. This has depressed business
confidencein the country, somewhat balanced by exporters and the agricultural sector enjoying greater prosperity.

In Latin America, LIoyds TSB Group's principal operations are in Brazil, Argentina and Colombia. The competitive
environment in each country varies significantly where the number of players, both loca and international, is substantially
different. In Brazil there are over 200 banks, a third of which are either partially or wholly owned by foreign interests; in
addition, there are a number of specialist consumer finance businesses. In Argentina and Colombia the competition is limited to
asmall number of domestic and foreign banks.



OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The results discussed below are not necessarily indicative of Lloyds TSB Group’s results in future periods. The following
information contains certain forward-looking statements. For a discussion of certain cautionary statements relating to
forwar d-looking statements, see“ Forward-Looking Statements” .

The following discussion is based on and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financia Statements and the
related notes thereto included elsewhere in this annual report. For a discussion of the accounting policies used in the preparation
of the Consolidated Financia Statements, see “Accounting policies’ in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Consolidated Financia Statements are prepared in accordance with UK GAAP, which varies in certain significant respects from
USGAAP. A discussion of such differences and areconciliation of certain UK GAAP amountsto US GAAPisincluded in Note
48 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Page
OVEIVIBW. ... 17 Changesin net interest income—volume and
Critical accounting POliCIES.......ccvvvvververrrrerssesens 17 FAe ANAIYSIS. ...ttt 46
Results of operations for 2001, 2000 and 1999........... 19 RiSK MaNagemMeNt.........ccevurenrereenereneeneseseesesesesesseeenens 47
ECONOMIC Profit.....cccecreeieieeieieieieieieeisieeserseeseresesenas 28 (o710 oo 1 {010 Fuu 50
Line of businessinformation...........ccccceeeeeinnerennnnas 29 Risk elementsin theloan portfolio...........ccvvvvvereene 55
UNUSUE ITEMS.....eeeeceerreie s seneees 40 Market risk in banking operations...........ccccevveneerennnn. 58
Future accounting devel opments.........ccceeeeeeerennennas 42 Market risk in insurance operations ...........cccvvveveverenes 61
UK GAAP compared with USGAAP ........ccceeereieennns 43 Liquidity and capital reSoUrces.........coovvvvverererererenens 63
Average balance sheet and net interest income........... 44

16



Overview

Lloyds TSB Group has operations in both the UK and overseas, however, its earnings are heavily dependent upon its
domestic activities. 1n 2001, 84 per cent of Lloyds TSB Group’s profit before tax was derived from its UK operations. The
economic outlook in the UK, therefore, has significant implications for the way in which Lloyds TSB Group runs its business.
By historical standards, the UK economic outlook is currently one of relatively low growth, low inflation and low interest rates.
These conditions have been experienced over the last few years and continue to have significant implications for the
development of Lloyds TSB Group particularly in the light of the slowdown in economic growth experienced in the second half
of 2001 and into 2002.

Economic stability, low inflation and low interest rates are conditions that usually result in lower net interest margins.
During 2001 the effect of these conditions and the increasingly competitive operating environment led to some erosion in the net
interest margin of Lloyds TSB Group, dthough it is anticipated that over the next few years reductions in the overal margin in
the UK will not be substantial. The competitive environment is also affecting LIoyds TSB Group’s ability to sustain the level of
growth achieved in the past in fee income from its core banking activities. For a number of years, LIoyds TSB Group has been
anticipating these developments and this has been one of the factors that has led to Lloyds TSB Group’s evolution from a
banking group to amore diversified financial services group.

Critical accounting policies

Introduction

The reported results of Lloyds TSB Group are sensitive to the accounting policies, assumptions and estimates that underlie
the preparation of its Consolidated Financial Statements. The accounting policies used in the preparation of the Consolidated
Financia Statementsare set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. UK company law and standards require the
directors, in preparing these accounts, to select suitable accounting policies, apply them consistently and make judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent. Where UK GAAP allows a choice of policy, Financial Reporting Standard 18
‘Accounting Policies' requires Lloyds TSB Group to adopt those policies judged to be most appropriate to its particular
circumstances for the purpose of giving atrue and fair view.

The judgements and uncertainties involved in Lloyds TSB Group's accounting policies that are most important to the
portraya of itsfinancial condition are discussed below.

Recoverability of loans and investments

Lloyds TSB Group lends money to its customers by means of unsecured lending and secured lending, where collatera is
held in respect of some or all of the outstanding balance. In addition, LIoyds TSB Group purchases debt securities and equity
shares issued by other companies and governments to provide finance for their operations. In both cases there is a risk that
Lloyds TSB Group will not receive full repayment of the amount advanced; provisions are made in the financial statements to
reduce the carrying value of loans and advances and investments to the amount expected to be recovered. At 31 December 2001,
Lloyds TSB Group held provisions for bad and doubtful debts of £1,468 million against total loans and advances of
£139,697 million and provisions of £95 million against investment securities of £11,122 million. These provisions were
determined through a combination of specific reviews, statistical modelling and management estimates. Certain aspects of this
process require material judgmental evaluations, such as the amounts and timing of future cash flows and the assessment of the
value of collateral held (such as guarantees), which may be susceptible to significant variation.

Lloyds TSB Group considers that the provisions for bad and doubtful debts, debt securities and equity shares at
31 December 2001 were adequate based on information available at that time. However, amendments to the provisions may be
required in the future as aresult of changesin collateral values, the timing and amounts of cash flows or other economic events.

Residual value guarantees

Equipment held by Lloyds TSB Group under operating leases is depreciated over the life of the leases, taking into account
anticipated residual values. These values are reviewed regularly and any impairments identified are charged to the profit and loss
account as they arise. A material decline in the second-hand market vaue for the assets being leased may cause these residual
value amounts to differ significantly from those assumed at the balance sheet date.

Goodwill

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Scottish Widows by Lloyds TSB Group is considered to have an indefinite useful
lifein view of the strength of the Scottish Widows brand and the position of the business as one of the leading providers of life,
pensions, unit trust and fund management products and accordingly it is not being amortised. However, it is subject to an annual
impairment review, evaluated by comparing the present value of future cash flows (the ‘valuein use') to the carrying value of the
underlying net assets. In the event that the carrying value of the net assets exceeds the value-in-use an impairment is deemed to
have occurred resulting in a charge being made to the profit and loss account. Adverse changes in the performance of Scottish
Widows, affecting the amount and timing of future cash flows, or changes in the economic environment may lead to the goodwill
becoming impaired in future periods.
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General insurance provisions

Lloyds TSB Group maintains provisions for outstanding general insurance claims which represent the best estimate of the
ultimate cost of settling al claims arising from events which have occurred up to the balance sheet date and these include
provisionsfor the cost of claims notified but not yet settled and claimsincurred but not reported. These provisions are calculated
using statistical modelling techniques which require certain assumptions to be made in respect of the amount and timing of these
claims. Additional provisions may be required as a result of changes in these assumptions or as aresult of significant economic
or weather related events.

Embedded value

Lloyds TSB Group accounts for the value of the shareholder’s interest in the long-term assurance business using the
embedded value basis of accounting, which is UK GAAP for banking groups owning life assurance operations. The embedded
valueis comprised of the net tangible assets of the life assurance subsidiaries and the present value of the in-force business. The
value of the in-force business is calculated by projecting future surpluses and other net cash flows attributable to the shareholder
arising from business written by the balance sheet date and discounting the result at arate which reflects the shareholder’ s overall
risk premium.

Future surpluses will depend on experience in a number of areas such as investment returns, lapse rates, mortality and
investment expenses. Surpluses are projected by making assumptions about future experience, having regard to both actual
experience and forecast long-term economic trends. Changes to these assumptions may cause the present vaue of future
surpluses to differ from those assumed at the balance sheet date and could significantly affect the value attributed to the in-force
business. Thevalue of thein-force business could also be affected by changes in the amounts, basis of calculation and timing of
other net cash flows, principally annual management charges and other feeslevied upon the policyholders, which are reflected in
the profit and loss account using smoothed fund values. In addition, to the extent that actual experience is different from that
assumed, the effect will be recognised in the profit and loss account for the period. The effect of changes in the underlying
assumptions and variations between actual and assumed experience on the results of the current and prior periods are disclosed in
Note 29 in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fair value

Securities and derivatives held by Lloyds TSB Group for trading purposes are carried at fair value. Lloyds TSB Group
reflects changes in these values in the profit and loss account. Fair values are based on quoted market prices for their
components using appropriate pricing models. Where Lloyds TSB Group's position is of such a size that the price obtainable
would be materialy different from the quoted price, Lloyds TSB Group adjusts the quoted price based on management’s
estimate of the price that L1oyds TSB Group would realise from the holding in current market conditions.

Where instruments such as over-the-counter derivatives are valued using pricing models, the value of the instrument and
changes in that value are determined by the model and its underlying assumptions. The use of different models or other
assumptions could result in changesin reported financia results.



Results of operations- 2001 compar ed with 2000 and 2000 compar ed with 1999

Summary
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
LS LR 1(= (== A1 (000 21T 4,944 4,587 4,783
(0107 0000 3,882 3,937 3,195
TOLEl INCOME......oovveeeieeeetes sttt s st 8,826 8,524 7,978
OPErALiNG EXPENSES. ....cureieririerisireseseee s et ese st st s s st se s st e s bt sssesessbesnssesnsess (4,324) (3,952) (3,417)
TradiNg SUMPIUS.....vcveveveietetetetete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et et et et et et et et et ebetebateretaranas 4,502 4572 4,561
General INSUFANCE CLAIMS.......cviiiirrrrccers e (274) (142 (169)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts..........cccvviernnireirrre e (747) (541) (615)
Amounts written off fixed asset INVESEMENES.........ccervrreinnenee e (60) (32) (7)
(© o< = 1] o o] () 11 P 3,521 3,857 3,770
Income from associated undertakings and jOiNt VENTUIES..........cvveereenenereenenessesisenenenns (10 3 12
Profit (Ioss) on sale and closure of DUSINESSES..........ocvrirnrersr e 39 - (126)
Profit on ordinary activitieS DEfOretaX ........cccvvvvrrrrrrsssrr s 3,550 3,860 3,656
Tax on profit 0N Ordinary aCtiVItIES........cccovvrenreniere s (971) (1,105) (1,1112)
Profit on ordinary activitieS after taX ........cccvvvevrirsrs s 2,579 2,755 2,545
MinNOFity INtErEStS - EQUITY ...vvvverererereriresere st (17 (13) (6)
e 11010 1= |11 TR (62) (36) -
Profit attributable to Shar€hOIdErS.........cvvvciieecc et 2,500 2,706 2,539
ECONOMIC PIOFILY) ....ooooeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeessesesess s ssssssse s eessssse 1,543 1,839 1,777

(1) Lloyds TSB Group defines economic profit as the earnings on the equity invested in the business less a notional charge for the cost of the
equity invested in that business. See “ - Economic Profit”.

2001 compared with 2000

Profit on ordinary activities before tax fell by £310 million or 8 per cent to £3,550 million from £3,860 million, driven by a
reduction in income from Lloyds TSB Group’s insurance businesses caused by the overall fal in stock market values.
Shareholders equity increased by 7 per cent however earnings per share fell by 8 per cent to 45.2p. The post-tax return on
average shareholders' equity was 23.5 per cent.

Total income grew by £302 million, or 4 per cent, from £8,524 million in 2000 to £8,826 million in 2001. Net interest
income increased by £357 million, or 8 per cent, from £4,587 million to £4,944 million, although after adjusting for the effect of
theinclusion of afull year's funding cost relating to the acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000, there was an underlying
growth of £459 million or 9 per cent. Average interest earning assets increased by £13,923 million or 11 per cent to
£144,945 million. Most of this growth was in the UK where average interest earning assets grew by £10,670 million; personal
lending and mortgage balances grew by £6,139 million and corporate and commercia balances increased by £4,628 million.
Overseas average interest earning assets increased by £3,253 million with growth in New Zealand and Brazil. The effect of this
growth was partly offset by a 4 basis point fal in the underlying net interest margin reflecting the increasingly competitive
operating conditions and alower contribution from interest-free liabilities, caused by the lower interest rate environment.

Other income in 2001 fell by £55 million from £3,937 million to £3,882 million. Income from long-term assurance business
fell by £422 million as a 15 per cent fall in the FTSE All-Share index during the year caused a sharp reduction in the earnings
from the investments held to support Lloyds TSB Group’s life and genera insurance activities. This was partly offset by a
£272 million improvement in other operating income caused mainly by an increase of £178 million in operating lease renta
income, reflecting both the inclusion of Chartered Trust for the full year and underlying volume growth, and profits of
£57 million from the sale and leaseback of branch and head office premises. There was an increase in net fees and commissions
receivable, after deducting fees and commissions payable, of £31 million, dealing profits increased by £35 million and premium
income from the general insurance underwriting business grew by £29 million.

Operating expenses in 2001 increased by £372 million, or 9 per cent to £4,324 million from £3,952 million. The efficiency
ratio increased from 46.4 per cent to 49.0 per cent. Exceptional restructuring costs of £217 million were incurred in 2001
compared with £188 million in 2000. Of this amount £167 million was incurred in connection with Lloyds TSB Group’s
efficiency programme, mainly comprising severance, software write-off and consultancy costs, and a further £50 million in
respect of the integration of Scottish Widows. Excluding these amounts, there was an underlying increase in costs of
£343 million, of which £172 million was due to the inclusion of Scottish Widows and Chartered Trust for a full year. The
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remainder of the growth was due to increased staff and other costs supporting the improvement in retail banking sales volumes
achieved during the year.

The total charge in respect of bad and doubtful debt provisions increased by £206 million or 38 per cent to £747 million
from £541 million, although this was adversely affected by an increase in the general provision of £55 million in respect of
Lloyds TSB Group's exposures in Argentina.  The charge for bad and doubtful debts attributable to UK operations grew by
£144 million to £570 million partly reflecting the inclusion of Chartered Trust for a full year, but also as a result of an
£83 million increase in the charge against the retail banking and mortgages portfolio due to the growth in the level of outstanding
balances and partly as a result of a one-off benefit of £42 million in 2000. Provisions against the corporate and commercial
lending portfolios also increased as provisions were required against a small number of large exposures. Overseas provisions,
excluding the general provision in respect of Argentina, increased by £7 million as higher charges in Uruguay, Dubai and the
Netherlands more than offset improvements in Colombia and New Zealand. Excluding the effect of the additional genera
provision against Argentina, the charge in respect of bad and doubtful debts expressed as a percentage of average lending
increased to 0.57 per cent from 0.50 per cent in 2000.

Amounts written off fixed asset investments increased by £28 million from £32 million to £60 million. In 2001 Lloyds TSB
Group provided £45 million against the carrying vaue of its holding of Argentine Government bonds as a result of the
deterioration in the economic environment in that country. The 2000 results include a provision of £18 million against Lloyds
TSB Group’s holding of Ecuadorian bonds.

The profit on sale of business of £39 million arose as aresult of the sale of LIoyds TSB Group’ s Brazilian Fund management
and private banking business including its subsidiary, Lloyds TSB Asset Management S.A., to Banco Itall SA.. The sale of this
business did not affect LIoyds TSB Group's other Brazilian businesses.

At 31 December 2001, the total capital ratio was reduced to 9.2 per cent and the tier 1 capital ratio was reduced to 8.4 per
cent, reflecting a 16 per cent growth in risk-weighted assets from £93,979 million to £108,755 million. Balance sheet assets
grew by £17,426 million, or 8 per cent, from £219,113 million to £236,539 million. Loans and advances to customersincreased
by £8,503 million, or 7 per cent mainly as a result of growth in UK mortgage and persona lending, which increased by
£5,565 million, and higher levels of corporate and commercial lending. Debt securities increased by £9,620 million due to
higher year-end liquidity requirements and a number of new structured financetransactions which take advantage of tax efficient
funding opportunities.

2000 compared with 1999

Profit on ordinary activities before tax rose by £204 million, or 6 per cent, to £3,860 million from £3,656 million in 1999.
Earnings per share increased by 6 per cent to 49.3p, shareholders equity increased by 14 per cent and the post-tax return on
average shareholders' equity was 28.1 per cent.

Total income grew by £546 million, or 7 per cent, from £7,978 million in 1999 to £8,524 million in 2000. Net interest
income fell by £196 million, or 4 per cent, to £4,587 million reflecting the inclusion of the funding cost of £258 million relating
to the acquisition of Scottish Widows; adjusting for this, net interest income increased by £62 million. Average interest earning
assets grew by £7,413 million, or 6 per cent, to £131,022 million, adding £276 million to net interest income with growth
primarily in UK personal lending and mortgage balances, which increased by £4,186 million. However, this growth was largely
offset by an underlying reduction of 17 basis points in the net interest margin, reducing net interest income by £200 million
reflecting the competitive market conditions in which Lloyds TSB Group's businesses are operating. Adverse exchange rate
movements reduced net interest income by £14 million.

Other income in 2000 grew by £742 million, or 23 per cent, to £3,937 million, with Scottish Widows contributing
£317 million of thisincrease. Net fees and commissions receivable, after deducting fees payable, increased by £218 million or
11 per cent. Insurance broking commission income increased by £71 million in line with sales volumes and there was aso
growth in retail banking fee income; net income from credit and debit cards increased by £18 million, fees earned from Lloyds
TSB Group's Added Value current accounts grew by £17 million after package charges, and arrangement fees increased by
£13 million. Private banking and stockbroking income increased by £14 million as a result of higher transaction volumes and
fees from large corporate activity grew by £15million. Income from the long-term assurance businesses increased by
£388 million, principally due to the acquisition of Scottish Widows, and other operating income grew by £144 million as a result
of an £89 million increase in operating lease rental income, mainly due to the acquisition of Chartered Trust, and a higher level
of gainsarising on the disposal of fixed asset investments.

Operating expenses in 2000 increased by £535 million, or 16 per cent, to £3,952 million from £3,417 million in 1999. The
efficiency ratio increased from 42.8 per cent to 46.4 per cent. Included within operating expenses in 2000 were £188 million of
restructuring costs, of which £108 million related to severance and consultancy costs incurred in connection with Lloyds TSB
Group's efficiency programme described in “Unusua items — Exceptiona restructuring costs’. A further £59 million related to
the integration of Scottish Widows and a further £21 million to the integration of Chartered Trust. Excluding restructuring costs,
expenses grew by £347 million. The acquisitions of Scottish Widows and Chartered Trust resulted in additional costs of
£117 million and the investment made by Lloyds TSB Group during the year in its ecommerce, weath management and
customer relationship management programmes added a further £180 million to the cost base. There was aso an increase of
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£60 million in the depreciation charge, excluding the effect of the acquisition of Chartered Trust, largely due to increased

volumes of operating lease assets within Lloyds UDT and Lloyds TSB Leasing and the effect of significant capital expenditure
incurred in the second half of 1999 on new computer equipment.

The total Lloyds TSB Group charge for bad and doubtful debts in 2000 was 12 per cent lower at £541 million, compared
with £615 million in 1999. The charge for bad and doubtful debts attributable to UK operations decreased to £426 million from
£500 million, as a result of a £93 million reduction in the charge in retail banking and mortgages partly reflecting a one-off
benefit of £42 million following achange in provisioning methodology. Thiswas partialy offset by a higher charge in the motor
finance businesses following the acquisition of Chartered Trust. Provisions overseas were unchanged at £115 million: provisions
in Colombia were £14 million lower which, together with a £14 million increase in recoveries from the provisions held against
the emerging market medium-term debt portfolio, offset a£25 million increase in the charge in Argentina. Lloyds TSB Group's
charge for bad and doubtful debts, expressed as a percentage of average lending, was 0.50 per cent in 2000 compared to 0.61 per
centin 1999. During 1999, losses of £126 million were incurred upon the sale of the Abbey Life new business capability and the
closure of Lloyds TSB Securities Services. These losses were not repeated in 2000.

At 31 December 2000, the total capital ratio was reduced to 9.4 per cent and the tier 1 capital ratio was reduced to 8.5 per
cent largely as aresult of the acquisition of Scottish Widows. Balance sheet assets increased by £42,063 million, or 24 per cent,
t0£219,113 million from £177,050 million at the end of 1999. Of this increase, £24,543 million was attributable to an increase
in long-term assurance assets attributabl e to policyholders following the acquisition of Scottish Widows. Loans and advances to
customers increased by £12,199 million, or 12 per cent, mainly as a result of growth in UK mortgage and personal lending,
which increased by £6,022 million, and the acquisition of Chartered Trust, which added a further £2,490 million. Risk-weighted
assetsincreased by 11 per cent to £93,979 million from £84,415 million at the end of 1999.

Net interest income

Theyidds, spreads and margins in the table below are those relating to the banking business only.

2001 2000 1999
Lloyds TSB Group:
NEE INEEIESE INCOME EML..vrereeeeesee e eeeseeeseeseeseeesese e s e eeesesess e s sesesesesssessseseessessseseaeseeeens 4,944 4,587 4,783
AVErage iNtErest-€arning aSSELS £M...........rvveeeeeereeeesersseesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 144,945 131,022 123,609
Averagerates
Gross yield on interest-earning assets %™.............vvvvveeeeisseseeeeeeesssesesessseesssseessssseesse 7.84 8.44 8.46
INEErESE SPIEAO 6D ... sesss s 3.00 2.98 3.19
NEL INEEIESE MAIGIN U6 ..o eee e see s e e see e eee s see s e s eesesee s eeeeeseeseee 341 350 3.87
Domestic: @
NEL INEEESE INCOME EM .o eeeeeeseeseeeseesesesessssesessssesessssessssssssessssesessssesessesssesssseees 4,224 3,956 4,154
AVErAE i NEErESt-BAMING BSSEES £M..v.vverevereeeeseeeesseseseesessesssssssseessssessssssesessesesssssessssssees 121,244 110,574 104,242
Averagerates
Gross yield on iNterest-earning @SSetS %o™M)...........rvveeeeereeeessssseeeesssessssssssssssssssssessssesns 7.38 8.07 7.69
INtErest SPrEAd %@ .........oovvvoeeeeesessseeeeeeeeeeeeessessssssssssss s sssssss s ssssssssssssenns 312 3.06 3.38
NEt INEErest MArGin %6 .......oovoeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseeesesesessessssssssssss s sssssssss s ssesssssssssssssssssesees 348 358 3.98
Inter national:
NEL INEEIESE INCOME EM.rrreeoreeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseeseeeseesesesessssesesssssessssesessssssessssssessssesessssessssssneees 720 631 629
AVErage iNterest-Earing @SSEIS £M.........ovveerveeereesseeesessesssssesesessesssesessssssssssessssesssssessssssens 23,701 20,448 19,367
Averagerates
Gross Yield on interest-6arning @SSELS U6 ... vuueveeeereeeeseeeeseeeesee s seseeeseeseseseeeseseesseses 10.19 10.40 12.58
INEEFESt SPrEA D6 ...ooooooeeveeeeeeesese e sessesssess s ssssssss s ssssss s ssssssess s senesssenees 243 2.58 2.60
NEL INErESE MAIGIN Y0 ....oooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesee s sss s sessssee 3.04 3.09 325

(1) Grossyield isthe rate of interest earned on average interest-earning assets.

(20 Lloyds TSB Group interest spread is the difference between the rate of interest earned on total average interest-earning assets and the rate
of interest paid on total average interest-bearing liabilities. The domestic interest spread is the difference between the rate of interest
earned on domestic average interest-earning assets and the rate of interest paid on domestic average interest-bearing liabilities. The
international interest spread is the difference between the rate of interest earned on international average interest-earning assets and the
rate of interest paid on international average interest-bearing liabilities.

(3) Net interest margin is net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.

(4) The analysis of net interest income by domestic and international operations shown above is based on the location of the office recording
the transaction, except for lending by the international business booked in London.
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2001 compared with 2000

Lloyds TSB Group net interest income increased by £357 million, or 8 per cent, to £4,944 million, representing 56 per cent
of total income compared to 54 per cent in 2000. After adjusting for the effect of funding the Scottish Widows' purchase
consideration for a full year in 2001 compared to only ten months in 2000, the underlying growth was £459 million, or 9 per
cent. Averageinterest earning assetsincreased by £13,923 million or 11 per cent to £144,945 million, adding £670 million to net
interest income. Personal lending and mortgage balances in the UK grew by £6,139 million as Lloyds TSB Group sought to
develop these portfolios prudently, but profitably. Within Wholesale Markets and International Banking, average interest
earning assets increased by £7,902 million. The asset finance portfolio grew by £1,074 million, partly reflecting the inclusion of
Chartered Trust for afull year and there was an increase of £4,628 million in corporate and commercia lending balances in the
UK. Therewas also growth in structured finance balances in the UK and overseas.

The net interest margin fell by 9 basis points, athough after adjusting for the funding cost of Scottish Widows, there was an
underlying reduction of 4 basis points reducing net interest income by £52 million. A lower interest rate environment in the UK
resulted in a reduced contribution from Lloyds TSB Group's low interest rate and interest free liabilities and this was coupled
with lower margins earned on corporate and commercial and some persona lending balances, due to competitive pressures.
These factors more than offset the benefits obtained from positive interest rate management within Lloyds TSB Group' s treasury
and central functions. Adverse exchange rate movements, mainly in Brazil, reduced net interest income by £59 million.

Domestic net interest income in 2001 increased by £268 million, or 7 per cent, to £4,224 million, representing 85 per cent of
consolidated net interest income. After adjusting for the effect of the inclusion of a full year's funding cost in respect of the
Scottish Widows acquisition in March 2000, there was an underlying increase of £370 million. Average interest earning assets
increased by £10,670 million, or 10 per cent, to £121,244 million adding £403 million to net interest income. Persona lending
and mortgage balances increased by £6,139 million and corporate and commercia balancesincreased by £4,628 million.

The domestic net interest margin fell by 10 basis points reflecting the higher funding cost of Scottish Widows, which caused
areduction of 7 basis points. There was an underlying reduction of 3 basis points costing £33 million mainly as a result of a
reduced contribution from low interest and interest free liabilities due to the lower interest rate environment. The net interest
margin on retail lending products fell 5 basis points and margins on corporate and commercial lending also reduced, although the
margin earned on mortgage products was little changed.

Net interest income from international operations increased by £89 million, or 14 per cent, to £720 million, representing
15 per cent of consolidated net interest income. Average interest earning assets increased by 20 per cent on aloca currency
basis, but this was partly offset by the effect of exchange rate movements. In sterling terms, average interest earning assets
increased by £3,253 million, or 16 per cent, to £23,701 million adding £155 million to net interest income. Average interest
earning assets in Latin Americaincreased by £592 million with growth in corporate and consumer lending in Brazil, and in New
Zedland there was an increase of £574 million due to higher volumes of corporate and commercial lending. Overseas structured
finance and government guaranteed export credit transactions resulted in a £1,932 million increase in average interest earning
assets.

The net interest margin from international operations decreased by 5 basis points lowering net interest income by £7 million.
Lower margins in Lloyds TSB Group’s Latin American businesses, more than offset small improvements in New Zealand and
the benefits of lower cost funding for the overseas wholesale businesses. Adverse exchange rate movements, mainly in Brazil,
reduced net interest income by £59 million.

2000 compared with 1999

Lloyds TSB Group net interest income in 2000 fell by £196 million, or 4 per cent, to £4,587 million, reflecting the impact of
the funding cost of Scottish Widows following its acquisition in March 2000. Net interest income represented 54 per cent of
total income compared to 60 per cent in 1999.

Scottish Widows was acquired on 3 March 2000. The consideration for the acquisition, which was funded through a
combination of cash raised on the money market and loan notes issued to those policyholders who elected to receive them, was
paid during August 2000. However, for the period from the date of acquisition to the payment date, Lloyds TSB Group
compensated the policyholders for the delay in paying the consideration. This compensation, together with the funding cost of
the consideration from the date of payment, totalled £258 million in 2000. Excluding the £258 million funding cost of Scottish
Widows in 2000, Lloyds TSB Group net interest income increased by £62 million, or 1 per cent, to £4,845 million,
notwithstanding a reduction of £200 million caused by a 17 basis point reduction in the underlying net interest margin. This
£200 million reduction in net interest income was more than offset by higher volumes of both customer lending and deposits
which resulted in an increase of £276 million. Average interest-earning assets increased by 6 per cent to £131,022 million as a
result of further growth in mortgages and other personal lending in the UK, which increased by £4,186 million. The net interest
margin decreased to 3.50 per cent, areduction of 37 basis points. The impact of the funding cost of Scottish Widows represented
20 basis points of this 37 basis point reduction, with the residual 17 basis point decrease in the margin reflecting the increasingly

competitive operating environment in the UK and a 16 basis point reduction in the international net interest margin. Adverse
exchange rate movements reduced net interest income by £14 million.



Domestic net interest income in 2000 decreased by £198 million, or 5 per cent, to £3,956 million, reflecting the £258 million
funding cost of Scottish Widows, and this represents 86 per cent of total group net interest income. Underlying net interest
income, therefore, increased by £60 million. Average interest-earning assets from Lloyds TSB Group’s domestic operations
increased by 6 per cent to £110,574 million resulting in an additiona £229 million of net interest income. There was further
growth in mortgages and other customer lending. The net interest margin decreased by 40 basis points to 3.58 per cent, again
partly reflecting the funding cost of Scottish Widows, which caused a reduction of 23 basis points. The increasingly competitive
operating environment, particularly for retail lending, and the higher cost of deposit products in a higher average interest rate
environment caused an underlying reduction of 17 basis points in the net interest margin. During the year Lloyds TSB Group
had strong growth in a number of lower margin products, particularly mortgages and preferentially priced savings accounts. The
reduction in the margin caused a£169 million fall in net interest income.

Net interest income from international operations increased by £2 million to £631 million, representing 14 per cent of total
group net interest income. Underlying growth on alocal currency basis was largely offset by a £14 million reduction caused by
exchange rate movements. Average interest-earning assets on alocal currency basisincreased by 7 per cent, helped by growth in
the New Zealand mortgage portfolio, but this increase was partly offset by the effect of exchange rate movements. Although
there was a reduction of 218 basis points in the gross yield as a result of lower interest rates in Latin America, the international
net interest margin decreased by only 16 basis pointsto 3.09 per cent.

Other income
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Fees and commissions receivable:

UK CUITENE ACCOUNE FEES.....oecti ettt e bbb s b s ne s 573 629 663
Other UK feesand COMMISSIONS........coicieiiniineieneris s sese s se e et sesesessssesensens 1,220 1,171 978
INSUFBNCE BIOKING......vcviiteeiiteeiteeetecee sttt e s bbb sa et e b sbeaesbene b e e ebesnenes 528 398 327
G SEIVICES....oveveeeeeceetete sttt sttt sttt e st b be e s et e b e e sebebenssesbebenssetebensanstebenennnns 332 304 279
International fees and COMMISSIONS.........ccccovvircine et e ne s 269 266 250
2,922 2,768 2,497

Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYADIE.......c.ouviiererrrerie st (602) (479) (426)

Dealing profits (before expenses):
Foreign exchange trading iINCOME ...ttt e 158 141 133
SeCUrtieS aNd OthEr AINS.......cceiriceerrerre st 75 57 82
233 198 215
Income from [oNg-term assUranNCe DUSINESS ..ot e 193 615 227
General iNSuranCe PremiUMm iNCOME .......cceceeerereereetreressesesesesesseesesessssssssesessesssesessssssssesssseess 428 399 390
Other Operating iINCOME ......ccoovviiiriririsise sttt sttt s s 708 436 292
Total OthEr INCOME ..ot e e s e e et ene e e 3,882 3,937 3,195
2001 compared with 2000

Other income reduced by £55 million, or 1 per cent, to £3,882 million representing 44 per cent of total income. Excluding
theimpact of the Chartered Trust acquisition made in September 2000, other income fell by £181 million or 5 per cent.

Fees and commissions receivable increased by £154 million, or 6 per cent, largely reflecting strong growth in income from
insurance broking. Other UK fees and commissions increased by £49 million, or 4 per cent, from £1,171 million to
£1,220 million mainly due to the inclusion in 2001 of fees earned by Chartered Trust which resulted in fee income from the
Asset Finance business increasing by £45 million. There was a £26 million increase in fees from large corporate and factoring
activity; and fee income from Lloyds TSB Group’s share registration operation increased by £12 million. However, unit trust
and asset management fees fell by £20 million and stockbroking income fell by £10 million, as a result of the substantial
reduction in stock market activity in the second half of the year. Fees from the retail banking operations aso fell following the
withdrawal of ATM fees, which reduced income by £29 million, although this was partly offset by the inclusion of £22 million
of recharges to Goldfish Bank, LIoyds TSB Group’ sjoint venture with Centricaplc.

Insurance broking commission income increased by £130 million as a result of higher levels of creditor insurance sales
which increased income by £98 million and growth in other major product lines. There was aso a benefit of £30 million from a
one-off change in broking commission arrangements. Income from credit and debit cards increased by £28 million, mainly as a
result of higher merchant service charges and fees. However, UK current account fee income fell by £56 million; a £28 million
increase in fee income from Added Vaue accounts was more than offset by a £51 million fal in unauthorised borrowing fees
and a £40 million reduction in service charges, as part of the Group’'s programme to make its customer proposition more
competitive.
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Fees and commissions payable increased by £123 million compared to 2000 as a result of the impact of the Chartered Trust
acquisition, higher reciprocity fees and an increase in package costs relating to a number of products.

Dealing profits increased by £35 million to £233 million, reflecting benefits from opportunities created from managing

certain exposures arising within the Group's insurance businesses, an improved performance from the treasury operations in
London and higher foreign exchange trading income from The National Bank of New Zealand.

Income from long-term assurance business fell by £422 million from £615 million to £193 million. Income from long-term
assurance business in 2000 benefited from a change in the economic assumptions used to calculate the embedded value, which
increased income by £127 million, although this was partly offset by a one-off charge of £80 million in respect of stakeholder
pensions. Excluding these items there was an underlying decrease of £375 million.

There was growth in new business, in part reflecting successful sales of Lloyds TSB Group's stakeholder pension product
and a change in the mix of new business to more profitable regular premium business, which after distribution costs increased
income by £43 million. There was a £40 million increase in income from existing business reflecting the growth in the size of
the in-force book and a £30 million reduction in provisions for redress to past purchasers of pension policies as the review nears
its completion. However these factors were more than offset by a £500 million reduction in the earnings from the investments
held to support the life assurance operations largely reflecting the decline in stock market values during the year.

Premium income from insurance underwriting increased by £29 million, or 7 per cent, from £399 million to £428 million.
This was due to higher home insurance sales during 2001, which increased by £563 million to £281 million reflecting the success
of the home insurance product and improved cross-selling to Lloyds TSB Group’s mortgage customers. This has more than
offset a £16 million fall in income from creditor insurance, following the outsourcing of the card protection book to Norwich
Union in 2000, and small reductionsin income from other products.

Other operating income increased to £708 million from £436 million in 2000 reflecting an increase in income from operating
lease rentals, partly as a result of the acquisition of Chartered Trust, from £151 million in 2000 to £329 million in 2001. Other
significant contributions to other operating income are the realisation of venture capital gains within Lloyds TSB Development

Capital of £57 million, earnings on the sale and restructuring of emerging market investments of £109 million and £57 million
profit on the sale and leaseback of premises.

2000 compared with 1999

Other income in 2000 increased by £742 million, or 23 per cent, to £3,937 million representing 46 per cent of total income.
Scottish Widows contributed £317 million of thisincrease.

Fees and commissions receivable in 2000 increased by £271 million, or 11 per cent; Scottish Widows contributed
£62 million of thisincrease. UK current account feesfell by £34 million largely as a result of a £14 million reduction in service
charges and returned cheque fees and a £31 million reduction in unauthorised overdraft fees following their partial withdrawa as
part of a marketing initiative. Unauthorised overdraft fees are charged to those customers who alow their current account to
become overdrawn without having organised an agreed overdraft facility in advance. These reductions more than offset a
£22 million increase in fees from Lloyds TSB Group’'s Added Vaue current accounts reflecting the increased popularity of this
product. Depending on the balance in the account, the holder of an Added Value current account pays a monthly fee which
allows them access to arange of discounted products and services.

Excluding Scottish Widows, other UK fees and commissionsincreased by £131 million or 13 per cent, interbank agency and
ATM fees increased by £36 million and there was a £13 million increase in loan arrangement fees. Fees from large corporate
activity inthe UK increased by £15 million and there was a£14 million increase in private banking and stockbroking income asa

result of higher transaction volumes and a £9 million increase in income from Lloyds TSB Group's factoring operations. The
acquisition of Chartered Trust accounted for afurther £17 million of theincrease.

Insurance broking commission income increased by £71 million or 22 per cent reflecting a £50 million improvement in
income from card and loan protection products, as aresult of increased sales volumes, and a £23 million increase in the level of
retrospective commissions, which are dependent upon the profitability of policies sold in previous years.

Income from credit and debit cards improved by £25 million as a result of increased late payment charges and merchant
commissions. International fees and commissionsincreased by £16 million or 6 per cent largely due to a £10 million increase in
income generated from structured finance transactions entered into in the United States.

Fees and commissions payable in 2000 increased by £53 million against 1999 of which £18 million was attributable to
Scottish Widows. The remaining increase of £35 million was largely as a result of a £14 million increase in interchange fees
reflecting higher volumes and a £20 million increase in interbank agency fees payable, which more than offset a £15 million
reduction in fees paid by L1oyds UDT as aresult of lower transaction volumes. The acquisition of Chartered Trust accounted for
afurther £23 million of the increase.
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Dealing profitsin 2000 fell by £17 million; a £20 million improvement in the performance of Lloyds TSB Group's Treasury

operations was more than offset by a £41 million reduction in the return from the general insurance equities portfolio reflecting
the declinein UK stock market values.

Income from long-term assurance business in 2000 increased by £388 million to £615 million, largely as a result of the
acquisition of Scottish Widows. Excluding Scottish Widows there was an underlying increase of £120 million reflecting the
benefit of changes in the economic assumptions of £127 million and a number of other non-recurring items which more than
offset acharge of £80 million in respect of stakeholder pensions. Stakeholder pensions were introduced in the UK in April 2001.
Stakeholder pensions aim to provide a low-cost and flexible way for people to save for their retirement. Stakeholder pensions
are open only to persons earning less than £30,000 per year. Contributions to a stakeholder pension are capped at £3,600 per
year (including tax) and can be cumulated with contributions to an occupationa pension scheme. Employers with five or more
employeeswho do not offer any kind of pensions scheme must provide accessto a stakeholder pension scheme. Money invested
in stakeholder pensions will be managed privatdly (i.e., outside the state pension system) and will be invested in the stock
market. Upon retirement a quarter of the accumulated capital can be taken out as a tax-free cash sum and the remainder must be
used to buy an annuity which pays the retirement pension. See “—Results of operations—Unusua items’. General insurance
premium income on underwritten businessin 2000 increased by £9 million, or 2 per cent, against 1999.

Other operating income in 2000 increased by £144 million, largely reflecting the acquisition of Chartered Trust and

increased operating lease rentals within LIoyds TSB Leasing and Lloyds UDT which together resulted in an increase in income
of £89 million. Gainson the sale of investmentsincreased by £53 million.
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Operating expenses

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Administrative expenses
Staff:
Salariesand Profit SNAMNG. ..o 1,754 1,626 1,500
[INE= (o = T 05 U =TT T 140 131 125
PENSIONS ...ttt sttt st sttt se bbb e et et e se bt eae e bt ene s nbens (108) (105) (108)
[ = (o LU T o T 8 47 20
(@11 S = 1 o 01 £ 191 189 180
1,985 1,888 1,717
Premises and equipment:
L S L= 010 I = =TT 261 247 250
HITE OF BQUIPIMENL. ...ttt 18 26 33
Repairs and MaINEENANCE.........couverrerereresesesesse s neen 110 115 107
(@107 TR 117 109 100
506 497 490
Other expenses:
Communications and external data ProCESSING........cvveeireieiieieirereere et 433 394 406
Advertising and ProMOLION..........ccerrereeirenereeere s sesee s sessee e sessesssesesssees 152 167 113
ProfeSSional TEES......ccv i e e 105 126 90
(@107 TR 376 306 324
1,066 993 933
AdMINISIrAtiVE EXPENSES ....vcvivierireciceririreeeersssssssssssssssss s s s s ssssssssssssnns 3,557 3,378 3,140
EXCEptional reStIUCLUNING COSES.....uiiviriiieriiieiiiee ettt sttt besn b s bt e b snenas 217 188 -
Total adminiStrative EXPENSES ......covvvevererrireserr s nen 3,774 3,566 3,140
(D= o= o = o) T 511 364 265
AMOrtisation Of GQOOAWIIl ........cocveuiiieiiieiiie bbb enas 39 22 12
Total OPEr AtiNG EXPENSES.....covveerirerirereres sttt s s s nen 4,324 3,952 3,417
EffiCIENCY Fatio (IN90) c.ovcueireeciececteeeseee ettt st bbb snnas 49.0 46.4 42.8
Efficiency ratio (adjusted) (IN %)M ........ovvveeeioeerereeeeesssseeeeseeeeesssssesssssssssssssesssssssssssssenees 429 434 426

(1) Excluding short-term fluctuations in investment returns, changes in economic assumptions, exceptiona restructuring costs, Abbey
National offer costs, provisions for redress to past purchasers of pension policies and stakeholder pension related charge. See “—Unusual
items’.

2001 compared with 2000

Total operating expenses in 2001 increased by £372 million, or 9 per cent, to £4,324 million from £3,952 million in 2000.
There was a further exceptional restructuring charge of £217 million, compared to £188 million in 2000, comprising mainly
severance, software write-off and consultancy costs incurred in connection with the LIoyds TSB Group's efficiency programme
and the ongoing integration of Scottish Widows. See “Unusual items — Exceptional restructuring costs’. Excluding these
restructuring charges, there was an underlying growth in costs of £343 million of which £172 million was due to the acquisitions
of Scottish Widows and Chartered Trust and £16 million to costs incurred in connection with the unsuccessful offer for Abbey
Nationa. Investmentsin Lloyds TSB Group's revenue growth businesses, e-commerce and real-time banking in 2001 totalled
£235 million compared to £224 million in 2000.

Administrative expensesin 2001 increased by £179 million, or 5 per cent, from £3,378 million to £3,557 million. Staff costs
grew by £97 million, or 5 per cent, mainly as a result of a £128 million growth in salaries and profit sharing reflecting both the
growth in staff numbers and the effect of the annual pay review, and the increased cost of incentive payments to customer facing
staff. This has been partly offset by a £39 million reduction in ongoing restructuring costs, as the costs associated with the
closure of anumber of minor operationsin 2000 have not been repeated.

Premises and equipment costs increased by £9 million principally due to higher rental costs on branch and head office
properties and losses on the disposal of equipment which more than offset lower I T equipment hire costs. Other costsincreased
by £73 million. There was a £39 million growth in communications and external data processing costs to support the

26



development of Lloyds TSB Group’'s e-commerce activities and real-time banking systems and a £23 million increase in charges

made by iPSL, Lloyds TSB Group’s new clearings joint venture. There was also a £19 million increase in operational |osses,
partly caused by a higher incidence of credit card fraud.

Depreciation increased by £147 million. There was an increase of £95 million in the charge in respect of operating lease
assets, following areduction of £23 million in the depreciation charge on certain ship leases, of which £82 million was due to the
acquisition of Chartered Trust. In addition, there was a £49 million increase in the depreciation charge in respect of equipment
reflecting the impact of capital expenditure, in particular on IT equipment, during 2000. Goodwill amortisation increased by
£17 million due to the amortisation of the goodwill arising on the acquisition of Chartered Trust.

The efficiency ratio in 2001 was 49.0 per cent compared to 46.4 per cent in 2000.

2000 compared with 1999

Total operating expenses in 2000 increased by £535 million, or 16 per cent, to £3,952 million from £3,417 million in 1999.
Expenses in 2000 included exceptional restructuring costs of £188 million, comprising mainly severance and consultancy costs
relating to Lloyds TSB Group's efficiency programme and a £21 million provision in respect of the integration of Chartered
Trust. See “Unusud items - Exceptiona restructuring costs’. Administrative expenses in 2000 increased by £238 million, or
8 per cent, to £3,378 million of which £69 million was attributable to the post-acquisition costs of Scottish Widows and
Chartered Trust. The remaining increase was due to the investment that Lloyds TSB Group has made in e-commerce, wealth
management and customer relationship management programmes which added £180 million to the cost base. This was reflected
in increased staff costs, advertising and promational expenditure and consultancy fees. Depreciation in 2000 increased by
£99 million, of which £37 million related to the depreciation in Chartered Trust following its acquisition. The remainder of the
increase was due to the growth during the year in operating lease assets which accounted for £21 million of the increase and
significant capital expenditureincurred in the second half of 1999 on new computer equipment.

Goodwill amortisation increased by £10 million following the acquisition of Chartered Trust. The goodwill arising upon the
acquisition of Scottish Widows amounting to £1,870 million is not being amortised because, in the opinion of the directors, it has
an indefinite useful life.

The efficiency ratio in 2000 was 46.4 per cent compared to 42.8 per cent in 1999.

Chargefor bad and doubtful debts

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
D0 0 | oS TTTT 570 426 500
10 1=: 007 0] 7= P 177 115 115
QLI = ot 0 o OSSO 747 541 615
SPECITIC PrOVISIONS......oviieieirererie ettt sttt bbbt 736 547 615
(€1 gTc = I 00V T T 11 (6) -
QLI = ot 0 o OSSO 747 541 615
Charge as % of average lending: % % %
D001 o TTT 0.54 0.45 0.57
1 01=: 007 0] 7= P 1.10 0.80 0.84
TOLAl CAIGE. ..ttt bbbt bbbt bbbttt ettt bbb b bbbt 0.62 0.50 0.61

2001 compared with 2000

The total charge for bad and doubtful debts increased by £206 million, or 38 per cent, to £747 million from £541 million.
The charge attributable to Lloyds TSB Group’s UK operations increased by £144 million to £570 million from £426 million,
partly as aresult of the acquisition of Chartered Trust which increased the charge during the year by £27 million. During 2000,
UK Retail Banking had a one-off benefit of £42 million following the full centralisation of its arrears processing, which was not
repeated in 2001. Adjusting for this, provisionsin UK Retail Banking increased by £52 million reflecting the growth in the size
of the personal loan and credit card portfolios. Thiswas partly offset by a £32 million release of the general provision relating to
the LIoyds TSB Group’ s mortgage portfolio following a change in provisioning methodol ogy.

The charge against the corporate and commercia lending portfoliosincreased by £53 million largely as aresult of provisions
being required against a small number of corporate exposures, reflecting the slowdown in economic growth, but also as a result
of a £30 million provision made against the Group’s loans and advances to one specific corporate customer, which total some
£70 million. Therewas an £18 million reduction in the provisions made against the consumer finance portfolio of Lloyds UDT
reflecting improved credit procedures.

Provisions overseas increased by £62 million, from £115 million to £177 million largely as aresult of a £55 million increase
in the general provision, taken as a measure of prudence, to cover ongoing credit difficulties in Argentina. Increased provisions
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against specific corporate exposures in Uruguay, Dubai and the Netherlands more than offset improvements in Colombia and
New Zeaand.

2000 compared with 1999

The total charge for bad and doubtful debts in 2000 decreased by 12 per cent to £541 million. The charge attributable to
Lloyds TSB Group’'s UK operations decreased to £426 million in 2000 from £500 million in 1999 largely due to the continuing
benign economic conditions which led to arevision to expected |ass rates within the persona lending and card portfolios and a
one-off benefit of £42 million arising from a change in methodol ogy in 2000 for retail provisioning to recognise more accurately
the amount that Lloyds TSB Group expects to recover. Previoudly, persona loans transferred to recovery departments were
provided against in full and recoveries credited to the profit and loss account when made. Under the revised methodology,
provisions are made to write the debt down to its estimated ultimate recoverable value. Recoveries areinitially credited against
the balance sheet carrying value of the debt and thereafter, to the profit and loss account.

Provisions overseas were unchanged at £115 million. A £14 million reduction in provisions in Colombia as the economy
started to recover from the recessionary conditions of the previous year, together with a £14 million increase in recoveries from
the provisions held against the emerging markets medium-term debt portfolio, offset a £25 million increase in provisions in
Argentinafollowing a deterioration in the economic environment.

Taxation

The rate of tax is influenced by the geographic and business mix of profits. In the absence of specia factors, LIoyds TSB
Group does not expect the tax rate to vary significantly from the average UK corporation tax rate.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profitSfor thE YA ........ccvviriiirrrr e 836 941 767
Adjustments in reSPECt Of PriOr YEAIS. ......cvvieirrerierie s sens (14) 3 21
822 944 788
DOUDIE TAXEON FEHES .......ovvoeeeeeerceeeeee s sssessss s sss s sss s s (87) (72) (45)
735 872 743
Foreign tax
Current tax on profitSfor thE YA ........ccvviriiirrrr e 179 137 110
Adjustments in reSPECt Of PriOr YEAIS. ......cvviieerrrerierie s (17) (5) 8
162 132 118
CUITENTE tBX CNAIGE....cvcvevererieireiereisre s e 897 1,004 861
DEFEITEO TBX ... vereeeretereeie sttt 73 100 245
Associated undertakings and jOINt VENTUIES..........occeeeerenereeinenensesissesessesisesesesesssessssesssens 1 1 5
QLI 47 o =TT 971 1,105 1,111
2001 compared with 2000

The effective rate of tax in 2001 was 27.4 per cent compared with 28.6 per cent in 2000; the corporation tax rate for both
yearswas 30 per cent. The lower effective tax rate in 2001 is largely due to tax relief on payments to the LIoyds TSB qualifying
share ownership trust to satisfy Save As You Earn options which reduced the effective rate by 1.7 per cent and gains on the
disposal of investments and properties sheltered by capital 1osses which reduced the effective rate by 1.1 per cent. See Note 9 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2000 compared with 1999

The effective rate of tax in 2000 was 28.6 per cent, compared with 30.4 per cent in 1999. These rates compare with an
average UK corporation tax rate for 2000 of 30 per cent and 30.25 per cent in 1999. The lower effective rate of tax in 2000 is
largely due to tax relief on payments to the L1oyds TSB qudifying employee share ownership trust to satisfy Save As You Earn
options which reduced the effective rate by 1.0 per cent, and gains on disposals of investments sheltered by capital losses which
reduced the effective rate by 0.4 per cent.

Economic profit
In pursuit of our aim to maximise shareholder value over time, management has for the last eleven years used a system of
value based management as a framework to identify and measure value creation. Management uses economic profit as a

measure of performance becauseit captures both growth in investment and return. Lloyds TSB Group defines economic profit as
the earnings on the equity invested in the business less anotional charge for the cost of the equity invested in that business.
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Lloyds TSB Group believes that economic profit instils financial discipline in determining investment decisions throughout
Lloyds TSB Group and that it enables Lloyds TSB Group to evauate aternative strategies objectively, with a clear
understanding of the value created by each strategy, and then to select the strategy which creates the greatest value. Awards to
senior executives under LIoyds TSB Group’s annual bonus arrangements are partly determined by the achievement of economic
profit targets.

Management only changes its estimates of the cost of equity to reflect significant changes in long-term interest rates and
other external market factors which are considered sustainable. The principal factor in estimating the cost of equity is sustainable
long-term interest rates. If long-term interest rates increase, management will consider raising its estimate of the cost of equity;
if long-term interest rates fall, management will consider reducing its estimate of the cost of equity. The principal other external
market factors considered are equity risk premium and LIoyds TSB Group'’s share price volatility relative to the UK stock market
asawhole. Any changeto the estimated cost of equity will be disclosed. For the last three years, management has used a cost of
equity of 9 per cent to reflect the shareholders’ minimum required rate of return on equity invested.

The table below summarises our cal culation of economic profit for the periods indicated.

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Average shareholders’ EQUILY........ccvrieeeeeeee ettt rerenes 10,638 9,638 8,468
Profit attributable to Shar€hOIdErS.........cvvvciicccc et 2,500 2,706 2,539
IS g o Mo = e 7= = T (957) (867) (762)
o010 0 T o3 o] () 1 AP 1,543 1,839 1,777

The notional charge has been calculated by multiplying average shareholders' equity by the cost of equity.

2001 compared with 2000

Economic profit fell by £296 million, or 16 per cent, from £1,839 million in 2000 to £1,543 million in 2001. Profit
attributable to shareholders fell by 8 per cent to £2,500 million and there was a higher notional charge on equity resulting from a
10 per cent increase in average equity from £9,638 million to £10,638 million.

2000 compared with 1999

Economic profit rose by £62 million, or 3 per cent, to £1,839 million from £1,777 million in 1999. Profit attributable to
shareholders increased by 7 per cent to £2,706 million but this was partly offset by a higher notional charge on equity resulting
from a 14 per cent increase in average equity to £9,638 million.

Lineof businessinformation

Management analyses the contribution of each line of business to Lloyds TSB Group’s overal profit attributable to
shareholders and economic profit after adjusting for certain items which either are not expected to recur or which are unusual in
nature, thereby hindering management’s analysis of trends. Those items, which had a significant impact on Lloyds TSB Group’s
2001 results, were:

short-term fluctuationsin investment returns;

exceptional restructuring costs;

Abbey National offer costs;

the provision for redress to past purchasers of pension policies; and

profit arising on sale of business.

In 2000, changes in the economic assumptions applied to the long-term assurance business and a charge relating to
stakeholder pensions were also significant items.
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Each of theseitemsis discussed later under “—Unusual items’ and is set out separately in the following table:

Summary
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
UK Retail Banking and MOMQAgES........ovuvevirrrrerrsresesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesssssssssssssssenes 1,588 1,665 1,657
INSUraNCE AN INVESIMENES .......ccviveiitieeti sttt sttt se b seebs st e st s e b s seebsseene e 1,601 1,425 843
Wholesale Markets and International Banking ..........cccceeeeeeiennrnnsssnsseerssesesesesenes 1,381 1,223 1,207
(O 011 I [0 o J) (=01 (108) (118) 119
CONEITDULION .ttt e 4,462 4,195 3,826
Unusual items:
Short-term fluctuations iN INVESIMENE FELUMNS.........ccvurirrererererie e sesseessesenas (648) (94) 58
Changesin eCONOMIC 8SSUMPLIONS .....c.vuieieierriierrrresssseessseeseesss s ss s s ens - 127 -
EXCceptional reStTUCIUNING COSES .......vureeireiierieirenesee ettt ssssts e sesss e sssssssesnnns (217) (188) -
Abbey National Offer COSES........vurrrere s (16) - -
Provisionsfor redressto past purchasers
Of PENSION POLICIES......cieceeiiricerie ettt en (70) (100) (102)
Stakeholder pension related Charge ..o e - (80) -
Profit (Ioss) on sale and closure of DUSINESSES........c.ovrienrenrscee e 39 - (126)
Profit DEFOIrETAX ..viiivieiticece e e e e b s bbb st e et se b stene e 3,550 3,860 3,656

In the analysis that follows, contribution is defined as profit before tax before taking into account the unusual items set out
under “ - Unusual items”.

UK Retail Banking and Mortgages

The UK retail businesses of Lloyds TSB Group provide banking and financial services to persona and small business

customers, private banking and stockbroking. Lloyds TSB Group’'s UK mortgage business is conducted through Cheltenham &
Gloucester, LIoyds TSB Bank, Lloyds TSB Scotland, Scottish Widows Bank and C& G TeleDirect.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
NEL INEENESE INCOME....vteveteieieieieieie ettt bbbttt ettt ettt ettt ettt besebeserates 3,115 2,951 2,943
(@191 S T(¢0 11T 1,141 1,143 1,087
QL0 = T 0003 1 4,256 4,094 4,030
OPEratiNg EXPENSES ....vcvrvrerererrrrirrissrresssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns (2,243) (2,099) (1,951)
QLIS o [0 TS g o L 2,013 1,995 2,079
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts.........cccevnicrnnerr e (415) (332 (425)
Income from associated undertakings and jOiNt VENTUFES.........c.coeverereenneneeeenereneeneeenens (10) 2 3
(70101 A1 o101 (oo FOu 1,588 1,665 1,657
Unusua items:
EXCeptional reStTUCIUNING COSLS......cuvviiieeirirenierieiresesee st sesses e sessss e ssssssssesesssssnens (150) (99) -
ProOfit DEFOI @ TAX.....ccviiecisici sttt st e bbb e et eseenas 1,438 1,566 1,657
EffICIENCY FBIO ..vveveveieicieieeieie ettt bbbt bbb pne 52.7% 51.3% 48.4%
0L =SS =t Y Y= = 1 ) I £77,915m £71,292m £64,346m
Total risk-weighted assets (Year-end) ........ccoeeveverirenenenenese s £48,141m £44,009m  £39,703m
2001 compared with 2000

The contribution, calculated as explained under “- Line of business information — Summary” from UK Retail Banking and
Mortgagesin 2001 fell by £77 million, or 5 per cent, to £1,588 million.

Total income increased by £162 million, or 4 per cent to £4,256 million. Net interest income increased by £164 million to
£3,115 million as growth in lending and savings balances, adding £241 million to income, more than offset a 12 basis point fall
in the margin, reducing net interest income by £77 million. Compared to 2000, period end persona loan and credit card balances
increased by 18 per cent and balances on current accounts and savings and investment accounts grew by 9 per cent. Mortgage
balances also increased. A key objective of Lloyds TSB Group is to grow its mortgage lending prudently but profitably. Asa
result of this focus, net new lending was lower than Lloyds TSB Group’s share of outstanding mortgage balances however the
net interest margin was little changed. Gross new mortgage lending increased by 21 per cent to £13,986 million compared with
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£11,518 million ayear ago, however net new lending was £3,919 million compared to £4,627 millionin 2000. Thisresulted in a
fal in Lloyds TSB Group's estimated market share of net new lending from 11.3 per cent to 7.1 per cent. Mortgage balances
outstanding at the end of 2001 amounted to £56,578 million compared to £52,659 million at the end of 2000, an estimated market
share of 9.5 per cent.

The net interest margin on retail lending products was 5 basis points lower, with improved margins on credit cards and
overdrafts following base rate cuts, offset by lower margins on personal loans due to a combination of a higher proportion of
lending being at concessionary rates offered to attract new business and higher average loan values which are provided at lower
interest rates. The retail deposit margin fell by 21 basis points as the lower interest rate environment reduced the benefit from
low interest rate and interest free current accounts. The margin on mortgage lending reduced by 1 basis point.

Other income decreased by £2 million to £1,141 million. There was a £21 million improvement in income earned from
credit and debit cards and income from added value current accounts increased by £19 million due to increased volumes. In
2001, profits on the sale and leaseback of premises totalled £57 million reflecting LIoyds TSB Group’s ongoing strategy, started
some years ago, to sell and lease back a number of branches to create greater flexibility in the changing environment for retail
sdes. Thiswaslargely offset by a£76 million decrease in income following the withdrawal of ATM fees and planned reductions
in unauthorised borrowing fees; stockbroking incomefell by £10 million due to lower transaction volumes.

Operating expenses increased by £144 million, or 7 per cent, to £2,243 million compared to £2,099 million in 2000.
Revenue investment expenditurein Lloyds TSB Group's growth businesses, information technology integration and e-commerce
amounted to £202 million in 2001 compared to £192 million in 2000. There was an increase in staff costs reflecting the growth
in staff numbers during the year as aresult of the recruitment of additional service and sales staff into the branch network and the
effect of the annual pay review. Communications costs were higher following revisions to network rental charges and the
depreciation charge increased reflecting the high levels of capital expenditure, particularly in respect of IT equipment, in 2000.
The efficiency ratio increased from 51.3 per cent in 2000 to 52.7 per cent in 2001.

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts increased by £83 million, or 25 per cent, to £415 million. During 2000 there was a
one-off benefit of £42 million as a result of a change in provisioning methodology following the centralisation of arrears
processing which was not repeated in 2001. There was an underlying increase of £52 million in the provisions charge against
personal lending and credit card lending, reflecting the increase in the size of the portfolios. There was a net release from the
provisions held against the mortgage portfolio of £24 million as a result of a £32 million reduction in the general provision
following a change in provisioning methodology; in 2000 there was a net release of provisions of £13 million.

Lloyds TSB Group's share of the results of its joint venture operations was a loss of £10 million, due to start-up costs
incurred by Goldfish Bank.

2000 compared with 1999
The contribution from UK Retail Banking and Mortgages in 2000 rose by £8 million to £1,665 million.

Tota income in 2000 increased by £64 million to £4,094 million. Net interest income increased by £8 million to
£2,951 million due to acombination of two factors.

Growth in lending and deposit balances increased net interest income by £209 million. Persona lending and credit card
balances increased by 9 per cent since the end of 1999 and savings and investment products grew by 10 per cent over the same
period; lending to small and medium-sized businesses increased by 13 per cent during 2000 and there was a 14 per cent increase
in customer deposits. Despite competitive market conditions, Lloyds TSB Group increased its market share of residential
mortgages. Gross new lending increased by 8 per cent to £11,518 million compared with £10,710 million in 1999, and net new
lending was £4,627 million compared to £2,791 million in 1999, representing a market share of 11.3 per cent. Mortgages
outstanding at the end of 2000 amounted to £52,659 million compared to £47,451 million at the end of 1999, an estimated market
share of 9.8 per cent.

The benefit of this balance sheet growth was largely offset by significant erosion in the net interest margin. The net interest
margin fell by 33 basis points with reductions in most areas; the mortgage margin fell 23 basis points and the margin for retail
lending products was 74 basis points lower largely reflecting the competitive market conditions. Retail deposit margins aso fell
as there was a continuing switch to higher rate products. The effect of the lower margins has been to reduce net interest income
by £201 million.

Other income in 2000 increased by £56 million, or 5 per cent, to £1,143 million. There was a £13 million increase in loan
arrangement fees, reflecting lending growth and arevised charging structure introduced in the second half of the year and income
from credit and debit cards increased by £18 million principally due to increases in late payment charges and merchant
commissions. Feesfrom Lloyds TSB Group’s Added Value current accounts improved by £17 million, net of package costs, asa
result of volume growth. ATM charges grew by £16 million following their introduction in late 1999, although these have
subsequently been withdrawn. Private banking and stockbroking income increased by £14 million as a result of higher
transaction volumes. However, unauthorised overdraft fees fell by £31 million following their withdrawal for certain customers
and the benefit of a£6 million increase in mortgage application fees, reflecting the growth in volumes in this business, was offset
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by a£1 million increase in legal fees incurred setting up the mortgage and not recharged to customers as part of a marketing

initiative and the introduction of payments to intermediaries to encourage them to introduce new business to LIoyds TSB Group,
which resulted in additional costs of £2 million.

Operating expenses in 2000 increased by £148 million, or 8 per cent. The efficiency ratio increased from 48.4 per cent in
1999 to 51.3 per cent in 2000. The increase in expenses was largely attributable to revenue investment in developing e
commerce, wealth management and customer relationship management programmes, resulting in additional costs of
approximately £100 million. Outside of these growth businesses there was an increase in staff costs; athough there was a
reduction in headcount, this was mainly due to the outsourcing of Lloyds TSB Group's clearing operations in December 2000
and therefore the benefit has yet to appear in the profit and loss account. There was also an increase in depreciation of
approximately £30 million as a result of significant capital expenditure on new computer equipment for the branch network in
the second half of 1999.

Provisions for bad and doubtful debtsin 2000 fell by £93 million, or 22 per cent, to £332 million. This was principaly a
result of areduction of £83 million in the charge against the personal lending and credit card portfolios reflecting the continuing
benign economic conditions which led to arevision to anticipated loss rates and a one-off benefit of £42 million arising from a
change in methodology in 2000 for retail provisioning to recognise more accurately the amount that Lloyds TSB Group expects
to recover. There was a net release of provisions held against the mortgage portfolio totalling £13 million reflecting growth in
residential house prices which hasled to an increase in the value of the security held.

I nsurance and | nvestments

Lloyds TSB Group's insurance and investments activities comprise the life, pensions and unit trust businesses of Scottish
Widows and Abbey Life, general insurance underwriting and broking, and Scottish Widows Investment Partnership.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Contribution by area of business
Life, pensions and unit trusts
Scottish Widows (including banCassurance) ..........cceevrenneneennesseenesesessesesessessnens 715 629 222
ADBDEY LIT@.ieeeet bbb 199 169 138
914 798 360
GENENEl INSUMAINCE .....veeeeiireces ettt ettt sntes 668 587 461
1,582 1,385 821
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership..........cocceerennenseeinesenses s ssesessees 19 40 22
CONETTDULTION. ...ttt bbb 1,601 1,425 843
Unusud items:
Short-term fluctuations iN INVESEMENE FELUMNS .......c.ccvieieeirrereisee s esesenas (648) (94) 58
Changesin economiC aSSUMPLIONS ......covveverirerirerereresesesesesesesesese s s sesesssssesssesssssenes - 127 -
EXceptional reStrUCIUNING COSES......cuvviiuriireririeinireneesisresesses st sesses s sssssssesesssnsnens (50) (59) -
Provisionsfor redress to past purchasers of pension poliCies........coceceeeeeeeieeeenenns (70) (100) (102)
Stakeholder pension related Charge ... - (80) -
PrOfit DEFOr @ TAX ... ieeereerericee e bbb 833 1,219 799
2001 compared with 2000

The contribution from Insurance and Investments in 2001, calculated as explained under “- Line of business information —
Summary”, increased by £176 million, or 12 per cent, to £1,601 million from £1,425 million. The contribution from Lloyds TSB
Group'’s life, pensions and unit trusts businesses increased by £116 million, or 15 per cent, to £914 million. The market for
medium and long-term investments was adversely affected in the second half of the year, as a consequence of the events of
September 11 and the general declinein global stock markets. However, weighted sales (regular premiums plus one-tenth single
premiums) increased by 12 per cent helped by the inclusion of Scottish Widows for the full twelve months. See “- Line of
business information — Life, pensions and unit trusts.”

The contribution from general insurance operations increased by £81 million, or 14 per cent, to £668 million. There was
continued growth in sales of card and loan protection products which resulted in an £87 million improvement in profits from
broking activities, although there was a £6 million reduction in profits from the underwriting business following a 23 per cent
increase in claims expense due to higher property claims. See“- Line of businessinformation — General insurance’.

During 2001 Scottish Widows Investment Management and Hill Samuel Asset Management were fully integrated into
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership (' SWIP). A complete overhaul of the management structure has a so been undertaken,
together with a fundamental review of investment philosophy, processes and systems. The contribution from SWIP in 2001 was
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£19 million compared to £40 million in 2000, the reduction in profitability being partly driven by lower stock market levels. At

the end of the year SWIP had some £78,000 million of funds under management compared to some £87,000 million at
31 December 2000. Thedecline has been primarily caused by the lower stock market levels experienced in 2001.

2000 compared with 1999

The contribution from Insurance and Investments in 2000 increased by 69 per cent to £1,425 million from £843 million in
1999, largely as aresult of the inclusion, since 3 March 2000, of Scottish Widows. Since that date, the contribution of Scottish
Widows was £373 million, before funding costs of £258 million.

The contribution from the life, pensions and unit trusts businesses in 2000 increased by £438 million to £798 million with
Scottish Widows contributing £363 million of this increase. Weighted sales (regular premiums plus one-tenth of single
premiums) of life, pensions and unit trusts increased by 40 per cent as the sale, on 1 February 2000, of the new business
capability of Abbey Life was more than offset by the inclusion, from 3 March 2000, of Scottish Widows. See “—Line of
business information—L ife, pensions and unit trusts.”

The contribution from general insurance operationsin 2000 rose by £126 million, or 27 per cent, to £587 million. Increased
sadles volumes, particularly of creditor insurance products following the outsourcing of the portfolio and higher retrospective
commissions led to a £71 million increase in profits from broking activities. Retrospective commissions are a form of profit
sharing arrangement between the broking operation and an external underwriter. The profits earned by the underwriter are
shared with the broker on the basis of a pre-determined formula. Underwriting profits were £55 million higher, helped by a
£27 million reduction in claims costs. See “—L.ine of business information—General insurance”.

The merger of Scottish Widows Investment Management and Hill Samuel Asset Management was completed on 30 June
2000, and the enlarged asset management operation was launched under a new brand, Scottish Widows Investment Partnership.
The acquisition of Scottish Widows and the subsequent creation of SWIP, with approximately £87,000 million of funds under
management, has enabled Lloyds TSB Group to become a leading player in the UK asset management business. The
contribution from Lloyds TSB Group's investment management activities in 2000 was £40 million, up 82 per cent from
£22 million in 1999, largely as a result of the inclusion of the Scottish Widows investment management business, which
contributed £10 million in 2000.

Life, pensionsand unit trusts

The results of the life, pensions and unit trust businesses are analysed in the following table. The basis of thisanalysisisas
follows:

The life and pensions results are split into four elements:

New business: this represents the value recognised at the end of each financial year from the new business written
during that year after taking into account the cost of establishing technical provisions and reserves. This is shown
before the significant costs of acquiring that new business, which are shown separately as‘ Distribution costs'.

Existing business: this comprises the following elements:

- the expected return arising from the unwinding of the discount applied to the expected cash flows at the beginning
of ayear;

- experience variances caused by differences between the actual experience during that year and the expected
experience; and

- theeffects of changesin assumptions, other than economic assumptions, and other items.

Investment earnings: this represents the expected return on both the net tangible assets and the value of the
shareholder’ sinterest in the long-term business account, based upon the economic assumptions made at the beginning of
ayear.

Distribution costs: the costs of acquiring the new business generated in that year are shown separately. These comprise
the cost of selling products through Lloyds TSB Bank’ s branch network, the commissions paid to independent financial
advisers and the costs of other direct sales channels.

Unit trust income is shown before the acquisition costs of new business which are separately disclosed.



2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
NEW DUSINESS ...t sttt 362 297 148
Existing business:
= {0 1< ol (=0 I (1o 374 334 203
= EXPENTENCE VAITBNCES......cceceteesceeisisesesses et sess b s bbbttt sessse e snsnsess 37 36 26
- assumption changes and Other ITEMS..........cocvrrrnce e 95 96 (13)
506 466 216
RV g gc g A== T e 247 212 38
Lifeand pensions distribULION COSES.......onmrinninrie e sesneees (247) (225) (99)
868 750 303
UNIT EPUSES ..ottt 143 157 138
UnNit trust distriDULION COSES......cueuveriereeiririienis s sses e sessss e seses s sessenes (97) (109) (81)
46 48 57
Contribution of life, pensionsand UNit trUSES .......ccccccceecceeeee e 914 798 360
Contribution of asset MaNagEMENT ... rererenes 19 40 22
Unusud items:
Short-term fluctuations iN INVESIMENE FELUMNNS ........coveerierreeeere s (602) (67) 36
Changesin ecoNOMIC aSSUMPLIONS .......cvereiriereririrsrsrssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssens - 127 -
EXceptional reStrUCtUNING COSES.......cvuerririieririrenierie st sseststsesessestsssesss s sesssessesenns (50) (59) -
Provisionsfor redress to past purchasers of pension poliCies.........covvvvvvvnvvnenenens (70) (100) (102)
Stakeholder pension related Charge........cocvcnnce s - (80) -
PrOfit DEFOr @ TAX ....cvieiiieeirrereee e 211 659 316

The table below shows the level of new business premium income and unit trust sales. Management monitor these figures
because they provide an indication of both the rate of growth and the profitability of the business.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

New business premium incomeand unit trust sales:
LS o 0 0= 0T L 282.0 156.9 1294
SINGIE PIEMIUMIS ....vcvverevetetete ettt ettt sttt et e bt be b et e be b et et ebeb et ebetebebebebebetetetetetetasarases 2,741.0 2,376.1 796.7
L0 T 1 1 T 1,400.5 1,993.3 1,770.2

Weighted sales is a UK insurance industry standard which measures the new business volumes; the weighting is made
towards regular premium policies to reflect the long-term nature of these contracts. There are three main distribution channels
for the sale of Lloyds TSB Group's life, pension and unit trust products and the table below shows the relative importance of
each.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

Welghted sales (regular + 1/10 single) by distribution channel:
(T2 e T 0 1Yo T 376.2 3533 355.2
Independent fiNaNCIal BAVISEY'S ..o e 279.8 254.9 928
D= TS 98.7 67.6 9.3
754.7 675.8 457.3

2001 compared with 2000

The contribution in 2001 calculated as explained under “- Line of business information — Summary”, of the life, pensions
and unit trust businesses increased by £116 million, or 15 per cent, to £914 million from £798 million.

New business income from the life and pensions businesses increased in 2001 by £65 million or 22 per cent, from
£297 million to £362 million following a 41 per cent increase in weighted sales, primarily as aresult of the inclusion of Scottish
Widows for afull year, compared with only ten months in 2000. During the year, the life and pensions new business margin,
defined as new business income less distribution costs divided by weighted sales, increased to 20.7 per cent from 18.5 per cent in
2000. Thisimprovement was largely aresult of cost efficiencies driven by process enhancements, which limited the increase in
distribution coststo 10 per cent, together with an improved product mix.

The growth in the weighted sales of life and pensions products was mainly due to an 80 per cent increase in the sales of
regular premium products from £156.9 million to £282.0 million. The inclusion of Scottish Widows for the full year compared
to only ten months in 2000 added £17.1 million with the remainder of the growth largely due to the launch of stakeholder
pension products in April 2001. During 2001, Scottish Widows became the nominated stakeholder pensions provider for a
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number of associations and employers which gives access to more than 46,000 employers. Over 20,000 employers have aready
nominated Scottish Widows as their stakeholder pensions provider resulting in 837,000 employees being offered stakeholder
pensions. In 2001, weighted sales of stakeholder pension products totalled £76 million, amarket share of 15 per cent based upon
management estimates.

Sales of single premium life and pensions products increased by £364.9 million, or 15 per cent, to £2,741.0 million. The
inclusion of Scottish Widows for afull year accounted for £174.3 million of thisincrease, the remainder of the growth being due
to higher sales of the Scottish Widows with-profits bond through the branch network distribution channel. With-profits bonds
comprise alump-sum investment into a with-profits fund of alife insurance company. With-profit bonds are designed to be low
risk investments which produce growth and alow the investor to take out money when needed. The overal return on the
investment varies based on the annual bonuses declared by the life insurance company each year, which in turn will depend upon
the performance of itsinvestments. During a period of considerable volatility on the world’s stock markets, customers regarded
this as a safer investment than unit trusts and Individual Savings Accounts (ISAS).

Existing business earnings increased by 9 per cent from £466 million to £506 million. The expected return from existing
business increased by £40 million, or 12 per cent, to £374 million. This reflects the unwinding of the long-term discount rate
applied to the expected cash flows from the portfolio of in-force business; the increase reflects the growth in the size of the
portfolio.

It is standard practice for life companies to regularly review the underlying assumptions that support the embedded value
calculations, taking into account latest experience in respect of lapse rates, expense inflation, investment mix, mortality rates and
other items. In 2000, this review, together with some tax-related adjustments, resulted in a benefit of £96 million. 1n 2001, this

review, together with the planned harmonisation of actuarial models between Scottish Widows and other Lloyds TSB Group
companies, resulted in a benefit of £95 million.

Investment earnings in 2001, before taking into account short-term fluctuations in investment returns (see “—Unusua items—
short-term fluctuations in investment returns”) increased by £35 million, due to the inclusion of Scottish Widows for the full year
and the growth in the size of the investment portfolio supporting the business.

Profits from the unit trust business fell by £2 million, to £46 million. Continued customer focus upon the Scottish Widows
with-profits bond and uncertainty created by global stock market volatility resulted in a 29 per cent fal in weighted saes.
However, this was only partly reflected in the decline in profitability of the business because of the income earned from fees
charged for managing customers' fundsinvested in earlier years.

2000 compared with 1999

The contribution of Lloyds TSB Group's life, pensions and unit trusts businesses in 2000 was £438 million higher at
£798 million, compared to £360 million in 1999; these results were significantly affected by Lloyds TSB Group’s acquisition of
Scottish Widows, which was effective 3 March 2000.

In 2000, new business profitsincreased by £149 million due to the acquisition of Scottish Widows. Excluding the impact of
Scottish Widows new business profits were down £15 million largely as a result of the sale of the new business capability of
Abbey Life at the beginning of 2000; Abbey Life contributed £11 million of new business profitsin 1999. New business profits
of the existing LIoyds TSB bancassurance business were £4 million lower at £133 million. Weighted sales through the branch
network were little changed from 1999, as considerable time was spent training sales staff on the newly introduced Scottish
Widows product line.

Regular premium sales in 2000 increased by £27.5 million largely reflecting two factors. The acquisition of Scottish
Widows resulted in an increase of £89.0 million which more than offset the effect of a decrease in sales of £51.8 million caused
by the sdle of the new business capability of Abbey Life at the beginning of 2000. Sales in the Lloyds TSB bancassurance
business were down £9.7 million at £64.6 million principally asaresult of the withdrawa of the endowment mortgage product.

Single premium sales rose £1,579.4 million in 2000, with Scottish Widows contributing £1,572.8 million which more than
offset areduction in sales of £264.4 million at Abbey Life following the sale of the new business capability. Salesin the Lloyds
TSB bancassurance single premium business grew following the introduction of the new with-profits bond.

Profits from existing business were £250 million higher a £466 million in 2000, and Scottish Widows contributed
£152 million of thisincrease. Excluding the impact of Scottish Widows, existing business profits were up £98 million. Existing
business profits at Abbey Life were little changed from 1999 but those in the Lloyds TSB bancassurance business rose by
£72 million as a result of the growth in the size of the business and following changes in the underlying actuarial assumptions,
and some tax related adjustments.

Investment earnings in 2000, before taking into account short-term fluctuations in investment returns (see “—Short-term
fluctuations in investment returns’), increased by £174 million, athough excluding Scottish Widows the increase was
£17 million. Investment earnings in the LIoyds TSB bancassurance business were £1 million higher than in 1999, and those a
Abbey Life rose £16 million reflecting the benefit of the additional funds retained to match annuity liabilities and the higher
surplus released following the cessation of new business.
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Life and pensions distribution costs in 2000 were £126 million higher at £225 million, although excluding Scottish Widows
the increase was £19 million, reflecting the increased cost of branch network sales.

Unit trust profits were down £9 million at £48 million; down £16 million excluding Scottish Widows. Profits at Abbey Life

were unchanged from 1999, but those in the Lloyds TSB bancassurance business were down £16 million reflecting a 7 per cent
reduction in weighted sales and the increased costs of branch network sales.

Excluding the impact of the acquisition of Scottish Widows, unit trust salesfell by £276.5 million. Salesin the Lloyds TSB
bancassurance business fell as aresult of the focus of customers' interest on the new with-profits bond product and the fact that
sales in 1999 had been high due to the impact of changes to government tax legidation which withdrew Personal Equity Plans
(PEPs) and introduced 1SAs with effect from 6 April 1999. These are both tax efficient savings schemes however the maximum
unit trust investment was reduced from £9,000 to £7,000. The impact of these tax changes resulted in an increase in unit trust
salesin 1999, prior to the reduction in the investment limits.

General Insurance

The following table shows premium income from underwriting and commission income from insurance broking.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Premium income from underwriting
L0 =01 (o] SO TSSO 110 126 136
HOIMIE .ttt e b bbb 281 228 203
HEAITN ... 45 50 55
L@ 1 07 oSO ST TSSO - - 1
REINSUFENCE PIrEMIUIMS ....c.ciiriieresirese sttt sttt s e (8) (5) (5)
428 399 390
Commissionsfrom insurance broking
L0 = 01 (o] SO PSSR 323 225 175
HOMIE e 41 34 35
HEAITN ... 22 19 21
L@ 1 07 TSSOSO TSP 142 120 96
528 398 327
Contribution 668 587 461
Unusud items:
Short-term fluctuations in INVESIMENE FELUMS ........cocovvivirineninerenesesese s (46) (27) 22
PrOfit DEFOr @ TAX ...ucviiieceeirirerrce bbb 622 560 483
2001 compared with 2000

The contribution, calculated as explained under “- Line of business information — Summary”, from general insurance
operations, comprising both underwriting and broking activities, rose by £81 million, or 14 per cent, to £668 millionin 2001.

The contribution from the underwriting business fell in 2001 by £6 million to £224 million. Premium income increased by
£29 million, or 7 per cent, due to a £53 million increase in premium income from home insurance partly due to the successful
cross-sdlling of this product by Cheltenham & Gloucester to its mortgage customers. This more than offset a decline of
£16 million in income from creditor insurance caused by the transfer of the card protection book to Norwich Union in the second
half of 2000. Premiumsfrom health insurance fell by £5 million and reinsurance premiums increased by £3 million.

Genera insurance claims increased by £32 million or 23 per cent to £174 million. The claims ratio was 39.9 per cent
compared to 35.1 per cent in 2000, reflecting higher property claims.

The contribution from the broking business increased by £87 million or 24 per cent to £444 million due to an increase in
commission income of £130 million. Creditor insurance sales increased by £98 million as a result of the growth in Lloyds TSB
Group's personal lending and credit card portfolios and the success of the branch network selling related income protection
products. In addition, there was a £22 million increase in other commissions as a benefit of £30 million resulting from a one-off
change in broking arrangements more than offset afall in the level of retrospective commissions. There was afall in investment
earnings reflecting the lower interest rate environment and costs increased by £28 million to support the higher business
volumes.

2000 compared with 1999

The contribution from general insurance operations, comprising underwriting and broking, rose by £126 million, or 27 per
cent, to £687 million in 2000.
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The contribution from the underwriting business in 2000 increased by £55 million to £230 million. Premium income
increased by £9 million, or 2 per cent, as a £25 million growth in income from home insurance policies more than offset a
£10 million fal in creditor protection premiums as a result of the transfer of the card protection book to Norwich Union in the
second half of 2000. Sales of home insurance poalicies increased by 10 per cent, with strong growth in both branch network and
direct sales. Overall new business salesin 2000 were over 2.4 million, 14 per cent higher than in 1999, of which over 900,000
were homeinsurance policies.

Investment income in 2000, before taking into account short-term fluctuations in investment returns (see “Short-term
fluctuationsin investment returns”), increased by £12 million reflecting the growth in the size of the portfolio and expenses were
largely unchanged. General insurance claimswere £27 million lower benefiting from lower levels of unemployment, resulting in
alower level of claims on loan protection policies, and a reduction in general household perils, particularly theft. The overal
claims ratio, calculated as being claims as a proportion of premium income, before reinsurance, was 35.1 per cent compared to
42.8 per centin 1999.

The contribution from the broking business increased by £71 million to £357 million. Broking commission income
increased by £71 million. There was a £19 million increase in card protection income following the transfer of the book to
Norwich Union. Card protection insurance is a product which insures the repayment of an outstanding balance on the insured
credit card where payments are unable to be met due to sickness, death or unemployment. The underwriting margins on card
protection business are small and as aresult, in the first half of 2000, L1oyds TSB Group took the decision that in future it would
only act as broker and no longer underwrite this business. Responsibility for managing the in-force portfolio was transferred to
Norwich Union, a major UK provider of similar protection products. All premiums earned and claims recognised up until the
date of transfer were accounted for by Lloyds TSB Group; following the transfer al premiums and claims were accounted for by
Norwich Union. No profit or loss was recognised in LIoyds TSB Group’s accounts as a result of this transfer. Loan protection
income increased by £18 million reflecting increased sales volumes and retrospective commissions which are based on the
performance of the policies sold grew by £23 million. Operating expenses were largely unchanged.

Wholesale Markets and I nternational Banking

Lloyds TSB Group’'s Wholesale Markets and International Banking business comprises banking, treasury, large value lease
finance, long-term agricultura finance, share registration, venture capital, factoring and invoice discounting, and other related
services for mgjor UK and multinational companies, banks and financia ingtitutions, and medium-sized UK businesses, and
other forms of asset finance. It aso includes banking and financial services overseas in four main areas (the Americas, New
Zedland, Europe, and Offshore Banking) and emerging markets debt.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
NEL INTEIESE INCOME ..ot 1,858 1,653 1,664
(@191 S 151070 121 1,325 1,065 884
0 = N1 21001 3,183 2,718 2,548
OPEraliNg EXPENSES .....veeerereresesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesesssesesesssesesssssssessssssssssssnsnes (1,410) (1,254) (1,144)
QLI 0100 =T g o] L1 1,773 1,464 1,404
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts...........ccovvnrnrnreinne s (332) (209) (190)
Amountswritten off fixed asset INVESIMENES........coovvvvninnnnnsee (60) (32) (7)
CONETTDULION. ...ttt 1,381 1,223 1,207
Unusual items:

Exceptional reStructuring COSES.........vuureeiririmeninireneesiniresesseesesessesssssesssssssnesenns (17) (30) -
Profit DEfOr @ TAX....iiiiitiecicece e e s e 1,364 1,193 1,207
EffICIENCY FaIO ...veviveieieieieieieieee ettt rerenas 44.3% 46.1% 44.9%
Total assets (PEOT-EN) .......cccviriiirrrrcrerr e £101,471m £86,030m £81,922m
Total risk-weighted assets (Period-end) ... £59,307m £48,858m £43,522m

2001 compared with 2000

The contribution, calculated as explained under “- Line of business information — Summary”, from Wholesale Markets and
International Banking in 2001 increased by £158 million, or 13 per cent, to £1,381 million from £1,223 million in 2000. In 2001,
the contribution from Chartered Trust was £19 million compared to £1 million during the four months of ownership in 2000.

Total income increased by £465 million, or 17 per cent, from £2,718 million to £3,183 million. Net interest income
increased by £205 million to £1,858 million; the inclusion of Chartered Trust for a full year accounted for £85 million of this
increase, after funding costs, giving an underlying growth of £120 million, or 7 per cent. This increase resulted primarily from
positive interest rate management and asset growth.

Period end assets increased by £15,441 million, or 18 per cent, to £101,471 million. Of this increase, over £9,000 million
resulted from a growth in debt securities reflecting an increase in Lloyds TSB Group'’s asset backed and other investment grade
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securities, many of which weretriple A rated. A high percentage of these assets, which are very liquid and marketable, have low
capital weightings and represent a profitable deployment of Lloyds TSB Group's capital at a time when marginsin this area are
improving. Period end lending to corporate and commercial customers increased by some £3,900 million as a result of a
significant growth in term and money market lending and short-term lending to specialist investment funds and UK and US
insurance companies. Within International Banking, period end assets grew by £2,427 million primarily as a result of corporate
and consumer lending growth in New Zealand and Brazil.

The net interest margin was little changed. The benefits of positive interest rate management in the treasury operations in
the UK and improved margins in New Zealand more than offset lower margins earned on corporate and commercia lending
balances due to competitive pressures and reductions in the margin in Brazil. Adverse exchange rate movements, mainly in
Brazil, reduced net interest income by £59 million.

Other income increased by £260 million; the inclusion of Chartered Trust for a full year accounted for £126 million of this
increase giving an underlying growth of £134 million, or 13 per cent. There was a£54 million increase in operating lease rentals
from Lloyds UDT and Lloyds TSB Leasing as a result of growth in the portfolio and a £26 million increase in fees from large
corporate activity, factoring and following the completion of a number of high quality structured finance transactions. Income
from share registration activities increased by £12 million and dealing profits from the treasury operations improved, benefiting
from opportunities created from certain exposures arising within LIoyds TSB Group’ sinsurance businesses.

Overseas, other income increased by £19 million as increased profits from the sale of emerging market investments of
£51 million and an increase in feeincomein New Zealand of £10 million were partly offset by adverse exchange rate movements
of £24 million and a reduction of £19 million in fee income from Lloyds TSB Group’s overseas wealth management businesses,
reflecting lower stock market values.

Operating expenses increased by £156 million; the inclusion of Chartered Trust for a full year added £166 million of costs
giving an underlying reduction of £10 million. Operating lease depreciation within Lloyds UDT and Lloyds TSB Leasing
increased by £13 million, despite a £23 million reduction in the depreciation charge on certain ship leases. Overseas operating
expenses reduced by £26 million; increased operating costs in New Zealand of £13 million and Brazil of £12 million, to support
higher business volumes, were more than offset by a £46 million benefit from exchange rate movements.

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts increased by £123 million; the inclusion of Chartered Trust for afull year resulted in
an increase of £27 million giving an underlying growth of £96 million. The growth in the charge was mainly attributable to a
£55 million increase in the general provision following the recent economic difficulties in Argentina. At 31 December 2001,
Lloyds TSB Group’stotal exposure to Argentinawas some £715 million. Lloyds TSB Group's local balance sheet in Argentina
had assets totalling £465 million, approximately two-thirds of these were dollar denominated. Some two-thirds of the loca
balance sheet relates to retail and business customer lending and mortgages, with cash and liquidity, and lending to banks
representing the majority of the remainder. In addition, Lloyds TSB Group has offshore loans of some £150 million to
subsidiaries of major multinational companies with Argentine operations, and some £100 million of Argentine Government
bonds held centrally.

The charge for provisions for bad and doubtful debts relating to the corporate and commercial lending portfolios increased
by £53 million largely as a result of new provisions required against a small number of corporate exposures whilst other
provisions oversess increased by £7 million. There was an £18 million reduction in the charge against the consumer finance
portfolio of LIoyds UDT due to improved credit control procedures.

Amounts written off fixed asset investments increased by £28 million following a provision of £45 million against the

carrying value of Argentine Government debt. In 2000, a provision of £18 million was required against part of the emerging
market investment portfolio.

2000 compared with 1999

The contribution from Wholesale Markets and International Banking in 2000 increased by £16 million, or 1 per cent, to
£1,223 million from £1,207 million in 1999.

Total income increased by £170 million, or 7 per cent, to £2,718 million. Net interest income fell by £11 million to
£1,653 million; the acquisition of Chartered Trust resulted in an additional £31 million of income, after funding costs, and
therefore the underlying decrease was £42 million, or 3 per cent. Within the UK, net interest income from Lloyds TSB Group’s
Treasury operationsfell by £31 million; the resultsin 1999 benefited from sterling and US dollar interest rate reductions whilst in
2000 a more stable interest rate environment and higher short dated funding costs resulted in a 16 basis point reduction in the
margin. In Lloyds TSB Group’s asset finance business lower new business volumes and significant margin erosion resulted in a
£57 million fal in net interest income. However, in the Corporate and Commercial businesses higher volumes of both lending
and deposits combined to produce a£30 million increase in net interest income.

Overseas, a 15 per cent increase in lending volumes by Lloyds TSB Group’s consumer finance business in Brazil and a
change in product mix resulting in an improvement in the net interest margin, led to a£27 million increase in net interest income.
Net interest income grew by £13 million in New Zealand in local currency terms, largely due to a change in business mix
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resulting in an improvement in the margin, and by £17 million in the European and offshore banking operations. However, these
factors were largely offset by adverse exchange rate movements of £15 million, principally in New Zealand, and lower income
from Lloyds TSB Group's other activities in Brazil as volumes and margins have contracted resulting in a £16 million fall in
revenues.

Other income increased by £181 million; the acquisition of Chartered Trust resulted in the inclusion of an additional
£53 million and therefore the underlying increase was £128 million, or 14 per cent. Venture capital gains were £21 million
higher and increased volumes of operating leases resulted in a £36 million increase in rental income. Fee income from large
corporate activity in the UK and overseas increased by £15 million as a result of higher transaction volumes and there was a
£9 million increase in factoring income. Within Lloyds TSB Group's Treasury operations, dealing profits increased by
£20 million largely as a result of increased levels of activity but also reflecting more favourable market conditions for foreign
exchange operations following the introduction of the euro at the beginning of 1999. There was also a £15 million reduction in
fees paid by Lloyds UDT because of lower transaction volumes. Fee income from Lloyds TSB Group’s offshore and European
private banking operations increased by £24 million, mainly due to higher transaction volumes in the strong equity markets,
however this was offset by reductionsin the Latin American operations, reflecting more competitive market conditionsin Brazil
and the contraction of the businessesin Argentinaand Colombia.

Operating expenses increased by £110 million; the acquisition of Chartered Trust added £71 million and therefore the
underlying increase was £39 million, or 3 per cent. In the UK, higher volumes of operating lease assets resulted in a £21 million
increase in the depreciation charge and there was also a £10 million investment in a number of e-commerceinitiatives. Overseas,
costswere £12 million higher in the European and offshore banking operations as transaction volumes increased and £7 million
higher in Brazil, mainly as a result of increased staff, data processing and telecommunications costs. However, costs in New
Zealand were £14 million lower benefiting from the continuing synergies arising from the integration of Countrywide Banking
Corporation.

The charge for provisions for bad and doubtful debts increased by £19 million; provisions made by Chartered Trust post-
acquisition added £12 million and therefore the underlying increase was £7 million, or 4 per cent. Provisions were £14 million
lower in Colombia as the economy started to recover from the recessionary conditions of the previous year and there were
increased recoveries of £14 million from the provisons held against the emerging markets medium-term debt portfolio.
However, the charge in Argentina increased by £25 million with the continuing effects of the recession impacting the level of
both retail and corporate provisions and in the UK there was a £4 million increase in the provisions held against corporate and
commercial exposures.

Amountswritten off fixed asset investments increased to £32 million from £7 million as Lloyds TSB Group has expanded its
venture capital investment portfolio in the UK and a provision of £18 million was required against part of the emerging market
investment portfalio.

Central group items

Included within Central group items are the costs of Lloyds TSB Group support functions, the accrua for the annua
payment to Lloyds TSB Foundations, the net earnings on that part of Lloyds TSB Group’s capital base which is not required to
support the operations of the business units and other items of income and expenditure managed centrally.

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Accrud for payment to LIoyds TSB FOUNAALIONS .........cccvvereeinirenierinrnesie s (36) (34) (31)
Earnings on excess capital, central costs and other unallocated items ..., (72) (84) 150
(@00 0] 1o 0] o o T (108) (118) 119

UNUSUBL TTEITIS ..ottt st bbbttt
Abbey National Offer COSIS.....uviiirrrrrrr e (16) - -
Profit(loss) on sale and Closure Of DUSINESSES ........coccveirnreeinineneiee s 39 - (126)
(0SS o1 o] =Y -V TSP (85) (118) (7)
2001 compared with 2000

The four independent Lloyds TSB Foundations support registered charities throughout the UK that enable people,
particularly disabled and disadvantaged people, to play afuller role in society. The Foundations receive one per cent of Lloyds
TSB Group's pre-tax profit averaged over three years instead of the dividend on their shareholdings. The increased chargeis a
réetflection of the continued growth in the average profitability of LIoyds TSB Group. See Note 40 to the Consolidated Financial

atements.

Earnings on surplus capital, central costs and other unallocated items, was £12 million better than in 2000. A full year's
funding cost of the consideration for the acquisition of Scottish Widows, compared to ten months in 2000, was offset by the
gradual build-up of surplus capital and some £30 million of benefits to Lloyds TSB Group capital from changes in interest rate
hedging arrangements.
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2000 compared with 1999

The increased accrua for the payment to Lloyds TSB Foundations in 2000 is a reflection of the growth in Lloyds TSB
Group’s profit beforetax. The significant fall in the level of earnings on excess capital, central costs and other unallocated items
in 2000 reflects the incorporation, for the first time, of the funding cost of the purchase of Scottish Widows. At the end of 2000
Lloyds TSB Group had little excess capital.

Unusual items

In this section of the Operating and Financial Review and Prospects, LIoyds TSB Group discussesin detail certain items that
had a significant impact on Lloyds TSB Group's results and which either are not expected to recur or which are unusua in
nature, thereby hindering management’s analysis of trends. 1n 2001 these unusual items were:

short-term fluctuationsin investment returns;

exceptional restructuring costs;

Abbey National offer costs;

the provision for redress to past purchasers of pension policies; and

profit arising on sale of business.

In 2000, changes in the economic assumptions applied to the long-term assurance business and a charge relating to
stakeholder pensions were also significant items.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Short-term fluctuations in INVESIMEN FELUMNS.........covierrrece s sesnees (648) (94) 58
Changesin eCONOMIC 8SSUMPLIONS ....cvivviririniriiesesese s s s - 127 -
EXCEPtional rESTUCIUNING COSES .....ecvvvriierieirerinreeiseseseeses st sss e sesssessesessssssssesssssssnesenne (217) (188) -
Abbey National Offer COSIS.......iviiirrrrrrr e (16) - -
Provisions for redress to past purchasers of pension poliCIeS..........covrevneenrenesesnenenns (70) (100) (102
Stakeholder pension related ChaIrgE ... e - (80) -
Profit(loss) on sale and closure of DUSINESSES........ccviiiiiiircceese s 39 - (126)

Short-term fluctuationsin investment returns

In accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in the UK, it is LIoyds TSB Group’'s accounting policy to carry
the investments backing the reserves held by its life companies at market value. These investments are substantial and changes
in the market value result in significant volatility of Lloyds TSB Group’s embedded value earnings. In order to facilitate
management’s analysis of the underlying performance of the life and pensions business the short-term fluctuations in investment
returns have been separately identified by comparing actual investment performance with results calculated using longer-term
rates of return. The longer-term rates of return are consistent with those used by Lloyds TSB Group in the calculation of
embedded value at the beginning of the period. A similar approach has been adopted for Lloyds TSB Group’s general insurance
business. For more information concerning the longer-term rates of return used in LIoyds TSB Group'’s cal culation of embedded
value, see Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000 resulted in a significant increase in the level of assets held by the life
companies and as a consequence the short-term fluctuations in investment returns in 2001 and 2000 were much larger than in
1999. In 2001, there were negative short-term fluctuationsin investment returns of £648 million reflecting in particular the poor
performance of the UK stock market, where the FTSE 100 index of sharesfell by more than 15 per cent.

Changesin economic assumptions

The shareholders’ interest in the long-term assurance business is calculated using a series of economic assumptions, which
arereviewed periodically and changed when necessary to ensure that they remain appropriate in the context of forecast long-term
economic trends and changesin the nature of the business being entered into.

Following the acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000, the economic assumptions were reviewed to ensure that they
remained appropriate for the enlarged life and pensions business. As a result of this review changes were made to the
assumptions used by Abbey Life and the bancassurance business of Lloyds TSB in order to make the assumptions used by these
businesses consistent with those used by Scottish Widows. The risk adjusted discount rate was reduced from 10.00 per cent to
8.50 per cent and the assumed gross return on equities was reduced from 8.50 per cent to 8.00 per cent leading to a credit of
£127 million being recognised in the profit and loss account in 2000.



Exceptional restructuring costs

In February 2000, Lloyds TSB Group announced that after a detailed review, additional opportunities had been identified to
reduce the overall cost base. A centralised team was established to co-ordinate the efficiency programme and ensure that the cost

savings identified during the planning phase are realised. The principa features of the efficiency programme, which is focussed
on non customer-facing activities are;

the centralisation of computer operations;

the further consolidation of all Lloyds TSB Group’s large scale processing operations and support functions including
the complete removal of all back office processing from branches;

the further streamlining of the branch network, combined with the expansion of lower cost delivery channels such as
telephone banking and internet operations;

the further reduction of LIoyds TSB Group's purchasing costs; and

the rationalisation of non-personal banking activities, through the progressive sharing and consolidation of operational
functions.

In 2001, Lloyds TSB Group incurred restructuring costs of £167 million (2000: £108 million) in connection with the
efficiency programme, principally comprising severance, software write-off and consultancy costs.

Following the acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000, Lloyds TSB Group has been integrating Scottish Widows
businesses with its existing insurance and investments activities and rationalising the processes. During 2001, costs of
£50 million (2000: £59 million) wereincurred on this integration, principally relating to the integration and centralisation of back
office support functions, the streamlining and automation of client service processes and the improvement to front office sales
processes.

Following the acquisition of Chartered Trust in September 2000, a provision of £21 million was established to cover the cost
of integrating Chartered Trust Group plc and ACL Autolease Holdings Limited with the Lloyds UDT Group, Lloyds TSB
Group’'s existing consumer finance operations. As part of the integration the finance function and certain other back office
activities are being relocated from Edinburgh to Cardiff and the vehicle administration function has been relocated from
Harrogate to Birmingham. In addition, the contract hire operations have been rebranded as L1oyds TSB autolease, and the motor,

caravan, motorcycle and persona lending operations have been rebranded as Black Horse Finance. It is anticipated that the
integration will be completed in 2002.

Abbey National offer costs

Lloyds TSB Group incurred costs of £16 million in connection with the proposed acquisition of Abbey National prior to the

announcement by the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry that LIoyds TSB Group would not be permitted to proceed with
an offer.

Provisionsfor redressto past purchasers of pension policies
See “Business—Provisions for redress to past purchasers of pension policies’.

Stakeholder pension related charge

During 1999, the UK government announced changes intended to encourage more of the population to provide retirement
income for themselves through increased rates of private savings. One of these initiatives was the introduction of stakeholder
pensions with effect from April 2001.

Stakeholder pensions are intended to provide a source of low cost retirement savings for individuals earning enough to be
able to afford to make contributions towards a pension but not currently doing so. A key feature of these productsisthat charges
are transparent and limited to 1 per cent per annum, which is significantly lower than historic charging rates on other personal
pension products. In common with other pension providers in the UK, Scottish Widows introduced a stakeholder pension
product in April 2001. In anticipation of this, in order not to disadvantage existing pensions customers, Lloyds TSB Group
decided during 2000 to reduce charges made on certain existing policies. This had the effect of reducing the projected cash flows
in Lloyds TSB Group’s embedded value calculation, resulting in a charge of £80 million in the profit and loss account for the
year ended 31 December 2000.

Profit(loss) on sale and closure of businesses

In October 2001, Lloyds TSB Group sold its Brazilian fund management and private banking business, including its
subsidiary, Lloyds TSB Asset Management SA. to Banco Itall SA. The net asset value of the business sold was less than
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£2 million and assets under management were approximately US$2,000 million. The sale of this business did not affect Lloyds
TSB Group'’ s other Brazilian businesses. The profit before tax on the sale was £39 million.

In July 1999, Lloyds TSB Group announced its intention to withdraw from the global custody and unit trust trusteeship
business. A provision of £28 million was made in the 1999 accounts for the expected operating losses to be incurred over the
period that the business was to be run down and closed. In addition, in February 2000, Lloyds TSB Group sold the new business
capability of Abbey Life for £100 million, of which £20 million was contingent upon the sales force achieving agreed sales
targets over the two year period immediately following the sale. A provision of £98 million was made in the 1999 accounts for
the expected loss on sale, including £80 million in respect of goodwill previously written off to reserves, and other asset write-
offs.

Future accounting developments

UK

FRS 17—Retirement Benefits

FRS 17 wasissued in December 2000 and becomes fully effective no later than for Lloyds TSB Group’s 2003 Consolidated
Financial Statements. The main requirement of FRS 17 isthat it will be necessary to recognise on the balance sheet an asset or
liability with respect to the surplus or deficit in Lloyds TSB Group’s defined benefit schemes and to recognise immediately
actuarial gains and losses in the statement of total recognised gains and losses. The FRS requires transitional disclosures in
Lloyds TSB Group’s 2001 and 2002 Consolidated Financial Statements, before becoming fully effective in 2003. See Note 43¢
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FRS19—Deferred Tax

FRS 19 was issued in December 2000 and will be effective for Lloyds TSB Group’s 2002 Consolidated Financia
Statements. The FRS requires deferred tax to be provided on most types of timing differences. Currently, Lloyds TSB Group
recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities only to the extent that it is considered probable that an asset or liability will
crystallise. Itisnot expected that adoption will have amateria effect on Lloyds TSB Group’sfinancia statements.

UITF Abstract 33 — Obligationsin capital instruments

Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstract 33 was issued in February 2002 and deals with the classification of various types
of capital instruments in the balance sheet, whether as liabilities, shareholders’ funds or, in Consolidated Financial Statements,
minority interests. The Abstract is effective for periods ending on or after 23 March 2002 and, upon adoption, LIoyds TSB Group
will reclassify those instruments affected from minority interests to subordinated debt. At 31 December 2001, the balance sheet
amount was £451 million and the related expense, which will be reclassified from minority interests to interest payable, was
£22 million.

us

SFASNo. 141—Business Combinations

SFAS No. 141 was issued in July 2001 and requires that the purchase method be used for all business combinations initiated

after 30 June 2001. Use of the pooling-of-interests method is no longer permitted. Adoption has not had a material impact on
Lloyds TSB Group's US GAAP financia statements.

SFASNo. 142—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS No. 142 was issued in July 2001 and became effective for Lloyds TSB Group on 1 January 2002. Certain provisions
are applicable to transactions completed after 30 June 2001. The Statement requires that goodwill should no longer be amortised
to earnings, but instead reviewed for impairment and that any losses arising from such a review be charged to income as they
arise. Retrospective application is not permitted and certain disclosures will be provided until al reported periods reflect the
change in accounting treatment. The impact on LIoyds TSB Group will be to increase US GAAP net income in the periods from
1 January 2002 by the amount of amortisation previoudly charged to net income on goodwill capitalised under US GAAP. For
the year to 31 December 2001, this amounted to £248 million. No impairment of goodwill is anticipated.

SFASNo. 143 — Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

SFAS No. 143 was issued in June 2001 and requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation to be
recorded in the period in which it is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the cost is capitalised by increasing the
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability isincreased to its present value and the capitalised cost is
depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, the obligation is either settled for its
recorded amount or again or lossisincurred upon settlement. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 June
2002, with earlier application encouraged. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on Lloyds TSB Group's US
GAAP financial statements.
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SFASNo. 144 — Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144 wasissued in August 2001 and became effective for Lloyds TSB Group from 1 January 2002. The Statement
supersedes SFAS No. 121 ‘ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of’
although it maintains many of its requirements. For long-lived assetsto be held and used, an impairment is recognised only if the
carrying amount of along-lived asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows. For along-lived asset to be disposed
of by sale, the asset is measured at the lower of its carrying value or fair value (less costs to sell) and depreciation ceases. This
Statement does not apply to goodwill, core deposit intangibles, deferred acquisition costs or deferred tax assets. Adoption is not
expected to have amaterial impact on LIoyds TSB Group’s US GAAP financia statements.

UK GAAP compared with USGAAP

Under US GAAP, Lloyds TSB Group’s net income in 2001 was £1,524 million and £1,929 million in 2000 compared with
£2,500 million in 2001 and £2,706 million in 2000 under UK GAAP. See Note 48 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

There are a number of areas where differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP have a significant effect on the results of
Lloyds TSB Group's operations. Firstly, under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, life assurance activities are accounted
for using the embedded value basis of accounting which requires the recognition of the discounted value of the projected future
net cash flows attributable to the shareholder at the point of sale. UK GAAP therefore results in a substantial proportion of the
net profit accruing on a portfolio of life assurance policies being recognised at their inception.

Embedded value accounting is not permitted under US GAAP. Under US GAAP income is recognised in the profit and loss
account in the period in which it is earned and expenses in the period in which they are incurred. This results in a more even
recognition of profit over thelife of therelated policies.

The second area concerns the treatment of business combinations and the related goodwill. When Lloyds Bank Plc and TSB
Group plc combined in 1995 to form Lloyds TSB Group, the transaction was accounted for as a merger, as permitted under UK
GAAP at that time, athough legally TSB Group plc was deemed to have acquired Lloyds Bank Plc. Under US GAAP the
transaction would have been accounted for as a reverse acquisition of TSB Group plc by Lloyds Bank Plc and the resulting
goodwill capitalised and amortised through the profit and loss account.

Prior to 1998, in accordance with UK GAAP, goodwill arising on acquisitions by Lloyds TSB Group was written off directly
againgt profit and loss account reserves. As permitted by the transitional provisions of FRS 10, this goodwill was not reinstated
in the balance sheet when Lloyds TSB Group changed its accounting policy in 1998 to capitalise goodwill. The goodwill arising
upon the acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000 was capitaised in the UK GAAP balance sheet in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 10. However, in view of the strength of the Scottish Widows brand and the position of the business as one
of the leading providers of life, pensions, unit trust and fund management products, the directors of Lloyds TSB Group
concluded that the goodwill had an indefinite useful life. Consequently, this goodwill is not amortised, however it is subject to
annual impairment reviews.

Under US GAAP al goodwill is capitalised and prior to the full implementation of SFAS No. 142 in 2002, it is amortised
through the profit and loss account over periods of up to 40 years. In caculating the goodwill relating to the acquisition of an
entity with retail deposit accounts, an asset representing the value of the depositor relationships, termed the core deposit
intangible, is capitalised separately and amortised through the profit and loss account over the estimated average life of the retail
customer relationships.

Finally, Lloyds TSB Group has elected not to satisfy the more onerous hedging criteria of SFAS No. 133 * Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and for Hedging Activities' in respect of derivative contracts, therefore those derivatives that are held for
risk management purposes, which are accounted for on an accruals basis under UK GAAP in line with the underlying
instruments being hedged, are treated as trading under US GAAP, with the unrealised mark-to-market gains and losses taken to
income as they arise and the resulting assets or liabilities recorded on the balance sheet. As Lloyds TSB Group will continue to
hold a significant number of derivatives which are hedge accounted under UK GAAP theimpact of SFAS No. 133 will mean that
net income and shareholders' equity under US GAAP will be subject to increased volatility. In 2001, the effect of this was to
reduce US GAAP net income by £315 million.



Average balance sheet and net interest income

The following average baance sheet excludes the long-term assurance business assets and liabilities attributable to
policyholders. The interest yields and costs for foreign office assets and liabilities are affected by Lloyds TSB Group's

operationsin Latin America. The countriesin which LIoyds TSB Group operates are periodically subject to comparatively high
rates of interest, which in certain instancesin the tablesbelow, has had the effect of producing unusually high yields and costs.

2001 2000 1999
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
balance  Income Yield balance income Yidd  balance income Yield
£m £m % £m £m % £m £m %
Assets
Treasury bills and other eligible bills
Domestic OffiCes.......cceviuverieiiieiiienenenn 1,858 91 4.90 836 48 574 985 52 5.28
Foreign offiCeS....ccovuveiiieiiniie e 1,641 423 25.78 1,224 265 21.65 1,000 122 12.20
Loans and advances to banks
Domestic OffiCes.......ccevvuvevieeiiiesiienennnn 12,086 692 573 13384 828 6.19 13,606 758 557
Foreign OffiCeS......ccocvveieeiiieiieceeee 2,308 153 6.63 2,332 180 7.72 2,476 221 8.93
Loans and advances to customers
Domestic OffiCes.......ccevvuveiieeicresireninenn 89,802 6,876 766 80231 6,815 849 74482 6,081 8.16
Foreign OffiCeS......cccoveieeiiieieeiieee 15,316 1,532 10.00 14,009 1,393 994 13387 1,780 13.30
Debt securities
Domestic OffiCes.......ccevvuviiieiiieiiieninnnn 4,394 230 5.23 3,882 252 6.49 3,272 200 6.11
Foreign offiCeS......ccoovveneiiiieiieeiicee 4,397 300 6.82 2,827 271 9.59 2,450 300 12.24
Lease and hire purchase receivables
Domestic OffiCeS.........ceveeeneriiieiiieieen 13,104 1,061 8.10 12241 934 804 11,897 924 7.77
Foreign offiCeS......ccoouveieiiiieiiececee 39 6 15.38 56 18 32.14 54 14 25.93
Total interest earning assets of banking
BOOK....ceiie et 144,945 11,364 7.84 131,022 11,054 844 123609 10,452 8.46
Total interest earning assets of
trading DOOK .....cccceevieeeeieee e 12,252 544 444 10,189 511 502 10496 500 476
Total interest earning assets................... 157,197 11,908 758 141,211 11,565 819 134,105 10,952 8.17
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts... (1,489) (1,531) (1,456)
Non-interest ear ning assets
Domestic OffiCeS .....cvvviiiiiieiiiccee 19,282 16,769 13,140
Foreign officeS.....cccvvniiiinienisen e 2,255 2,121 2,463
Total average assets and interest income
................................................................ 177,245 11,908 6.72 158,570 11,565 729 148,252 10,952 7.39
Per centage of assets applicable to
foreign activities (in %) .....ccceveveveennne. 14.8 14.4 15.2
2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average
interest Net Net interest Net Net  interest Net Net
earning interest  interest earning interest interest  earning interest interest
assets income margin assets income margin assets income margin
£m £m % £m £m % £m £m %
Average interest earning assets and net
interest income:
Banking business...........ccccceeveiveiiienienenee, 144,945 4,944 341 131,02z 4,587 350 123,60¢ 4,783 387
Trading buSINESS........cccoeiiiiiiieiieeee 12,252 - - 10,18¢ - - 10,49€ 4 0.04
Net yield on interest earning assets........... 157,197 4,944 3.15 141,211 4,587 325 134,108 4,787 357




2001 2000 1999
Average Interest Average Interest Average Interest
balance  expense Cost balance  expense Cost balance  expense Cost
£m £m % £m £m % £m £m %
Liabilitiesand shareholders’ equity
Deposits by banks
Domestic OffiCeS.....ccvreereeecieceeeeeen 13,452 658 4.89 9,057 490 5.41 7,294 320 4.39
Foreign offiCeS ....ccovveiiiecie e 3,949 288 7.29 3,506 247 7.05 3,482 305 8.76
Liabilities to banks under sale and repurchase
agreements
Domestic offices. 1,547 74 4.78 2,022 113 5.59 2,544 134 5.27
Foreign OffiCes.......ccovvvrieniienicen 671 110 16.39 30C 68 22.67 199 57 28.64
Customer accounts
Domestic offiCeS......cvcvvvieecriieceeeeen, 72,633 2,724 3.75 72,071 3232 448 67,047 2,534 378
Foreign offiCeS.......cocvevvieeirieceeeee 10,877 924 8.49 10,326 801 776 10,811 963 8.91
Liabilities to customers under sale and
repurchase agreements
Domestic OffiCeS.....covvrerreerieeceeee e 1,552 73 4.70 551 35 6.35 643 35 5.44
Foreign offiCeS.......ccoveveeveeciciecreieen, 128 4 3.13 127 4 315 128 4 313
Debt securities in issue
Domestic OffiCeS.....couvreereereieeseeeeeen 12,716 713 5.61 8,136 620 7.62 6,373 483 7.58
Foreign offiCeS.......cccveveevveciiiececee e, 6,052 359 5.93 4,707 366 7.78 3,327 472 14.19
Subordinated liahilities
Domestic offices. 9,022 484 5.36 7,383 481 6.51 5,614 355 6.32
Foreign offiCeS ....ccvvvvrcenreeci e 158 9 5.70 162 10 6.17 169 7 4.14
Total interest-bearing liabilities of
banking BOOK ........coeevirieineesesee e 132,757 6,420 484 118,348 6,467 546 107,631 5,669 5.27
Total interest-bearing liabilities of
trading bookK .......cecvvveeieniinien e 12,252 544 4.44 10,189 511 502 10,496 496 473
Tota interest-bearing lighilities................. 145,009 6,964 480 128,537 6,978 543 118,127 6,165 522
I nterest-free liabilities
Minority interests and shareholders' funds
Domestic OffiCeS.........eeveeireniiieiiieieen 9,265 8,202 6,718
Foreign offiCeS.......coovveieiiiieiieiieee 2,225 1,930 1,778
Non-interest bearing customer accounts
Domestic OffiCeS........ceeveeiieniiieiiieieen 6,182 6,058 6,134
Foreign offiCeS.......coovviiieniiiesiece, 595 63t 578
Other interest-free liabilities
Domestic OffiCeS........cceveeineriiieiiieinen 13,005 12,723 13,964
Foreign offices 964 48E 953
Total liabilities.......cccooveovieenrieiieeee, 177,245 6,964 3.93 158570 6,978 440 148,252 6,165 4.16
Per centage of liabilities applicable to
foreign activities (in %) ........ccccvvveneennn. 145 14.1 14.9
Net interest margin for the banking book
2001 2000 1999
% % %
DOMESLIC OFfICES ... 3.48 358 3.98
FOrEIgN OFfICES ..ottt 3.04 3.09 325
L€ (o TN o] 0 17= o 1 o 341 350 3.87

Loans and advances to banks and customers include non-performing loans. Interest receivable on such loans has been
included to the extent to which either cash payments have been received or interest has been accrued in accordance with Lloyds

TSB Group’ s policy onincome recognition.

Approximately 85 per cent of the value of the balances are calculated on a daily basis with balances held by Lloyds TSB
Group'’s leasing and asset finance businesses averaged on a monthly basis. Management believes that the interest rate trends are
substantially the same asthey would be if all balances were averaged on the same basis.



Changesin net interest income - volume and rate analysis

The following table allocates changes in net interest income between volume and rate for 2001 compared with 2000 and for
2000 compared with 1999. Where variances have arisen from both changes in volume and rate these are all ocated to volume.

2001 compared with 2000 2000 compared with 1999
I ncr ease/(decr ease) Increase/(decrease)
Total Totd
change Volume Rate change Volume Rate
£m £m £m £m £m £m
I nterest receivable and similar income
Treasury billsand other eligible bills
DomestiC OffiCES.....cvvvriieereeeiee e 43 50 (7 4 9) 5
Foreign OffiCeS. ... 158 107 51 143 48 95
Loans and advances to banks
DomestiC OffiCES.....cvrirerieereeeieieeieeeieieinas (136) (74) (62) 70 (14 84
Foreign OffiCeS......overrnerierrence e (27) 2 (25) (41 (1) (30)
Loans and advances to customers
DOMEStIC OffiCES....cuvvrrrrrreeireeireeeree e 61 733 (672) 734 488 246
Foreign offiCeS......ccuvnnnnnnneeeeeeeeieinas 139 131 8 (387) 62 (449
Debt securities
DOmestic OffiCeS......ccovevreririerrence s (22) 27 (49 52 40 12
Foreign offiCeS......ccuivnnnnnnneeeeeeeieeinas 29 107 (78) (29) 36 (65)
Lease and hire purchase receivables
DOmestic OffiCeS.......couverrrerereerereeieereseeas 77 70 7 60 28 32
Foreign OffiCeS......overrnicernenee s (12) (3 9 4 1 3
Total banking book interest receivable
and SIMIlar INCOME ....c.vveeereeereeeireeeiseeeeseeeens 310 1,146 (836) 602 669 (67)
Total trading book interest receivable
and Similar iNCOME ......cvveveeerreneriereseeeeeene 33 92 (59) 11 (15) 26
Total interest receivableand similar
INCOME ... 343 1,238 (895) 613 654 (41)
Interest payable
Deposits by banks
DomestiC OffiCES.....cuvreieeeeieieieieie e 168 215 (47 170 95 75
Foreign OffiCeS. ..o 41 32 9 (58) 2 (60)
Liabilitiesto banks under sale and
repurchase agreements
DOmestic OffiCeS......covevreririerreree e (39) (23) (16) (21 (29) 8
Foreign offiCeS......cccivmennenneeeeeeeieieinas 42 61 (19 11 23 (12
Customer accounts
DomestiC OffiCES.....cvnrineeeeieieeie e (508) 21 (529) 698 225 473
Foreign offiCeS......cccvnnnnennieeeeeeeeieinas 123 47 76 (162) (38) (124)
Liabilitiesto customers under sale and
repurchase agreements
DOmestic OffiCES......ccovevrerrierrenree e 38 47 9 - (6) 6
Foreign offiCeS......cccivnennennieeeeee e - - - - - -
Debt securitiesin issue
DOmestic OffiCES......coverreririerrenee s 93 257 (164) 137 134 3
Foreign offiCeS......cccivvennnnneeeeeeeieieinas (7 80 (87) (106) 107 (213)
Subordinated liabilities
DomestiC OffiCES.....cvireeeeeieieieeie i 3 88 (85) 126 115 11
Foreign OffiCeS......ovrrrenirerrence s (D - (@))] 3 - 3
Total banking book interest payable................ (47) 825 (872 798 628 170
Total trading book interest payable.................. 33 39 (6) 15 (15) 30
Total interest payable........coevvnicrnneenenns (14) 864 (878) 813 613 200




Risk management

Management of risk

The board is responsible for determining the long-term strategy of the business, the markets in which Lloyds TSB Group
will operate and the level of risk acceptable to LIoyds TSB Group in each area of its business.

The Group Risk Committee, established during 2001, is responsible to the Group Executive Committee for the protection of
shareholder value through the assessment and control of the high level risks assumed by Lloyds TSB Group, and for ensuring
that the requisite culture, practices and systems are in place across the Group to meet internal and externa obligations. The
G;(()up Risk Committee also reviews the allocation and deployment of capital at risk, taking into account LIoyds TSB Group’'s
risk appetite.

Responsibility for the implementation of risk policy and for ensuring that there is an effective top level control framework is
delegated to the Director of Group Risk Management, who reports to the Group Chief Executive and has access to the Chairman
and members of senior management. The Audit Committee and the Board in turn receive regular reports on risk issues prepared
by Group Risk Management. The Director of Group Risk Management is also responsible for the provision of independent
oversight of management actions which impact upon therisk profile of the LIoyds TSB Group.

Thisrisk governance structureisillustrated in the following organogram:

Board
| ahedeted etk .
! Audit Group
| Committee Chief Executive
i
External M
Auditors i
1
i
! Group
[R— Group  po—ed Group Executive
| Risk Management Risk Committee Committee
1
i
1
-]
Regulators

------------------------------------------------ Business Units

The Director of Group Risk Management implements the policies established by the Board through four principal
departments: Group Risk, Group Audit, Group Compliance and Sanctioning & Sovereign Risk. Group Risk’'s responsibilities
include credit risk, market risk, operational risk, insurance risk and environmental risk; the department also sets risk policy,
develops risk methodology and undertakes risk evaluation and reporting. Group Risk Management is also responsible for
leading the work to assess the impact of the draft proposals for the introduction of the new Basel Capital Accord and to prepare
Lloyds TSB Group for itsimplementation 1 January 2005, at the earliest.

At an operating level, Lloyds TSB Group promotes sound internal risk management practices through the directors of its
separate business units, who have primary responsibility for measuring, monitoring and controlling the range of portfolio and
operating risk within their specific area of accountability. The directors and management of the business units, as the primary
risk managers, are responsible for establishing proper control frameworks within their businesses to ensure that Lloyds TSB
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Group's activities are conducted effectively but prudently, and within the parameters defined by Group Risk Management. They
are responsible for ensuring that the risks within their business are identified, assessed, controlled and monitored, and that the
controls and procedures implemented comply with LIoyds TSB Group policies and standards, which are extensively documented
in rule books and procedures manuals.

Creditrisk

Credit risk arises from extending credit in all formsin Lloyds TSB Group’s banking and trading activities, where thereis a
possibility that a counterparty may default. Lloyds TSB Group has standards, policies and procedures to control and monitor all
such risks.

The Director of Group Risk Management heads Group Risk and reports to the Group Chief Executive. Group Risk's
responsibilitiesin respect of credit risk include the following:

Formulation of high-level credit policies designed to ensure a balanced and managed approach to the identification and
mitigation of credit risk. These policies provide a standard framework within which Lloyds TSB Group businesses
structure their individual policies and rules. Group Risk reviews, approves and monitors credit policy documents
established for individual Lloyds TSB Group businesses.

Provision of lending guiddlines. These define the responsibilities for lending officers and provide a disciplined and

focussed benchmark for sound credit decisions. Clear guidance is provided on Lloyds TSB Group's attitude towards
and appetitefor credit exposure on different market sectors, industries and products.

Provision of aLloyds TSB Group rating system. All business units are required to operate an authorised rating system
that complies with Lloyds TSB Group's standard methodology. Lloyds TSB Group uses a ‘Master Sca€e' rating
structure with nine ratings, each corresponding to a probability of future default.

Establishment and maintenance of LIoyds TSB Group’s large exposures policy. Exposure to individual counterparties
or groups of counterparties is controlled through a tiered hierarchy of delegated sanctioning authorities. Approval
requirements for each decision are based on the transaction amount, the customer’s aggregate facilities, credit risk
ratings and the nature of the risk. Regular reports on significant credit exposures are provided to the Group Executive
Committee and Board.

Control of bank exposures. In-house proprietary rating systems are used to approve bank facilities on a LIoyds TSB
Group basis.

Monitoring of scorecards. Lloyds TSB Group utilises statistically-based decisioning techniques (primarily credit
scoring and performance scoring) for its main consumer lending portfolios. Authorisations are determined by
scorecards tailored to meet the needs of the particular business. Group Risk reviews and monitors new and material
changesto existing scorecards.

Control of cross-border exposures. Country limits are authorised and managed by a dedicated unit, using an in-house
rating system which takes into account economic and political factors.

Maintenance of a centralised facilities database. Group Risk operates a centralised database of large corporate,
sovereign and bank facilities designed to ensure a consistent aggregation policy is maintained throughout Lloyds TSB
Group.

Formulation of concentration limits on certain industries and sectors. Group Risk sets limits and monitors exposures to
prevent over-concentration of risk.

Monitoring and controlling residual value risk exposure. Lloyds TSB Group's appetite for such exposure is
communicated to the business by a series of time referenced sector caps, designed to ensure an acceptabl e distribution of
future risk. Methods of mitigating downside risk include obtaining manufacturer’s guarantees and deficiency value
insurance. For the element of downside risk not covered by such instruments the need for provisions is regularly
reviewed. Appropriate industry-specific information sources are used to assess future values and monitor the risk.

Portfolio analysis. In conjunction with Group Risk, Lloyds TSB Group businesses identify and define portfolios of
credit and related risk exposures and the key benchmarks, behaviours and characteristics by which those portfolios are
managed in terms of credit risk exposure. This entails the production and analysis of regular portfolio monitoring
reports for review by Group Risk.

Communication and provision of general guidance on al credit-related risk issues, including regulatory changes and
environmental risk policy, to promote consistent and best practice throughout Lloyds TSB Group.



Day-to-day credit management and asset quality within each business unit is the primary responsibility of the business unit
directors. Each business unit has established credit processes in place involving credit policies, procedures and lending
guidelines. Authority to delegate lending discretions within operating divisions rests with officers holding divisional lending
delegated authority. All senior management authorities are advised to Group Risk.

Specidist units are established within Lloyds TSB Group business units to provide intensive management and control in
order to maximise recoveries of doubtful debts.

Regular independent audits of credit processes are undertaken by Group Audit. Such audits include consideration of the
completeness and adequacy of credit manuals and lending guidelines, together with an in-depth analysis of a representative
sample of accounts in the portfolio to assess the quality of the loan book and other exposures. Individual accounts are reviewed
to ensure that the facility grade is appropriate, that credit procedures have been properly followed and that where an account is
non-performing, provisions raised are adequate.

Credit risk also arises from the use of derivatives. Note 45 to the Consolidated Financial Statements shows the total notional
principal amount of interest rate and exchange rate contracts outstanding at 31 December 2001. The notional principal amount

does not, however, represent the Group’s real exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the current cost of replacing contracts
with apositive value to the Group, should the counterparty default. This replacement cost is aso shown in Note 45.

To reduce credit risk the Group uses a variety of credit enhancement techniques such as netting and collateralisation, where
security is provided against the exposure.

Credit derivatives are a method of transferring credit risk from one counterparty to another and of increasing exposure to

selected counterparties. Credit derivatives include credit swaps, credit spread options and credit linked notes. Lloyds TSB
Group makes limited use of such instruments.
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L oan portfolio

Analysisof loans and advancesto customersand banks

Thefollowing table analyses |oans to banks and customers by geographical area and type of loan at 31 December for each of
thefiveyearslisted.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m
Domestic:
Loans and advancesto banks...........ccuvveeeieeesieeeseneseseee s 12,737 13,165 14,341 15,905 18,650
L oans and advances to customers.
MOMTQAOES ....veveverererere ettt ettt re s bbb sererereranas 56,578 52,659 47,451 44,660 41,785
Other persona 1ending.........ccccvviriieinnniseeseeseseseens 12,784 11,138 10,092 9,570 8,735
Agriculture, forestry and fishing ........cccooeevvevnvneneicncniccecee, 2,074 2,026 2,183 2,052 2,009
MANUFACIUNTNG. c..veveveveieieieieieie et sssesssesenas 3,321 3,357 3,262 2,987 2,973
(O] 1S {1101 1 [0 T 1,309 1,016 754 671 749
Transport, distribution and hotels.........ccooevvvvencicnenieeceee, 4,440 3,836 3,540 3,308 3,838
Financial, business and other ServiCes ........ocveeveceivecn e 8,736 9,295 6,614 5,029 5,952
Property COMPAaNIi€S........cccueveieieierereieieiererereesereseressseresesesesens 2,907 2,470 2,303 2,304 2,297
Lease fiNANCING......ccoueireieieieeieie et rssesssenenes 7,552 8,070 8,369 8,165 5,527
HIT€ PUIChESE........cvcvcvcrcctcce ettt 5,345 5172 3,674 3,701 3,523
(@ 1 2= SRS 2,992 2,526 2,127 1,921 1,560
Total dOMESLICI0ANS.. ... s 120,775 114,730 104,710 100,273 97,598
Foreign:
Loans and advancesto Danks..........ccccveeeivenveeeseneeisees e 2,489 2,131 2,628 2,606 2,056
L oans and advances to customers.
MOITAGES......citierrirerri st 3,467 3,490 3,558 3,187 2,028
Other persona 1ending........ccccceeeeneneeeseeeeeeeeenenns 1,672 1,602 1,784 1,832 1,636
Agriculture, forestry and fishing .........cccceeeeeeeeeeeenenas 1,708 1,528 1,606 1,703 1,906
V= 0101 2= ol (01 o 1RO 2,004 1,730 945 976 1,047
CONSITUCLION......vcviiteeeireecreeere e 304 190 158 155 171
Transport, distribution and hotels..........ccoeevvincccncccecene, 2,570 2,166 1,638 1,082 1,081
Financial, business and other services........occvvveiveeiienns 2,631 2,174 2,553 2,542 1,978
Property COMPanis..........cocevrenierierenensensesesesisesesessesssesenns 896 637 470 428 360
Lease fiNaNCING.......covvrrrrriirrneeee e 33 53 79 136 56
HITE PUICNESE.......ceceiereceriiccrrsirsss e - - - 19 7
(1 0= 1,148 807 581 374 380
Total foreign l0ans..........cccevevevveveeeiesece s 18,922 16,508 16,000 15,040 12,706
TOtAl IOANS ...ttt e 139,697 131,238 120,710 115,313 110,304
Lessprovision for 10an [0SSES........cvveieeineienieeieieeieieienenns (1,468) (1,426) (1,414) (1,462) (4,771)
Lessinterest held in SUSPENSE......c.ceveveieeennenenree e (70) (90) (100) (145) (243)
Total loans and advances net of provisions and
interest held iN SUSPENSE ..o 138,159 129,722 119,196 113,706 108,290




2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

£m £m £m £m £m

Analysisof foreign loansby region:
L oans and advances to customers:
NEW ZEA AN ...t 8,435 7,368 7,659 7,310 5,430
Latin AMEIICA......coiricirieectisece sttt srene s 2,347 2,222 1,761 2,120 2,437
Rest of theWorld ... 5,651 4,787 3,952 3,004 2,783

16,433 14,377 13,372 12,434 10,650
L oans and advances to banks:
NEW ZEaland ........coo v 534 357 467 375 283
Latin AMEIICA......coi et seene s 209 105 190 148 116
Rest of theWorld ... 1,746 1,669 1,971 2,083 1,657

2,489 2,131 2,628 2,606 2,056

Total foreign l0ans..........cccevevevveveeeiesece s 18,922 16,508 16,000 15,040 12,706

The classification of lending as domestic or foreign is based on the lacation of the office recording the transaction, except for
certain lending of the international business booked in London.
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Summary of loan loss experience

The following table analyses the movements in the allowance for loan losses for each of thefive yearslisted.

[0 =T o
Total balance at beginning of period......
Exchange and other adjustments............

Advances written off:
Domestic:
L oans and advances to customers:

MOITQagES......cooevereererrrrere e
Other personal lending.........ccccoveverninenas
Agriculture, forestry and fishing.............
ManUfaCtUrNg........oveveeeerenereerereseereeeens
CONSLIUCHTION....cveeererrerer s
Transport, distribution and hotels...........
Financial, business and other services....
Property COMpanies.........cuovvveerenenennens
Lease finanCing.........oeevenceenereneenennnens

Total dOMESLIC.....ccieieieieeeeseeeseseseseens
[0 1= [0 o [
Total advanceswritten off.........ccoccevvenens

Recoveriesof advanceswritten off:
Domestic:
L oans and advances to customers:

MOrtgageS. .....vevvererrereererie e
Other personal lending.........ccocovevevnininnnn.
Agriculture, forestry and fishing.............
ManUfaCtUriNg........cveeveeeerenereerereneeneeenens
CONSLIUCHION....ceeererre s
Transport, distribution and hotels...........
Financial, business and other services....
Property COMpanies..........occeovvenieeernenenns
Lease finanCing......ccccceeeeeeeeeinierennnns

Total dOMESLIC.....cevvereririrrreeer e
[0 1= [0 o [

Total recoveries of advanceswritten off

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m
1,129 1,134 1,126 1,252 1,444
297 280 336 519 332
1,426 1,414 1,462 1,771 1,776
(14 51 (49) (30) 22
(23) (35) (30) (38) (41)
(438) (399) (364) (279) (232)
©) (12) (14) 9) (18)
(18) (13) (33) (33) (42)
(8 9) (10) (6) (13)
(34) (27 (46) (108) (93)
(44) (28) (40) (34) (49)
(21) (17 (24 (45) (68)
(11) (12 (14 (30) (32
(86) (69) (29) ©) (14)
9 - (6) - @
(701) (621) (610) (587) (603)
(184) (124) (134) (372 (60)
(885) (745) (744) (959) (663)
17 12 11 9 11
80 63 60 27 17
4 2 2 4 3

5 6 11 14 9

2 2 1 2 2

10 11 7 15 16
11 10 6 10 16

6 5 7 20 35

4 5 5 3 4

23 24 10 7 6

3 - 1 - 1
165 140 121 111 120
29 25 9 14 5
194 165 130 125 125
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Net advanceswritten off:
DIOMESLIC c.veveevieeeeee ettt ee st e et e et e st st s e sresresresresressesresrennennes

Provision for loan losses char ged against income
for theyear

Domestic:

Loans and advances to customers:
MOITQAgES ... .ot e
Other personal 1eNding ........ccoevviernennereee e
Agriculture, forestry and fishing.........ccoeevevennenienninenenen,
MaNUFACIUINTNG....cveirersresrer s
CONSITUCTION. ..ottt
Transport, distribution and hotels..........cccooinininininininnnn,
Financial, business and other Services.......ococcevveeereceriennn,
Property COMPaNIES ... ssssens
Lease fiNANCING......ccvrerieririrrerieirre e seseees
HIT@ PUIChESE ...
Other SPeCifiC ProViSIONS .....c.cvviiriirrreeeeesssseeseseens
GeNeral ProViSIONS.......cvveiereriresenree st sesssessens

Total dOMESLIC ...

[0 =T o ST

Total provision for loan losses char ged
against incomefor the year ........coovvvnvnnnennseneneneens

Balance at end of period
DOMESLIC ...t

Ratio of net write-offsduring the period to aver ageloans
outstanding during the period...........cocceoevnrenreninnnenenns

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m
(536) (481) (489) (476) (483)
(155) (99) (125) (358) (55)
(691) (580) (614) (834) (538)
2 4 9 34 15
403 323 379 201 212
3 (6) 4 31 11
40 21 28 20 21
(2 1 5 8 6
28 3 23 7 63
39 12 16 40 10
4 8 4 (29) (24)
5 8 14 8 20
67 52 31 26 3
23 15 (5) 14 -
(42) ) - ) 3
570 426 500 363 340
177 115 115 192 171
747 541 615 555 511
1,162 1,129 1,134 1,126 1,252
306 297 280 336 519
1,468 1,426 1,414 1,462 1,771
0.6% 0.5% 0.6% 0.9% 0.6%



Thefollowing table analyses the coverage of the allowance for loan losses by category of loans.

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Per centage Percentage Percentage Percentage Percentage
of loansin of loansin of loansin of loansin of loansin
each each each each each
category to category to category to category to category to
Allowance totalloans Allowance total loans Allowance total loans Allowance total loans Allowance  total loans
£m % £m % £m % £m % £m %
Balance at
period end
applicableto:
Domestic:
Loans and
advancesto
banks............ - 9.1 - 10.0 - 119 - 138 - 16.9
Loans and
advancesto
customers.
Mortgages.... 44 40.5 48 40.1 75 39.3 85 38.7 80 37.9
Other personal
lending......... 407 9.2 362 8.5 358 8.4 283 8.3 346 7.9
Agriculture,
forestry and
fishing.......... 9 15 1 15 27 18 43 18 17 1.8
Manufacturing 98 24 71 2.6 57 2.7 51 2.6 53 2.7
Construction . 7 0.9 15 0.8 21 0.6 25 0.6 21 0.7
Transport,
distribution
and hotdls..... 54 32 50 2.9 63 2.9 79 2.9 167 35
Financial,
business and
other services 65 6.3 59 7.1 55 4.3 65 5.4
Property
Companies.... 18 21 1.9 1.9 2.0 0 2.1
Lease
financing...... 18 5.4 20 6.2 16 6.9 11 7.1 30 5.0
Hire purchase 98 38 A 3.9 49 3.0 37 3.2 9 3.2
Other............ 30 2.1 15 1.9 9 1.8 18 1.7 4 1.4
Total domestic 848 86.5 774 87.4 773 86.7 761 87.0 882 88.5
Foreign............. 251 135 295 126 280 133 336 130 519 115
General
provision.......... 369 - 357 - 361 - 365 - 370 -
Total balance
at period end 1,468 100.0 1,426 100.0 1,414 100.0 1,462 100.0 1,771 100.0




Risk elementsin theloan portfolio

Non-accrual, past due and restructured loans

The following discussion consists of an analysis of credit risk elements by categories which reflect US lending and
accounting practices. These differ from those employed in the UK. In particular:

Suspended interest and non-performing lending

In accordance with the UK British Bankers' Association Statement of Recommended Practice on Advances, Lloyds TSB
Group continues to accrue interest, where appropriate, on doubtful debts when there is a redistic prospect of recovery. This
accrued interest is charged to the customer’s account but it is not applied to income; it is placed on a suspense account and only
taken to income if there ceases to be significant doubt about its being paid. Loans are transferred to non-accrual status where the
operation of the customer’s account has ceased. The lending is managed by specialist recovery departments and is written down
to its estimated realisable value. Interest is not added to the lending or placed on a suspenseaccount as its recovery is considered
unlikely; it isonly taken to incomeif it isreceived.

Inthe US, it isthe normal practice to stop accruing interest when payments are 90 days or more past due or when recovery
of both principal and interest is doubtful. When the loans are transferred to non-accrua status, accrued interest is reversed from
income and no further interest is recognised until it becomes probable that the principal and interest will be repaid in full. Loans
on which interest has been accrued but suspended would be included in risk elements as loans accounted for on a non-accrual
basis.

In addition, in the US non-performing loans and advances are typically written off more quickly than in the UK.
Conseguently a UK bank may appear to have a higher level of non-performing loans and advances than a comparable US bank
although the reported income islikely to be similar in both the US and the UK.

Troubled debt restructurings

In the US, loans whose terms have been modified due to problems with the borrower are required to be separately disclosed.
If the new terms were in line with market conditions at the time of the restructuring and the restructured loan remains current as
to repayment of principal and interest then the disclosure can be discontinued at the end of the first year.

There are no similar disclosure requirementsin the UK.

Potential problemloans

Potential problem loans are loans where known information about possible credit problems causes management to have

concern as to the borrowers' ability to comply with the present loan repayment terms. Interest continues to be accrued to the
profit and loss account until, in the opinion of management, its ultimate recoverability becomes doubtful.

Assets acquired in exchange for advances

In most circumstances in the US, title to property securing residential real estate transfers to the lender upon foreclosure.
The loan is written off and the property acquired in thisway is reported in a separate balance sheet category with any recoveries
recorded as an offset to the provision for loan losses recorded in the period. Upon sale of the acquired property, gains or losses
arerecorded in the income statement as again or |oss on acquired property.

In the UK, although abank is entitled to enforce afirst charge on a property held as security, it typically does so only to the
extent of enforcing its power of sale. In accordance with UK GAAP and industry practice, LIoyds TSB Group takes control of a
property held as collateral on aloan at repossession but title does not transfer to it. Loans subject to repossession continue to be
reported as loans in the balance sheet although the accrual of interest is suspended. Any gains or losses on sale of the acquired
property are recorded within the provision for loan losses during the reporting period.

The difference in practices has no effect on net income reported in the UK compared to that reported in the US but it does
result in adifferencein classification of losses and recoveriesin theincome statement. It also hasthe effect of causing UK banks
to report an increased level of non-performing loans compared with US banks.



Thefollowing table analysesrisk elementsin the loan portfolio as at 31 December for the last five years:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m
L oans accounted for on a non-accrual basis:
DOMESLICOffICES ..ovviriirerce st 278 223 209 287 443
FOreign OffiCES ..o e 101 181 139 130 108
Tota NoN-accrual [0aNS........cccvreririeirerere s 379 404 348 417 551
Accruing loanson which:
-interest isbeing placed in suspense:
DOMESIC OffICES ...t 637 617 502 479 966
FOreign OffiCES......covvcerrrce s 206 238 217 292 441
Total suspended interest 10anS.........covvvreerneeenenenssesenens 843 855 719 771 1,407
-interest isstill being accrued and taken to profit,
and against which specific provisions have been made:
DOMESLIC OffiCES ... 1,265 1,713 1,924 2,056 1,633
FOreign OffiCES ..o 75 101 74 75 115
Tota accruing loans against which specific provisions
have been Made.........covvvvrvrrrr s 1,340 1,814 1,998 2,131 1,748
- interest isstill being accrued and taken to profit,
thelending iscontractually past due 90 daysor
moreasto principal or interest, but against which
no provisions have been made:
(D01 01 1T o o)1 oS 693 520 506 313 389
FOreign OffiCES ..o e 37 33 15 - -
Total accruing loans against which no provisions
havebeen made.........ccvveiiciic s 730 553 521 313 389
Troubled debt restructurings:
(D01 01=S T o o) ot 1 2 10 1 2
FOreign OffiCES ...ovvvivirecec e 9 12 10 1 2
Total troubled debt restructurings........cocovvvvvvvvvssssinens 10 14 20 2 4
Total non-performinglending:
DOMESLIC OffiCES ....viectisece e 2,874 3,075 3,151 3,136 3,433
FOreign OffiCES ...oovvirerce e 428 565 455 498 666
Total non-performing 1ending.........ccovvvvvvvvrnnnssssnes 3,302 3,640 3,606 3,634 4,099




Interest foregone on non-performing lending

The table below summarises the interest foregone on loans accounted for on a non-accrua basis and troubled debt
restructurings:

2001
Em
Domestic lending:
Interest income that would have been recognised under original contract terms..........cocoeeeeeeenenerenenenenns 24
Interest iNCOME INCIUAEA 1N PrOfit........cceiriierrecer et 17
EaLS == R0 (= o 0= /
Foreign lending:
Interest income that would have been recognised under original contract terms.........ccccovveveeeeneneneninen. 21
Interest inCOME INCIUAEd IN PrOfiL.......cciiirriiirrrr e 10
INHEFESE FONBUONE .....ooooooeeveeeeees e seeseeeses s eesssssesse s sssssss s ssssss s sssssss s sssses s essssssessseesessssssens 11

Potential problemloans

In addition to the non-performing lending disclosed above, lendings which were current as to payment of interest and
principal but where concerns existed about the ability of the borrowers to comply with loan repayment terms in the near future
were asfollows:

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
£m £m £m £m £m
Potential problem [ending.........ccoovvnnenenennnnencnenn, 1,423 1,142 936 958 1,078

Crosshborder outstandings

The business of Lloyds TSB Group invalves significant exposures in non-local currencies. These cross border outstandings
comprise loans (including accrued interest), acceptances, interest-bearing deposits with other banks, other interest-bearing
investments and any other monetary assets which are denominated in non-local currency. The following tables analyse, by type
of borrower, foreign outstandings which individually represent in excess of 1 per cent of LIoyds TSB Group’ stotal assets.

Banks and
Governments other  Commercial,
and official financial industrial and
Total institutions institutions other
% of assets £m £m £m £m
Asat 31 December 2001
GEIMANY ..ot 2.0 3,756 59 2,920 777
United States of AMENCa.......ccoeveeeeerrereeeenns 1.8 3,403 151 1,290 1,962
[EAIY. oo 1.7 3,170 1,834 1,052 284
Asat 31 December 2000
GEIMANY....ci e 1.6 2,659 171 2,222 266
United States of AMErica.......ocoovveveveveeseenee. 14 2,290 90 907 1,293
Asat 31 December 1999
BEGIUM....ciiiieieieieeiii e 17 2,602 - 2,574 28
GEIMANY....cuiiieirieerieeserese e 14 2,156 217 1,794 145
JAPAN. ..t 1.3 1,974 201 1,363 410
FranCe......cooe e 1.1 1,636 6 1,401 229

As at 31 December 2001, Germany had commitments of £845 million, United States of America had commitments of
£818 million and Italy had commitments of £104 million.

As at 31 December 2001, the countries with cross border outstandings of between 0.75 per cent and 1 per cent of assets,
amounting to £3,504 million in total were Japan and the Netherlands.

As at 31 December 2000, the countries with cross border outstandings of between 0.75 per cent and 1 per cent of assets,
amounting to £4,529 million in total were France, Italy and Japan. As at 31 December 1999 the countries with cross border
outstandings of between 0.75 per cent and 1 per cent of assets, amounting to £2,500 million in total were the US and the
Netherlands.
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Market risk in banking operations

Market risk isthe risk of losses being incurred as aresult of adverse movementsin interest or exchange rates or other market
variables. Market risk arisesin all areas of LIoyds TSB Group's activities and is managed by avariety of different techniques.

Lloyds TSB Group's activities expose it to therisk of adverse movementsin interest rates or exchange rates, with little or no
exposure to equity or commodity risks. Trading activities are restricted to afew highly specialist trading centres, authorised by
Group Risk, the principal one being Lloyds TSB Group's Treasury department in London. The level of exposure is strictly
controlled and monitored within approved limits locally and centrally by Lloyds TSB Group Risk. Most of LIoyds TSB Group’s
trading activity isto meet the requirements of customers for foreign exchange and interest rate products, from which Lloyds TSB
Group is able to earn a spread on the rates charged. However, interest rate and exchange rate positions are taken out using
derivatives (forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements) and on-balance sheet
instruments (mainly debt securities). The objective of these positions is to earn a profit from favourable movements in market
rates. Accordingly, these transactions are reflected in the accounts at their fair value and gains and losses shown in the profit and
loss account as dealing profits. Further details on trading derivatives can be found in Note 45 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Trading Value at Risk (“VaR")

Trading limits are set by Lloyds TSB Group Risk, up to a total authorised by the board, using a combination of risk
measurement techniques, including position limits and sensitivity limits. These are supplemented by a range of value at risk
techniques in use in individual businesses, where suitable methodologies have been developed in consultation with Lloyds TSB
Group Risk to meet the specific requirements of each centre. At Lloyds TSB Group level, global positions are incorporated into
acentral VaR model, taking into account natural offset positions between different trading centres, and stress tests are carried out
to simulate extreme conditions.

VaR can be calculated using a number of different methodologies and at different confidence intervals. Lloyds TSB Group
utilises more than one methodol ogy for comparative purposes, thus avoiding undue reliance on asingle measure.

The predominant measure within Lloyds TSB Group is the variance/covariance (‘VcV') methodology. Based on the
commonly used 95 per cent confidence level, assuming positions are held overnight and using observation periods of the
preceding three years, the value at risk based on Lloyds TSB Group’ s global trading was as detailed in the table bel ow.

The following table shows total, average, maximum and minimum VaR for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2000.

31 December 2001 31 December 2000
Total Average Maximum  Minimum Average M aximum Minimum
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Interest Rate RiSK......ovvvvevevvrrrrssssenens 0.6 0.6 0.9 04 0.7 12 0.5
Foreign Exchange RisK........ccccvvnieeeeineninens 1.0 0.6 1.0 0.3 0.5 09 0.3
EQUItY RiSK ..o 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 01 0.2 0.0
Total VaR.....cccecceeeee e 16 12 16 0.8 13 17 10

The risk of loss measured by the VaR modd is the potential loss in earnings. The total and average trading VaR does not
assume any diversification benefit across the three risk types. The maximum and minimum VaR reported for each risk category
did not necessarily occur on the same day as the maximum and minimum VaR reported as awhole.

There are some limitations to the V¢V methodology which are covered below:

The modd assumes that changes in the underlying asset returns can be modelled by a norma distribution. This
assumption is an approximation of reality that may not reflect all circumstances.

The use of a confidence limit does not convey any information about potential 1osses on occasions when the confidence
limit is exceeded. In times of extreme market movements actual losses may be several times greater than the VaR
number. Stresstesting is used to supplement VaR to estimate the impact of extreme events.

Any model that forecasts the future based on historic data is implicitly assuming that the conditions that generated the
data will remain true in the future. Stress testing and using more than one VaR methodology for some local markets
form part of the wider market risk framework.

Periods of severe market illiquidity, both in terms of the extent of the illiquidity and the time that it lasts, would mean
that it may not be possible to hedge, or close, al positionsin the timescales assumed in the VaR model.



VaR iscalculated at the close of business each day, which excludes the profit and loss impact of intra-day trading.

The variance/covariance approach to VaR is not well suited to options positions. As a result these positions are
controlled by additional sensitivity limits.

In summary, athough VaR is an important component of Lloyds TSB Group’s approach to managing trading market risk, it
is supplemented by position and sensitivity limits and stress testing.

I nterest rate exposure

Interest rate exposures comprise those originating in treasury trading activities and structural interest rate exposures, which
arise from the commercial and retail banking activities of Lloyds TSB Group.

Tradinginterestraterisk

The VaR relating to interest rate trading positionsis set out in “—Market risk in banking operations—Trading Value at Risk
(VaR)".

Structural interestraterisk

Structural interest rate risk in LIoyds TSB Group’ sretail portfolios, including mortgages, and in LIoyds TSB Group's capital

funds, arises from the different repricing characteristics of LIoyds TSB Group’s banking assets and liabilities and is managed by
Lloyds TSB Group's Balance Sheet Management department.

Liabilitiesarising in the course of business from Lloyds TSB Group’sretail banking businessfall into two broad categories:

those which are insengitive to interest rate movements, non-interest bearing liabilities such as shareholders' funds and
interest free or very low interest current account deposits; and

those which are sensitive to interest rate movements, primarily savings deposits bearing interest rates which are varied
a Lloyds TSB Group's discretion (“managed rate liahilities’) but which for competitive reasons generaly reflect
changesin the Bank of England’ s baserate.

Thereis arelatively small volume of naturally arising banking liabilities whose interest rate is contractually fixed typically
for periods of up to two years.

Most banking assets, with the exception of such non-interest earning items as premises, are sensitive to interest rate
movements. There is alarge volume of managed rate assets such as variable rate mortgage loans, and these may be considered
as a natural offset to managed rate liabilities. However many assets, such as personal loans and fixed rate mortgages, bear
interest which is contractually fixed for periods of up to five years or longer.

Interest rate risk arises from the mismatch between interest rate insensitive liabilities and interest rate sensitive assets, and
between the differing contractual periods for which interest rates are fixed on interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities. Lloyds
TSB Group' s Balance Sheet Management department manages thisrisk centrally by:

offsetting against each other any matching interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities;

acquiring new financial assets and liabilities as matching hedges against net balances of mismatched interest rate
sensitive banking liabilities and assets, respectively; and

acquiring new financial assets with interest rates contractually fixed for arange of periods up to five years as hedges for
net balances of interest rate insensitive liabilities.

The financial assets and liabilities referred to above are acquired by way of internal transactions between Lloyds TSB Group
Balance Sheet Management and Lloyds TSB Group Treasury, typicaly in the form of interest rate swaps and loans or deposits.

Lloyds TSB Group Balance Sheet Management reports to an Asset and Liability Committee under the chairmanship of the
Group Finance Director; other members include the Director of Group Risk Management, the Lloyds TSB Group executive
director responsible for treasury and the managing directors of the main UK business units. Lloyds TSB Group’s policy is to
optimise the stability of future net interest income. The risks are monitored using simulation models and other quantitative
techniques.

Structural interest rate risk can also arise from the wholesale banking books in the UK, where it is managed by Lloyds TSB
Group Treasury, and internationally, where it is managed by an authorised local treasury operation in each overseas centre. The
levels of exposure within these books are controlled and monitored within approved limits locally and centrally by Group Risk.
Group Risk issues the limits to the international business units on interest rate gaps or, where more appropriate, VaR. Active
management of the book is necessary to meet customer requirements and changing market circumstances.
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Lloyds TSB Group’s non-trading exposure is summarised in the form of an interest rate repricing table, as set out in Note 45
to the Consolidated Financia Statements. Items are allocated to time bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual

interest rate repricing date and the maturity date. However, the table does not take into account the effect of interest rate options
used by Lloyds TSB Group to hedge its exposure.

The simulation models used by Lloyds TSB Group include assumptions about the relationships between customer behaviour
and the level of interest rates; the anticipated level of future business is aso taken into account. The accuracy of these
assumptions will impact the efficiency of hedging transactions. The assumptions are regularly updated and the projected
exposureis actively managed in accordance with LIoyds TSB Group’s Asset and Liability Committee policy.

Itisestimated that a hypothetical immediate and sustained 100 basis point increase in interest rates on 1 January 2002 would
decrease net interest income by £102.9 million for the 12 months to 31 December 2002, while a hypothetical immediate and
sustained 100 basis point decrease in interest rates would increase net interest income by £85.7 million.

Europe &
North Asia& Latin Middle Total Total
UK America Australasie America East 2002 2001
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Change in net interest income from a+100 basis
point shift in yield CUNVES.........cccceeereeecieinieiennns (71.0) (17.5) (0.3) 0.1 (14.2) (1029 (26.6)
Changein net interest income from a- 100 basis
point shift in yield CUNVES.........cccceeeeeeeieieieieinns 53.8 175 0.3 (0.1 142 85.7 7.3

The analysis aboveis subject to certain simplifying assumptions including, but not limited to, the following:
all rates of al maturities worldwide move simultaneously by the same amount;
all positions in the wholesale books run to maturity; and
there is no management action in response to movementsin interest rates.

In practice, positions in both the retail and wholesale books are actively managed and actual impact on net interest income
may be different than the model.

Foreign exchange exposure

Trading foreign exchange risk

The corporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange risk in the course of providing servicesto their customers. These
risks reside in the authorised trading centreswho are alocated exposure limits by Group Risk. The limits are monitored daily by
the local centres and reported to Group Risk. Group Risk calculates the associated VaR as shown in the table in “—Market risk
in banking operations—Trading Value a Risk (VaR)”.

Structural foreign exchangerisk

Structural foreign exchange risk arises from Lloyds TSB Group's investments in its overseas operations. Lloyds TSB
Group's structural foreign currency exposure is represented by the net asset value of the holding company’s foreign currency
exchange equity and subordinated debt investments in its subsidiaries and branches. Gains or losses on structural foreign
currency exposures are taken to retained earnings.

The structural position is managed by Lloyds TSB Group Capital Funds having regard to the currency composition of
Lloyds TSB Group’s risk-weighted assets and reported to LIoyds TSB Group Asset and Liability Committee on amonthly basis.
The objectiveisto limit the effect of the exchange rate movements on the published risk asset ratio.

Lloyds TSB Group's structural position at 31 December 2001 is set out in Note 45 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The position implies that at 31 December 2001 a hypothetical increase of 10 per cent in the value of sterling against al other
currencies would have led to a £172 million reduction in reserves, and vice versa. On this basis, there would have been no
material impact on Lloyds TSB Group’ srisk asset ratios.

Equity exposure
A small number of Lloyds TSB Group’s authorised centres can incur equity risk in dealings with their retail and commercial

customers. Limits on these equity exposures are controlled and monitored by Group Risk. Group Risk calculates VaR on these
equities positions as set out in the trading VaR table in “—Market risk in banking operations—Trading Vaue a Risk (VaR)”.



Market risk in insuranceoper ations

Lloyds TSB Group'sinsurance activities also result in market risk. The market risk within the insurance businesses can be
categorised into two broad types: investment market risk and the potential interest rate risk on any mismatch between assets held
to support future liabilitiesin the life business and the actual future liabilities.

Investment market risk is derived from two portfalios: the surplus in the Scottish Widows non-participating fund and an
investment portfolio within the General Insurance business.

The surplus in the long-term non-participating fund of Scottish Widows plc exists to provide the long-term funds with
liquidity and working capital. The surplus aso forms a capital reserve to support the investments managed on behalf of the with-
profits policies which were transferred from Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society. With profits business involves
guaranteed benefits; in extreme market conditions the surplus could be called upon to support with profits benefits. As a
consequence it is appropriate to invest this fund in a mixture of equities, investment properties, and fixed interest investments
that is related to the With Profits Fund. This investment policy maintains the value of the reserve as a proportion of the
underlying With Profits Fund. The existence and investment mix of the surplus in the non-participating fund can therefore be
considered as structura rather than as atraded portfolio. Under UK GAAP the portfolio is shown at market value and gains and
losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The General Insurance portfolio comprises funds that form the reserves for that business. These reserves are invested in a
mixture of assets. cash, bonds and equities. The size of the equity component allowed and the investment policy are approved by
Group Risk.

The composition, and value, of both the non-participating fund and the General Insurance portfolio are reported to Group
Risk on amonthly basisand aVaR iscalculated. Stresstesting is aso used to supplement the VaR models.

The risk of loss measured by the VaR model is the potential loss in earnings. The VaR methodology used is a
variance/covariance (‘VcV') approach which is the same in al respects to that used for the traded risk in the banking book,
except that in the case of equity risk, the model maps the portfolio composition onto a series of appropriate indices by region and
sector. The figures quoted below are the sum of the two portfolios with no allowance for diversification between portfolios or
asset classes and represents the potential lossin earnings.

Thefollowing table showstotal VaR at 31 December 2001 and 2000:

31 December 2001 31 December 2000

£m £m
INEEFESt RALE RISK.....ceivteiicietee ettt 3.3 3.8
FOreign EXChange RiSK.........ccieiriiienrencisis sttt 21 2.6
0 1] Y U LT 222 281
TOE VER ..ot 276 345

The other sources of market risk within the insurance businesses are the matched portfolios (e.g. annuities) that contain long-
term liabilities. Theaim isto invest in assets such that the cash flows on the investments will match those on the projected future
liabilities. Actuarial tools are used to project and match the cash flows.

It is not possible to diminate risk completely as the timing of mortality is uncertain, and bonds are not available at all of the
required maturities. Asaresult the cash flows cannot be precisely matched and so sensitivity tests are used to test the extent of
the mismatch.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the exposure to financial or other damage arising through unforeseen events or failure in the Group's
operational processes/systems. Examples include inadequate or failed interna controls and procedures, human error, deliberate
or malicious actsincluding fraud, and business interruptions.

Business units have primary responsibility for identifying and managing their operationa risks and internal control
techniques to reduce their likelihood or impact include segregation of duties, exception and exposure reporting, business
continuity planning, reconciliation, and delegation of authority, and are based on the submission of timely and reliable
management reporting. Where appropriate, risk is mitigated by way of insurance with third parties.
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Group Risk Management’ s responsibilitiesin respect of operational risk are asfollows:
Policy & Methodology:

Formulation of high-level operationa risk policies designed to ensure a comprehensive and consistent approach to the
identification and management of operational risk. These policies provide a standard framework within which Lloyds
TSB Group businesses structure their individual policies and procedures.

Development of a standard methodology to ensure consistency in the identification, assessment and management of
operational risk. This methodology is being implemented by business units throughout the L1oyds TSB Group.

Communication and provision of general guidance on operational risk related issues, including regulatory changes and
developments in the measurement and management of operational risk, to promote best practice throughout the Lloyds
TSB Group.

Assurance:

Approva from a risk perspective of al new products launched throughout the Lloyds TSB Group, to ensure that the
risks associated with them are understood by the business.

Identification of risk through formal Risk Reviews, covering specific risks, activities, business sectors or products, and
ensuring that prompt and pre-emptive action is taken to address any actual or perceived risks that may emerge, whether
specific to Lloyds TSB Group or to the industry generally.

Independent verification by Group Audit of the effectiveness of risk control within business units.

A major cause of operational losses is fraud involving credit and debit cards. In common with the rest of the financia
servicesindustry, Lloyds TSB Group isinvesting in technology to combat this problem.

Insurancerisk

Lloyds TSB Group offers insurance products to its customers, and Group Risk actively reviews the extent to which the
associated risk is underwritten internally or reinsured with external underwriters. The risks associated with long-term savings,
investment and insurance products are al so evaluated.

The Financial Services Authority sets down minimum requirements for solvency and reserving for all classes of insurance,
which are carefully monitored by the relevant business units within LIoyds TSB Group. The retained risk level is carefully

controlled and monitored, with close attention being paid to the analysis of underwriting experience, product design, policy
wordings, adequacy of reserves, solvency management and regulatory requirements.

Investment strategy is determined by the term and nature of the underwriting liabilities and asset/liability matching positions
are actively monitored. General insurance exposure to accumulations of risk and potential catastrophes is reviewed and, where
appropriate, mitigated by reinsurance arrangements which are broadly spread over different reinsurers. Appropriate reinsurance
arrangements also apply within the life and pensions businesses.

Compliancerisk

The Lloyds TSB Group’s business is regulated overall by the Financial Services Authority (FSA), and additionally by loca
regulators in offshore and overseas jurisdictions. Each Lloyds TSB Group business has a nominated individual with
‘Compliance Oversight’ responsibility under FSA rules. Therole of such individuasisto ensure that management have in place
within the business a control structure which creates awareness of the rules and regulations to which Lloyds TSB Group is
subject, and to monitor and report on adherence to these rules and regulations.

All compliance personnel also have a reporting line to Group Compliance, which sets compliance standards across the
Group and provides independent reporting and assessment to Lloyds TSB Group directors and the Board.

Group Compliance includes a dedicated unit, led by the Group Financial Crime Director, which is responsible for ensuring
that Lloyds TSB Group has effective processes in place to identify and report on suspicious transactions and customers in
support of the world-wide fight against financial crime.

The Group Compliance director has access to the Chairman, Group Chief Executive and members of senior management.
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Liquidity and capital resources

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk of aloss arising from Lloyds TSB Group’s inability to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. These obligations include the repayment of deposits on demand or at their contractual maturity; the repayment of
loan capital and other borrowings as they mature; the payment of insurance policy benefits, claims and surrenders; the payment
of lease obligations as they become due; the payment of operating expenses and taxation; the payment of dividends to
shareholders; the ability to fund new and existing loan commitments; and the ability to take advantage of new business
opportunities, LIoyds TSB Group complies with the Financial Services Authority’s liquidity requirements, with similar liquidity
policiesin place across all trading centres worldwide. Compliance is monitored by regular liquidity returnsto Group Risk.

The principal sources of liquidity for LIoyds TSB Group plc are dividends received from its only directly owned subsidiary
company, Lloyds TSB Bank and loans from this and other Lloyds TSB Group companies. The ability of Lloyds TSB Bank to
pay dividends, or for LIoyds TSB Bank or other Lloyds TSB Group companies to make loans to LIoyds TSB Group plc, depend
on a number of factors, including their own regulatory capital requirements, distributable reserves and financial performance.
For additional information see “ Dividends”'.

Lloyds TSB Group plc is aso able to raise funds by issuing loan capital or equity, although in practice LIoyds TSB Group
plc has never issued equity for this purpose and the mgjority of LIoyds TSB Group’s loan capital isissued by Lloyds TSB Bank.
Asat 31 December 2001, Lloyds TSB Group plc had £413 million of subordinated debt in issuance following the prepayment of
£100 million of loan capital during the year, compared with £7,657 million for the consolidated Lloyds TSB Group. The cost
and availability of subordinated debt finance are influenced by credit ratings. A reduction in these ratings could increase the cost
and could reduce market access. At 31 December 2001, the credit ratings of LIoyds TSB Bank were asfollows:

Senior debt
1Y TSR RS Aaa
Stz 010 = (0 R =0 TSRS AA
[ 1 (X [T AA+

The credit ratings of Lloyds TSB Group plc were one notch lower. At 26 February 2002 the Standard & Poor's rating
outlook for Lloyds TSB Bank was stable. These credit ratings are not a recommendation to buy, hold or sell any security; and
each rating should be evaluated independently of every other rating.

A significant part of the liquidity of Lloyds TSB Group’s banking businesses arises from their ability to generate customer
deposits. A substantial proportion of the customer deposit base is made up of current and savings accounts which, athough
repayable on demand, have traditionally provided a stable source of funding. During 2001, amounts deposited by customers
increased by £7,127 million from £101,989 million at 31 December 2000 to £109,116 million at 31 December 2001. These
customer deposits are supplemented by the issue of subordinated loan capital and wholesale funding sources in the capital
markets, as well as from direct customer contracts. Wholesale funding sources include deposits taken on the inter-bank market,
certificates of deposit, sale and repurchase agreements, a Euro Medium Term Note programme, of which £996 million had been
utilised at 31 December 2001, and a US$5,000 million commercial paper programme, of which US$2,859 million had been
utilised at 31 December 2001.

The ability to sell assets quickly is also an important source of liquidity for LIoyds TSB Group’ s banking businesses. Lloyds
TSB Group holds sizeable balances of marketable Treasury and other digible bills and debt securities which could be disposed
of to provide additional funding should the need arise.

Lloyds TSB Group makes limited use of asset securitisation arrangements to provide alternative funding sources. Prior toits
acquisition by Lloyds TSB Group, Black Horse Limited (formerly Chartered Trust plc) disposed of its interest in a portfolio of
motor vehicles and caravan instalment credit agreements to a special purpose vehicle (‘SPV’). Black Horse Limited has no
interest in the share capital of this SPV, although it acts as credit manager for the administration of the portfolio and receives a
feefor thisservice. Black Horse Limited has no obligation to the holders of the floating rate notes issued by this SPV to fund the
original purchase of the portfolio, or to any other creditors of this SPV. At 31 December 2001, this SPV held £124 million of
receivables which are included in Lloyds TSB Group's consolidated balance sheet using a linked presentation; further
information is given in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



The following table sets out the amounts and maturities of LIoyds TSB Group's contractual cash obligations at 31 December
2001

Withinone Onetothree Threeto Over five
year years fiveyears years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Long-term debt — dated..........ccocvvvvvvrrrrrrrne 5 567 249 3,185 4,006
FiNANCEIEASES......c.cuve vttt 3 - - - 3
Operating [€a8SES........cvviiriiirreeeeeeee s 229 601 186 337 1,353
TOAl o s 237 1,168 435 3,522 5,362

At 31 December 2001, Lloyds TSB Group aso had £3,651 million of undated long-term debt outstanding.

The following table sets out the amounts and maturities of Lloyds TSB Group’s other commercial commitments at 31
December 2001. These commitments are not included in LIoyds TSB Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

Withinone Onetothree Threeto Over five

year years fiveyears years Total

£m £m £m £m £m

ACCEDLANCES ...ttt 2,243 - - - 2,243
GUAIBNEEES.........ceereeeereee ettt 3,065 426 27 271 3,789
Other contingent liabilities.........cccovveveerrenicennenenns 1,566 271 8 86 1,931
Total contingent liabilities.........ccooevvevevevcneneeceeene, 6,874 697 35 357 7,963
Lending COMMItMENES.......ccoververerrenereenreseeneenenenns 42,594 5,605 3,080 891 52,170
Other COMMItMENES.......ccovvviirrrreeeeeee s 834 57 101 180 1,172
Total COMMITMENES ... 43,428 5,662 3,181 1,071 53,342
Total contingentsand commitments...........cc..... 50,302 6,359 3,216 1,428 61,305

Loan commitments are agreements to lend to customers in accordance with contractual provisions; these are either for a
specified period or, as in the case of credit cards, represent a revolving credit facility which can be drawn down at any time,

provided that the agreement has not been terminated. The total amounts of unused commitments do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements, in that commitments often expire without being drawn upon.

Lloyds TSB Group's banking businesses are also exposed to liquidity risk through the provision of securitisation liabilities
to certain corporate customers. Lloyds TSB Group acts as sponsor to two off-balance sheet entities, Monument and Obelisk,
which are wholly owned by independent trusts and administered by third parties. These off-balance sheet entities purchase
receivables from customers funded by secured lending from third parties, which in turn issue asset-backed commercial paper to
investors. Lloyds TSB Group does not sell its own receivables to these entities, and the assets and obligations of Monument and
Obelisk are not included in Lloyds TSB Group’s consolidated balance sheet. However, LIoyds TSB Group provides short-term
asset-backed commercia paper liquidity support facilities on commercial termsto the issuers of the commercia paper, for usein
the event of a market disturbance should they be unable to roll-over maturing commercial paper or obtain alternative sources of
funding.

During 2001, feeincome earned by Lloyds TSB Group in relation to these transactions totalled approximately £650,000. At
31 December 2001, Monument and Obelisk held assets of approximately £2,140 million, primarily loans and investments. The
assets are generaly of investment grade quality and are typically secured. Based upon the commitments of Monument and
Obelisk to their customers as at 31 December 2001, Lloyds TSB Group provided asset-backed commercial paper liquidity
support facilities of £2,020 million.

Within Lloyds TSB Group’s insurance and investments businesses, the principa sources of liquidity are premiums received
from policyholders, charges levied upon policyholders, investment income and the proceeds from the sale and maturity of
investments. The investment policies followed by Lloyds TSB Group's life assurance companies take account of anticipated
cash flow requirements by matching the cash inflows with projected liabilities. Any liquidity requirements in excess of those
anticipated are met from additional funds held to provide solvency margin cover; these include significant short-term cash
deposits. Asat 31 December 2001, these funds amounted to £2,985 million, representing an excess of £1,831 million over the
required minimum solvency margin.

Based upon the levels of resources within the banking and insurance and investments businesses and the ability of Lloyds
TSB Group to access the wholesale money markets or issue debt securities should the need arise, Lloyds TSB Group believes
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that its overal liquidity is sufficient to meet current obligations to customers, policyholders and debt holders, support
expectations for future changesin asset and liability levels and carry on normal operations.

Because the principal business of Lloyds TSB Group is banking, it is able to raise substantial amounts of cash in the
wholesale money markets to provide funds for acquisitions, should the need arise. In deciding whether Lloyds TSB Group has
sufficient resources to be able to make an acquisition the key factor is not the availability of cash, but the ability of Lloyds TSB
Group, and the authorised institutions within L1oyds TSB Group, to continue to meet the capital adequacy requirements of the
regulatory authorities. There are strict limits imposed by the regulatory authorities as to the proportion of Lloyds TSB Group’s
regulatory capital base that can be made up of subordinated debt and preferred securities, see—“Liquidity and capital resources—
capita ratios’. At the end of 2000, following the acquisitions of Scottish Widows and Chartered Trust, Lloyds TSB Group was
very close to these limits and only had capacity to raise approximately £200 million of debt capital. However, Lloyds TSB
Group’ s capacity to raise new debt capital for regulatory purposes increases as profits are retained; at 31 December 2001, Lloyds
TSB Group had capacity to raise approximately £1,300 million of debt capital.

Capital resources

Thetotal capital resources of LIoyds TSB Group are set out below:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
Minority interests (equity and NON-EQUILY) ....c.ccuereiereieieieierereereere e rereseresesesesesenas 997 552 33
Called-up Share Capital .........coovvvrrrrrrrr s 1,411 1,396 1,389
Share Premium BCCOUNL .......c.ceurureierieirereeee s sessee s s sess s ssesesssessesenss 959 595 404
IMLEIQEN TESEIVE ...ttt bbb bbb b et s b et st b e ne s 343 343 343
Profit and 0SS GCCOUNL .........ccciiveiicisees et s st b s seebsseene e 8,047 7,690 6,693
Shareholders’ fuNAS (EQUILY) «....oveeererireririenseneesisseseesis s sesses s sessssssesenss 10,760 10,024 8,829
11,757 10,576 8,862
Undated 10an Capital .........cccceurieieienieeeeneie ettt ss e sesesesanes 3,651 3,391 3,294
Dated 10an CapItal ..........ccccveieieieieieeieee ettt rerererenas 4,006 4,119 3,199
Total CaPItal FTESOUICES.......cvviiieiecicececrcrrc s 19,414 18,086 15,355

Lloyds TSB Group'stotal capital resourcesincreased by £1,328 million during 2001.

Shareholders funds increased by £736 million, mainly as a result of profit retentions, and loan capital increased by
£147 million, due to the issue of additional subordinated loan capitd to fund the general activities of Lloyds TSB Group.

There was a further increase in non-equity minority interests during 2001 following the issue of £456 million of non-

cumulative perpetual capital securities by Lloyds TSB Bank, to provide capital to support the expansion of Lloyds TSB Group's
balance sheet.

Capital ratios

The international standard for measuring capital adequacy is the risk asset ratio, which relates regulatory capital to balance
sheet assets and off-bal ance sheet exposures weighted according to broad categories of risk.

Lloyds TSB Group's regulatory capita is divided into tiers defined by the European Community Own Funds Directive.
Tier 1 comprises shareholders' funds and minority interests, after deducting goodwill and intangible assets. Tier 2 comprises
generd loan loss provisions, and qualifying subordinated loan capital, with restrictions on the amount of general provisions and
loan capital which may be included. The amount of qualifying tier 2 capital cannot exceed that of tier 1 capital. Total capital is
reduced by deducting investments in subsidiaries and associates which are not consolidated for regulatory purposes and
investmentsin the capital of other credit/financial ingtitutions. In the case of LIoyds TSB Group, this means that the net assets of
its life assurance and general insurance businesses are deducted from Lloyds TSB Group’ s regulatory capital.

Banking operations are categorised as either banking book or trading book (broadly, activities which are accounted for on a
mark-to-market basis). Risk-weighted assets are determined according to a broad categorisation of the nature of each asset or
exposure and counterparty and, for the trading book, by taking into account market-rel ated risks.



31 December 31 December 31 December

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
(@ o1 = R 1= TSRS 9,168 7,949 8,596
LI 2.t 7,831 7,722 6,838
16,999 15,671 15,434

SUPENVISOTY JEAUCLIONS.......cuieeeieierieireseisie st sss e sess st sessse e senas (6,960) (6,862) (2,588)
Total regulatory CapItal ........cccverrrccrre s 10,039 8,809 12,846
Total riSK-WEIGNtEA @SSELS ......cvireeirreseerie st 108,755 93,979 84,415
Post-tax return on average risk wWeighted @SSEtS........ccceeeeneeeeeeeseee e 2.53% 3.10% 3.04%
Risk asset ratios: total Capital ........cooveveereerereierrescre s 9.2% 9.4% 15.2%
L= ST 8.4% 8.5% 10.2%

At 31 December 2001, the risk asset ratios were 9.2 per cent for total capital and 8.4 per cent for tier 1 capital. The 8.4 per
cent tier 1 capital ratio appears higher than would perhaps be expected for Lloyds TSB Group. This reflects the higher level of
supervisory deductions resulting from LIoyds TSB Group’ s significantly increased investment in itslife assurance operations as a
result of the acquisition of Scottish Widows.

During 2001, total capital for regulatory purposes increased by £1,230 million to £10,039 million. Tier 1 capital was
increased by £1,219 million, mainly from retained profits and the issue of tax efficient capital instruments. Tier 2 capital
increased by £109 million and supervisory deductionsincreased by £98 million.

Risk-weighted assets increased to £108,755 million at 31 December 2001 and the post-tax return on average risk-weighted
assets, which Lloyds TSB Group considers akey measure of efficient use of capital, was 2.53 per cent.

Corporate social responsibility

Lloyds TSB Group adopts a responsible attitude to social, environmental and ethical (SEE) issues, and publishes a separate
annual information pack on itsrole in the community, its code of business conduct and its environmental performance.

Lloyds TSB Group has a dedicated environmental risk unit which is responsible for the development of environmental
policies and procedures, and provides practical advice and guidance on environmenta issues to business units. Significant
progress has been made in developing Lloyds TSB Group's environmental management system and this is detailed in the
environmental report forming part of ‘the community and our business'.

Following the recent publication by the Association of British Insurers of guidelines on the disclosure of information on SEE
issuesin company annua reports, LIoyds TSB Group isreviewing its SEE policies and disclosures.



Investment portfolio

Investment securities and other securities

The following table sets out the book value and valuation of Lloyds TSB Group's investment securities and other securities
at 31 December for each of the three years indicated.

2001 2000 1999
Book Book Book
value Valuation value Valuation value Valuation
£m £m £m £m £m £m
| nvestment securities®”
Bank and building society certificates of
EPOSIT. ... 4,670 4,677 3,034 3,034 4,153 4,145
Corporate debt SeCUrities........coovrerrenenerenenenns 613 616 465 466 75 76
Mortgage backed SeCUrities.........ccovvvvevrireninnnn. 521 527 18 18 15 15
Other asset backed SeCUrities........occcevereereennen. 2,328 2,332 529 529 49 48
Other debt SECUNtIES ..o 1,211 1,209 619 618 540 539
Securities of the US Treasury and
US Government agencies........cceeeeerererernnnnas 13 13 12 12 10 10
Other Government SECUtieS.........cvevereerennen. 1,633 1,829 1,717 2,136 1,886 2,245
Other public Sector SEeCUrities........ccuvvereerenenn. - - 1 1 4 4
EQUILY ShareS.....cccvvrvriirnnscssseeseseseens 38 66 41 102 43 79
11,027 11,269 6,436 6,916 6,775 7,161
Other securities
UK Government SECUNti€S. ......covuveerrerencerenenens 31 31 893 893 1,917 1,917
Securities of the US Treasury and US
Government agenCies........ovvvvevrrereseresenenes - - 16 16 14 14
Other Government SECUIitieS........ccverereereeenen. 4,072 4,072 2,151 2,151 1,930 1,930
Other public sector SeCUrities.......coovvnrerenenen. 151 151 131 131 65 65
Bank and building society certificates of
EPOSIL......eceeieirereire e 234 234 105 105 286 286
Corporate debt SeCUrties. ... ..ccovvveerereerennene 7,102 7,102 4,671 4,671 3,873 3,873
Mortgage backed Securities... .......oovvevvrervrrnnn. 1,054 1,054 242 242 28 28
Other asset backed SecuUrities.........ovvrerereene. 592 592 - - - -
Other debt SECUNtIES .....c.cvvvvereerrerceie e - - 1 1 39 39
EQUILY ShareS.....cccvvvviiinrnesssseeseseeeens 187 187 206 206 170 170
13,423 13,423 8,416 8,416 8,322 8,322

(1) Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basis in the activities of LIoyds TSB Group and not for dealing purposes.
Investment securities held by Lloyds TSB Group’s insurance businesses are not included.
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Maturities and weighted average yiel ds of debt securities

The weighted average yield for each range of maturitiesis cal culated by dividing the annualised interest income prevailing at
31 December 2001 by the book va ue of securities held at that date.

Investment securities

Securities of the US Treasury and

US Government agencies........oveeeeerenenns
Other Government SECUrities.........oeeeeeeenen.

Bank and building society certificates of

Mortgage backed Securities.........ccoceverereranas
Other asset backed securities........ocoveeeveneee.
Other debt SECUNtIES......cveveeeveereeeeeceriereeeens
Total book Value .........ccovveevveiieeesieeriene,

Other securities

Corporate debt securities........cocvvvvvrrenenes
Mortgage backed Securities.........ccocevevereranas
Other asset backed securities..........coocveene.
Total book value .......ccooeveervencrnrrerieine

Maturing within

Maturing after
one but within five

Maturing after
five but within ten

Maturing after ten

Maturing within

Maturing after
one but within five

Maturing after
five but within ten

one year years
years years

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
£m % £m % £m % £m %

- - 4 5.8 5 7.1 4 7.2

254 3.2 240 4.3 187 58 952 9.9
4,591 4.4 79 4.7 - - - -
18 55 377 4.7 159 6.4 59 3.6

- - 174 4.6 326 55 21 6.3

17 3.6 418 39 1,594 29 299 5.6
140 3.6 627 41 444 29 - -
5,020 4.3 1,919 4.3 2,715 3.6 1,335 8.6

Maturing after ten

one year years
years years

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
£m % £m % £m % £m %

31 5.8 - - - - - -
474 39 1,707 39 1,890 50 1 3.7
59 2.9 52 4.8 40 52 -
234 59 - - - - - -
927 3.0 5,182 39 964 50 29 5.8

- - 307 4.8 495 51 252 5.7

- - 129 4.0 365 52 98 58
1,725 3.7 7,377 4.0 3,754 50 380 57



Maturity analysis and interest rate sensitivity of loans and advancesto customers and banks as at 31 December 2001

The following table analyses the maturity profile and interest rate sensitivity of loans by type on a contractua repayment
basis as at 31 December 2001. All amounts are before deduction of provisions and interest in suspense. Demand loans are

included in the “maturing in one year or less’ category.

Maturing after

one year but
Maturingin not more than Maturing after
oneyear or less five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m

Domestic:
Loans and advancesto banks ..........ccoveeeveeeiiveeeseennns 12,147 269 321 12,737
L oans and advances to customers:

MOFQAgES. ... e ettt 1,364 6,693 48,521 56,578

Other persona lending..........ccocovvvvvvvvvsssses 6,154 6,075 555 12,784

Financial, business and other services...........ccoove.. 4,537 1,963 2,236 8,736

Lease fiNanCiNg .....c.cocovvvnnennnennese s 638 1,651 5,263 7,552

HIr€ PUIChaSse ...ttt 2,337 2,936 72 5,345

OthEIS .o 8,405 4,613 4,025 17,043
Total dOmESLICI0aNS.......ccoceiieerrececeeee s 35,582 24,200 60,993 120,775
Total foreign [0ans.........cccveeeeeeeeee e 8,814 4,418 5,690 18,922
Total |0ANS......cooieirieeciece e s 44,396 28,618 66,683 139,697
Of which:
Fixed iNtEreSt rate.......covvveiveeeereccesece e 29,019 14,316 28,344 71,679
Variableinterest rate.......cccvvevieevrecnricee e 15,377 14,302 38,339 68,018

Deposits

The following table shows the details of LIoyds TSB Group’s average customer depositsin each of the past three years.

2001 2000 1999
Average Average Average Average Average Average
balance rate balance rate balance rate
£m % £m % £m %
Depositsin domestic offices
Non interest bearing demand deposits.... 6,182 - 6,058 - 6,134 -
Interest bearing demand deposdits............ 18,034 0.73 17,836 1.36 17,050 1.42
SaVinNgS dePOSItS......covvevirerererererereresenesenns 38,743 4.49 34,468 5.26 34,602 4.06
Time dePoSItS....cocvverererreeee e 15,856 539 19,767 5.95 15,395 6.05
Total domestic office deposits.............. 78,815 3.46 78,129 414 73,181 3.52
Depositsin foreign offices
Non interest bearing demand deposits.... 595 - 635 - 578 -
Interest bearing demand deposdits............ 991 293 793 4.04 874 3.09
Savings deposits........oovreeirerennenennenennenns 1,842 5.16 1,901 4.58 2,069 3.72
Time depPoSItS....cocvvereerereeee e 8,044 0.95 7,632 8.94 7,868 10.92
Total foreign office deposits................. 11,472 8.05 10,961 7.31 11,389 8.46
Total average deposits........ccoceerererennas 90,287 4.04 89,090 4.53 84,570 4.19
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Certificates of deposit and other time deposits

The following table gives details of Lloyds TSB Group’s certificates of deposit issued and other time deposits as at 31
December 2001 individually in excess of US $100,000 (or equivalent in another currency) by time remaining to maturity.

Ove 3 Over 6
months but months but
3 monthsor within 6 within 12 Over 12
less months months months Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Domestic
Certificates of depoSit.......cccovvvvvvevvvrinen, 8,754 2,294 932 20 12,000
TiME dEPOSILS. ..o 26,087 1,902 903 2,291 31,183
34,841 4,196 1,835 2,311 43,183
Foreign
Certificates of deposit and other time
(0[S o0 1S ] £ 8,875 1,370 272 577 11,094
TOtAl oo s 43,716 5,566 2,107 2,888 54,277

Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings are included within the balance sheet captions “ Deposits by banks’, “ Customer accounts’ and “ Debt
securities in issue” and are not identified separately on the balance sheet. The short-term borrowings of Lloyds TSB Group
consist of overdrafts from banks, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, certificates of deposit issued, commercia paper

and promissory notes issued and other marketable paper. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and certificates of
deposit issued are the only significant short-term borrowings of Lloyds TSB Group.

The following table gives details of the significant short-term borrowings of Lloyds TSB Group for each of the past three

years.
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Liabilitiesin respect of securities sold under repurchase agreements
Balance at the PEriod ENG..........cceirrriiccccers s 5,516 4,030 3,933
Average balance for the PEIOU ..o s 3,898 3,000 3514
Maximum balance during the Period...........ccvrriiiecreccre s 5,516 6,158 5,718
Averageinterest rate during the PENOU..........ovvvvrrrrrrssrrr s 6.7% 7.3% 6.6%
Interest rate at the PEriod €N ... 6.1% 6.4% 6.3%
Certificates of deposit issued
Balance at the Period ENd..........ccviiriiicrcecs s 17,060 12,052 8,428
Average balance for the PEIOU ..o s 14,643 11,910 9471
Maximum balance during the Period...........cccvriieiiccccccree s 18,160 13,645 10,853
Average interest rate during the PEMOQ.........ovrrrnriennenee e 5.0% 6.3% 8.1%
Interest rate at the PEriod €N ... s 3.7% 6.3% 5.4%
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MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Directorsand senior management

Lloyds TSB Group plc recognises that good governance is central to achieving the governing objective of maximising
shareholder value over time. Lloyds TSB Group plc is led and controlled by a board comprising executive and non-executive
directors with wide experience. The appointment of directors is considered by the board and, following the provisions in the
articles of association, they must retire by rotation, and may stand for re-election by the shareholders, at least every three years.
Executive directors normally retire at age 60 as required by their service agreements. Independent non-executive directors are
appointed for a specified term, not exceeding five years, which may be renewed.

The board meets eleven times ayear and a programme is prepared and agreed each year, which ensures that the directors are
able regularly to review corporate strategy and the operations and results of the business units and to discharge their other duties.
The roles of the chairmen, the group chief executive and the board and its governance arrangements are reviewed annualy.

The board has a chairman’s committee, comprising the chairman, the deputy chairman, the group chief executive and his
deputy. The chairman’s committee meets to discuss current issues and strategy, examine and test proposals and prepare for
board meetings. It also has power to deal with routine matters between board meetings. The board aso has audit, nomination
and remuneration committees; the chairmen and members of these committees are all non-executive directors.

The chairman, the group chief executive and the group finance director have meetings with representatives of institutional
shareholders and all shareholders are encouraged to participate in LIoyds TSB Group’s annual general meeting.

Board of directors
Biographical details of the board of directors are given below.

Maarten A van den Bergh ¢
Chairman

Joined Lloyds TSB Group in 2000 as deputy chairman and was appointed chairman in 2001. Joined the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group of companiesin 1968 and after a number of senior and general management appointments in that group, became group
managing director in 1992. Appointed president of Roya Dutch Petroleum Company and vice chairman of the committee of
managing directors of the Royal Dutch/Shell Group in 1998 and continued in these roles until 2000. A non-executive director of
Roya Dutch Petroleum Company and BT Group. Elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2001. Aged 60.

Alan E MooreCBE *§
Deputy Chairman

Joined Lloyds Bank International in 1980. Held a number of senior and general management appointments in that company
and in Lloyds Bank before becoming a director of Lloyds Bank in 1989 and deputy chief executive and treasurer in 1994,
Following the merger with TSB Group in 1995, became deputy group chief executive of Lloyds TSB Group and then deputy
chairmanin 1998. Joined Glyn Mills & Co in 1953, holding senior appointmentsthere until his secondment, as director general,
to the Bahrain Monetary Agency from 1974 to 1979. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2000.
Aged 65.

Executivedirectors

Peter B Ellwood CBE
Group Chief Executive

Joined TSB Bank in 1989 as chief executive, retail banking. Appointed a director of TSB Group in 1990 and became group
chief executive in 1992. Following the merger with Lloyds Bank in 1995, became deputy group chief executive of Lloyds TSB
Group and then group chief executive in 1997. Joined Barclays Bank in 1961 and held a number of senior and genera
management appointments, including chief executive of Barclaycard from 1985 to 1989. Chairman of the Industrial Society.
Former chairman of Visalnternational. Most recently re-elected by the shareholdersto the board in April 2001. Aged 58.

Michael E Fairey
Deputy Group Chief Executive

Joined TSB Group in 1991 and held a number of senior and general management appointments before being appointed to the
board in 1997 and deputy group chief executive in 1998. Joined Barclays Bank in 1967 and held a number of senior and general
management appointments, including managing director of Barclays Direct Lending Services from 1990 to 1991. Most recently
re-elected by the shareholdersto the board in April 2002. Aged 53.
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Michael D RossCBE
Deputy Group Chief Executive

Joined the board in 2000. Joined Scottish Widows in 1964 and following a number of senior and general management
appointments became group chief executive of that company in 1991. Chairman of the Association of British Insurers. Elected
by the shareholdersto the board in April 2000. Aged 55.

M Kent Atkinson
Group Finance Director

Joined Bank of London & South Americain 1964, which became a Lloyds Bank subsidiary in 1971, and held a number of
senior and general management appointments, including positionsin Latin America and the Middle East, before being appointed
to the board in 1997. A non-executive director of Coca-ColaHBC SA. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board
in April 2001. Aged 56.

J Eric Daniels
Group Executive Director, UK Retail Banking

Joined the board in 2001. Served with Citibank from 1975 and held a number of senior and genera management
appointments in the USA, South America and Europe before becoming chief operating officer of Citibank Consumer Bank in
1998. Following the Citibank/Travelers merger in 1998, he was chairman and chief executive officer of Travelers Life and
Annuity until 2000. Chairman and chief executive officer of Zona Financierafrom 2000 to 2001. Elected by the shareholdersto
the board in April 2002. Aged 50.

ArchieG Kane
Group Executive Director, IT and Operations

Joined TSB Commercial Holdings in 1986 and held a number of senior and general management appointments in Lloyds
TSB Group before being appointed to the board in 2000. After some 10 years in the accountancy profession, joined Generd
Telephone & Electronics Corporation in 1980, serving as finance director in the UK from 1983 to 1985. Chairman of the
Council of the Association for Payment Clearing Services. Elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2000. Aged 49.

David P Pritchard
Group Executive Director, Wholesale and International Banking

Joined TSB Group in 1995 as group treasurer. Seconded to the Securities and Investments Board as head of supervision &
standards, markets & exchanges, from 1996 to 1998. Appointed to the board in 1998. Held senior and general management
appointments with Citicorp from 1978 to 1986 and Royal Bank of Canada from 1986 to 1995. A non-executive director of the
London Clearing House. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2001. Aged 57.

Independent non-executive directors

Ewan Brown CBE FRSE **
Chairman of LIoyds TSB Scotland

A director since 1999. A non-executive director of Lloyds TSB Scotland since 1997. Executive director of Noble Grossart
since 1971. Chairman of the Court of Heriot-Watt University and a non-executive director of Stagecoach Holdings. Former
Chairman of Dunedin Income Growth Investment Trust. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2001.
Aged 60.

A CliveButler =8A

A director of TSB Group since 1993. Joined Unilever in 1970 and following a number of senior and general management
appointments was appointed an executive director of Unilever in 1992. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board
in April 2000. Aged 55.

SheilaM Forbest

A director of TSB Group since 1994. Chairs the board of governors of Thames Valley University and is a civil service
commissioner. Head of personnel for Unigate from 1980 to 1988 and personnel director for Storehouse from 1988 to 1992.
Director of human resources at Reed Elsevier (UK) from 1992 to 1996. Most recently re-elected by the sharehol ders to the board
in April 2000. Aged 55.
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Gavin J N Gemmell CBE*
Chairman of Scottish Widows

Joined the board on 17 April 2002. A non-executive director of Scottish Widows since 1984. Senior Partner of Baillie
Gifford & Co from 1989 to 2001, having held a number of appointments since joining the firm in 1964. A non-executive
director of Scottish Enterprise Edinburgh and Lothian. Elected by the shareholdersto the board in April 2002. Aged 60.

Christopher S Gibson-Smitht

A director since 1999. Chairman of National Air Traffic Services and a non-executive director of Powergen. Managing
director of BP from 1997 to 2001, having held senior and general management appointments in the UK, the USA, Canada and
Europe, sincejoining that company in 1970. Most recently re-elected by the shareholdersto the board in April 2002. Aged 56.

DeAnne S Julius CBEt

Joined the board in 2001. Held a number of senior appointments in the UK and the USA with the World Bank, Royal
Dutch/Shell Group and British Airways, before membership of the Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee from 1997 to
2001. Chaired HM Treasury's banking services consumer codes review group. A non-executive director of the Bank of
England, Serco Group and BP. Elected by the shareholdersto the board in April 2002. Aged 53.

ThomasF W McKillop* t

A director since 1999. Joined ICI in 1969 and held a number of senior and general management appointments before the
demerger in 1993, when Zenecawas created. Chief executive of Zeneca Pharmaceuticals from 1994 to 1999 and chief executive

of AstraZenecafrom 1999. Pro-chancellor of Leicester University. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board in
April 2002. Aged 59.

The Earl of Selborne KBE FRSS

A director since 1995, having been a director of Lloyds Bank since 1994. Managing director of The Blackmoor Estate, his
family business. Chancellor of Southampton University since 1996. President of the Royal Geographical Society from 1997 to
2000. Most recently re-elected by the shareholders to the board in April 2002. Aged 62.

* Member of the audit committee

**  Chairman of the audit committee

t Member of the remuneration committee
4 Chairman of the remuneration committee
8§ Member of the nomination committee

4 Chairman of the nomination committee
A Senior independent director
Compensation

Directors remuneration

The remuneration committee makes recommendations to the board of directors on the executive directors' remuneration and
determines, on the board's behalf, specific remuneration packages for the chairman, the deputy chairman and the executive
directors. All the non-executive directors receive the minutes of remuneration committee mestings and have the opportunity to
comment and have their views taken into account before that committee’s decisions are implemented. See also “—Board
practices—Remuneration committee’.

Executive directors' remuneration policy

Lloyds TSB Group aims to ensure that the executive directors' remuneration arrangements, in line with our overall practice
on pay and benefits, are competitive and designed to attract, retain and motivate executive directors of the highest calibre, who
are expected to perform to the highest standards. Account is taken of information, from internal and independent sources, on the
remuneration for comparable positionsin awide range of FTSE 100 companies.

Reward package. Each year, with the help of external management consultants, the total remuneration package is reviewed,
and in 2001 Hay Management Consultants were commissioned by the remuneration committee to conduct the review. In 2001,
the package for executive directors comprised the following elements:

Basic salary. The aim is to ensure that the responsibilities of the role are reflected in the salary and that salaries are
competitively set in relation to other comparable companies.
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Annual incentive. The annual incentive scheme is designed to reflect specific goals linked to the performance of the
business. The group chief executive has a maximum incentive opportunity of 100 per cent of his salary, and each of the other
executive directors can earn an incentive equal to 75 per cent of their salary. These awards are based on Lloyds TSB Group
performance, and for 2001 included the attainment of predetermined targets relating to revenue, business as usual operating
profit and economic profit. The remuneration committee reviewed the attainment of targets and agreed the incentive payments.

Medium-termincentive plan

In April 2000, shareholders approved the introduction of a medium-term incentive plan which gives executive directors
serving at that time the opportunity of an award, deferred until after the end of 2002 and which is the subject of two performance
targets, based on the efficiency ratio and return on equity. For the group chief executive the maximum award will be equal to 50
per cent of aggregate basic salary for the years 2000 - 2002 and for other executive directors, the maximum award will be equal
to 25 per cent of aggregate basic salary for these three years.

The two minimum performance targets are a reduction in Lloyds TSB Group's efficiency ratio to 37 per cent by the end of
2002 and a return on equity of 28 per cent by the end of 2002. No payment will be made under the plan unless both these
minimum targets are met.

For the year 2001, the efficiency ratio was 49.0 per cent and return on equity was 23.5 per cent.

Share option schemes. Lloyds TSB Group is committed to the governing objective of maximising shareholder value over
time. The board believes that the executive share option schemes for senior executives provide an effective method of giving
executives the incentive to achieve that objective.

There are two schemes: the approved scheme, under which options over shares with a total market value of up to £30,000
(at the date of grant) may be granted, which has been approved by the UK Inland Revenue (the United Kingdom government
department responsible for assessing and collecting United Kingdom tax revenues) and which enjoys certain tax benefits, and the
unapproved scheme, which is not subject to such afinancial limit and has not been approved by the UK Inland Revenue.

Both schemes are subject to limits relating to the number of shares under option and the price payable on the exercise of
options.

In 2001 options were granted to executive directors and senior executives within the limits set by the rules of the schemes
and subject to performance conditions set at the time of grant.

In March 2001, options were granted under both schemes subject to performance conditions under which the ranking of
Lloyds TSB Group plc, based on total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price
over the relevant period), should be in the top 50 companiesin the FTSE 100. There must also have been growth in earnings per
share at least equal to the aggregate percentage change in the UK retail price index, plus three percentage points for each
complete year of the relevant period. The relevant period commenced at the end of the financial year 2000 and continues until
the end of the financial year 2003 or, if the conditions have not then been met, at the end of alater financia year.

Under a resolution adopted at the annual general meeting held on 18 April 2001, the rules of the unapproved scheme were
amended so that the maximum total price of shares over which options may be granted to an executive in any one year is one and
a half times his or her annual base salary (although, in exceptional circumstances, for example on the recruitment of a new
exelcutilve, this could be increased to four times annual base salary) with a performance multiplier. The maximum performance
multiplieris3.5.

In August 2001, additional options were granted under the amended rules of the unapproved scheme subject to a
performance condition linked to the performance of Lloyds TSB Group plc'stota shareholder return (calculated by reference to
both dividends and growth in share price) relative to a group of seventeen UK and international companies in the banking and
insurance sectors, including Lloyds TSB Group plc. The performance condition will be measured over a three year period
commencing at the end of the financial year 2000 and continuing until the end of 2003. If the performance condition is not then
met it will be measured at the end of 2004. [f the condition has not then been met, the options will lapse. A performance
multiplier will be applied to calculate the number of shares in respect of which options granted to executive directors will
become exercisable, which will be calculated on a dliding scale. If Lloyds TSB Group plc is ranked below median the options
will not become exercisable.

Share retention plan. During the year a share retention plan was adopted, specifically to facilitate the recruitment of
Mr Daniels, who was based in the USA, as part of the remuneration package considered necessary to attract him to the UK. He
is the only participant in the plan and he became €ligible to participate in it when he joined Lloyds TSB Group plc on
1 November 2001. On 2 November 2001, an option was granted to him under the plan to acquire 216,763 ordinary shares in
Lloyds TSB Group plc (with a value of £1.5 million at the date of grant) for atotal price of £1. No further options may be
granted to him under the plan.

No new shares will be issued to satisfy the option.
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The option is designed to encourage him to remain with Lloyds TSB Group plc and, accordingly, it will normally become
exercisable only if he remains as an employee, and has not given notice of resignation, on 31 December 2004, or if he ceasesto
be an employee before that date in certain circumstances described in his service agreement, in which case it will be exercisable
for six months and then lapse. Briefly, these include the following:

If he were to be entitled to terminate his service agreement without notice by reason of his employer’s conduct.

If hewereto be removed as adirector or employee otherwise than in accordance with that agreement.

If there were to be any material diminution of his duties.

If, within 18 months of his employment, there were to be a change of circumstances of Lloyds TSB Group plc such that
there was, in his reasonable judgement, a material and adverse effect on his prospects or a material diminution of his
status.

The option may also be exercisable on atakeover or reconstruction of L1oyds TSB Group plc.

The option will lapse if Mr Danidls dies or ceases to be an employee, or gives notice of resignation, before 31 December
2004, except in the circumstances described above.

The number of shares may be adjusted by the board on certain variations in the share capital of Lloyds TSB Group plc.
The benefits conferred by the option are not pensionable and the option is not transferable.

Any change to Mr Daniels’ rights in the event of a variation of share capital which would be to his advantage could not
generally be made without shareholder approval.

In addition to the executive share option schemes the chairman, deputy chairman and executive directors are entitled to
participate in the staff profit sharing and “sharesave” schemes which are open to al UK employees who meet the scheme's
eligibility criteria. For 2001 the profit sharing amount was 9 per cent of basic salary.

Pensions. Executive directors are, like most other employees, entitled to pensions based on salary and length of service with
Lloyds TSB Group, with a maximum pension of two-thirds of final salary.

Other benefits. Other benefitsinclude the use of a car and medical insurance.

Announcement of appointment of new Group Finance Director
On 30 April 2002 Lloyds TSB Group announced the appointment of Philip Hampton as its Group Finance Director to

replace Kent Atkinson, who will remain on the Board as a non-executive director, retiring at the 2003 Annual General Meeting.
Mr Hampton will join the Board of LIoyds TSB Group on 1 June 2002.
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Directors emoluments for 2001

Current directors who served
during 2001:

M K AtKiNSON.....ccoeeeeeeeeiecienne

A CBUtlEN ...,
JEDani€els.....vevivenreerenn,
P B Ellwood.........ccoeeviriveriinenns
M EFairey ...cccooeeeenenieieinienns
SM Forbes.......ccoveviveeiieniens
C SGibson-Smith.........ccccceviveuens
D SJUIUS ..o

TFW McKillop....ccovvenicernnenns

A EMOOre ...ooovveeeereereee e
D P Pritchard........coooovviveiene

M A vanden Bergh.......c.ccceeeee.

Former directors who served
during 2001:

DennisHOIt......ccooeeeeeeeeeeene
L ELINAKES .o
Sir Brian Pitman .......cccceeeeeeneee.
L M Urquhart.......ccccoeovennnrnnnnas

Former directors who served

during 2000........cccvereereererennens

Performance
Salariesffees bmotte?i(ta; pa;:wlgfg Profit sharing T 2000
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
355 16 185 32 588 509
59 59 45
40 40 33
75 117 192 -
600 23 324 54 1,001 856
415 123 216 37 791 596
38 38 34
38 38 30
9 9 -
330 17 171 30 548 474
45 45 33
200 11 18 229 216
355 16 185 32 588 496
395 15 205 35 650 468
43 43 42
355 15 36 406 68
220 7 227 428
12 12 36
120 21 11 152 488
93 93 70
126
3,797 381 1,286 285 5,749 5,048

‘Other benefits' include the use of a car, private medical insurance and life insurance cover. Allowances for relocation,
housing and legal advice arising from Mr Daniels' service agreement and an additional payment in respect of the contribution to
the separate fund relating to Mr Fairey’'s pension are aso included. The separate fund was established to cover pension
obligations of those who joined Lloyds TSB Group after 1 June 1989 and who are subject to the Inland Revenue earnings cap

relating to pensions, introduced by the Finance Act 1989.

Thetotal for the highest paid director (Mr Fairey), including the gain of £882,000 on the exercise of share options mentioned
on page 80, was £1,673,000. (The total for the highest paid director in 2000 (Mr Ellwood) was £856,000). Gains on the exercise
of share options arise from increases in the share price since the options were granted. Shareholders who held shares for the
same periods would have gained similarly from these increases.
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Directors pensionsin 2001

@
Additional
pension ear ned (b)

(excluding Increasein (0
inflation) during transfer value Accrued pension
theyear ended (excluding entitlement at
31 December 2001 inflation) 31 December 2001
Pension benefits earned by the directors: £ £ £
I QN 1 (T 1S o 27,406 416,704 221,274
JE D@ANIEIS....c. it 23,750 312,504 23,750
PB EHWOOd.........ccooieieieeeeeseeteeseeeesese ettt 39,564 698,877 336,441
M E FQITEY .....oieeerieeireieireieireieirees sttt 19,888 291,267 127,183
=01 TS L] 19,721 256,671 189,541
A G KANE o 18,608 235,895 118,599
D PPritChard.......ccoveueiviirinirreneieseesesseeseseesseiseseesees 12,234 207,385 30,582
M D ROSS......coiiieeriiiriinere et 27,615 401,111 245,229

The table above shows the pension earned by the directors during the year and their total entitlement as at 31 December
2001.

The directors are members of one of Lloyds TSB Group's defined benefit schemes. This means that at retirement each
director isentitled to receive an annual pension based on salary and service completed at date of leaving.

Column (a) in the table shows the additional pension earned by each director during the year. This is calculated as one
year's service at the Scheme's accrual rate multiplied by salary. The calculation is adjusted to take account of inflation and

showsthe ‘real’ increase in the entitlement over the year. Thefigure shown isan annua pension payable from normal retirement
date.

Column (b) shows the capital value of the additional pension earned and is intended to illustrate the cost of providing the
pension that has accrued over the year. The figure shown is the amount that would be available to transfer to another pension
schemein respect of the one year of accrud if the director left service.

Column (c) shows the total pension that the director has accrued during his membership of the pension scheme. Thisisthe
pension to which he would be entitled if he left service at the year-end. This figure is calculated using the relevant scheme's
accrua rate, serviceto the year-end and pensionable salary at that date.

The benefits disclosed in the table are those provided in accordance with the rules of each scheme and for which the

employer is responsible for funding. They do not take into account any voluntary provision that the individual director may be
making.

The pension provisionsin Mr Pritchard’ s service agreement have been changed, with effect from 1 January 2000, to defined
benefit arrangements.  He therefore waived entitlement to the £63,045 alocation to the defined contribution section of the
separatefund.

Board practices

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises Mr Brown (chairman), Dr McKillop, Mr Moore and Mr Gemmell (who joined the
committee when Mr Urquhart retired on 17 April 2002). The audit committee's duties include considering the appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors and their independence and objectivity. The audit committee also reviews all
financial statements published in the name of the board and the quality and acceptability of the related accounting policies,
practices and financia reporting disclosures; the scope of work of the group risk management division, where duties include
internal audit and advising on and monitoring compliance with financial services legidation and regulations, and the adequacy of
its resources; the results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness and the audit fee; communications from the external auditors

on audit planning and findings on material weaknesses in accounting and interna control systems; the major findings of any
relevant internal investigations; and its own efficiency and effectiveness.



Nomination committee

The nomination committee, comprising Mr van den Bergh (chairman), Mr Moore, Mr Butler and The Earl of Selborne,
considers potential candidates for appointment as directors and makes recommendations to the board. The group chief executive

is invited to attend all meetings of the committee. The committee also makes recommendations to the board concerning the
following:

the re-appointment of any non-executive director by the board at the conclusion of his or her specified term;

the re-élection of any director by the shareholders under the retirement by rotation provisions of the articles of
association;

any matters relating to the continuation in office as adirector of any director at any time; and

the appointment of any director to executive or other office, other than to the positions of chairman and group chief
executive where special arrangements apply.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee, comprising Mr Butler (chairman), Miss Forbes, Dr Gibson-Smith, Dr Julius and Dr McKillop,
reviews and makes recommendations to the board on the framework of executive directors’ remuneration and its cost. It also
determines, on the board’ s behalf, specific remuneration packages for each of the chairman, the deputy chairman, the executive
directors, and any employee of Lloyds TSB Group plc or any subsidiary whose salary exceeds £300,000 per annum. In addition,
it determines proposalsfor the granting of executive share options.

All the non-executive directors receive the minutes of remuneration committee meetings and have the opportunity to
comment and have their views taken into account before that committee’ s decisions are implemented.

Following the provisions in the articles of association, the shareholders agree an amount of remuneration that may be paid to
the non-executive directors in any one year. The chairman’s committee makes recommendations to the board on the non-
executive directors' remuneration and the board approves the amount within the limit agreed by the shareholders.

Directors' service agreements

Mr Atkinson, Mr Ellwood, Mr Fairey, Mr Kane and Mr Pritchard each has a service agreement which Lloyds TSB Group
plc may terminate by giving one year’s notice. In connection with the arrangements for the transfer of the business of Scottish
Widowsto Lloyds TSB Group in March 2000, Mr Ross's service agreement provides for two years' notice for the first two years
of employment with the Group, which ended in March 2002. After that, the notice period will decrease by one month for each
month of service. In March 2003 therefore, Mr Ross's agreement will provide for one year's notice.  Mr Daniels' service
agreement provides for two years' notice for the first eighteen months; after that the notice period reduces to one year. None of
the other directors has a service agreement with a notice period of one year or more.

The remuneration committee has considered the provisions of the UK listing authority’ s corporate governance code relating
to compensation in the event of early termination of directors service agreements and a departing director’ s duty to mitigate loss.
The committee reviewed the wording of the executive directors agreements and felt that, as the notice period did not exceed one
year with the exception of Mr Ross and Mr Daniels as mentioned above, there was no need to provide explicitly for
compensation payments on early termination. Therefore, none of the directors service agreements contain provisions for
predetermined compensation in the event of the termination of employment in excess of an amount equivalent to the
remuneration payable over the notice period, athough certain share options may vest upon termination without the need to
satisfy the performance conditions. The service agreements provide for a retirement pension provision for each relevant director
with a pension upon retirement.

Employees

As a 31 December 2001, Lloyds TSB Group employed 81,400 people (full-time equivalent), compared with 77,540 at
31 December 2000. At 31 December 2001, 69,918 employees were located in the UK, 5,421 in the Americas, 4,413 in New
Zedand, and 1,648 in the rest of the world. At the same date, 51,450 people were employed in UK Retail Banking and

Mortgages, 6,378 in Insurance and Investments, 21,285 in Wholesale Markets and International Banking, and 2,287 in other
functions.

Lloyds TSB Group is committed to employment policies which follow best practice, based on equal opportunities for all
employeesirrespective of sex, race, nationa origin, religion, colour, disability, sexua orientation, age or marital status.

In the UK, Lloyds TSB Group supports Opportunity Now and Race for Opportunity, campaigns to improve opportunities for
women and ethnic minorities in the workplace. Lloyds TSB Group is a member of the Employers’ Forum on Disability in
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support of employment of people with disabilities. This recognises the need for ensuring fair employment practices in
recruitment and selection, and the retention and career development of disabled staff.

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through a variety of means. In the UK, Lloyds TSB
Group has long standing arrangements with finance sector unions covering both collective and individua representation of staff.
Lloyds TSB Group has gone through substantial changes in recent years; adjusting for the effect of acquisitions and disposals
underlying staff numbers have reduced by 10,809 since 1995. However, during this time no materia strikes or work stoppages
have occurred. Additionally staff are kept closely involved in magjor changes affecting them through such measures as regular
briefings, internal communications and opinion surveys as a way of ensuring the views of employees are taken into account in
reaching decisions.

Schemes offering share options or the acquisition of shares are available for most staff to encourage their financid
involvement in Lloyds TSB Group. Further details are given in “—Compensation—Long-term rewards—Share option
schemes’.

Share owner ship

Directors interests

Thedirectors interestsin ordinary sharesin Lloyds TSB Group plc were:

At At

1 January 2001 1 January 2001

At (or date of At (or date of

31 December appointment if 31 December appointment if

Shares: 2001 later) 2001 later)

M K AtKiNSON........ccovverererererenes 124,815 31,077 AGKaE....reeeenee 80,120 78,865

Ewan Brown .........ccoevevvniiiieens 3,402 3274 TFW McKillop.....ocoeeerererennas 1,000 1,000

A CBUtlEr ... 2,000 2000 AEMOOre....ccooinrriereenerinienenes 1,107,396 1,043,196

JEDani€s...eveeeieeeeeeeee, 1,000 - DPPritchard......cccocoeveercecicinas 3,367 2,151

P B Ellwood.........cccovvverrirerene 178,751 177501 M D ROSS.....cocoerererieiienerieieeneens 2,500 2,500

M E Farey...cvvvvnvsrsinens 74,158 72,218 Lord Selborne........ccoveveeevrininnnn. 3,372 3,372

SM FOrbes......ccovevvvveeeieennn, 2,000 2,000 L M Urquhart......cccooovvvvvriniennne. 2,226 2,124

C S Gibson-Smith.........cccccevune. 3,151 3151 M A vandenBergh........cccceuuuee 4,000 4,000
D SJUUS ..o, 2,000 -
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Optionsto acquire shares of LIoyds TSB Group plc:

At Weighted Exercise
1January average price of Amount of gain on
2001 exercise share Market exer cisd?
(or date of Granted Exercised At price at options price at
appointment duringthe duringthe 31 December 31 December granted or date of 2001 2000
if later) year year 2001 2001  exercised exercise £000 £000
M K Atkinson Exercisable 253,056 147,600 344p
Not exercisable 183,377 345,155 710p
38,583 655p
127,131 733p
1,245 591p
54,080 129.81p 664p 289
27,040 137.94p 664p 142
16,224 137.2p 664p 85
8,112 197.49p 664p 38
5,181 253p 706p 23
JE Daniels Exercisable - -
Not exercisable - 907,780 907,780 694p 694p
P B Ellwood™” Exercisable 321,340 321,340 358p
Not exercisable 311,224 441,725 696p
130,501 655p
M E Fairey® Exercisable 224,556 54,000 510p
Not exercisable 203,253 394,138 709p
42,884 655p
148,618 733p
138,556 242.5p 717p 754
32,000 321p 717p 127
617 632p 730.5p 1
A G Kane® Exercisable 171,547 171,547 312p
Not exercisable 157,784 310,721 715p
34,759 655p
118,178 733p 20
A EMoore Exercisable 59,439 -
Not exercisable 3,545 -
3,545 253p 731p 17
59,439 250.37p 694p 264
D P Pritchard Exercisable - -
Not exercisable 176,591 340,096 707p
36,374 655p
127,131 733p
M D Ross Exercisable - -
Not exercisable 268,941 440,549 615p
30,152 655p
141,456 733p
Gain made by Dennis Holt, who left the board on 31 August 2001 53 7
1,793 27
Share retention plan
JE Daniels Not exercisable - 216,763 - 216,763

Options were not exercisable because they had not been held for the period required by the relevant scheme or the
performance conditions had not been met.

Options may be exercised between 2002 and 2011.

(1) These directors will receive additional Lloyds TSB Group shares on exercising share options held on 28 December 1995. These shares
will compensate them for the specia dividend of 68.3p per share which was paid to former TSB Group shareholders following the merger

with Lloyds Bank, but which was not paid to option holders.

In that regard Mr Fairey received 13,511 additional shares when he

exercised the 138,556 share options shown above. Following that exercise, Mr Fairey no longer held any share options to which these

arrangements apply.

(2) Thisisthe difference between the market price of the shares on the day on which the share option was exercised and the price paid for the
shares, and includes the value of shares issued to compensate directors for the special dividend mentioned above.

The market price for a share in Lloyds TSB Group plc a 31 December 2001 was 746p. The range of prices between
1 January 2001 and 31 December 2001 was 590p to 772p.

None of the other directors at 31 December 2001 had options to acquire sharesin LlIoyds TSB Group plc or its subsidiaries.



Scottish Widowsloan capital

At the end of the year, Mr Ross had an interest in £43,194 of Scottish Widows Group Limited floating rate unsecured loan
notes 2008 (2000: £57,394).

Directors non-beneficial interests
Directors had non-beneficial interests asfollows:

1. Mr Atkinson, Mr Daniels, Mr Ellwood, Mr Fairey, Mr Kane, Mr Moore, Mr Pritchard, Mr Ross and Mr van den Bergh,
together with some 73,000 other employees, were potential beneficiaries in the 2,417,245 and 1,952,179 shares held at the
end of the year by the Lloyds TSB qualifying employee share ownership trust and the Lloyds TSB Group employee share
ownership trust, respectively. 749,896 and 3,100,000 shares, respectively, were held by these trusts at the beginning of the
year. These holdings were 1,719,373 and 1,939,013 respectively on 14 February 2002. In addition, the TSB Group
Employee Trust held 66,536 shares at the beginning of the year and none at the end of the year.

2. At the beginning and end of the year, Mr Ellwood also had a non-beneficial interest in 7,000 shares held in another trust.

None of those who were directors at the end of the year had any other interest in the capital of LIoyds TSB Group plc or its
subsidiaries.
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MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Major shareholders

Lloyds TSB Group plc does not know of any shareholder owning beneficialy, directly or indirectly, five per cent or more of
the shares of Lloyds TSB Group plc, or of any shareholder having more than five per cent of the voting rights.

At 31 December 2001, those who were directors of Lloyds TSB Group plc on that day beneficially owned the following
ordinary shares, not including options:

Title of Class | dentity of Person or Group Amount Owned Per cent of Class
Ordinary shares, nominal value 25 pence each Directors (17 persons) 1,595,258 0.03%

In addition, those directors held, as at 31 December 2001, options to acquire 4,091,414 shares, al of which were granted
pursuant to the executive share option schemes, sharesave share option schemes and share retention plan.

Lloyds TSB Group plc is not owned or controlled directly or indirectly by another corporation or by any government and
Lloyds TSB Group plc is unaware of any arrangements which might result in a changein control.

Related party transactions

Lloyds TSB Group, as at 31 December 2001, had related party transactions with seven directors and twenty eight officers.
See Note 42 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The transactions in question were made in the ordinary course of
business, were made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with other persons, and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other
unfavourable features.
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REGULATION
European Union Directives

European Union (“EU") Directives, which are required to be implemented in member states through national legidation,
have a strong influence over the framework for supervision and regulation of banking and financia services in the UK. The
banking Directives aim to harmonise banking regulation and supervision throughout member states by setting out minimum
standards in key areas such as capital adequacy and deposit and investor compensation schemes. The UK has now largely
implemented these minimum requirements. The Directives also require member states to give “mutual recognition” to each
other’s standards of regulation. Under the Second Banking Co-ordination Directive the concept of mutual recognition has aso
been extended to create the “passport” concept: this gives a bank which has been authorised in its “home” state the freedom to
establish branches in, and to provide cross-border services into, other member states without the need for additiona local
authorisation.

Whilst credit institutions such asthose in Lloyds TSB Group are primarily regulated in their home state by alocal regulator,
the EU Directives prescribe minimum criteriafor the authorisation of credit institutions and the prudential supervision applicable
to them. Investment firms are subject to a similar regulatory environment and can obtain a “passport” under the Investment
Services Directive. Despite the application of the “ passports’ a member state can impose certain reguirements on the conduct of
banking and investment activitiesin its boundaries (including conduct of businessrules).

Credit ingtitutions and investment firms are required to make adequate capital provisions for risks entered into: the
Directives set out the deemed quality and acceptable relative proportions of various types of capital. The Directives aso regulate
permissible counterparty exposures, provide for the supervision of consolidated financial groups' capital adequacy requirements
and define permissible exposuresto individual or linked counterparties.

During 2001 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision has issued further consultation documents with the purpose of
replacing the Capital Accord of 1988 with a new capital adequacy framework. The outcome of these consultations is likely to
result in comprehensive changes to the capital adequacy regulations applicable to Lloyds TSB Group. The proposas for the new
framework cover three main areas:

Minimum capital requirements and methodologies for allocation of regulatory capital for credit and other risks.
A supervisory review process, including the setting of capital ratios by bank supervisors.
Improvement in the stability of the financial system by reliable and timely disclosure of risk information.
It is not expected that the eventual framework will be implemented before 2005, at the earliest.
UK regulations

In the UK, the fundamental concepts of congtitutional issues, company registration and the format and production of
company annual reports and accounts are controlled by the UK Companies Act 1985. In addition, as a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange Limited, Lloyds TSB Group plc is obliged to comply with a code of practice known as the Combined
Code regarding corporate governance. As part of the continuing obligations of Lloyds TSB Group under the rules of that
Exchange it must disclose, through the Exchange, major developments in its sphere of activity which may lead to substantia
movement in the price of its securities listed on that Exchange.

The undertaking of certain financia activities in the UK subjects the relevant entity to further regulatory regimes. The UK
government has recently implemented major changes to the supervisory regimes affecting financial services businesses. In
accordance with the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (‘FSMA’) on 1 December 2001, the Financial
Services Authority (‘FSA’) completed the process of assuming responsibility for the regulation and oversight of al financial
services activity in the UK, including investment in securities and long term insurance contracts.

Any individual who carries out what is known as a ‘controlled function’ in a financial services firm now needs to be
approved by the FSA. Controlled functions include those of directors, the finance officer, risk management, compliance, anti-
money laundering and internal audit. The FSA have established a Code of Practice for Approved Persons; shortfals in their

conduct can lead to sanctions against the individual by the FSA.
The most significant regulatory regimes relevant to Lloyds TSB Group are discussed below.
Banking

Primary responsibility for the prudential supervision of UK banks was transferred from the Bank of England to the FSA
under the Bank of England Act 1998. The Bank of England retained its monetary policy role and responsibility for the overall
stability of the financial system. The FSA carries out its supervision of the UK banking sector through the collection of
information from a series of periodic statistical and prudential returns covering both sterling and non-sterling operations,
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meetings with the senior management of the banks and reports obtained from skilled persons. The regular reports include
operating statements and returns covering (amongst other things) capital adequacy, liquidity, large single exposures and large
exposures to related borrowers, lendings by industry sector and geographical area, maturity analyses and foreign exchange
activities. A risk-based approach for the supervision of al banks was introduced in 1998; under this approach, the starting point
for the FSA’s supervision of abank is based on a systematic analysis of that bank’ s risk profile. Having determined the level of
inherent risk in the bank aminimum capital adequacy requirement is established, which the bank is required to meet at all times.

UK banks are required to maintain, in interest-free accounts at the Bank of England, a non-operational cash balance
calculated as a percentage of eligible liabilities, which are, broadly, a measure of the sterling resources available to the banks for
lending purposes.

Depositors in the UK are provided with protection for their deposits with authorised ingtitutions. Depositors with a failed
institution are entitled to receive 100 per cent of the first £2,000 and 90 per cent of the next £33,000 of their protected deposits
from the UK deposit protection fund, subject to a maximum amount of £31,700, including both principal and accrued interest.
All authorised institutions are required to be members of the deposit protection scheme and are subject to alevy in proportion to
their deposit base, which includes deposits in sterling, other European Economic Area currencies and euro, to finance the deposit
protection fund.

The Banking Code (the “Code") is a voluntary code agreed by UK banks and building societies which became effective in
1992, with subsequent revisionsin 1994, 1997 and 2000, and which has been adopted by Lloyds TSB Group. The Code defines
the responsibilities of the banks and building societies to their persona customers in connection with the operation of their
accounts and sets out minimum standards of service that these customers can expect from institutions which subscribe to the
Code. Compliance with the Code is monitored by the Banking Code Standards Board.

The Business Banking Code is a voluntary code agreed by UK banks which became effective at the end of March 2002 and
which has been adopted by Lloyds TSB Group. The Business Banking Code defines the responsibilities of the banks to their
smaller business customers in connection with UK operation of their accounts and sets out minimum standards of service that
such customers can expect from ingtitutions which subscribe to the Business Banking Code. Compliance with the Business
Banking Code is monitored by the Banking Code Standards Board.

I nvestment business

The FSA is responsible for the authorisation and supervision of those firms which are engaged in investment business as
defined in the FSMA. As part of the authorisation process, the FSA reviews applicants to ensure that they satisfy the necessary
criteriaincluding honesty, competence and financia soundness, to engagein regulated activity. Lloyds TSB Group'sinvestment
businesses became authorised by the FSA through being “ grandfathered” as having been authorised under previous legidation to
carry on investment business.

The FSA’ s regulatory approach aims to focus and reinforce the responsibility of the management of each authorised person
to ensure that it takes reasonable care to organise and contral its affairs responsibly and effectively and that it develops and

maintains adequate risk management systems. The FSA Handbook of Rules and Guidance (‘the Handbook’) sets out the
principles of market conduct and the rules to which investment businesses are required to adhere.

Under the FSMA acompulsory single, industry wide, investor’ s compensation scheme, the Financia Services Compensation
Scheme has been set up. The Schemeis financed by alevy system and the FSMA allows for the establishment of different funds
for different kinds of business and for different maximum amounts of claim. The limit for investment business compensation is
£48,000.

“Listed money market ingtitutions” are regulated by the FSA which expects such entities to observe the “London Code of
Conduct” and other regulations contained in the paper entitled “The Regulation of the Wholesale Cash and OTC Derivatives
Markets’ which was originally issued by the Bank of England to regulate the operation of the wholesale money markets. Lloyds
TSB Bank has been granted listed money market institution status.

Insurance
The insurance companies within the LIoyds TSB Group became authorised by the FSA through being “grandfathered” as
having been authorised under previous legidation. While the authorisation and supervision of insurance companiesis subject to
the same FSA regulatory approach as other investment companies, rules exist to:
Restrict the carrying out of insurance businessin the UK to persons authorised by the FSA.

Require the separation of the long-term business assets of an insurance company from the assets attributable to
shareholders.

Require, and define the role of, an appointed actuary for each insurance company carrying out long-term businessin the
UK. The appointed actuary is responsible for monitoring the financial health of the company.
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Require the directors to prepare an annual report on the solvency position of the insurer. The valuation basis for assets
is defined and there are limits on the extent to which certain categories of assets are alowable in determining the
solvency position. The appointed actuary must calculate the value of long-term liabilities and details of his
investigations are contained in the directors solvency report. In determining the value of long-term liabilities the
appointed actuary must use a method and valuation basis permitted by the Handbook.

Require the maintenance of a prescribed solvency margin at al times. The amount of the solvency margin depends
upon the amount and type of business an insurance company writes. Failure to maintain the required solvency margin
gives the regulator grounds for intervention.

Prevent an insurer, and its parent, from declaring a dividend when long-term business assets do not exceed long-term
liabilities. Furthermore, surplus assets in the long-term fund can only be transferred out once the appointed actuary has
completed an investigation.

Prevent the use of the long-term business assets for purposes other than supporting long-term business.

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme also appliesto insurance business written by an insurer authorised by the FSA
or by the UK branch of an EEA firm carrying on “home state regulated activity”. The limit of compensation in respect of long-
term insurance contracts is 90 per cent of the value of the contact and is unlimited.

Other relevant legidation and regulation

The Consumer Credit Act 1974 regulates both brokerage and lending activities in the provision of personal secured and
unsecured lending. The Data Protection Acts 1984 and 1998 regulate, among other things, the retention and use of data relating
to individua customers. The Unfair Terms in Consumer Contracts Regulations 1994 came into force in July 1995. These
Regulations together with the Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977 apply to certain contracts for goods and services entered into with
customers. The main effect of the Regulationsis that a contractua term covered by the Regulations which is “unfair” will not be
enforceable against a consumer. These Regulations apply, among other things, to mortgages and related products and services.

The Mortgage Code is avoluntary code followed by lenders and mortgage intermediaries dealing with customersin the UK

who want aloan secured on their home. It sets standards of good mortgage practice, which are followed as a minimum standard
by those subscribing to it. Compliance with the Mortgage Code is monitored by the Mortgage Code Compliance Board.

Rest of theworld
Lloyds TSB Group operates in many countries around the world and its overseas branches, subsidiaries and associate

companies are subject to reporting and reserve requirements and controls imposed by the relevant central banks and regulatory
authorities.



LISTING INFORMATION

The information in this section has been extracted from publicly available documents from various sources, including
officially prepared materials fromthe London Stock Exchange, and has not been prepared or independently verified by us.

The ordinary shares of Lloyds TSB Group plc are listed and traded on the London Stock Exchange under the symbol
“LLOY.L". The prices for shares as quoted in the officia list of the London Stock Exchange are in pounds sterling. The
following table shows the reported high and low closing prices for the ordinary shares on the London Stock Exchange.

Priceper share

(in pence)

High Low
Annual prices.
0 OO 7720 590.0
2000 ... ettt bbb b £ bbb £ b £ bbb b bR bbb bbbt 7745 517.0
1900 .ottt E R R R e b et 1,060.0 725.0
TO08.... ettt bR E £ E RSt 1,070.5 5755
S T 850.5 428.0
Quarterly prices:
2002:
LTS R0 [T = TR 775.0 680.0
2001:
FOUPEN QUBITET ...ttt st 757.0 644.0
I o = = T 742.0 590.0
S o010 [0 1 = T 7720 684.5
LTS 017 = TR 751.0 610.0
2000:
FOUPEN QUBITET ...ttt bbbt bbbttt 725.0 614.5
LI e 0 8 = T 660.0 576.5
1S o0 o 1 = TS 7425 598.0
LTS R0 [ = T 7745 517.0
Monthly prices:
A o122 0 2T 789.0 708.0
IMAICH 2002......ccucuieeireieireesireie e bbb bbb bbb bbbt 742.0 698.0
FEOMUAIY 2002........ceceeieirireicie sttt se bbb bbb b bbbt 775.0 680.0
JBNUAIY 2002......ceeeeeresets ettt b bbbttt b bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbt bbbt 765.0 710.0
DECEMDES 2001L.......c.ceceeirereeereireseeee et bbb bbb 754.0 705.0
NOVEMDET 2001 ......c.ceeueirereereeireseneeeisesesses e sesses e sessee s sess b s e s seesbse s st se b b st et ese bbb e sns et be e nntes 7570 692.0

On 1 May 2002, the closing price of shares on the London Stock Exchange was 781 pence, equivalent to $11.42 per share
trandated at the Noon Buying Rate of $1.4621 per £1.00 on 1 May 2002.



Lloyds TSB Group plc’s ADRs have been traded on the over-the-counter market in the US under the symbol “LLDTY”
since March 2000. Since 27 November 2001 Lloyds TSB Group plc ADSs have been listed on The New Y ork Stock Exchange
under the symbol “LYG”. The prices for Lloyds TSB Group plc's ADRs, as quoted below are in US dollars. Each ADS
represents four ordinary shares. The following table shows the reported high and low closing prices for the ADRs in the over-
the-counter market in the US.

Price per ADR
(in USdoallars)

High Low
Annual prices.
2001 (t0 26 NOVEMDEr 2001) ...cvoveveverereieieieieieieiereieieiessseseietesesesesesesesssesesssesesesesesesesesesesesesesasasasasasesases 46.00 34.75
40 T 45.27 33.50
Quarterly prices:
2001:
Fourth quarter (to 26 NOVEMDEr 2001) ......coviieririrerierie st sses st sessenes 43.88 38.25
B I o o 0 =g = R 44.00 35.50
S o]0 To o [0 g = ST 43.94 38.94
LS (U= (= 46.00 34.75
2000:
L0001 0 (U= = OO 43.75 35.75
B I (e 0 U= = T 38.75 33.50
0SS o000 o [0 g = TSRS 45.27 37.53
Monthly prices:
November 2001 (t0 26 NOVEMDESr 2001) ........ovoveeerureriereeirenenseeiseresesssesessssesssesesssessesessssssssessssssssesesseess 43.88 40.50
L@ o1 0] 0= 200 TSP 42.38 38.25
SEPLEMDET 2001 ...ttt b bbb bbb bbb 4225 35.50
AUGUSE 200L......c0cueieeeeieeseseeses st e sesste e sessse s s sess b s seb et se bbb s b s s bbb s b s s bbb e et een 44.00 4052
JUIY 2001 ...cocvieeieeeireeeireieeseee et seie bbb bbbt bbb bbb bbb bbb bbb bbbt 41.07 36.86
O 112 O STRST 41.66 38.94

The following table shows the reported high and low closing prices for ADSs on the New Y ork Stock Exchange:

Price per ADS
(in USdollars)

High Low
Annual prices.
2001 (from 27 NOVEMDEr 2001) ......cccvieieierereieieieieinieierereieieresesesstesssssesesssssesesesssesssesesesesesssesesesesesasass 45,00 40.75
Quarterly prices:
2002:
LTS (U= (= 45.35 39.10
2001:
Fourth quarter (from 27 November 2001) .......covvrrinninninenenenesese s s ssss s 45.00 40.75
Monthly prices.
N o] 1 00 2SS 46.51 40.85
MBICH 2002 ......oeeeeeeeseseee et e bbb bbb 43.10 40.50
FEDIUBIY 2002.......c0cuieieeceeiriseeeeieiseseises st ss sttt s bbbt b bbbt en 45.35 39.10
JANUBIY 2002 ......eeeeiereeieiet ettt sttt bbb st st e b st e b b et e b b et e AR et e b b et e e R b e Rt et e R e e 44.10 4150
DECEMDES 2001 ...ttt sttt 45.00 40.75
November 2001 (from 27 November 2001) ..o 42.10 41.25

On 1 May 2002, the closing price of ADSs on the New Y ork Stock Exchange was $45.95.
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DIVIDENDS

Lloyds TSB Group plc has paid an interim and final dividend each year since the merger of TSB Group plc and Lloyds
Bank Plcin 1995. Dividends are paid in May and October and the record date for purposes of determining the shareholders who
will be entitled to adividend is approximately 10 weeks before the dividend payment date. TSB Group plc, which was re-named
Lloyds TSB Group plc after the merger, has paid an interim and final dividend every year after its flotation on the London Stock
Exchange in September 1986, with the exception of 1986 when no final dividend was paid. Lloyds TSB Bank has paid a
dividend every year sinceitsincorporation as Ll1oyds Banking Company Limited in 1865.

Lloyds TSB Group plc's ability to pay dividends is restricted under UK company law. Dividends may only be paid if
distributable profits are available for that purpose. In the case of a public limited company, a dividend may only be paid if the
amount of net assets is not less than the aggregate of the called-up share capital and undistributable reserves and if the payment
of the dividend will not reduce the amount of the net assets to less than that aggregate. In addition, a company cannot pay a
dividend if any of its UK insurance subsidiaries isinsolvent on aregulatory valuation basis or in the case of regulated entities, if
the payment of a dividend results in regulatory capital requirements not being met. Similar restrictions exist over the ability of
Lloyds TSB Group plc’'s subsidiary companies to pay dividends to their immediate parent companies. Furthermore, in the case
of Lloyds TSB Group plc, dividends may only be paid if sufficient distributable profits are available for distributions due in the
financia year on certain preferred securities. The board of directors has the discretion to decide whether to pay a dividend and
the amount of any dividend. Dividends are paid through The Bank of New Y ork which acts as paying and transfer agent for the
American Depositary Shares.

The table below sets out the interim and final dividends which were declared in respect of the ordinary sharesfor fiscal years
1996 through 2001. The sterling amounts have been converted into US dollars at the Noon Buying Rate in effect on each
payment date.

Interim dividend Interim dividend Final dividend Final dividend

per share per share per share per share

£ $ £ $

1907 ...t 0.053 0.086 0.119 0.198
1998....ecerei e 0.067 0.114 0.155 0.253
1999.....ccerrer s 0.081 0.134 0.185 0.289
2000 ...t 0.093 0.136 0.213 0.306
2001 ...ttt 0.102 0.149 0.235 0.344

There are no UK governmental laws, decrees or regulations that affect the remittance of dividends or other shareholder
payments to non-residents of the UK who hold shares of Lloyds TSB Group plc.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF LLOYDSTSB GROUPPLC

A summary of the material provisions of LIoyds TSB Group plc’'s memorandum and articles of association was incorporated
into Lloyds TSB Group plc’s registration statement filed with the SEC on 25 September 2001 and is therefore incorporated into
thisannual report by reference to that statement.

EXCHANGE CONTROLS

There are no UK laws, decrees or regulations that restrict Lloyds TSB Group plc’s export or import of capital, including the
availability of cash and cash equivaents for use by Lloyds TSB Group, or that affect the remittance of dividends or other
shareholder payments to non-UK holders of Lloyds TSB Group plc shares, except as otherwise set out in “ Taxation”.



TAXATION
UK Taxation

The following discussion is intended only as a general guide to current UK tax legislation, what is understood to be current

UK Inland Revenue practice and the terms of the current UK/US income tax treaty (the “ Treaty”) and the New Treaty (as defined
below), al of which are subject to change at any time, possibly with retroactive effect. On 24 July, 2001, the UK and the US
entered into a new income tax treaty (the “New Treaty”), which has till to be ratified by both the UK Parliament and the US
Senate before its provisions enter into force. It is not known when these procedures will be completed. The UK Inland Revenue
is the UK government department responsible for assessing and collecting UK tax revenues. The discussion is intended as a
genera guide and only appliesto persons who are the beneficial owners of their ordinary shares or ADSs. Referencesbelow to a
US Holder are to that term as defined, and subject to the exclusions described in the introduction, below under “—US Federa
Income Tax Considerations’. It may not apply to certain shareholders or ADS holders, such as dedlersin securities. Any person
who isin any doubt asto histax position should consult his own professional adviser.

Taxation of chargeable gains

UK residents

A disposal (or deemed disposal) of ordinary shares or ADSs by a shareholder or holder of ADSs resident or (in the case of
an individua) ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the UK may, depending on the shareholder’s or ADS holder’s particular
circumstances, and subject to any available exemption or relief, give rise to a chargeable gain or an alowable loss for the
purposes of UK taxation on chargeable gains.

Persons, other than USHolders, temporarily non-resident in the UK

A shareholder or ADS holder who is an individual and who has, on or after 17 March 1998, ceased to be resident and
ordinarily resident for tax purposes in the UK for a period of less than five years of assessment and who disposes of ordinary
shares or ADSs during that period may be liable, on return to the UK, to UK taxation on chargeable gains arising during the
period of absence, subject to any available exemption or relief.

USHolders

Subject to the provisions set out in the next paragraph in relation to temporary non-residents, US Holders will not normally
be liable for UK tax on chargeable gains unless they carry on a trade, profession or vocation in the UK through a branch or
agency and the ordinary shares or ADSs are or have been used or held by or for the purposes of the branch or agency, in which
case such US Holder might, depending on individual circumstances, be liable to UK tax on chargeable gains on any disposition
of ordinary sharesor ADSs. A US Holder who is only temporarily not resident in the UK may, under anti-avoidance legidation,
till beliable for UK tax on chargeable gains realised, subject to any available exemption or relief.

A US Holder who is an individual and who has, on or after 17 March 1998, ceased to be resident or ordinarily resident for
tax purposes in the UK for a period of less than five years of assessment and who disposes of ordinary shares or ADSs during
that period may be liable, on return to the UK, to UK taxation on chargeable gains arising during the period of absence, subject to
any available exemption or relief.

Other non-UK resident persons

Subject to the provisions set out above under “—Persons, other than US Holders, temporarily non-resident in the UK”,
shareholders or ADS holders who are neither resident nor ordinarily resident in the UK will not normally be liable for UK tax on
chargeable gains unless they carry on a trade, profession or vocation in the UK through a branch or agency and the ordinary
shares or ADSs are or have been used or held by or for the purposes of the branch or agency, in which case such shareholder or
ADS holder might, depending on individual circumstances, be liable to UK tax on chargeable gains on any disposition of
ordinary shares or ADSs. An individual holder of ordinary shares or ADSs who is only temporarily not resident in the UK may,
under anti-avoidance legidlation, still be liable for UK tax on chargeable gains realised, subject to any available exemption or
relief.

Taxation of dividends

UK residents

Lloyds TSB Group will not be required to withhold tax at source when paying a dividend on the ordinary shares or ADSs.

Anindividual shareholder or ADS holder who isresident in the UK for tax purposes will be entitled to atax credit in respect
of any dividend received from us and will be taxable on the gross dividend, which is the aggregate of the dividend received and
related tax credit. The value of the tax credit will be equal to one-ninth of the dividend received (and, therefore, 10 per cent of
the gross dividend). The gross dividend will be treated as an individual’s margina income. The tax credit will, however, be
treated as discharging the individua’ sliability to income tax in respect of the gross dividend, unless and except to the extent that
the gross dividend falls above the threshold for the higher rate of income tax. A UK resident individual shareholder or ADS
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holder who is liable to income tax at the higher rate will be subject to tax at the rate applicable to dividends for such shareholders
or ADS holders (currently 32.5 per cent) on the gross dividend. The tax credit will be set against but will not fully discharge
such shareholder’s or ADS holder’s tax liability on the gross dividend and he will have to pay additional tax equal to 22.5 per
cent of the gross dividend, being 25 per cent of the dividend received, to the extent that such sum, when treated as marginal
income, falls above the threshold for the higher rate of income tax.

There will be no payment of the tax credit or any part of it to an individua whose liability to income tax on the dividend and
the related tax credit is less than the tax credit, except where the individual holds the relevant shares through a personal equity
plan or individual savings account and the dividend is received into such plan or account on or before 5 April 2004.

UK resident shareholders or ADS holders which are not liable to UK tax on dividends, including pension funds and
charities, will not be entitled to reclaim the tax credits in respect of dividends although charities will be entitled to a payment by
the UK Inland Revenue of a specified proportion of any dividend paid by us to the charities on or before 5 April 2004, that
proportion declining on ayear by year basis.

Subject to an exception for some insurance companies with overseas business, UK resident corporate shareholders or ADS

holders will generally not be subject to corporation tax in respect of dividends received from us, but will not be entitled to the
payment of any tax credit with respect to the dividends.

USHolders

Lloyds TSB Group will not be required to withhold tax at source when paying a dividend on the ordinary shares or ADSs to
aUSHolder.

A US Holder is entitled under the terms of the Treaty, in principle, to receive a payment from the UK Inland Revenue in
respect of a dividend from usin an amount equal to the tax credit (the “Tax Credit Amount”) to which a UK resident individual
is generally entitled in respect of the dividend. This is an amount equal to one-ninth of the dividend received. However, that
entitlement is subject to a deduction withheld under the Treaty. The amount of such deduction will equal the Tax Credit
Amount, i.e. one-ninth of the dividend. Therefore, a US Holder will not be able to claim any payment from the UK Inland
Revenue in respect of adividend from us.

When the New Treaty comes into effect (and the Treaty ceases to apply), a US Holder will not be entitled to clam a
payment from the UK Inland Revenue in respect of a dividend from us an amount equal to the Tax Credit Amount because the
New Treaty does not provide for that entitlement.

Other non-UK resident persons

Lloyds TSB Group will not be required to withhold tax at source when paying a dividend on the ordinary shares or ADSs to
aholder, other than aUS Holder, who is not resident for tax purposesin the UK.

Holders of ordinary shares or ADSs, other than US Holders, who are not resident for tax purposes in the UK and who

receive a dividend from us will not have any further UK tax to pay in respect of the dividend, but will not normally be able to
claim any additional payment in respect of the dividend from the UK Inland Revenue under any applicable double tax treaty.

Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax

UK residents, USHolders and other non-UK resident persons

Any conveyance or transfer on sale of ordinary shares (whether effected using the CREST settlement system or not) will be
subject to UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax (“SDRT”). The transfer on sale of ordinary shares will be liable to ad
valorem UK stamp duty or SDRT, generally at the rate of 0.5 per cent of the consideration paid (rounded up to the next multiple
of £5 in the case of stamp duty). Stamp duty is usualy the liability of the purchaser or transferee of the ordinary shares. An
unconditional agreement to transfer such ordinary shares will be liable to SDRT, generdly at the rate of 0.5 per cent of the
consideration paid, but such liability will be cancelled, or, if aready paid, refunded, if the agreement is completed by a duly-
stamped transfer within six years of the agreement having become unconditional. SDRT is normally the liability of the purchaser
or transferee of the ordinary shares.

Where Lloyds TSB Group issue ordinary shares or a holder of ordinary shares transfers such shares to the custodian or
nominee for the depositary to facilitate the issue of ADSs to him representing the ordinary shares or to a person providing
clearance services (or their nominee or agent), aliability to UK stamp duty or SDRT at the rate of 1.5 per cent (rounded up to the
next multiple of £5 in the case of the stamp duty) of either the issue price or, in the case of transfer, the listed price of the
ordinary shares, calculated in sterling, will arise. Where a holder of ordinary shares transfers such shares to the custodian or
nominee for the depositary or clearance service this charge will generaly be payable by the person receiving the ADSs or
transferring the ordinary shares into the clearance service.

A liability to stamp duty at the fixed rate of £5 will arise as aresult of the cancellation of any ADSswith the ordinary shares
that they represent being transferred to the ADS holder.
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No liahility to UK stamp duty or SDRT will arise on a transfer of ADSs provided that any document that effects such

transfer is not executed in the UK and that it remains at all subsequent times outside the UK. An agreement to transfer ADSs
will not giveriseto aliability to SDRT.

USfederal incometax consider ations

The following summary describes certain US federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition
of ADSs or ordinary shares, but it does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all of the tax considerations that may be
relevant to a decision to acquire such securities. The summary applies only to holders that hold ADSs or ordinary shares as
capital assets and does not address special classes of holders, such as.

certain financial institutions;

insurance companies;

dealersin securities or foreign currencies;

holders holding ADSs or ordinary shares as part of ahedge, straddle or other conversion transaction;
holders whose “functional currency” isnot the US dollar;

holdersliable for aternative minimum tax;

partnerships or other entities classified as partnershipsfor US federal income tax purposes; or
aholder that owns 10 per cent or more of the voting shares of Lloyds TSB Group plc.

In addition, the summary is based in part on representations of the Depositary and assumes that each obligation provided for
in or otherwise contemplated by the Deposit Agreement or any other related document will be performed in accordance with its
terms. The US Treasury has expressed concerns that parties to whom ADSs are pre-released may be taking actions that are
inconsistent with the claiming of foreign tax credits for US Holders of ADSs. Accordingly, the analysis of the creditability of
UK taxes described below could be affected by future actions that may be taken by the US Treasury.

The summary is based upon tax laws of the USincluding the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof
(the“Code"), administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions and final, temporary and proposed Treasury Regulations, aswell
as upon the Treaty and the New Treaty, as appropriate, changes to any of which may affect the tax consequences described
herein possibly with retroactive effect. On 24 July, 2001, the US and the UK entered into the New Treaty, which will enter into
force a such time asit isratified. Except as discussed under “—Taxation of Distributions’, application of the New Treaty will
not affect this summary. Prospective purchasers of the ADSs or ordinary shares should consult their own tax advisers as to the
US, UK or other tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of such securitiesin their particular circumstances,
including the effect of any state or local tax laws.

Asused herein, a“USHolder” isabeneficial owner of ADSs or sharesthat is, for US federal income tax purposes:
acitizen or resident of the US;
acorporation created or organized in or under the laws of the US or of any political subdivision thereof; or
an estate or trust the income of which is subject to US federal income taxation regardless of its source.

For USfedera incometax purposes, US Holders of ADSswill be treated as the owners of the underlying ordinary shares.

Taxation of distributions

To the extent paid out of current or accumulated earnings and profits of LIoyds TSB Group plc (as determined in accordance
with US federal income tax principles), distributions made with respect to ADSs or ordinary shares (other than certain
distributions of capital stock of LIoyds TSB Group plc or rights to subscribe for shares of capital stock of Lloyds TSB Group plc)
will be includible in the income of a US Holder as ordinary dividend income. Such dividends will not be €eligible for the
“dividends received deduction” generally allowed to corporations under the Code. To the extent that a distribution exceeds
Lloyds TSB Group plc's current and accumulated earnings and profits, it will be treated as a nontaxable return of capital to the
extent of the US Holder’ stax basisin the ADSs or ordinary shares, and thereafter as capital gain. The amount of the distribution
will equal the US dollar value of the pounds sterling received, calculated by reference to the exchange rate in effect on the date
such distribution is received (which, for holders of ADSs, will be the date such distribution is received by the Depositary),
whether or not the Depositary or US Holder in fact converts any pounds sterling received into US dollars at that time. Any gains
or losses resulting from the conversion of pounds sterling into US dollars will be treated as ordinary income or loss, as the case
may be, of the US Holder and will be US source.
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A US Holder may, under the Treaty, elect to claim aforeign tax credit in respect of the Tax Credit Amount. A US Holder
who so elects must include the Tax Credit Amount inincome. Under the New Treaty no such e ection would be available.

The limitation of foreign taxes eligible for credit is cal culated separately with respect to specific classes of income. For this

purpose, any dividends paid by Lloyds TSB Group plc on ADSs or ordinary shares will generally constitute “ passive income” or,
in the case of US financial service providers, may be “financial servicesincome’.

Taxation of capital gains

Gain or loss realised by a US Holder on (i) the sale or exchange of ADSs or ordinary shares or (ii) the Depositary’s sale or
exchange of ordinary shares received as distributions on the ADSs will be subject to US federal income tax as capital gain or loss
in an amount equal to the difference between the US Holder’ s tax basis in the ADSs or ordinary shares and the amount realised
on the disposition. Gain or loss, if any, will be US source. US Holders should consult their tax advisers regarding the US federal
tax treatment of capital gains, which may be taxed at lower rates than ordinary income for individuas, and losses, the
deductibility of which is subject to limitations.

Deposits and withdrawals of ordinary shares in exchange for ADSs will not result in taxable gain or loss for US federal
income tax purposes.

Information reporting and backup withholding

Dividends paid on ADSs or ordinary shares to a US Holder may be subject to information reporting requirements of the
Code. Such dividends may also be subject to backup withholding unless the US Holder:

isacorporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstratesthisfact, or

provides a taxpayer identification number on a properly completed Form W-9 or a substitute form and certifies that no
loss of exemption from backup withholding has occurred and that such holder isa US person.

Any amount withheld under these rules will be creditable against the US Holder’ s federa income tax liability. A US Holder
who does not provide a correct taxpayer identification number may be subject to certain penalties.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

The documents concerning us which are referred to herein may be inspected at the Securities and Exchange Commission.
You may read and copy any document filed or furnished by us at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s public reference

rooms in Washington D.C., New York and Chicago, Illinois. Please call the Securities and Exchange Commission at 1-800-
SEC-0330 for further information on the reference rooms.

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Lloyds TSB Group plc is a public limited company incorporated under the laws of Scotland. Most of Lloyds TSB Group
plc’sdirectors and executive officers and certain of the experts named herein are residents of the United Kingdom. A substantial
portion of the assets of Lloyds TSB Group plc, and a substantial portion of the assets of such persons, are located outside the
United States. Asaresult, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon such
persons or to enforce against them judgements of US courts, including judgements predicated upon the civil liability provisions
of the federal securities laws of the United States. Furthermore, Lloyds TSB Group plc has been advised by its English
solicitors, that there is doubt as to the enforceability in the United Kingdom, in original actions or in actions for enforcement of
judgements of US courts, of civil liabilities, including those predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United
States.



RISK FACTORS

An investment in Lloyds TSB Group plc’s ordinary shares involves a number of risks, including credit, market, operational,
regulatory, competitive and acquisition risks, some of which could be substantial and are inherent in Lloyds TSB Group's
business.

Lloyds TSB Group’s businesses are subject to inherent risks concerning borrower credit quality as well as the UK

unemployment rate and general UK and international economic conditions. Development of adverse conditionsin the
UK or in other major economies, could cause profitability to decline.

Lloyds TSB Group's businesses are subject to inherent risks regarding borrower credit quality as well as the UK
unemployment rate and genera UK economic conditions, each of which can change the level of demand for Lloyds TSB
Group’s products and services. Changes in the credit quality of Lloyds TSB Group’s UK or international borrowers and
counterparties could reduce the value of Lloyds TSB Group’s assets, and increase provisions for bad and doubtful debt. Any
significant increase in the UK unemployment rate would reduce profits from the insurance business. Furthermore, a genera
deterioration in the UK economy would also reduce Lloyds TSB Group’s profit margins for both its UK banking and financial
services businesses. A genera deterioration in any other major world economy could also adversely impact Group profitability.

Lloyds TSB Group’s businesses are inherently subject to the risk of market fluctuations, which could reduce
profitability.

Lloyds TSB Group's businesses are inherently subject to the risk of market fluctuations. The most significant market risks

Lloyds TSB Group faces are interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk in its banking businesses and equity risk inits insurance
businesses. See“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Risk management” for a discussion of theserisks.

Lloyds TSB Group’sinsurance businessis subject to inherent risks concer ning changing demogr aphic developments,
catastrophic weather and similar contingencies outside its control. Development of adverse conditions could reduce
profitability margins.

Lloyds TSB Group's insurance business is subject to inherent risk regarding changing demographic developments,
catastrophic weather and similar contingencies outside its control, both in the UK and overseas. Such contingencies can change
therisk profile and profitability of such products and services.

Adverse experiencein the operational risksinherent in Lloyds TSB Group’sbusinesses could have a negative impact
on itsresultsof operations.

Operational risks are present in LIoyds TSB Group's businesses, including the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal and external processes, people and systems or from externa events. Lloyds TSB Group's
businesses are dependent on their ability to process very efficiently avery large number of complex transactions across numerous
and diverse products and services, in different currencies and subject to a number of different legal and regulatory regimes.
Lloyds TSB Group’s systems and processes are designed to ensure that the operational risks associated with its activities are
appropriately controlled, but Lloyds TSB Group realises that any weakness in these systems could have a negative impact on its
results of operations during the affected period. See“Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Risk management—Other
risks—Operational risks’ and “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Other risks—Compliance risk”.

Lloyds TSB Group operates its businesses subject to substantial regulation, regulatory and governmental oversight.
Any significant adverse regulatory developments or changes in government policies or economic controls could have a
negativeimpact on L1oyds TSB Group’sresultsof operations.

Lloyds TSB Group conducts its businesses subject to ongoing regulation and associated regulatory risks, including the
effects of changes in the laws, regulations, policies, voluntary codes of practice and interpretations in the UK and the other
markets where it operates. Future changes in regulation, fiscal or other policies are unpredictable and beyond the control of
Lloyds TSB Group. For additional information, see “Regulation”.

Theresolution of a number of issues affecting the UK financial servicesindustry, including L1oyds TSB Group, could

have a negative impact on Lloyds TSB Group’s results of operations or on its relations with some of its customers and
potential customers.

These issues involve the possible misselling of pension and other life assurance policies and matters arising from the
treatment of guaranteed annuity options. There is arisk that further provisions may be required as a result of these issues. See
“Business—Provisions for redressto past purchasers of pension policies’ and “ Business—Guaranteed Annuity Options’.

Lloyds TSB Group’s businesses are conducted in highly competitive environments and management’s ability to
create an appropriate return for shareholders depends upon management’s ability to respond effectively to competitive
pressur es.



The market for UK financial services and the other markets within which Lloyds TSB Group operates are highly competitive
and management expects such competition to intensify in response to consumer demand, technological changes, the impact of
consolidation, regulatory actions and other factors, which could result in a reduction in profit margins. Lloyds TSB Group's
ability to generate an appropriate return for its shareholders depends significantly upon the competitive environment and
management’ sresponsetoit. See*Business—Competitive environment”.

Lloyds TSB Group is devoting considerable time and resources to securing new customers and developing more
business from existing customers. If Lloyds TSB Group is unsuccessful, its organic growth prospects and results of
operations may decline.

Lloyds TSB Group seeks to achieve further organic growth by securing new customers and developing more business from
existing customers. Lloyds TSB Group is currently expending significant resources and effort to bring about this growth,
particularly with respect to its UK retail financial services business. If these expenditures and efforts do not meet with success,
its operating results could grow more slowly or decline.

Lloyds TSB Group’s businesses are conducted in a market place that is rapidly consolidating, significant cross-
border mergers and acquisitions may happen in the coming years and Lloyds TSB Group’s ability to generate an
appropriatereturn for itsshareholdersover thelong term will depend upon whether management isable or permitted by
either regulatory bodies or its shareholders to achieve value-creating mergers and/or acquisitions at the appropriate
timesand prices.

In addition to its important strategy of organic growth, one of Lloyds TSB Group’s aimsisto remain alert for opportunities
to participate in the further consolidation of the financial servicesindustry, both in the UK and overseas. In light of the Secretary
of State’'s decision to prohibit the attempted acquisition of Abbey Nationa, management believes that under current conditions
Lloyds TSB Group may find it difficult to be able to make a significant acquisition in the UK in any business line where it
already has a significant market share. Management also believes that domestic consolidation in many overseas markets,
particularly in Europe, is entering its final phase and that therefore, significant cross border mergers and acquisitions may happen
in the coming years. Lloyds TSB Group's ability to generate an appropriate return for its shareholders over the long term may
depend upon whether management is able to achieve vaue-creating mergers and/or acquisitions at the appropriate times and
prices. Lloyds TSB Group cannot be sure that it will ultimately be able to make any such mergers or acquisitions.

Any acquisition or merger made by Lloyds TSB Group could strain existing resources and disrupt existing
businesses.

In the event of any future merger or acquisition, LIoyds TSB Group could:

effect share issuances which might prove dilutive of Lloyds TSB Group's profits per ordinary share and which would
dilute the percentage ownership of existing shareholders;

incur debt;
assume liabilities; and

incur significant expenses relating to integration of the acquired business, including integration of information systems,
employee compensation schemes and rebranding.

Any acquisition or merger would also involve numerous integration risks, including:
problems combining and integrating the acquired operations, technologies or products;
unanticipated costs or liabilities;
diversion of management’s attention from existing business operations;
possible adverse effects on existing business rel ationships with suppliers, counterparties and customers;
risks associated with cultural issues;
risks associated with entering marketsin which Lloyds TSB Group has limited or no experience; and
potential loss of key employees, particularly those of acquired organizations.

Thereisarisk that LIoyds TSB Group will not be able to integrate successfully any acquired or merged business, products,
technologies or personnel.



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report includes certain forward looking statements with respect to the business, strategy and plans of Lloyds
TSB Group and its current goals and expectations relating to its future financial condition and performance. Statements that are
not historical facts, including statements about Lloyds TSB Group’s or management’s beliefs and expectations, are forward
looking statements. Words such as “believes’, “anticipates’, “estimates’, “expects’, “intends’, “ams’, “potentia”, “will”,
“could”, “considered”, “likely”, “estimate” and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements but are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. By their nature, forward looking
statementsinvolve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend upon circumstances that will occur in the future.

Examples of such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

projections or expectations of profit attributable to shareholders, provisions, economic profit, dividends, capital structure
or any other financial items or ratios;

statements of plans, objectives or goals of LIoyds TSB Group or its management;

statements about the future trends in interest rates, stock market levels and demographic trends and any impact on
Lloyds TSB Group;

statements concerning any future UK or other economic environment or performance, including in particular any such
statements included in this registration statement in “ Operating and Financial Review and Prospects’;

statements about strategic goals, competition, regulation, dispositions and consolidation or technological developments
inthefinancial servicesindustry; and

statements of assumptions underlying such statements.

Lloyds TSB Group plc may aso make or disclose written and/or oral forward looking statements in reports filed with or
furnished to the US Securities and Exchange Commission, LIoyds TSB Group plc's annual report and accounts to shareholders,
proxy statements, offering circulars, registration statements and prospectuses, press releases and other written materials and in
oral statements made by the directors, officers or employees of Lloyds TSB Group plc to third parties, including financial
analysts. Theforward looking statements contained in this annual report are made as of the date hereof, and Lloyds TSB Group
undertakes no obligation to update any of itsforward looking statements.



LLOYDSTSB GROUP STRUCTURE

The following isalist of the principa subsidiaries of Lloyds TSB Group plc at 31 December 2001. The audited consolidated
accounts of Lloyds TSB Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2001 include the audited accounts of each of these

companies.
Country of Per centage of equity
registration/ share capital and
Name of subsidiary undertaking incor poration votingrightsheld Natur e of business Registered office
Lloyds TSB Bank plc England 100% Banking and financial 71 Lombard Street,
services London EC3P 3BS
England
Cheltenham & Gloucester plc  England *100% Mortgage lendingand  Barnett Way,
retail investments Gloucester GL4 3RL
England
LloydsBank (BLSA) Limited  England *100% Banking and financial 71 Lombard Street,
services London EC3P 3BS
England
Lloyds TSB Commercia England *100% Credit factoring Beaumont House,
Finance Limited Beaumont Road,
Banbury, Oxfordshire
OX167RN
England
Lloyds TSB Leasing Limited England *100% Financial leasing 71 Lombard Street,
London EC3P 3BS
England
Lloyds TSB Private Banking England *100% Private banking 71 Lombard Street,
Limited London EC3P 3BS
England
The Agricultural Mortgage England *100% Long-term agricultural  AMC House,
Corporation PLC finance Chantry Street,
Andover,
Hants SP10 1DD
England
The National Bank of New New Zedand  *100% Banking and financial  National Bank House
Zealand Limited services 170-186 Featherston Street,
Wellington,
New Zesaland
Lloyds TSB Bank (Jersey) Jersey *100% Banking and financial 25 New Street,
Limited services St. Helier JE4 8RG
Jersey
Lloyds TSB Scotland plc Scotland *100% Banking and financial Henry Duncan House,
services 120 George Street
Edinburgh EH2 4LH
Scotland
Lloyds TSB General Insurance  England *100% General insurance 71 Lombard Street,
Limited London EC3P 3BS
England
Scottish Widows Investment England *100% Investment 10 Fleet Place, London
Partnership Group Limited management EC4AM 7RH
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Name of subsidiary undertaking

Country of
registration/
incor poration

Per centage of equity
share capital and
voting rights held

Natur e of business

Registered office

Abbey Life Assurance Company
Limited

Lloyds TSB Insurance Services
Limited

Lloyds TSB Life Assurance
Company Limited

Lloyds TSB Asset Finance
Division Limited

Black Horse Limited

Scottish Widows plc

Scottish Widows Annuities
Limited

* |ndirect interest

England

England

England

England

England

Scotland

Scotland

*100%

*100%

*100%

*100%

*100%

*100%

*100%

Life assurance

Insurance broking

Life assurance and

other financia services

Consumer credit,
leasing and related
services

Consumer credit,
leasing and related
services

Life assurance

Life assurance

80 Holdenhurst Road,
Bournemouth BH8 82Q
England

71 Lombard Street,
London EC3P 3BS
England

71 Lombard Street,
London EC3P 3BS
England

71 Lombard Strest,
London EC3P 3BS
England

71 Lombard Street
London EC3P 3BS
England

69 Morrison Street,
Edinburgh

EH3 8YF

Scotland

69 Morrison Street,
Edinburgh
EH38YF

Scotland
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Report of Independent Accountants

To the Shareholders of Lloyds TSB Group plc:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lloyds TSB Group plc and its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000, and the related consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of total
recognised gains and losses, reconciliation of movement in shareholders' funds and consolidated cash flow statement for each of
the three years in the period ended 31 December 2001 which, as described in Note 1, have been prepared on the basis of
accounting principles generally accepted in United Kingdom. These financia statements are the responsibility of the directors of
Lloyds TSB Group plc. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

I'n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the financia
position of Lloyds TSB Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2000, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2001 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Kingdom vary in certain material respects from accounting
principles in the United States. The application of the latter would have affected the determination of consolidated net income
expressed in pounds sterling for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2001 and the determination of
consolidated shareholders' equity also expressed in pounds sterling at 31 December 2001 and 2000 to the extent summarised in
Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Southampton, England
14 February 2002
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Interest receivable:

Interest receivable and similar income arising from debt securities
Other interest recelvable and similar income
Interest payable

Net inter est income

Other income

Fees and commissions receivable

Fees and commissions payable

Dealing profits (before expenses)

Income from long-term assurance business
General insurance premium income

Other operating income

Total income
Operating expenses

Administrative expenses
Exceptional restructuring costs
Total administrative expenses
Depreciation

Amortisation of goodwill
Depreciation and amortisation

Total operating expenses

Trading surplus

General insurance claims

Provisionsfor bad and doubtful debts
Specific

Generd

Amounts written off fixed asset investments
Operating profit
Income from associated undertakings and joint ventures
Profit(loss) on sale and closure of businesses
Profit on ordinary activities beforetax
Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Profit on ordinary activities after tax
Minority interests : equity

: non-equity
Profit for theyear attributableto shareholders
Dividends
Retained profit
Earningsper share
Diluted earnings per share

2001 2000 1999
Note £ million £ million £ million
530 443 430
10,834 10,611 10,022
6,420 6,467 5,669
4,944 4,587 4,783
2,922 2,768 2,497
(602) (479) (426)
3 233 198 215
29 193 615 227
428 399 390
708 436 292
3,882 3,937 3,195
8,826 8,524 7,978
4 3,557 3,378 3,140
5 217 188 -
3,774 3,566 3,140
23 511 364 265
22 39 22 12
550 386 277
4,324 3,952 3,417
4,502 4572 4,561
174 142 169
15
736 547 615
11 (6) -
747 541 615
6 60 32 7
3,521 3,857 3,770
20 (10) 3 12
7 39 - (126)
8 3,550 3,860 3,656
9 971 1,105 1,111
2,579 2,755 2,545
17 13 6
39 62 36 -
2,500 2,706 2,539
10 1,872 1,683 1,451
41 628 1,023 1,088
11 45.2p 49.3p 46.6p
11 44.8p 48.8p 45.8p

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 31 December 2001

Assets

Cash and balances at central banks
Itemsin course of collection from banks
Treasury billsand other eligible bills
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers
Non-returnablefinance

Debt securities

Equity shares

Interestsin associated undertakings and joint ventures:
Share of gross assets
Share of grossliabilities

Intangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Own shares

Other assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder

L ong-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders
Totd assets

2001 2000*

Note £ million £ million
1,240 1,027

1,664 1,533

12 4412 1,709
13 15,224 15,290
123,059 114,832

(124) (400)

14 122,935 114,432
17 24,225 14,605
18 225 247

20

281 14

(242) (5)

39 9

22 2,566 2,599
23 3,365 3,037
26 23 28
27 4,468 3,998
28 3,190 2,965
29 6,574 6,549
190,150 168,028

29 46,389 51,085
236,539 219,113

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financia Statements.

*  restated (seenote 1)
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Liabilities
Deposits by banks
Customer accounts
Itemsin course of transmission to banks
Debt securitiesin issue
Other liabilities
Accruals and deferred income
Provisionsfor liabilities and charges:
Deferred tax
Other provisionsfor liabilities and charges
Subordinated liabilities:
Undated |oan capita
Dated loan capita
Minority interests:
Equity
Non-equity

Called-up share capita
Share premium account
Merger reserve

Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds (equity)

Long-term assurance liabilities to policyholders
Tota liabilities

M emorandum items

Contingent liabilities:
Acceptances and endorsements
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security
Other contingent liabilities

Commitments:
Commitments arising out of sale and option to resell transactions
Other commitments

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financia Statements.

*  restated (seenotel)
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2001 2000*
Note £ million £ million
31 24,310 16,735
32 109,116 101,989
534 420
33 24,420 17,899
34 6,673 6,600
35 3,563 4,174
36 1,719 1,683
37 401 442
38 3,651 3,391
38 4,006 4,119
37 37
39 960 515
997 552
40 1,411 1,396
41 959 595
41 343 343
41 8,047 7,690
10,760 10,024
190,150 168,028
46,389 51,085
236,539 219,113

44
2,243 357
3,789 3,249
1,931 1541
7,963 5,147
- 3
53,342 42,586
53,342 42,589




Other statements

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000 1999
£ million £ million £ million
Profit attributable to shareholders 2,500 2,706 2,539
Currency trandation differences on foreign currency net investments (86) (11) (10)
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 2,414 2,695 2,529
Prior year adjustment in respect of the adoption of FRS 18 (note 1) 248 -
Prior year adjustment in respect of the adoption of FRS 15 - (112)
Total gains and losses recognised during the year 2,662 2,583

Historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2001

There was no material difference between the results as reported and the results that would have been reported on an unmodified
historical cost basis. Accordingly, no note of historical cost profits and losses has been included.

Reconciliation of movementsin shareholders funds
for the year ended 31 December 2001

2001 2000 1999

£ million £ million £ million

Profit attributable to shareholders 2,500 2,706 2,539
Dividends (1,872 (1,683) (1,451)
Retained profit 628 1,023 1,088
Currency trandation differences on foreign currency net investments (86) (11) (10)
I ssue of shares 194 74 108
Goodwill written back on sale and closure of businesses - 109 80
Net increase in shareholders' funds 736 1,195 1,266
Shareholders’ funds at beginning of year 10,024 8,829 7,563
Shareholders fundsat end of year 10,760 10,024 8,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2001

Net cash inflow from oper ating activities(note 47a)
Dividends received from associ ated undertakings
Returns on investments and servicing of finance:
Dividends paid to equity minority interests

Payments made to non-equity minority interests
Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (loan capital)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments

Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance
Taxation:

UK corporation tax

Oversess tax

Total taxation

Capital expenditure and financial investment:
Additionsto fixed asset investments

Disposals of fixed asset investments

Additionsto tangible fixed assets

Disposals of tangible fixed assets

Capital injection to long-term assurance business

Net cash (outflow) inflow from capital expenditure and financia investment
Acquisitions and disposals:

Additionsto interestsin joint ventures

Acquisition of group undertakings (note 47€)

Disposal of group undertakings and businesses (note 47q)
Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals

Equity dividends paid

Net cash outflow beforefinancing

Financing:

I ssue of subordinated ligbilities (loan capital)

Issue of capital securities by subsidiary undertakings
Issue of ordinary share capital net of £185 million (2000: £124 million;
1999: £205 million) contribution to the QUEST (note 26)
Repayments of subordinated liahilities (loan capital)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments

Net cash inflow from financing

(Decrease) increasein cash (note 47c)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financia Statements.
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2001 2000 1999

£ million £ million £ million
9,927 7474 1,213
2 2 -

(17) (12) (11)
(62) (36) -
(492) (442) (270)
@ @ -
(572) (491) (281)
(682) (723) (670)
(147) (141) (137)
(829) (864) (807)
(47,049) (23,564) (23,147)
40,530 24,850 21,969
(1,157) (1,0086) (595)
285 78 83
(100) - (220)
(7,491) 358 (1,910)
(44) : :
(180) (5,110) (27)
40 83 3
(184) (5,027) (24)
(1,738) (1,522) (1,285)
(885) (70) (3,094)
286 952 2,769
456 509 -
194 74 108
(131) (55) (228)
(20) 4 ©)]
785 1,476 2,646
(100) 1,406 (448)




Notes to the accounts

1  Accounting policies

Accounting policies are unchanged from 2000. In accordance with the requirements of Financiad Reporting Standard 3
‘Reporting Financial Performance’ again of £248 million in 2001 has been recognised in the Statement of Recognised Gains and
Losses in connection with the implementation of the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 18 ‘ Accounting Policies’ in
the consolidated financial statementsfor the year ended 31 December 2000.

During the year the Group adopted Financial Reporting Standard 17 ‘ Retirement Benefits. In accordance with the transitiona
arrangements of the standard in accounts for the year ended 31 December 2001, supplementary disclosures only are required and
these are set out in note 43c. The Group has also implemented the requirements of the British Bankers' Association’s revised
Statement of Recommended Practice on Derivatives, athough the effect has not been significant. Certain assets and liabilities
have been reclassified and 2000 and 1999 comparative figures have been restated accordingly.

The Group has also adopted the requirements of the Urgent Issues Task Force' s Abstract 32 * Employee benefit trusts and other
intermediate payment arrangements . This has had no effect on the consolidated Group figures.

a Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of debt
securities and equity shares held for dealing purposes (see g) and assets held in the long-term assurance business (see n) in
compliance with Section 255A, Schedule 9 and other requirements of the Companies Act 1985 except as described below (see ),
in accordance with applicable accounting standards, pronouncements of the Urgent I ssues Task Force and with the Statements of
Recommended Practice issued by the British Bankers' Association and the Finance & Leasing Association.

The Group continues to take advantage of the dispensation in the Urgent Issues Task Force's Abstract 17 ‘Employee Share
Schemes' not to apply that Abstract to the Group's Inland Revenue approved Save As You Earn (SAY E') share option schemes.

b  Basisof consolidation

Assets, liabilities and results of group undertakings and joint ventures are included in the consolidated accounts on the basis of
accounts made up to 31 December. Details of the principal group undertakings and joint ventures can be found in note 20 and
note 21. In order to reflect the different nature of the shareholder’s and policyholders' interests in the long-term assurance
business, the value of long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder and the assets and liabilities attributable to
policyholders are classified under separate headingsin the consolidated balance sheet (see n). Details of transactions entered into
by the Group which are not eliminated on consolidation are given in note 42.

c  Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions of or by group undertakings is capitalised. For acquisitions prior to 1 January 1998, goodwill
was taken direct to reserves in the year of acquisition. As permitted by the transitional arrangements of Financial Reporting
Standard 10, this goodwill was not reinstated when the Group adopted the standard in 1998.

The useful economic life of the goodwill arising on each acquisition is determined at the time of the acquisition. The directors
consider that it is appropriate to assign an indefinite life to the goodwill which arose on the acquisition of Scottish Widows
during 2000 in view of the strength of the Scottish Widows brand, devel oped through over 185 years of trading, and the position
of the business as one of the leading providers of life, pensions, unit trust and fund management products. Both of these attributes
are deemed to have indefinite durability, which has been determined based on the following factors: the nature of the business;
the stability of the industry; the typica lifespans of the products; the extent to which the acquisition overcomes market entry
barriers; and the expected future impact of competition on the business.

The Scottish Widows goodwill is not being amortised through the profit and loss account; however, it is subjected to annual
impairment reviews in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 11. Impairment of the goodwill is evaluated by comparing
the present value of the expected future cash flows of the business, excluding financing and tax, (the ‘value-in-use’) to the
carrying value of the underlying net assets. If the net assets were to exceed the value-in-use, an impairment would be deemed to
have occurred and the resulting write-down in the goodwill would be charged to the profit and loss account immediately.

Paragraph 28 of Schedule 9 to the Companies Act 1985 requires that all goodwill carried on the balance sheet should be
amortised. In the case of the goodwill arising on the acquisition of Scottish Widows, the directors consider that it is appropriate
to depart from this requirement in order to comply with the over-riding requirement for the accounts to show atrue and fair view.
If this goodwill was amortised over a period of 20 years, profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2001 would be
£94 million lower (2000: £78 million lower), with a corresponding reduction in reserves of £172 million (2000: £78 million);
intangible assets on the balance sheet would also be £172 million lower (2000: £78 million lower).

Goodwill arising on all other acquisitions after 1 January 1998 is amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful
economic life, which does not exceed 20 years.
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Notes to the accounts

1  Accounting palicies (continued)
¢ Goodwill (continued)

At the date of the disposal of group or associated undertakings, any unamortised goodwill, or goodwill taken directly to reserves
prior to 1 January 1998, isincluded in the Group’ s share of the net assets of the undertaking in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

d Incomerecognition

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as it accrues, with the exception of interest on non-performing
lending which is taken to income either when it is received or when there ceases to be any significant doubt about its ultimate
receipt (see e).

Fees and commissions receivable from customers to reimburse the Group for costs incurred are taken to income when due. Fees
and commissions relating to the ongoing provision of a service or risk borne for a customer are taken to income in proportion to
the service provided or risk borne in each accounting period. Fees and commissions charged in lieu of interest are taken to
income on alevel yield basis over the period of the loan. Other fees and commissions receivable are accounted for as they fall
due.

e Provisonsfor bad and doubtful debtsand non-performing lending

Provisionsfor bad and doubtful debts

It is the Group's policy to make provisions for bad and doubtful debts, by way of a charge to the profit and loss account, to
reflect the losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. There are two types of provision, specific and general,
and these are discussed further below.

Specific provisions

Specific provisions relate to identified risk advances and are raised when the Group considers that recovery of the whole of the
outstanding balance is in serious doubt. The amount of the provision is equivalent to the amount necessary to reduce the
carrying value of the advance to its expected ultimate net realisable value.

For the Group’s portfolios of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as the residential mortgage, personal lending and credit
card portfolios, specific provisions are calculated using a formulae driven approach. These formulae take into account factors
such asthe length of time that payments from the customer are overdue, the value of any collateral held and the level of past and
expected losses, in order to derive an appropriate provision.

For the Group’s other lending portfolios, specific provisions are calculated on a case-by-case basis. In establishing an
appropriate provision, factors such as the financial condition of the customer, the nature and value of any collateral held and the
costs associated with obtaining repayment and realisation of the collateral are taken into consideration.

General provisions

Genera provisions are raised to cover latent bad and doubtful debts which are present in any portfolio of advances but have not
been specificaly identified. The Group holds general provisions against each of its principa lending portfalios, which are
caculated after having regard to a number of factors; in particular, the level of watchlist or potential problem debt and the
observed propensity for such debt to deteriorate and become impaired and prior period lossrates. Thelevel of general provision
held isreviewed on aregular basisto ensure that it remains appropriate in the context of the perceived risk inherent in the related
portfolio and the prevailing economic climate.

Non-performinglending
An advance becomes non-performing when interest ceases to be credited to the profit and loss account. There are two types of
non-performing lending which are discussed further below.

Accruing loans on which interest isbeing placed in suspense

Where the customer continues to operate the account, but where there is doubt about the payment of interest, interest continues
to be charged to the customer’ s account, but it is not applied to income. Interest is placed on a suspense account and only taken
to income if there ceasesto be significant doubt about its being paid.

Loans accounted for on a non-accrual basis

In those cases where the operation of the customer’s account has ceased and it has been transferred to a specialist recovery
department, the advance is written down to its estimated realisable value and interest is no longer charged to the customer’s
account asitsrecovery isconsidered unlikely. Interest isonly taken to incomeif itisreceived.
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Notes to the accounts

1  Accounting palicies (continued)
f  Mortgageincentives

Payments made under cash gift and discount mortgage schemes, which are granted to customers as incentives to take out loans
and are recoverable from the customer in the event of early redemption, are amortised as an adjustment to net interest income
over the early redemption charge period. Payments cease to be deferred and are charged to the profit and loss account in the
event that the related loan is redeemed or becomes impaired.

g Debt securitiesand equity shares

Debt securities, apart from those held for dealing purposes, are stated at cost as adjusted for the amortisation of any premiums
and discounts arising on acquisition, which are amortised from purchase to maturity in equal annual instalments, less amounts
written off for any permanent diminution in their value. Debt securities acquired in exchange for advances to countries
experiencing payment difficulties are included in the Group's portfolio of investment securities at an amount based on the
market value at the date of exchange as adjusted for the amortisation of discount on acquisition. Equity shares, apart from those
held for dealing purposes, are stated at cost less amounts written off for any permanent diminution in their value.

Debt securities and equity shares held for dealing purposes are included at market value.
h  Tangiblefixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are included at cost |ess depreciation.

Land is not depreciated. Leasehold premises with unexpired lease terms of 50 years or less are depreciated by equa annual
instalments over the remaining period of the lease. Freehold and long leasehold buildings are depreciated over 50 years. The
costs of adapting premises for the use of the Group are separately identified and depreciated over 10 years, or over the term of
the lease if less; such costs are included within premises in the balance sheet total of tangible fixed assets. Equipment is
depreciated by equa annual instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which for fixtures and furnishings are 10-
20 years and for computer hardware, operating software and application software and the related development costs relating to
separable new systems, motor vehicles and other equipment are 3-8 years.

Premises and equipment held for letting to customers under operating leases are depreciated over the life of the lease to give a
constant rate of return on the net investment, taking into account anticipated residual values. Anticipated residual values are
reviewed regularly and any impairments identified are charged to the profit and loss account.

i Vacant leasehold property

When a leasehold property ceases to be used in the business or a commitment is entered into which would cause this to occur,
provision is made to the extent that the recoverable amount of the interest in the property is expected to be insufficient to cover
future obligationsrelating to the lease.

j L easing and instalment credit transactions

Assets|leased to customers are classified asfinance leases if the lease agreements transfer substantially al of therisksand
rewards of ownership to the lessee; all other leases are classified as operating |eases.

Income from both finance and operating leases is credited to the profit and loss account in proportion to the net cash invested so
as to give a constant rate of return over each period after taking account of tax. Income from instalment credit transactions is
credited to the profit and loss account using the sum of the digits method.

In those cases where the Group is the lessee, operating lease costs are charged to the profit and loss account in equal annual
instalments over thelife of thelease.

k Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided at the appropriate rates of tax where there is a reasonable probability that a liability or asset will
crystallisein the foreseeable future.

I Pensionsand other post-retirement benefits

The cost of providing pension benefits is charged to the profit and loss account so as to spread the expected cost of pensions,
calculated in accordance with actuarial advice, on a systematic basis over employees working lives. The pension cost is assessed
in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries, using the projected unit method. Variations from the regular cost are
allocated by equal annual instalments over the average remaining service lives of current employees.
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Notes to the accounts

1  Accounting palicies (continued)
I Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

The cost of providing post-retirement benefits other than pensionsis charged to the profit and loss account on a systematic basis
over employees working lives. The unfunded liability isincluded as a provision in the balance shest.

m  Foreign currency trandation

Assets, liabilities and results in foreign currencies are expressed in sterling at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the
respective balance sheets. Exchange adjustments on the trandation of opening net assets held overseas are taken direct to
reserves. All other exchange profits or losses, which arise from normal trading activities, are included in the profit and loss
account.

n  Long-term assurance business

A number of the Group's subsidiary undertakings are engaged in writing long-term assurance business, including the provision
of life assurance, pensions, annuities and permanent health insurance contracts. In common with other life assurance companies
in the UK, these companies are structured into one or more long-term business funds, depending upon the nature of the products
being written, and a shareholder’s fund. All premiums received, investment returns, claims and expenses, and changes in
liabilities to policyholders are accounted for within the related long-term business fund. Any surplus, which is determined
annually by the Appointed Actuary after taking account of these items, may either be distributed between the shareholder and the
policyholders according to a predetermined formula or retained within the long-term business fund. The shareholder will also
levy investment management and administration charges upon the long-term business fund.

The Group accounts for itsinterest in long-term assurance business using the embedded value basis of accounting. The value of
the shareholder’ sinterest in the long-term assurance business (‘ the embedded value') included in the Group’s balance sheet isan
actuarialy determined estimate of the economic value of the Group’s life assurance subsidiaries, excluding any value which may
be attributed to future new business. The embedded value is comprised of the net tangible assets of the life assurance
subsidiaries, including any surplus retained within the long-term business funds, which could be transferred to the shareholder,
and the present value of the in-force business. The value of the in-force business is calculated by projecting the future surpluses
and ather net cash flows attributable to the shareholder arising from business written by the balance sheet date, using appropriate
economic and actuaria assumptions, and discounting the result at a rate which reflects the shareholder’ s overal risk premium.

Changes in the embedded value, which are determined on a post-tax basis, are included in the profit and loss account. For the
purpose of presentation, the change in thisvalue is grossed up at the underlying rate of corporation tax.

The assets held within the long-term business funds are legally owned by the life assurance companies, however the shareholder
will only benefit from ownership of these assets to the extent that surpluses are declared or from other cash flows attributable to
the shareholder. Reflecting the different nature of these assets, they are classified separately on the Group’s balance sheet as
‘Long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders', with a corresponding liability to the policyholders also shown.
Investments held within the long-term business funds are included on the following basis: equity shares, debt securities and unit
trusts held for unit linked funds are valued in accordance with policy conditions at market prices; other equity shares and debt
securities are valued at middle market price and other unit trusts at bid price; investment properties are included at valuation by
independent valuers at existing use value at the balance sheet date, and mortgages and loans are at cost less amounts written off.

0 General insurancebusiness

The Group both underwrites and acts as intermediary in the sale of genera insurance products. Underwriting premiums are
included, net of refunds, in the period in which insurance cover is provided to the customer; premiums received relating to future
periods are deferred and only credited to the profit and loss account when earned. Where the Group acts as intermediary,
commission income is included in the profit and loss account at the time that the underwriter accepts the risk of providing
insurance cover to the customer. Where appropriate, provision is made for the effect of future policy terminations based upon
past experience.

The underwriting business makes provision for the estimated cost of claims notified but not settled and claims incurred but not
reported at the balance sheet date. The provision for the cost of claims notified but not settled is based upon a best estimate of
the cost of settling the outstanding claims after taking into account all known facts. In those cases where there is insufficient
information to determine the required provision, statistical techniques are used which take into account the cost of claims that
have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases. Similar statistical
techniques are used to determine the provision for claimsincurred but not reported at the balance sheet date. Claims equalisation
provisions are calculated in accordance with the relevant legidlative requirements.
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Notes to the accounts

1  Accounting palicies (continued)
p Derivatives

Derivatives are used in the Group’s trading activities to meet the financial needs of customers, for proprietary purposes and to
manage risk in the Group’ s trading portfolios. Such instruments include exchange rate forwards and futures, currency swaps and
options together with interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, interest rate options and futures. These derivatives are carried
at fair value and al changes in fair value are reported within dealing profits in the profit and loss account. Fair values are
normally determined by reference to quoted market prices; internal models are used to determine fair value in instances where no
market price is available. The unrealised gains and losses on trading derivatives are included within other assets and other
liabilities respectively. These items are reported gross except in instances where the Group has entered into legally binding
netting agreements, where the Group has aright to insist on net settlement that would survive the insolvency of the counterparty;
in these cases the positive and negative fair values of trading derivatives with the relevant counterparties are offset within the
balance sheet totals.

Derivatives used in the Group’ s non-trading activities are taken out to reduce exposures to fluctuations in interest and exchange
rates and include exchange rate forwards and futures, currency options together with interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements
and options. These derivatives are accounted for on an accruals basis, in line with the treatment of the underlying items which
they are hedging. Interest receipts and payments on hedging interest derivatives are included in the profit and loss account so as
to match the interest payable or receivable on the hedged item.

A derivative will only be classified as a hedge in circumstances where there was adequate evidence of the intention to hedge at
the outset of the transaction and the derivative substantially matches or eliminates the exposure being hedged.

Where a hedge transaction is superseded, ceases to be effective or is terminated early the derivative is measured at fair value.
Any profit or loss arising is then amortised to the profit and loss account over the remaining life of the item which it was
originally hedging. When the underlying asset, liability or position that was being hedged is terminated, the hedging derivativeis
measured at fair value and any profit or loss arising is recognised immediately.
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Notes to the accounts

2  Segmental analysis

The Group's activities are organised into three segments: UK Retail Banking and Mortgages, Insurance and Investments and
Wholesale Markets and International Banking. Services provided by UK Retail Banking and Mortgages encompass the
provision of banking and other financial services to personal and small business customers, private banking, stockbroking and
mortgages. Insurance and Investments offers life assurance, pensions and savings products, general insurance and fund
management services. Wholesale Markets and International Banking provides banking and related services for mgjor UK and
multinational companies, banks and financial ingtitutions, and medium-sized UK businesses. It also provides asset finance to
personal and corporate customers, manages the Group’ s activitiesin financia markets through its Treasury function and provides
banking and financial services overseas.

Life,
UK Retail pensions, Wholesale
Banking unit trusts Insurance Marketsand
and General and asset and International Central
M ortgages insurance management |nvestments Banking group items Total
Year ended 31 December 2001 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 3,115 48 32 80 1,858 (109) 4,944
Income from long-term assurance business - - 181 181 12 - 193
Other operating income 1,141 900 286 1,186 1,313 49 3,689
Total income 4,256 948 499 1,447 3,183 (60) 8,826
Exceptional restructuring costs (150) - (50) (50) (17) - (217)
Other operating expenses (2,243) (152) (238) (390) (1,410) (64) (4,107)
Trading surplus 1,863 796 211 1,007 1,756 (124) 4,502
General insurance claims - (174) - (174) - - (174)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts (415) - - - (332) - (747)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments - - - - (60) - (60)
Income from associated undertakings and joint
ventures (10) - - - - - (10)
Profit on sale of businesses - - - - - 39 39
Profit (loss) before tax 1,438 622 211 833 1,364 (85) 3,550
Life,
UK Retail pensions, Wholesale
Banking unit trusts Insurance Marketsand
and General and asset and International Central
Mortgages insurance management  Investments Banking  groupitems Total
Y ear ended 31 December 2000* £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 2,951 57 31 83 1,653 (105) 4,587
Income from long-term assurance business - - 607 607 8 - 615
Other operating income 1,143 774 315 1,089 1,057 33 3,322
Total income 4,094 831 953 1,784 2,718 (72) 8,524
Exceptional restructuring costs (99) - (59) (59) (30) - (188)
Other operating expenses (2,099) (129) (236) (365) (1,254) (46) (3,764)
Trading surplus 1,896 702 658 1,360 1,434 (118) 4,572
General insurance claims - (142) - (142) - - (142)
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts (332) - - - (209) - (541)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments - - - - (32 - (32
Income from associated undertakings and joint
ventures 2 - 1 1 - - 3
Profit (loss) before tax 1,566 560 659 1,219 1,193 (118) 3,860
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Notes to the accounts

2  Segmental analysis(continued)

Y ear ended 31 December 1999

Net interest income

Income from long-term assurance business
Other operating income

Total income

Operating expenses

Trading surplus

General insurance claims

Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Amounts written off fixed asset investments
Income from associated undertakings and joint
ventures

Loss on sale and closure of businesses

Profit (loss) before tax

Geographical area: **

Interest receivable

Fees and commissions receivable

Dealing profits (before expenses)

Income from long-term assurance business
General insurance premium income

Other operating income

Total grossincome

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Lif
UK Retail pensi on: Wholesale
Banking unit trusts Insurance Marketsand
and General and asset and International Central
Mortgages insurance management  Investments Banking  groupitems Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2,943 50 10 60 1,664 116 4,783
- - 219 219 8 - 227
1,087 702 271 973 876 32 2,968
4,030 752 500 1,252 2,548 148 7,978
(1,951) (100) (193) (293) (1,144) (29) (3,417)
2,079 652 307 959 1,404 119 4,561
- (169) - (169) - - (169)
(425) - - - (190) - (615)
- - - - ™ - ™
3 - 9 9 - - 12
- - - - - (126) (126)
1,657 483 316 799 1,207 @) 3,656
Inter- Inter- Inter-
Domestic national Total Domestic  national Total Domestic  national Total
2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 1999 1999 1999
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
8,950 2,414 11,364 8,927 2,127 11,054 8,015 2,437 10,452
2,636 286 2,922 2,480 288 2,768 2,227 270 2,497
138 95 233 149 49 198 154 61 215
181 12 193 607 8 615 219 8 227
428 - 428 399 - 399 390 - 390
538 170 708 269 167 436 138 154 292
12,871 2,977 15,848 12,831 2,639 15,470 11,143 2,930 14,073
2,984 566 3,550 3,427 433 3,860 3,201 455 3,656
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Notes to the accounts

2  Segmental analysis(continued)

Class of business:

UK Retail Banking and Mortgages

Insurance and Investments

- General insurance

- Life, pensions, unit trusts and asset management

UK Retail Financial Services

Wholesale Markets and International Banking
Central group items

Geographical area: **
Domestic
International

Net assets t Assets t
2001 2000 2001 2000*
£m £m £m £m
2,437 2,235 77,915 71,292
339 361 825 755
6,680 6,147 8,653 8,682
7,019 6,508 9,478 9,437
9,456 8,743 87,393 80,729
3,965 3,377 101,471 86,030
(2,624) (2,059) 1,286 1,269
10,797 10,061 190,150 168,028
9,723 9,129 161,542 144,898
1,074 932 28,608 23,130
10,797 10,061 190,150 168,028

*  Figuresfor 2000 have been restated to take account of changesin internal transfer pricing and the reclassification of certain
assets and liabilities (note 1); the impact of the changes in internal transfer pricing for the year ended 31 December 1999

was not material.

**  The geographical distribution of gross income sources, profit on ordinary activities before tax and assets by domestic and
international operations is based on the location of the office recording the transaction, except for lending by the

international business booked in London.

T Net assets represent shareholders’ funds dus equity minority interests. Disclosure of information on net assets is an
accounting standard requirement (SSAP25); it is not appropriate to relate it directly to the segmental profits above because

the business is not managed by the allocation of net assets to business units.

T  Assatsexclude long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders.

Asthe business of the Group is mainly that of banking and insurance, no segmental analysis of turnover is given.

3  Dealing profits (before expenses)

Foreign exchange trading income
Securities and other gains

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
158 141 133
75 57 82
233 198 215

Dealing profits include the profits and losses arising both on the purchase and sale of trading instruments and from the year-end
revaluation to market value, together with the interest income earned from these instruments and the related funding cost.

4  Administrative expenses

Salaries and profit sharing
Saocial security costs

Other pension costs (note 43)
Staff costs

Other administrative expenses
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2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

1,953 1862 1,700
140 131 125
(108) (105)  (108)

1,985 1,888 1,717
1572 1,490 1,423

3,557 3,378 3,140




Notes to the accounts

4  Administrative expenses (continued)

2001 2000 1999
The average number of persons on a headcount basis employed by the Group
during the year was as follows:
UK 71,184 67,848 67,576
Oversess 11,768 11,847 12,599

82,952 79,695 80,175

The above staff numbers exclude 5,450 (2000: 6,152; 1999: 4,938) staff employed in the long-term assurance business. Costs of
£168 million (2000: £199 million; 1999: £141 million) in relation to those staff are reflected in the valuation of the shareholder’s
interest in the long-term assurance business.

Details of directors emoluments, pensions and interests are given on pages 76, 77 and 79 to 81.

During the year PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Group’ sindependent financial accountants, earned the following fees:

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Statutory audit 4 4 4
Due diligence and other audit-related work 13 7 4
Audit and similar services 17 11 8
Consultancy and advisory services 4 25 25
Totd fees 21 36 33

The auditors remuneration for the holding company was £50,000 (2000: £50,000; 1999: £50,000).

The increase in due diligence and other audit-related work in 2001 comprises principally work in relation to the Group’s listing
on the New Y ork Stock Exchange and in connection with the bid for Abbey National.

It isthe Group's policy to employ PricewaterhouseCoopers on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties, where their
expertise and experience with the Group are important, principaly relating to tax advice and due diligence reporting on
acquisitions, or where they are selected on acompetitive basis.

Itisthe Group’s policy to seek competitive tendersfor all consultancy projects.

5  Exceptional restructuring costs

In February 2000 the Group announced an efficiency initiative aimed at reducing its overall cost base which continued during
2001. The initiative focuses on improving the Group's infrastructure, consolidation of large scale processing operations and
support functions, and streamlining of the branch network combined with the expansion of lower cost delivery channels all of
which contributes towards an enhancement in organisational efficiency and customer service. Costs of £167 million (2000:
£108 million) were incurred in connection with this programme, mainly comprising severance, software write-off and
consultancy costs.

Following completion of the acquisition of Scottish Widows in March 2000, the Group has been progressively integrating its
businesses with its existing insurance and investments activities and rationalising the processes. During 2001 costs of
£50 million (2000: £59 million) were incurred, principally relating to the integration and centralisation of back office support
functions, the streamlining and automation of client service processes and the redefinition of the sales process.

A provision of £21 million was made in 2000 to cover the cost of integrating Chartered Trust Group plc and ACL Autolease
Holdings Limited following their acquisition in September 2000.
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Notes to the accounts

6 Amountswritten off fixed asset investments

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Debt securities 58 27 7
Equity shares 2 5 -
60 32 7
7  Profit (loss) beforetax on sale and closur e of businesses 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Profit on sale of Brazilian fund management and private banking business (tax: £11 million) 39 - -
Provision for closure of Lloyds TSB Securities Services (tax: nil) - - (28)
Provision for sale of Abbey Life new business capability (including £80 millionin
respect of goodwill previoudy written off to reserves) (tax: nil) - - (98)
39 - (126)

During 1999 the Group announced its decision to withdraw from the global custody and unit trust trusteeship business and the
consequential run-down and closure of Lloyds TSB Securities Services. A provision was raised in 1999 for the expected
operating losses up to the date of closure and this provision was released as the operating losses were incurred over 2000; the
closure of Lloyds TSB Securities Services was completed during 2000.

The new business capability of Abbey Life was sold on 1 February 2000. A provision of £98 million was made for the loss on
saein 1999; thislossincluded £80 million in respect of goodwill previously written off to reserves and other asset write-downs.

8 Profit on ordinary activitiesbeforetax 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax is stated after taking account of :
Income from:
Aggregate amounts receivable in respect of assets leased to customers and banks under:
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts 3,250 3,295 3,578
Operating leases 329 151 62
Profit lesslosses on disposal of investment securities 160 127 74
Charges:
Rental of premises 203 193 195
Hire of equipment 18 26 33
Interest on subordinated liabilities (loan capital) 493 490 362
9 Taxon profit on ordinary activities 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the year 836 941 767
Adjustmentsin respect of prior years (14) 3 21
822 944 788
Double taxation relief (87) (72) (45)
735 872 743
Foreign tax
Current tax on profits for the year 179 137 110
Adjustmentsin respect of prior years (17) (5) 8
162 132 118
Current tax charge 897 1,004 861
Deferred tax 73 100 245
Associated undertakings and joint ventures 1 1 5

971 1,105 1,111
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Notes to the accounts

9 Taxon prdfit on ordinary activities (continued)

The charge for tax on the profit for the year is based on an average UK corporation tax rate of 30 per cent (2000: 30 per cent;
1999: 30.25 per cent).

The UK corporation tax charge includes £74 million (2000: £171 million; 1999: £67 million) in respect of notiona tax on the
shareholder’ sinterest in the increase in the value of the long-term assurance business.

A reconciliation of the reported tax charge for the year to the charge that would result from applying the standard UK corporation
tax rate to profit before tax is given below:

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Tax charge at average UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2000: 30%; 1999: 30.25%) 1,065 1,158 1,106
Change in non-allowable provisions (14) 3 3
Goodwill amortisation 8 10 37
Overseastax rate differences 21 14 8
Non-allowable items 17 13 9
Gains covered by capital losses brought forward (39) (14) (7
Tier 1 capitd (19) (12) -
Payment to employee trust (60) (37) (64)
Other items (8) (30) 19
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 971 1,105 1,111
Effectiverate 27.4% 28.6% 30.4%
10 Ordinary dividends 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
pence pence pence
per share pershare per share £m £m £m
Interim: paid 10.2 9.3 8.1 566 511 440
Final; proposed 235 21.3 185 1,306 1,172 1,011
33.7 30.6 26.6 1,872 1,683 1,451
11 Earningsper share 2001 2000 1999
Profit attributable to sharehol ders* £2,500m £2,706m £2,539m
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue during the year** 5,533m 5,487m 5,445m
Dilutive effect of options outstanding 50m 58m 101m
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue during the year 5,583m 5,545m 5,546m
Earnings per share 45.2p 49.3p 46.6p
Diluted earnings per share 44.8p 48.8p 45.8p

*  No adjustment was made to profit attributable to shareholdersin calculating diluted earnings per share.

**  The weighted average number of shares for the year has been calculated after deducting 15 million (2000: 9 million; 1999:
11 million) ordinary shares held by Lloyds TSB Group Holdings (Jersey) Limited, and the trustees of the TSB Group
Employee Trust, the LIoyds TSB Group Employee Share Ownership Trust and the Lloyds TSB Qualifying Employee Share
Ownership Trust, on which dividends have been waived (note 26).
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12 Treasury billsand other €eligiblebills

Banking securities:
Treasury billsand similar securities
Other eligiblebills

Trading securities:
Treasury billsand similar securities
Other eligiblebills

Included above:
Unamortised discounts net of premiums on banking securities

Movementsin banking securities comprise:

At 1 January 2001

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Bills sold or matured

Amortisation of premiums and discounts
At 31 December 2001

2001 2001 2000 2000
Balance Baance
sheet Valuation sheet Vauation
£m £m £m £m
748 748 121 119
2,034 2,032 509 508
2,782 2,780 630 627
1,630 1,032
- 47
1,630 1,079
4,412 1,709
6 2
Premiums
and
Cost discounts Total
£m £m £m
626 4 630
(€) - (€)
28,367 - 28,367
(26,213) (80) (26,293)
- 81 81
2,777 5 2,782

Banking securities are those intended for use on a continuing basisin the activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes.

The difference between the cost of trading securities and market value, where the market value is higher than the cogt, is not

disclosed asits determination is not practicable.

13 Loansand advancesto banks

Lending to banks

Deposits placed with banks

Tota loans and advances to banks
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Repayable on demand

Other loans and advances by residual maturity repayable:
3 monthsor less

1 year or less but over 3 months

5yearsor lessbut over 1 year

Over 5years

Provisionsfor bad and doubtful debts
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2001 2000
£m £m
1,616 565
13,610 14,731
15,226 15,296
&) (6)
15,224 15,290
2,443 2,794
8,995 10,352
2,698 1,365
708 478
382 307
&) (6)
15,224 15,290
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14 Loansand advancesto customers 2001 2000*
£m £m
Lending to customers 111541 102,648
Hire purchase debtors 5,345 5172
Equipment leased to customers 7,585 8,122
Total loans and advances to customers 124471 115,942
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts (1,466)  (1,420)
Interest held in suspense (70) (90)

122,935 114,432

L oans and advances by residual maturity repayable;

3 monthsor less 20,468 20,968
1 year or less but over 3 months 9,792 8,216
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 27,910 24,313
Over 5years 66,301 62,445
Provisionsfor bad and doubtful debts (1,466) (1,420)
Interest held in suspense (70) (90)
122935 114,432
Of which repayable on demand or at short notice 7,804 9,342

*  restated (seenote 1)

The cost of assets acquired during the year for letting to customers under finance leases and hire purchase contracts amounted to
£3,166 million (2000: £2,754 million).

Equipment leased to customers, which is stated after deducting £5,905 million (2000: £6,007 million) of unearned charges, is
repayable asfollows:

2001 2000

£m £m

3 monthsor less 157 212
1 year or less but over 3 months 511 493
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 1,653 1,803
Over 5years 5,264 5,614
7,585 8,122

Securitisations
Certain instalment credit receivables have been securitised and are subject to non-returnable financing arrangements. In
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 5, these items have been shown under the linked presentation method.

The Group’s subsidiary, Black Horse Limited (formerly Chartered Trust plc), entered into transactions whereby it disposed of its
interest in portfolios of motor vehicle and caravan instalment credit agreements for atotal of £980 million to Cardiff Automobile
Receivables Securitisation (UK) No 4 plc (CARS 4'). CARS Trustee (UK) No 4 Limited is responsible for the collection and
onward payment of al amounts falling due under the terms of the receivables sold to CARS 4. Principal receipts up to
10 December 2000 were used to purchase further receivables; subsequent to this date they are being used to redeem floating rate
notes. Income receipts are applied in the following order of priority: interest due on the floating rate notes; credit manager fees;
payments under swaps; amounts due to third parties; dividends; and residual income to Black Horse Limited. Black Horse
Limited has been appointed by CARS Trustee (UK) No 4 Limited as credit manager and receives afee for fulfilling this function.
It has no liability to the noteholders or any creditor of CARS 4 or CARS Trustee (UK) No 4 Limited other than through failure to
meet its obligations as credit manager or for breach of warranties given. Black Horse Limited has no interest in the share capital

of CARS4 or CARS Trustee (UK) No 4 Limited.

Black Horse Limited and CARS 4 have also entered into interest rate swaps in respect of this transaction, the interest rates
payable and receivable under these swaps are set by reference to market rates of interest on an arm’slength basis.

At 31 December 2001 CARS 4 held £124 million (2000: £400 million) of receivables, matched by non-returnable finance of the
same amount.
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15 Provisionsfor bad and doubtful debtsand 2001 2001 2000 2000 1999 1999
non-performinglending Specific General  Specific Generad  Specific  Generd
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1,069 357 1,053 361 1,097 365
Exchange and other adjustments (15) 1 4 2 (45) 4
Adjustments on acquisition - - 45 4 - -
Advances written off (885) - (745) - (744) -
Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 194 - 165 - 130 -

Charge (release) to profit and loss account:
New and additional provisions

- norma coverage 1,310 9 1,093 7 1,087 7
- credit difficultiesin Argentina - 55 - - -
Releases and recoveries (574) (53) (546) (13) (472) (7)
736 11 547 (6) 615 -
At 31 December 1,099 369 1,069 357 1,053 361
1,468 1,426 1,414
In respect of:
Loans and advances to banks 2 6 6
Loans and advances to customers 1,466 1,420 1,408
1,468 1,426 1,414
2001 2000
£m £m
Non-performing lending comprises:
Accruing loans on which interest is being placed in suspense 843 855
L oans accounted for on anon-accrual basis 379 404
1,222 1,259
Provisons (829) (807)
Interest held in suspense (70) (90)
323 362
16 Concentrationsof exposure 2001 2000*
£m £m
L oans and advances to customers
Domedtic:
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 2,074 2,026
Manufacturing 3,321 3,357
Construction 1,309 1,016
Transport, distribution and hotels 4,440 3,836
Property companies 2,907 2,470
Financial, business and other services 8,736 9,295
Personal : mortgages 56,578 52,659
: other 12,784 11,138
Lease financing 7,552 8,070
Hire purchase 5,345 5172
Other 2,992 2,526
Total domestic 108,038 101,565
International:
Latin America 2,347 2,222
New Zedand 8,435 7,368
Rest of theworld 5,651 4,787
Total internationa 16,433 14,377
124,471 115,942
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts** (1,466) (1,420)
Interest held in suspense ** (70) (90)

122,935 114,432

*  restated (seenote 1)
**  Figures exclude provisions and interest held in suspense relating to |oans and advances to banks.
The classification of lending as domestic or international is based on the location of the office recording the transaction, except
for certain lending of the international business booked in London.
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17 Debt securities

Investment securities:

Government securities

Other public sector securities

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Other debt securities

Other securities:

Government securities

Other public sector securities

Bank and building society certificates of deposit
Other debt securities

Duewithin 1 year
Due 1 year and over

Unamortised discounts net of premiums on investment securities

Investment securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Other securities:
Listed
Unlisted

Movementsin investment securities comprise:

At 1 January 2001

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Transfers

Securities sold or matured

Chargefor the year

Amortisation of premiums and discounts
At 31 December 2001

2001 2001 2000 2000
Balance Balance
sheet Valuation sheet Vauation
£m £m £m £m
1,646 1,842 1,729 2,148
- - 1 1
4,670 4,677 3,034 3,034
4,673 4,684 1,631 1,631
10,989 11,203 6,395 6,814
4,103 4,103 3,060 3,060
151 151 131 131
234 234 105 105
8,748 8,748 4914 4,914
24,225 24,439 14,605 15,024
6,745 5,405
17,480 9,200
24,225 14,605
622 904
4,703 4,900 2,644 3,063
6,286 6,303 3,751 3,751
10,989 11,203 6,395 6,814
11,543 11,543 7,289 7,289
1,693 1,693 921 921
13,236 13,236 8,210 8,210
Premiums
and
Cogt discounts Provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
5,881 543 29 6,395
33 8 - 41
18,672 - - 18,672
(46) (10) - (56)
(13,987) (84) 4  (14,067)
- - 58 (58)
- 62 - 62
10,553 519 83 10,989

Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basisin the activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes.

The difference between the cost of other securities and market value, where the market value is higher than the cost, is not

disclosed asits determination is not practicable.
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18 Equity shares 2001 2001 2000 2000
Balance Baance
sheet Valuation sheet  Valuation
£m £m £m £m
Investment securities:
Listed 4 14 7 45
Unlisted 34 52 34 57
38 66 41 102
Other securities:
Listed 187 204
Unlisted - 2
187 206
225 247
Cost Provisions Total
£m £m £m
Movementsin investment securities comprise:
At 1 January 2001 54 13 41
Exchange and other adjustments Q) - Q)
Additions 10 - 10
Disposals (13) 3 (10)
Chargefor the year - 2 (2)
At 31 December 2001 50 12 38

Investment securities are those intended for use on a continuing basisin the activities of the Group and not for dealing purposes.

The difference between the cost of other securities and market value, where the market value is higher than the cost, is not
disclosed asits determination is not practicable.

19 Assatstransferred under saleand repurchasetransactions

Included in the Group’ s balance sheet are assets subject to sale and repurchase agreements asfollows:

2001 2000

£m £m
Treasury hillsand other eligible bills 1,036 546
Debt securities 4,498 3,543
5,534 4,089

These investments have been sold to third parties but, since the Group is committed to reacquire them at a future date and at a
predetermined price, they are shown in the balance sheet.
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20 Interestsin associated undertakingsand joint ventures

£m

At 1 January 2001 9
Additions 44
Disposals Q)
Retained profits (13)
At 31 December 2001 39
The Group’s principal investments are in two joint ventures:

Group interest Nature of business
iPSL 19.5% of issued ordinary Cheque processing

share capital
Goldfish Holdings Limited 25.0% of issued ordinary Financia services

share capital

During 2001 the Group established Goldfish Holdings Limited, a joint venture with Centrica plc for the provision of a broad
range of financia services products through Goldfish Holdings Limited's wholly owned subsidiary, Goldfish Bank Limited. By
31 December 2001, the Group had contributed £44 million of capital to the venture.

In the year ended 31 December 2001 £27 million (2000: £4 million; 1999: nil) of fees payable to iPSL have been included in the
Group's administrative expenses and £6 million (2000: £1 million; 1999: nil) of charges to iPSL have been included in the
Group’ sincome. The Group has also prepaid £8 million (2000: £7 million) of feesin respect of 2002 and this amount isincluded
in prepayments and accrued income; in addition at 31 December 2001 iPSL owed £1 million (2000: £2 million) to the Group,
which isincluded in other assets.

In the year ended 31 December 2001 £1 million of interest recelvable from Goldfish Bank Limited and £22 million of charges to

Goldfish Bank Limited in respect of administrative costs have been included in the Group’s income. At 31 December 2001
Goldfish Bank Limited owed £611 million to the Group, which isincluded in loans and advances to banks.
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21 Interestsin group undertakings

The principa group undertakings, all of which have prepared accounts to 31 December and whose results are included in the

consolidated accounts of Lloyds TSB Group plc, are:

Lloyds TSB Bank plc
Cheltenham & Gloucester plc

Lloyds Bank (BLSA) Limited

Lloyds TSB Commercia Finance Limited
Lloyds TSB Leasing Limited

Lloyds TSB Private Banking Limited

The Agricultural Mortgage Corporation PLC
The National Bank of New Zealand Limited
Lloyds TSB Bank (Jersey) Limited

Lloyds TSB Scotland plc

Lloyds TSB Genera Insurance Limited
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership Group
Limited

Abbey Life Assurance Company Limited
Lloyds TSB Insurance Services Limited
Lloyds TSB Life Assurance Company Limited

Lloyds TSB Asset Finance Division Limited
Black Horse Limited

Scottish Widows plc
Scottish Widows Annuities Limited

T Indirect interest

Percentage
of equity
share
Country of capital
registration/ and voting
incorporation rightsheld Nature of business
England 100% Banking and financial services
England 1100% Mortgage lending and retail
investments
England 1100% Banking and financia services
England 1t100% Credit factoring
England t100% Financial leasing
England 1t100% Private banking
England 1100% Long-term agricultural finance
New Zedand 1100% Banking and financial services
Jersey 1t100% Banking and financial services
Scotland 1100% Banking and financial services
England 1t100% General insurance
England 1100% Investment management
England 1t100% Lifeassurance
England 1100% Insurance broking
England 1100% Life assurance and other financial
services
England 1100% Consumer credit, leasing and related
services
England 1100% Consumer credit, leasing and related
services
Scotland 1100% Life assurance
Scotland 1t100% Life assurance

The country of registration/incorporation is also the principal area of operation for each of the above group undertakings except

asfollows:

Lloyds TSB Bank plc operates principally in the UK but aso through branches in Argentina, Belgium, Brazil, Dubai, Gibraltar,
Guatemala, Hong Kong, Honduras, Japan, Luxembourg, Maaysia, Monaco, Netherlands, Panama, Paraguay, Singapore, Spain,
Switzerland, Uruguay, the USA and a representative office in Iran. Lloyds Bank (BLSA) Limited operates in Ecuador. The
National Bank of New Zealand Limited a so operates through a representative office in Hong Kong.

22 Intangiblefixed assets

Goodwill

At 1 January 2001

Exchange and other adjustments
Acquisition (note 46)
Chargefor theyear

At 31 December 2001
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Net book
Cost Amortisation value
£m £m £m
2,635 36 2,599
() @ )
8 - 8
- 39 (39)
2,640 74 2,566
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23 Tangiblefixed assets

Cost:

At 1 January 2001

Exchange and other adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2001

Depreciation:

At 1 January 2001

Exchange and other adjustments
Chargefor theyear

Disposals

At 31 December 2001

Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2001

Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2000

Balance sheet amount of premises comprises:

Freeholds
L easeholds 50 years and over unexpired
Leaseholds less than 50 years unexpired

Land and buildings occupied for own activities

Operating
Premises Equipment lease assets
£m £m £m
1,052 2,343 1,411
(14) (22) 8
91 310 680
(55) (361) (328)
1,074 2,270 1,771
284 1,34 131
(4) (10) -
61 253 197
(@) (319) (190)
334 1,278 138
740 992 1,633
3,365
768 989 1,280
3,037
2001 2000
£m £m
436 490
36 22
268 256
740 768
664 691

The Group’ s residual value exposure in respect of operating |ease assets, all of which are expected to be disposed of at the end of

the lease terms, was as follows:

Residua value expected to be recovered in:
1year or less

2 yearsor lessbut over 1 year

5yearsor lessbut over 2 years

Over 5years

Total exposure
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2001 2000
£m £m
156 134
119 108
388 367
482 301
1,145 910
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24 L easecommitments

At 31 December 2001, the Group was committed to various non-cancellable operating leases, which require aggregate future
rental payments asfollows:

Premises Equipment
£m £m
Payable within one year 221 8
1to2years 212 3
2to 3years 196 1
3to4years 189 -
4to5years 186 -
Over 5years 337 -
1,341 12
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases were:
2001 2001 2000 2000
Premises Equipment Premises  Equipment
£m £m £m £m
L eases on which the commitment is due to expirein:
1year or less 7 5 3 1
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 33 3 18 2
Over 5years 181 - 184 -
221 8 205 3
2001 2000
Obligations under finance |eases were: Equipment  Equipment
£m £m
Amounts payablein:
lyear or less 3 20
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year - 3
3 23

25 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for at 31 December 2001 amounted to £137 million (2000: £33 million) of which
£125 million (2000: £28 million) relatesto assetsto be leased to customers under operating leases.

26 Own shares

Lloyds TSB Group plc sponsors the Lloyds TSB Group Employee Share Ownership Trugt, a discretionary trust for the benefit of
employees and former employees of the LIoyds TSB Group. Lloyds TSB Group plc has lent £22 million to the trustees, interest
free, to enable them to purchase LIoyds TSB Group plc ordinary shares, which are used to satisfy options granted by Lloyds TSB
Group plc or to meet commitments arising under other employee share schemes. Under the terms of the trust, the trustees have
waived all but a nominal dividend on the shares they hold. The cost of providing these shares is charged to the profit and loss
account on a systematic basis over the period that the employees are expected to benefit. At 31 December 2001, 2 million shares
were held by the trustees with a book value of £15 million and a market value of £15 million (2000: 3 million shares with a book
value of £24 million and amarket value of £22 million).

Lloyds TSB Group plc also sponsored the TSB Group Employee Trust, a further discretionary trust for the benefit of employees
and former employees of the Lloyds TSB Group. The shares in this trust were exhausted during 2001; at 31 December 2000,
0.1 million shares were held by the trustees with a book value of £0.2 million and a market value of £0.5 million. The trust
currently holds no assets and full provision has been made against the outstanding amount of LIoyds TSB Group plc'sloan to the
trust.
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26 Own shares(continued)

The Group has also established the Lloyds TSB Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (‘the QUEST’) for the purpose of
delivering shares on the exercise of options under certain of the Group’s Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option schemes.
During 2001, LIoyds TSB Group plc contributed £200 million to the QUEST, and the trustees subscribed for 47 million sharesin
Lloyds TSB Group plc for a consideration of £316 million. During 2000, Lloyds TSB Group plc contributed £122 million and
the trustees subscribed for 30 million shares for a consideration of £193 million. At 31 December 2001, 2 million shares were
held by the QUEST with a book value of £8 million (2000: 1 million shares with a book value of £4 million) reflecting the
exercise price of the options the shares are expected to be used to satisfy. Under the terms of the QUEST’s trust deed, the
trustees have waived al but a nominal dividend on the shares they hold. The difference between the amount contributed by
Lloyds TSB Group plc and the book value of the shares held by the QUEST at 31 December 2001 has been charged to profit and
loss account reserves.

In addition, a further 0.5 million ordinary shares were held by Lloyds TSB Group Holdings (Jersey) Limited at 31 December
2001 (2000: 0.8 million shares). These shares, on which the dividend entitlement has been waived, were gifted to the Group
some years ago at nil cost and are used to satisfy outstanding options or to meet commitments arising under other employee share
schemes.

27 Other assets

2001 2000*
£m £m
Foreign exchange and interest rate contracts (note 45a) 2,000 2,688
Balances arising from derivatives used for hedging purposes 931 431
Settlement balances 570 121
Other assets 877 758
4,468 3,998
*  restated (seenote 1)
28 Prepaymentsand accrued income
2001 2000
£m £m
Interest receivable 843 875
Pensions prepayment 894 768
Deferred expenditure incurred under cash gift and discount mortgage schemes 256 242
Other debtors and prepayments 1,197 1,080
3,190 2,965
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29 Long-term assurance business

a Methodology

The value of the shareholder’s interest in the long-term assurance business (“the embedded value’) is comprised of the net
tangible assets of the life assurance subsidiaries, including any surplus retained in the long-term business funds, which could be
transferred to shareholders, and the present value of the in-force business. The value of the in-force business is caculated by
projecting future surpluses and other net cash flows attributable to the shareholder arising from business written by the balance
sheet date and discounting the result at arate which reflects the shareholder’ s overall risk premium.

Surpluses arise following annual actuarial vauations of the long-term business funds, which are carried out in accordance with
the statutory requirements designed to ensure and demonstrate the solvency of the funds. Future surpluses will depend upon
experience in anumber of areas such as investment returns, lapse rates, mortality and administrative expenses. Surpluses can be
projected by making redlistic assumptions about future experience, having regard to both actual experience and forecast long-
term economic trends. Other net cash flows principally comprise annual management charges and other fees levied upon the
policyholders by the life assurance subsidiaries.

Changes in the embedded value, which are determined on a post-tax basis, are included in the profit and loss account and
described as income from long-term assurance business. For the purpose of presentation the change in thisvalueis grossed up at
the underlying rate of corporation tax.

b  Analysisof embedded value

The embedded value included in the consolidated balance sheet comprises:

2001 2000
£m £m
Net tangible assets of life companiesincluding surplus 3,985 4,128
Value of other shareholder’ sinterestsin the long-term assurance business 2,589 2,421
6,574 6,549

Movements in the embedded val ue balance have been as follows:
2001 2000
£m £m
At 1 January 6,549 2,274
Exchange and other adjustments (35) (92)
Profit after tax 115 441
Capital injection 100 -
Dividends (155) (126)
Acquisitions - 4,052
6,574 6,549

¢ Analysisof incomefrom long-term assurance business

Income from long-term assurance business included in the profit and loss account can be divided into those items comprising the
operating profit of the business and other items. Included within operating profit are the following items:

New business contribution: this represents the value recognised at the end of the year from new business written during the year
after taking into account the cost of establishing technical provisions and reserves.

Contribution from existing business: this comprises the following el ements:

the expected return arising from the unwinding of the discount applied to the expected cash flows at the beginning of the
year;

experience variances caused by the differences between the actual experience during the year and the expected experience;
and

the effects of changesin assumptions other than economic assumptions, and other items.

Investment earnings. this represents the expected investment return on both the net tangible assets and the vaue of the

shareholder’s interest in the long-term business account, based upon the economic assumptions made at the beginning of the
year.
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29 Long-term assurance business (continued)
¢ Analysisof incomefrom | ong-term assur ance business (continued)

Distribution costs: this represents the actual cost of acquiring new business during the year and includes commissions paid to
independent financia advisors and other direct sales costs.

Included within other items are:

Short-term fluctuations in investment returns: this represents (a) the difference between the actual investment return in the year
on investments backing shareholder funds and the expected return based upon the economic assumptions made at the beginning
of the year: this is recognised immediately; and (b) the effect of these fluctuations on the value of in-force business which is
recognised using smoothed fund values.

Changes in economic assumptions: this represents the effect of changesin the economic assumptionsreferred toinf.

Exceptional items: thisincludes any other items which, by virtue of their size or incidence, are considered not to form part of the
ongoing operating profit.

Income from long-term assurance businessis set out below:

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
New business contribution 374 305 156
Contribution from existing business
- expected return 359 311 185
- experience variances 37 36 26
- changesin assumptions and other items 95 96 (13)
Investment earnings 247 212 38
Distribution costs (247) (225) (99)
Operating profit 865 735 293
Short-term fluctuationsin investment returns (602) (67) 36
Changes in economic assumptions - 127 -

Exceptional items
- Pension provisions (see d) (70) (100) (102

- Stakeholder pension related charge (see€) (80)
Income from long-term assurance business before tax 193 615 227
Tax (78) (174) (69)
Income from long-term assurance business after tax 115 441 158
Income before tax from long-term assurance business can a so be analysed as follows:
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Income net of claims and technical provisions 636 937 621
Pension provisions (70) (100) (102)
Operating expenses (557) (471) (291)
Tax charged to technical account (62) (191) (159)
(Deficit retained) surplus emerging (53) 175 69
Value of in-force business 168 266 89
Income from long-term assurance business after tax 115 441 158
Tax 78 174 69
Income from long-term assurance business before tax 193 615 227
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29 Long-term assurance business (continued)
d Pensionprovisions

During the early 1990's, there was increasing concern in the UK that many customers had been given poor advice when they
were advised to set up their own personal pension plan and that they would, in fact, have been in a better position if they had
remained in, or joined, employer sponsored pension schemes. The regulator of the UK pension industry (now the responsibility
of the Financia Services Authority) carried out an industry wide investigation into the conduct of businessinvolving the transfer
of pensions. The conclusion of the investigation was that a large number of customers had been poorly advised, by insurance
companies and intermediaries across the industry. As aresult of thisinvestigation the regulator established an action plan for the
UK pensions industry to follow in reviewing all cases of possible misselling and determining the necessary compensation. As
the review of pension cases in the Group has progressed, provisions have been established for the estimated cost of
compensation.

Movementsin the provision over the last three years have been asfollows:

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

At 1 January 352 397 472
Accrud of interest on the provision 20 26 22
Chargefor the year 70 100 102
Compensation paid (238) a73) (161)
Guarantees® (@))] 2 (38)
At 31 December 203 352 397

*In some cases, rather than pay cash compensation directly into the customer’s personal pension plan, the Group has
guaranteed to ‘top up’ the customer’ s pension income on retirement, to the level that they would have received under the relevant
occupational scheme.

During the second half of 1999, the Financia Services Authority published revised assumptions to be incorporated into the
calculations of the continuing cost of redress reflecting the fact that the average life expectancy of pensioners had increased and
interest and inflation rates were lower. Applying these guidelines, the cost of redress was forecast to increase by £102 million
and an additional provision of this amount was raised in the accounts for the year ended 31 December 1999.

By the end of 2000, the Group had gained further experience as to the number and size of claims likely to require compensation,
in particular those affected by the revised guidelines issued towards the end of 1999 dealing with the way in which compensation
should be calculated for those customers who had opted out of the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme. After taking thisinto
account, the cost of redress was forecast to increase by £100 million and a provision of this amount was made.

A further review of the adequacy of the provision has been carried out as at 31 December 2001. Lower stock market levels have
had a significant impact on total redress costs as the cost of restitution into company pension schemes rises as personal pension
fund valuesreduce. Asaresult of this and the fact that there is now greater certainty as to the number and size of compensation
claimsto be paid, an additional provision of £70 million has been made.

e Stakeholder pensionrelated charge

During 1999, the government announced changes intended to encourage more of the population to provide retirement income for
themselves through increased rates of savings. One of these initiatives was the introduction of stakeholder pensions with effect
from April 2001; a key feature of these products is that charges are limited to 1 per cent per annum, which is significantly lower
than historic charging rates on other personal pension products. In anticipation of the introduction of stakeholder pension
products in 2001, during 2000 the Group decided to reduce the charges made on certain existing policies, resulting in a cost of
£80 million.
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29 Long-term assurance business (continued)
f  Assumptions
The economic assumptions are based upon a long-term view of economic activity and are therefore not adjusted for market

movements which are considered to be short-term. This approach is considered to be the most appropriate given the long-term
nature of the portfolio of products. The principal economic assumptions which have been used are asfollows:

2001 2000 1999

% % %

Risk-adjusted discount rate (net of tax) 8.50 8.50 10.00
Return on equities (gross of tax) 8.00 8.00 8.50
Return on fixed interest securities (gross of tax) 525 525 5.25
Expensesinflation 3.00 3.00 3.00

Following the acquisition of the business of Scottish Widows in 2000, a review of the economic assumptions used in the
embedded vaue caculation was carried out, to ensure that these assumptions remained appropriate for the enlarged life and
pensions business in the context of forecast long-term economic trends. Asaresult of thisreview certain economic assumptions
were amended, including the risk-adjusted discount rate which was reduced from 10 per cent to 8.5 per cent. The adoption of the
revised assumptions, which were used with effect from 1 January 2000 for Abbey Life and the bancassurance operation of
Lloyds TSB Life resulted in a credit to the profit and loss account of £127 million in 2000. The same assumptions were used for
the Scottish Widows business from the date of acquisition.

Other assumptions used to derive the embedded value are asfollows:

- Assumed rates of mortality and morbidity are taken from published tables adjusted for demographic differences.
Assumptionsin respect of lapse rates reflect the recent actual experience of the companies concerned.

- Current tax legidation and rates have been assumed to continue unaltered, except where future changes have been
announced. The UK corporation tax rate used for grossing up was 30% (2000: 30%; 1999: 30.25%). The investment
earnings have been grossed up at a composite longer term tax rate of 17% (2000: 17%; 1999: 30.25%).

- The vaue of the in-force business does not alow for future premiums under recurring single premium business or non-
contractual increments, which are included in new business when the premium is received. Department of Social Security
rebates have been treated as recurring single premiums.

- Future bonus rates on with-profits business are set at levels which would fully utilise the assets supporting the with-profits
business. The proportion of profits derived from with-profits business allocated to the shareholder has been assumed to
continue at the current rate of one-ninth of the cost of the bonus.

g Balancesheet

The long-term assurance assets attributabl e to policyhol ders comprise:

2001 2000

£m £m
Investments 47,910 52,683
Premises and equipment 16 20
Other assets 2,448 2,510
50,374 55,213
Net tangible assets of life companiesincluding surplus (3,985) (4,128)

46,389 51,085

Investments shown above comprise:

Fixed interest securities 12,642 14,512
Stocks, shares and unit trusts 27,018 31,885
Investment properties 3,722 3,098
Other properties 121 10
Mortgages and loans 102 117
Deposits 4,305 3,061

47,910 52,683
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29 Long-term assurance business (continued)

g Balancesheet (continued)

2001 2000
£m £m
Theliabilities to policyholders comprise:
Technica provisions:
Long-term business provision (net of reinsurance) 24151 23514
Claims outstanding (net of reinsurance) 211 172
Technical provisionsfor linked liahilities 21,083 24,413
Fund for future appropriations 95 1,667
Other liabilities 849 1,319
46,389 51,085
30 Assetsand liabilitiesdenominated in foreigncurrencies 2001 2000*
£m £m
Assets  : denominated in sterling 133,558 126,753
: denominated in other currencies 56,592 41,275
190,150 168,028
Liabilities: denominated in sterling 133661 127,267
: denominated in other currencies 56,489 40,761
190,150 168,028
*  restated (seenote 1)
31 Depositsby banks 2001 2000
£m £m
Repayable on demand 6,634 4,330
Other deposits by banks with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice by residual maturity repayable:
3 monthsor less 14,227 9,712
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,529 1,790
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 751 695
Over 5years 169 208
24,310 16,735
The breakdown of deposits by banks between the domestic and international offices of the Group is set out below:
2001 2000
£m £m
Domestic
Non-interest bearing 601 612
Interest bearing 18,535 11,816
19,136 12,428
International
Non-interest bearing 80 177
Interest bearing 5,094 4,130
5174 4,307
Total 24,310 16,735
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32 Customer accounts 2001 2000*
£m £m
Repayable on demand 80,635 74,404
Other customer accounts with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice by residual maturity repayable:
3 monthsor less 19,902 21,064
1 year or less but over 3 months 2,889 3,522
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 3,369 2,582
Over 5years 2,321 417

109,116 101,989

The breakdown of customer accounts between the domestic and international offices of the Group is set out bel ow:

2001 2000*
£m £m
Domestic
Non-interest bearing 6,874 5,522
Interest bearing 92,920 87,698
99,794 93,220
International
Non-interest bearing 758 619
Interest bearing 8,564 8,150
9,322 8,769
Total 109,116 101,989
*  restated (seenote 1)
33 Debt securitiesinissue 2001 2000
£m £m
Bonds and medium-term notes by residual maturity repayable:
1year or less 589 538
2 yearsor lessbut over 1 year 178 169
5yearsor lessbut over 2 years 405 472
Over 5years 928 1,413
2,100 2,592
Other debt securities by residual maturity repayable:
3 monthsor less 17,070 8,574
1 year or less but over 3 months 4,931 6,476
5yearsor lessbut over 1 year 104 241
Over 5years 215 16

22,320 15,307
24,420 17,899

Debt securities in issue includes certificates of deposit of £17,060 million (2000: £12,052 million) and commercial paper of
£1,966 million (2000: £1,850 million). An amount of £996 million (2000: £929 million) relating to debt securities issued under
the Group’s Euro Medium Term Note programme isincluded in these figures.

34 Other liabilities 2001 2000*
£m £m
Foreign exchange and interest rate contracts (note 45a) 2,288 2,346
Balances arising from derivatives used for hedging purposes 475 1,071
Current tax 598 631
Dividends 1,306 1,172
Settlement balances 542 232
Other liabilities 1,464 1,148
6,673 6,600

*  restated (seenote 1)
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35 Accrualsand deferred income 2001 2000*
£m £m
Interest payable 1,310 1,670
Other creditorsand accruals 2,253 2,504
3,563 4,174
*  restated (seenote 1)
36 Deferred tax 2001 2000
£m £m
Short-term timing differences (89) (59)
Pensions prepayment 268 230
Emerging Markets Debt securities (70) (74)
Accelerated depreciation allowances 1,610 1,586
1,719 1,683
£m
At 1 January 2001 1,683
Exchange and other adjustments 7
Adjustments on disposal (44)
Tax provided 73
At 31 December 2001 1,719
2001 2000
£m £m
Potential tax for which no provision has been made relating to accelerated depreciation
allowances on equipment leased to customers 72 72

Provision has been made for the liability to tax on overseas earnings which are expected to be remitted to the UK. No provision
has been made for the liability to tax which could arise if premises, to the extent that the tax base cost has been reduced by
rollover relief, were disposed of at their balance sheet amounts. It is expected that the mgjority of these assets will beretained in
the business and that, in view of the substantial number of assetsinvolved and the law relating to rollover relief, the likelihood of
any such material tax liability arising is remote; no useful purpose would be served by attempting to quantify it. If deferred tax

were to be provided in respect of general bad debt provisions the deferred tax asset would be £90 million.
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37 Other provisionsfor liabilitiesand charges

Post- Vacant

Pension Insurance  retirement leasehold
obligations provisons  healthcare property Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2001 34 202 76 96 34 442
Exchange and other adjustments - 6 - - Q) 5
Provisions applied Q) (178) 4 (17 (17 (217)
Chargefor theyear 1 174 3 (10 3 171
At 31 December 2001 34 204 75 69 19 401

Pension obligations
A description of the Group’ s pension arrangementsis provided in note 43a.

Insurance provisions

The Group's general insurance subsidiary maintains provisions for outstanding claims which represent the ultimate cost of
settling all claims arising from events which have occurred up to the balance sheet date and these include provisions for the cost
of claims natified but not settled and for claims incurred but not yet reported. In addition, in line with the requirements of the
Insurance Companies (Reserves) Act 1995, claims equalisation provisions are maintained in relation to property, credit and
suretyship business. The mgjority of provisions in respect of claims will be settled in the following year, athough new
provisions will then be required in respect of claims arising from that year. Thelevel of the claims equalisation provision will be
adjusted annually, taking into account the guidelines contained in the legislation, and such provisions will be held for aslong as
the Group continues to write the relevant types of general insurance business.

Post-retirement healthcare
A description of the Group’ s post-retirement healthcare obligationsis provided in note 43b.

Vacant leasehold property

Whenever the Group ceases to occupy a property, or commits itself to doing so, it is the Group’s policy to raise a provision to
cover any anticipated shortfall when comparing the recoverable amount of its interest in the property to the future rental and
other paymentsthat the Group is obligated to make over the remaining term of the lease. These provisions are made by reference
to a prudent estimate of expected sub-let income and the possibility of disposing of the Group’s interest in the lease, taking into
account conditionsin the property market. These provisions are reassessed on an annual basis and will normally run off over the
remaining life of the leases concerned, currently averaging six years, where a property is disposed of earlier than anticipated, any
remaining balance in the provision relating to that property is released.
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38 Subordinated liabilities

2001 2000
£m £m
* Undated loan capital:
T Primary Capital Undated Floating Rate Notes:
Series 1 (US$750 million) 516 502
Series 2 (US$500 million) 344 335
Series 3 (US$600 million) 412 401
11%8% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 100 100
® 57 9% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2009 (€1,250 million) 757 774
T Undated Step-up Floating Rate Notes callable 2009 (€150 million) 91 94
1 6? % Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2010 406 405
<= 5.57% Undated Subordinated Step-up Coupon Notes callable 2015 (¥20 hillion) 105 117
1 6%% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 266 266
1 8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 199 199
? 116¥2% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 455 198
3,651 3,391
Dated loan capital:
Eurocurrency Zero Coupon Bonds 2003 (¥3 billion) 15 15
§ Subordinated Fixed Rate Bonds 2003 (NZ$151 million) 43 49
T Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2004 15 20
7? % Subordinated Bonds 2004 399 399
T+ Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2004 100 100
8§ Subordinated Fixed Rate Bonds 2006 - 22
1 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2006 - 100
8Y#% Subordinated Bonds 2006 249 249
7% Subordinated Bonds 2007 299 298
8§ Subordinated Fixed Rate Bonds 2007 (NZ$150 million) 43 44
5Y.%% Subordinated Notes 2008 (DM 750 million) 234 240
10? % Guaranteed Subordinated Loan Stock 2008 100 100
9v#%% Subordinated Bonds 2009 99 99
T Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2009 callable 2004 (US$500 million) 343 334
Subordinated Fixed Rate Bonds 2010 (NZ$100 million) 29 30
6Y% Subordinated Notes 2010 (€400 million) 244 250
1t Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2010 (US$400 million) 274 267
12% Guaranteed Subordinated Bonds 2011 100 100
9? % Subordinated Bonds 2011 149 148
4% Subordinated Notes 2011 (€850 million) 498 508
*+§ Subordinated Fixed Rate Bonds 2011 (NZ $100 million) 28 -
67 % Subordinated Notes 2015 343 343
T Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 million) 61 62
97? % Subordinated Bonds 2023 341 342
4,006 4,119
Total subordinated liabilities 7,657 7,510

These lighilities will, in the event of the winding-up of the issuer, be subordinated to the claims of depositors and all other

creditors of the issuer.

* |n certain circumstances, these notes and bonds would acquire the characteristics of preference share capital.

t These notes bear interest at rates fixed periodically in advance based on London Interbank rates.

1 At the callable date the coupon on these Notes will be reset by reference to the applicable five year benchmark gilt rate.

8§ These bonds bear interest, to be reset 5 years before redemption date, at afixed margin over New Zealand Government stocks.

® |n the event that these Notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset to a floating rate.

== In the event that these Notes are not redeemed at the callable date, the coupon will be reset to a fixed margin over the then 5
year Y en swap rate.

+¢ Exchangeable at the election of the Group for further subordinated floating rate notes.

? A further £257 million was issued during 2001 primarily to finance the general business of the Group.

|ssued during 2001 primarily to finance the general business of the Group.
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38 Subordinated liabilities (continued)

Dated subordinated liabilities are repayable as follows:

2001 2000
£m £m
1year or less 5 5
2 yearsor lessbut over 1 year 63 5
5yearsor lessbut over 2 years 753 573
Over 5years 3,185 3,536
4,006 4,119
39 Non-equity minority interests
Non-equity minority interests comprise:
2001 2000
£m £m
Euro Step-up Non-V oting Non-Cumul ative Preferred Securities callable 2012 (€430 million) * 261 267
Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumul ative Preferred Securities callable 2015 1 248 248
6.625% Perpetua Capita Securities (€750 million) § 451 -
960 515

* These securities congtitute limited partnership interestsin Lloyds TSB Capital 1 L.P., a Jersey limited partnership in which
Lloyds TSB (Generd Partner) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, is the genera partner. Non-cumulative income
distributions accrue at a fixed rate of 7.375 per cent per annum up to 7 February 2012; thereafter they will accrue at arate of
2.33 per cent above EURIBOR, to be set annually.

T These securities congtitute limited partnership interests in Lloyds TSB Capital 2 L.P., a Jersey limited partnership in which
Lloyds TSB (General Partner) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, is the general partner. Non-cumulative
income distributions accrue at afixed rate of 7.834 per cent per annum up to 7 February 2015; thereafter they will accrue at a
rate of 3.50 per cent above arate based on theyield of specified UK government stock.

Boath of the above issues were made under the limited subordinated guarantee of Lloyds TSB Bank plc. In certain circumstances
these preferred securities will be mandatorily exchanged for preference sharesin Lloyds TSB Group plc. Lloyds TSB Group plc
has entered into an agreement whereby dividends may only be paid on its ordinary shares if sufficient distributable profits are
availablefor distributions due in the financia year on these preferred securities.

§ These securities were issued during 2001, by Lloyds TSB Bank plc, primarily to finance the general business of the Group.
Interest payments accrue a the rate of 6.625 per cent per annum; in certain circumstances these payments can be deferred
although in this case neither LIoyds TSB Bank plc nor Lloyds TSB Group plc can declare or pay adividend until any deferred
payments have been made. In the event of a winding up of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, these securities will acquire the
characteristics of preference shares. The securities can be redeemed at par at the option of Lloyds TSB Bank plc on or after
25 October 2006.
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40 Called-up sharecapital 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Authorised:
Sterling
6,911 million Ordinary shares of 25p each 1,728 1,728 1,728
79 million Limited voting ordinary shares of 25p each 20 20 20
300 million Limited voting preference shares of £1 each - - 300
175 million Preference shares of 25p each 44 44 -
1,792 1,792 2,048
USdollars US$m US$m US$r
160 million Preference shares of US25 cents each 40 40 -
Euro €m €m €m
160 million Preference shares of €25 cents each 40 40 -
Japanese yen ¥m ¥m ¥m
50 million Preference shares of ¥25 each 1,250 1,250 -
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of 25p each

At 1 January 1,376 1,369 1,359
I ssued to the QUEST (note 26) 12 7 7
I ssued under employee share schemes 3 - 3
At 31 December 1,391 1,376 1,369
Limited voting ordinary shares of 25p each

At 1 January and 31 December 20 20 20
Total 1411 1,396 1,389
Number of sharesinissue (millions):

Ordinary shares of 25p each 5,564 5,507 5,475
Limited voting ordinary shares of 25p each 79 79 79

The limited voting ordinary shares are held by the Lloyds TSB Foundations. These shares carry no rights to dividends but rank
pari passu with the ordinary shares in respect of other distributions and in the event of winding up. These shares do not have any
right to vote at general meetings other than on resolutions concerning acquisitions or disposals of such importance that they
require shareholder consent, or for the winding up of Lloyds TSB Group plc, or for a variation in the class rights of the limited
voting ordinary shares.

At 31 December 2001, options to acquire 123 million Lloyds TSB Group ordinary shares of 25p each were outstanding under
executive share option schemes, the share retention plan, and the staff sharesave share option schemes exercisable up to 2011.
These include the option, described on page 74, to acquire 216,763 shares under the share retention plan: otherwise the options
are exercisable at prices ranging from 124p to 888p per share.
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41 Reserves 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Share premium account:
At 1 January 595 404 101
Premium arising on issue of shares 364 191 303
At 31 December 959 595 404
Merger reserve:
At 1 January and 31 December 343 343 343
Profit and loss account:
At 1 January 7,690 6,693 5,740
Exchange and other adjustments (86) (1) (20
Sharesissued to the QUEST (note 26) (185) (124) (205)
Goodwill written back on sale and closure of businesses - 109 80
Retained profit 628 1,023 1,088
At 31 December 8,047 7,690 6,693

The Group profit and loss account reserves at 31 December 2001 include £1,564 million (2000: £1,396 million; 1999:
£1,165 million) not presently available for distribution representing the Group’s share of the value of long-term assurance

business in force and the surplus retained within the long-term assurance funds.

The cumulative amount of premiums on acquisitions written off against reserves during previous years amounts to

£2,271 million of which £1,817 million was within the last 10 years.

The accumulated foreign exchange trandation adjustment as at 31 December 2001 reduced the Group’ s reserves by £259 million

(2000: £173 million; 1999: £162 million).

42 Related party transactions

a Transactions, arrangementsand agreementsinvolving directorsand others

At 31 December 2001, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Group’s banking subsidiaries with

directors and connected persons and with officers included:

2001 2001 2000 2000
Number of Total  Number of Totd
persons £000 Persons £000

Loans and credit card transactions:
Directors and connected persons 7 1,343 10 119
Officers 28 4,113 36 4,993

b  Group undertakings

Details of the principal group undertakings are given in note 21. In accordance with FRS 8, transactions or balances with group

entities that have been eliminated on consolidation are not reported.

¢ Associated undertakingsand joint ventures

Details of the Group’s associated undertakings and joint ventures are provided in note 20. Information relating to transactions
entered into between Group undertakings and the joint ventures and details of outstanding balances at 31 December 2001 are also

shown in note 20.
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42 Related party transactions (continue)
d Long-term assurance business

The Group enters into certain transactions with its long-term assurance businesses which cannot be eliminated in the
consolidated accounts because of the embedded value basis of accounting used for the Group’ s long-term assurance businesses.
After taking into account legally enforceable netting agreements, at 31 December 2001 Group entities owed £1,186 million
(2000: £1,251 million) and were owed £299 million (2000: £289 million); these amounts are included in customer accounts and
loans and advances to customers respectively. In addition, fees of £62 million (2000: £68 million; 1999: £42 million) were
received, and fees of £28 million (2000: £29 million; 1999: £30 million) were paid, in respect of asset management services.

In addition, certain administrative properties used by Scottish Widows are owned by the long-term assurance funds. During
2001 Scottish Widows paid rent to the long-term assurance funds amounting to £4 million (2000: £3 million). In addition, at
31 December 2001, the long-term assurance funds owned 31 million ordinary sharesin LIoyds TSB Group plc (2000: 31 million
shares).

e Pensionfunds
Group entities provide a number of banking and other services to the Group’s pension funds, which are conducted on similar

terms to third party transactions. At 31 December 2001, the Group's pension funds had call deposits with Lloyds TSB Bank plc
amounting to £572 million (2000: £344 million).

43 Pensionsand other post-retirement benefits
a Pension costsin the consolidated accounts

There was a net credit in respect of pension costs for the Group in 2001 of £108 million (2000: credit of £105 million; 1999:
credit of £108 million), which included a credit of £126 million (2000: credit of £121 million; 1999: credit of £121 million)
relating to Lloyds TSB Group Pension SchemesNo's 1 and 2.

Pension arrangements for most of the staff in the UK and the majority of those overseas are operated through defined benefit
schemes funded by Group companies. The principal schemes in operation are LlIoyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's 1 and
2. The defined benefit sections of these schemes are now closed to new members. Pension arrangements for staff joining Lloyds
TSB Group Pension Scheme No.1 after 1 January 1996 and Lloyds TSB Group Pension Scheme No. 2 after 1 January 1998 are
through money purchase elements of these schemes. Arrangements for pensions of certain staff employed overseas who are not
included in funded schemes are made in accordance with local regulations and custom.

Full actuarial valuations of Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No's | and 2 are carried out every three years with interim
reviews in the intervening years. At 30 June 1999, the date of the latest full actuaria valuations, the principal actuaria
assumptions adopted were that, over the long term, the annual real rate of return on new investments would be 3 per cent higher
than the annual increase in pensionable remuneration, 4 per cent higher than the annual increase in present and future pensionsin
payment, and 3 per cent higher than the annual increasein dividends receivable. The market value of the assets of the schemes at
this date was £11,748 million. The actuaria vaue of the assets represented 125 per cent of the accrued liabilities allowing for
future increases in pensions and pensionable remuneration. For funding purposes, the surpluses in the two schemes are being
eliminated by means of a contribution holiday.

Contribution ratesto other schemes have been adjusted to take account of surpluses and deficiencies.

Thefollowing balances relating to the Group’ s pension schemes are included in the consolidated balance sheet:

2001 2000

£m £m

Pension asset related to LIoyds TSB Group Pension SchemesNo's 1 and 2 894 768
Pension obligation relating to certain overseas schemes (34) (34
Deferred tax (268) (230)
Net asset 592 504
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43 Pensionsand other post-retirement benefits (continued)
b  Post-retirement healthcare costsin the consolidated accounts

The Group operates a number of schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain employees, retired
employees and their dependent relatives. The principal scheme relates to former Lloyds Bank staff and under this scheme the
Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-retirement healthcare for all eigible former employees (and their dependants) who
retired prior to 1 January 1996. For retirements subsequent to this date, the Group will meet a reducing proportion of the cost
until 31 December 2004, after which date the only obligation will be in respect of the pre 1 January 1996 retirements. The cost
of providing al post-retirement healthcare benefits is charged to the profit and loss account on a systematic basis over the
employees working lives; the provision represents the unfunded obligation and is based on valuations of the Group’s liability by
qualified actuaries.

Thetotal cost for the Group in 2001 was £3 million (2000: £3 million; 1999: £17 million). For the principal scheme, the latest
actuarial vauation of the liability was carried out at 31 December 2000. This valuation showed the Group's liability to be
£72 million, which had been fully provided for at that date. The principal actuaria assumptions adopted were that, over the long
term, the valuation discount rate and the rate of increase in medical costs would be 4 per cent and 3 per cent respectively higher
than annua price inflation.

¢ Disclosuresmadein accordancewith Financial Reporting Standard 17

Asexplained in note 1, the Group has adopted the requirements of Financial Reporting Standard 17 “ Retirement Benefits’ during
the year. Under the transitional arrangements of this accounting standard the Group continues to account for pension costs in
accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24, but the following additional disclosures are required.

The majority of the Group's employees are members of the defined benefit sections of Lloyds TSB Group Pension Schemes
No's 1 and 2. During the year ended 31 December 2001, the Group made no contributions to these schemes. Since the defined
benefit sections of these schemes are now closed to new members and the age profile of the active members is increasing, under
the projected unit method, the current service cost will increase as the members of the schemes approach retirement.

Thelast full valuations of the schemes were carried out as at 30 June 1999; interim reviews were performed at 30 June 2001 and
these have been updated to 31 December 2001 by qualified independent actuaries. The last full valuations of other Group
schemes were carried out on a number of different dates; these have been updated to 31 December 2001 by qualified independent
actuaries or, in the case of Scottish Widows Retirement Benefits Scheme, by a qualified actuary employed by Scottish Widows.

The principa assumptions used in these updated valuations were as follows:

%

Rate of inflation 2.50
Rate of salary increases 4,04
Rate of increase for pensionsin payment and deferred pensions 250
Discount rate 6.00

The assets of the Group’s defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows:

Expected long-term

Fair value rateof return at
at 31 December 2001 31 December 2001
£m % pa
Market values of scheme assets:
Equities 7,779 8.0
Fixed interest securities 1,835 51
Property 798 7.1
Other 714 4.1
Total fair value of scheme assets 11,126
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43 Pensionsand other post-retirement benefits (continued)
¢ Disclosuresmadein accordancewith Financial Reporting Standard 17 (continued)

The following amounts at 31 December 2001 were measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17:

£m
Market value of assets 11,126
Present value of scheme liabilities (10,618)
Surplus in the schemes 508
Related deferred tax liability (152)
Net pension asset 356

If these amounts had been recognised in the financia statements, the Group’s net assets and profit and loss account reserve at
31 December 2001 would have been asfollows:

£m
Net assets excluding net pension asset 10,168
Net pension asset 356
Net assets including net pension asset 10,524
Profit and loss reserve excluding net pension asset 7,455
Net pension asset 356
Profit and loss reserve including net pension asset 7,811
44 Contingent liabilitiesand commitments
a Contingent liabilitiesand commitmentsarising out of banking transactions 2001 2000
£m £m
Contingent liabilities:
Acceptances and endorsements 2,243 357
Guarantees 3,789 3,249
Other:
Other items serving as direct credit substitutes 460 266
Performance bonds and other transaction-rel ated contingencies 1,469 1,271
Other contingent liabilities 2 4
1,931 1,541
7,963 5,147
Commitments:
Documentary credits and other short-term trade-related transactions 34 238
Forward asset purchases and forward forward deposits placed 783 779
Undrawn note issuing and revolving underwriting facilities 35 53
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitmentsto lend:
Lessthan 1 year maturity 42,594 33,815
1 year or over maturity 9,576 7,701
Commitments arising out of sale and option to resell transactions - 3
53,342 42,589

b  Limited voting ordinary shares (see note 40)

The limited voting ordinary shares are held by the Lloyds TSB Foundations for England & Wales, Scotland, Northern Ireland
and the Channel Islands; these shares do not carry any entitlement to dividends. Lloyds TSB Group plc has entered into deeds of
covenant with the four foundations, under the terms of which Lloyds TSB Group plc makes annual donations to the foundations
equal, in total, to 1% of the Group’s pre-tax profits (after certain adjustments) averaged over three years. The deeds of covenant
can be cancelled by the Group at nine years notice.
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44  Contingent liabilitiesand commitments (continued)
¢ Guaranteed annuity options

After an extensive review of its existing practices carried out in the light of the judgement of the House of Lords in the
guaranteed annuities case Equitable Life vs Hyman, it was announced that Scottish Widows was revising the way it calculates
benefits for guaranteed annuity policies with effect from 1 February 2002. As a result of this change, the terminal bonuses for
guaranteed annuity option policies will be increased.

Under the terms of the transfer of the Scottish Widows' business, a separate memorandum account was created within the With
Profits Fund called the Additional Account. This Account had avalue at 31 December 2001 of approximately £1.7 billion, and is
available to meet any additional costs of providing guaranteed benefits on transferred palicies, including guaranteed annuity
option palicies. The assets allocated to the Additional Account include certain hedge assets, to provide protection to the With
Profits Fund against the consequences of afuturefal in interest rates.

The eventual cost of providing the enhanced benefitsis dependent upon a number of factors, including in particular:

the proportion of policyholders with a guaranteed annuity option policy who choose to exercise their options;
the effect of futureinterest rate and mortality trends on the cost of annuities; and
the future investment performance of the With Profits Fund

Having considered a range of possible outcomes, the Group currently expects that the most likely outcome is that the balance in
the Additional Account available for this purpose will be sufficient to meet the cost of the enhanced benefits payable to the
guaranteed annuity option policyholders, as well as other contingencies. This cost, currently estimated to be approximately
£1.4 billion, will be paid out over many years as policies mature. In the event that the amount in the Additional Account proves,
over time, to be insufficient, the shortfall will be met by the Group. At thistime, no provision is considered necessary for such
risk.

45 Derivativesand other financial instruments
Information about the Group’s use of financial instruments and management of the associated risksis given on pages 58 to 60.
a Derivatives

Derivatives are used to meet the financial needs of customers, as part of the Group's trading activities and to reduce its own
exposure to fluctuations in interest and exchange rates. The principa derivatives used by the Group are interest rate and
exchange rate contracts; particular attention is paid to the liquidity of the markets and products in which the Group trades to
ensure that there are no undue concentrations of activity and risk.

Interest rate related contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options. An interest rate swap is an
agreement between two parties to exchange fixed and floating interest payments, based upon interest rates defined in the
contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal amounts. Forward rate agreements are contracts for the payment of
the difference between a specified rate of interest and areference rate, applied to a notional principal amount at a specific datein
the future. An interest rate option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the right, but not the obligation, to fix the rate of
interest on afuture loan or deposit, for a specified period and commencing on a specified future date.

Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and options. A forward foreign
exchange contract is an agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified future date at an agreed
rate. Currency swaps generdly involve the exchange of interest payment obligations denominated in different currencies; the
exchange of principal can be notional or actual. A currency option gives the buyer, on payment of a premium, the right, but not
the obligation, to sell specified amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified future date.

Equity derivatives are also used by the Group as part of its equity based retail product activity to eliminate the Group’s exposure
to fluctuations in various international stock exchange indices. Index-linked equity options are purchased which give the Group
the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specified amount of equities, or basket of equities in the form of published
indices on or before a specified future date.

Derivatives contracts expose the Group to both market risk and credit risk. Only a few highly specialist trading centres within

the Group are permitted to enter into derivative contracts and the level of exposure to interest rate and exchange rate movements
and other market variablesis strictly controlled and monitored within approved limits.
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)
a Derivatives (continued)

Unlike on-balance sheet instruments the principal amount of the contract does not represent the Group’s real exposure to credit
risk which islimited to the current cost of replacing contracts with a positive va ue to the Group, should the counterparty default.
To reduce credit risk the Group uses a variety of credit enhancement techniques such as netting and collateralisation, where
security is provided against the exposure.

Trading

The notiona principal amounts and fair values (which, after netting, are the carrying values) of trading instruments entered into
with third parties were as follows:

31 December 2001 Notional Fair values
principal
amount Assts Liabilities
£m £m £m
Exchangerate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 95,895 1,035 1,038
Currency swaps 6,737 223 152
Options purchased 3,825 11 -
Options written 3,492 - 9
109,949 1,269 1,199
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 286,617 4,085 4,535
Forward rate agreements 54,171 78 84
Options purchased 8,887 73 -
Options written 3,993 - 58
Futures 35,112 - -
388,780 4,236 4,677
Equity contracts 4,580 428 255
Effect of netting (3,843) (3,843)
Balances arising from off-bal ance sheet financial instruments 2,000 2,288
31 December 2000 Notiona Fair values
principa
amount Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m
Exchangerate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 86,423 1,742 1,940
Currency swaps 6,049 304 206
Options purchased 1,208 23 -
Options written 1,023 - 19
94,703 2,069 2,165
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 290,129 3,484 3,438
Forward rate agreements 48,002 57 64
Options purchased 3,539 17 -
Options written 2,229 - 8
Futures 34,390 6 -
378,289 3,564 3,510
Equity contracts 2,768 443 59
Effect of netting (3,388) (3,388)
Balances arising from off-bal ance sheet financial instruments 2,688 2,346
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)
a Derivatives (continued)

Non-trading

Through intra company and intra group transactions the Group establishes non-trading derivatives positions with the Group’s
independent trading operations. Similar positions are also established with third parties. The notional principal amounts and fair

values of non-trading instruments entered into with third parties were as follows:

Notional Fair values
principal
31 December 2001 amount Positive Negative
£m £m £m
Exchangerate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 146 3 1
Currency swaps 70 9 1
216 12 2
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 2,919 164 68
Forward rate agreements 62 - -
2,981 164 68
Effect of netting (39) (39)
137 31
Notional Fair values
principa
31 December 2000 amount Positive Negative
£m £m £m
Exchangerate contracts:
Spot, forwards and futures 296 4 4
Currency swaps 78 5 7
374 9 11
Interest rate contracts:
Interest rate swaps 2,466 96 35
Forward rate agreements 134 - -
2,600 96 35
Effect of netting - -
105 46

The aggregate carrying value of non-trading derivatives with a positive fair value was an asset of £18 million (2000: an asset of

£23 million) and with anegative fair value was an asset of £1 million (2000: aliability of £1 million).
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)

a Derivatives (conti nued)

The maturity of the notional principal amounts and net replacement cost of both trading and non-trading instruments entered into

with third partieswas:

31 December 2001
Exchangerate contracts:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

Interest rate contracts:
Notiona principal amount
Net replacement cost

Equity contracts:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

Total:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

31 December 2000
Exchangerate contracts:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

Interest rate contracts:
Notiona principal amount
Net replacement cost

Equity contracts:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

Total:
Notional principal amount
Net replacement cost

Under 1to5 Over 5
1year years years Total
£m £m £m £m
102,130 6,260 1,775 110,165
663 132 42 837
187,570 155,079 49,112 391,761
545 229 188 962
738 3,3%4 448 4,580
75 330 23 428
290,438 164,733 51,335 506,506
1,283 691 253 2,227
88,288 4,973 1,816 95,077
1,094 183 39 1,316
177,684 159,422 43,783 380,889
731 146 157 1,034
506 2,054 208 2,768
68 343 32 443
266,478 166,449 45,807 478,734
1,893 672 228 2,793

The notiona principal amount does not represent the Group's real exposure to credit risk, which is limited to the current cost of

replacing contracts at current market rates should the counterparties defaullt.

Net replacement cost represents the total positive fair value of all derivative contracts at the balance sheet date, after allowing for
the offset of all negative fair values where the Group has alegal right of set-off with the counterparty concerned.

An anadysis of the net replacement cost of both trading and non-trading instruments entered into with third parties by
counterparty typeis set out below; the Group’s exposureis further reduced by qualifying collateral held.

OECD banks

Other

Net replacement cost
Quialifying collateral held

Potential credit risk exposure

2001 2000

£m £m
1,425 2,244

802 549
2,227 2,793
(339) (643)
1,888 2,150
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)
b Interest ratesenstivity gap analysisfor the non-trading book

The table below summarises the repricing mismatches of the Group’'s non-trading assets and liabilities. Items are alocated to
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the maturity date. The table does not
take into account the effect of interest rate options used by the Group to hedge its exposure; details of options are given in note
45a.

6 months 1year Syears
or less or less or less Non-
3months  but over but over but over Over interest  Trading

or less 3months 6 months 1year S5years bearing book Total
Asat 31 December 2001 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury billsand other eligible bills 2,709 37 26 4 6 - 1,630 4,412
Loans and advances to banks 11,311 1,621 1,076 142 289 452 333 15,224
Loans and advances to customers 74,361 5,252 8,798 28,497 7,108 (1,353) 272 122,935
Debt securities and equity shares 2,545 1,662 718 1,940 4,168 (6) 13,423 24,450
Other assets 154 9 8 4 15 17,291 5,648 23,129
Total assets 91,080 8,581 10,626 30,587 11,586 16,384 21,306 190,150
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks 19,226 1,859 666 512 90 681 1,276 24,310
Customer accounts 92,834 1,644 1,172 3,228 2,299 7,633 306 109,116
Debt securitiesin issue 16,453 3,957 1,333 600 890 - 1,187 24,420
Other liabilities 350 - 3 - 5 7,180 5352 12,890
Subordinated liabilities—loan capital 1,069 714 - 641 5,233 - - 7,657
Minority interests and shareholders’ funds - - - - - 11,655 102 11,757
Internal funding of trading business (3,736) (741) (1,171) (6,051) (1,384) - 13,083 -
Total liabilities 126,196 7,433 2,003 (1,070) 7,133 27,149 21,306 190,150
Off-balance sheet items 21,937  (10,861) (7,509) (2,896) (671) - - -
Interest rate repricing gap (13,179) (9,713) 1,114 28,761 3,782 (10,765) - -
Cumulative interest rate repricing gap (13,179)  (22,892)  (21,778) 6,983 10,765 - - -

6 months 1lyear 5years
or less or less or less Non-
3 months but over but over but over Over interest Trading

orless 3 months 6 months 1year 5years bearing book Total
As at 31 December 2000* £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets:
Treasury billsand other eligible bills 534 40 46 9 1 - 1,079 1,709
Loans and advances to banks 13,034 1,184 392 112 191 185 192 15,290
L oans and advances to customers 69,150 4,206 6,109 30,673 5,542 (1,378) 130 114,432
Debt securities and equity shares 2,497 475 464 1,202 1,747 51 8,416 14,852
Other assets 251 22 47 5 22 16,603 4,795 21,745
Total assets 85,466 5,927 7,058 32,001 7,503 15,461 14,612 168,028
Liabilities:
Deposits by banks 12,854 1,09C 604 396 92 78S 910 16,735
Customer accounts 89,194 1,955 1,508 2,506 394 6,141 291 101,989
Debt securitiesin issue 8,519 5,950 1,769 623 82 - 956 17,899
Other liabilities 15¢ - 3 a1 2 8,28¢ 4,775 13,319
Subordinated liabilities—loan capital 1,727 509 - 637 4,637 - - 7,510
Minority interests and shareholders’ funds - - - - - 10,556 20 10,576
Internal funding of trading business 148 (982) (264) (6,188) (374) - 7,660 -
Total liabilities 112,601 8,522 3,620 (1,935) 4,833 25,775 14,612 168,028
Off-balance sheet items 12,228 (766) 17¢ (10,612) (1,021) - - -
Interest rate repricing gap (14,906) (3,361) 3,608 23,324 1,649 (10,314) - -
Cumulativeinterest rate repricing gap (14,906) _ (18,267) _ (14,659) 8665 10,314 - - -

* restated (see note 1)
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)
¢ Fair valueanalysis (continued)

Financia instruments include both financial assets and financia liabilities and also derivatives. The fair value of a financia
instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
inaforced or liquidation sale.

Wherever possible, fair values have been estimated using market prices for instruments held by the Group. Where market prices
are not available, fair values have been estimated using quoted values for instruments with characteristics either identical or
similar to those of the instruments held by the Group. In certain cases, where no ready markets currently exist, various techniques
have been developed to estimate what the approximate fair value of such instruments might be. These estimation techniques are
necessarily subjective in nature and involve several assumptions.

The fair values presented in the following table are at a specific date and may be significantly different from the amounts which
will be actually be paid or received on the maturity or settlement date. In many cases, the estimated fair values could not be
realised immediately and accordingly do not represent the value of these financial instruments to the Group as a going concern.

Because a variety of estimation techniques are employed and significant estimates made, comparisons of fair values between
financia institutions may not be meaningful. Readers of these accounts are thus advised to use caution when using this data to
evaluate the Group' s financia position.

Fair value information is not provided for items that do not meet the definitions of a financial instrument. These items include
intangible assets, such as the value of the Group’s branch network, the long-term relationships with depositors and credit card
relationships, premises and equipment and shareholders’ equity. These items are material and accordingly the Group believes
that the fair value information presented does not represent the underlying value of the Group.

The valuation technique for each mgjor category of financia instrument is discussed bel ow:

Treasury billsand other eligible bills
Fair valueis estimated using market prices, where available.

Loansand advancesto banksand customers

The Group provides loans and advances to commercial, corporate and personal customers at both fixed and variable rates. The
carrying value of the variable rate loans and those relating to lease financing is assumed to be their fair value. For fixed rate
lending, several different techniques are used to estimate fair value, as considered appropriate. For commercia and personal
customers, fair value is principally estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows (including interest at contractual rates) at
market rates for similar loans offered by the Group and other financia ingtitutions. The fair value for corporate loans was
estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows at a rate which reflects the effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes
in credit risk. Certain loans secured on residential properties are made at a fixed rate for alimited period, typically two to five
years, after which the loans revert to the relevant variable rate. The fair value of such loans has been estimated by reference to
the market ratesfor similar loans of maturity equal to the remaining fixed interest rate period.

Debt securities and equity shares held for investment purposes
Listed investment securities are valued at quoted mid-market prices. Unlisted securities and equity shares are valued based on
discounted cash flows, market prices of similar securities and other appropriate valuation techniques.

Deposits by banks and customer accounts

The fair value of deposits repayable on demand is considered to be equal to their carrying value. The fair value for al other
deposits and customer accounts was estimated using discounted cash flows applying either market rates, where applicable, or
current rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Debt securitiesin issue and subordinated liabilities
The fair value of short-term debt securities in issue is approximately equal to their carrying value. Fair value for other debt
securities and for subordinated liabilitiesis estimated using quoted market prices.

Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

The Group considers that, given the lack of an established market, the diversity of fee structures and the difficulty of separating
the value of the instruments from the value of the overall transaction, it is not meaningful to provide an estimate of the fair value
of financia commitments and contingent ligbilities. These are therefore excluded from the following table.

The carrying and fair values of non-trading derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 45a.
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)
¢ Fair valueanalysis (continued)

The table below shows a comparison by category of book values and fair values of the Group’s on-balance sheet financia assets
and liabilities.

Asat 31 December 2001 Trading book Non-trading book
Book Fair Book Fair
value value value value

£m £m £m £m

Assets.

Treasury billsand other eligible bills 1,630 1,630 2,782 2,780

L oans and advances to banks and customers 605 605 137,554 138,287

Debt securities and equity shares 13,423 13,423 11,027 11,269

Liabilities:

Deposits by banks and customers 1,582 1,582 131,844 131,813

Debt securitiesin issue 1,187 1,187 23,233 23,266

Subordinated ligbilities - - 7,657 8,084

Asat 31 December 2000* Trading book Non-trading book

Book Fair Book Fair
vdue vaue vaue vdue
£m £m £m £m

Assets:

Treasury hillsand other eligible bills 1,079 1,079 630 627

L oans and advances to banks and customers 322 322 129,400 130,300

Debt securities and equity shares 8,416 8,416 6,436 6,916

Liabilities:

Deposits by banks and customers 1,201 1,201 117,523 117,369

Debt securitiesin issue 956 956 16,943 16,982

Subordinated ligbilities - - 7,510 7,692

*  restated (seenote 1)
d Currency exposures
Structural currency exposures

The Group’s main overseas operations are in New Zealand, the Americas and Europe. Details of the Group’s structura foreign
currency exposures are asfollows:

2001 2000
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m
New Zealand dollar 748 703
Euro (and component former currencies) 286 289
USdollar 147 194
Swissfranc 104 120
Other non-sterling 438 397
Totd 1,723 1,703

Non-structural currency exposures
All foreign exchange exposures in the non-trading book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitored and

controlled.

Information about the management of market risk in the Group’ strading activitiesis given on pages 58 to 60.
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45 Derivativesand other financial instruments (continued)

e Unrecognised gainsand losses on hedging instruments

The Group uses a variety of financial instruments to hedge exposures in its banking book; these hedges are accounted for on an
accruas basis, in line with the underlying instruments being hedged. Any gains or losses that would occur if these instruments

were carried at market value are therefore not recognised.

At 31 December 2001, the unrecognised gains on financia instruments used for hedging were £242 million (2000: £200 million)
and unrecognised |osses were £820 million (2000: £457 million).

The net losses arising in 2000 and earlier years and recognised in 2001 amounted to £88 million. Net losses of £403 million
arose in 2001 but were not recognised in the year.

Of the net losses of £578 million at 31 December 2001, £342 million of net losses are expected to be recognised in the year
ending 31 December 2002 and £236 million of net lossesin later years.

f  Valueat risk in trading activities

Details of the value at risk in the Group’ s global trading activities are given on page 58.

46 Acquisitions

On 21 November 2001 the Group's subsidiary, Lloyds TSB Commercial Finance Limited, acquired the issued share capita of
CashFriday Limited, a provider of funding and payroll services to the UK temporary recruitment sector. The consideration was
approximately £10 million, satisfied by £1 million of cash and the issue of £9 million short-term loan notes. The premium on
acquisition of £8 million has been capitalised and will be written off to the profit and loss account over its estimated useful life of
20 years. There were no fair value adjustments made to the assets acquired. The results of this business have been consolidated
in full from the date of acquisition, the effect on the results of the Group is not material.

47 Consolidated cash flow statement

The cash flow statement reflects cash flows attributable to the banking, life and general insurance businesses. Cash flows from
long-term assurance business attributable to shareholders include the surplus emerging from the life and pension businesses;
‘Income from long-term assurance business' reflects the movement in the vaue of long-term assurance business attributable to
shareholders (see Note 29) as adjusted for capital injections and acquisitions, which are reflected within the * Capital expenditure
and financial investment’ and ‘ Acquisitions and disposals sections of the cash flow statement. Cash flows relating to the long-
term assurance business attributabl e to policyholders are not reflected within this statement.
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47 Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

a Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from oper ating activities 2001 2000* 1999*
£m £m £m
Operating profit 3,521 3,857 3,770
Increase in prepayments and accrued income (411) (121) (231)
(Decrease) increase in accruals and deferred income (439) 830 183
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 747 541 615
Net advances written off (691) (580) (614)
Genera insurance clams 174 142 169
General insurance claims paid (178) (146) (145)
Amounts written off fixed asset investments 60 32 7
Income from long-term assurance business (193) (615) (227)
Transfer from long-term assurance business 155 104 162
Interest on subordinated liabilities (loan capital) 493 490 362
Interest element of finance lease rental payments 1 1 -
Depreciation and amortisation 550 386 277
Other non-cash movements (395) (266) (300)
Net cash inflow from trading activities 3,3% 4,655 4,028
Net increase in loans and advances (9,340) (6,350) (6,389)
Net (increase) decrease in investments other than investment securities (5,664) (355) 461
Net (increase) decrease in other assets (327) (124) 1,565
Net increase (decrease) in deposits by banks 7,689 (2,794) 827
Net increase in customer accounts 7,525 7,469 3,299
Net increase in debt securitiesinissue 6,557 4,738 551
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities 109 185 (2,961)
Net increasein itemsin course of collection/transmission 17 (126) (60)
Other non-cash movements 1 176 (108)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 9,927 7,474 1,213
*  restated (seenote 1)
b  Analysisof cash asshown in the balance sheet 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Cash and balances with central banks 1,240 1,027 1,276
Loans and advances to banks repayable on demand 2,443 2,794 1,132
3,683 3,821 2,408

The Group is required to maintain balances with the Bank of England which, at 31 December 2001, amounted to £156 million

(2000: £142 million; 1999: £128 million).

¢ Analysisof changesin cash duringtheyear 2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

At 1 January 3,821 2,408 2,856

Net cash (outflow) inflow before adjustments for the effect of foreign exchange

movements (100) 1,406 (448)

Effect of foreign exchange movements (38) 7 -

At 31 December 3,683 3,821 2,408

d  Analysisof changesin financing during the year

At 1 January
Cash inflow from financing
At 31 December

Share capital (including
premium and merger reserve)

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
2,334 2,136 1,823
379 198 313
2,713 2,334 2,136
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47 Consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

d Analysisof changesin financing during theyear (continued)

At 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange movements
Cash inflow from financing

At 31 December

At 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange movements
Cash inflow from financing

Capital repayments

Adjustments on acquisition

At 31 December

e Analysisof thenet cash outflow in respect of the acquisition of group

undertakings

Cash consideration paid (seef)

Capital securitiesissued by

subsidiary undertakings

Payments to former members of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society

acquired during 2000
Net cash outflow

f  Acquisition of group undertakings

Net assets acquired:

Loans and advances

Long-term assurance business

Other assets

Tangible fixed assets

Deposits by banks, customer accounts
and other liabilities

Goodwill arising on consolidation

Satisfied by:

Issue of loan notes

Cash

Payments pending settlement

g Disposal of group undertakings and businesses

Net assets disposed of;

Interestsin associated undertakings
Other net assets

Goodwill written back on disposal

Profit (loss) on sdle
Cash consideration received

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

515 - -

(11) 6 -

456 509 -

960 515 -

Subordinated liabilities and

finance leases

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
7,533 6,497 4,028

(8) 120 (69)
155 897 2,541

(20 4 ©)
- 23 -
7,660 7,533 6,497

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
1 5,110 27
179 - -
180 5,110 27

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m
- 2,827 -

- 4,052 -

15 168 1

- 375 -
(13) (3,239) 4
2 4,183 5

8 2,405 22

10 6,588 27

9 1,077 -

1 5,110 27

- 401 -

10 6,588 27
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

- - 2

1 2 -

- 93 -

1 95 2

39 (12) 1
40 83 3
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP

The accounts presented in this report have been prepared in

accordance with accounting principles generaly accepted in the

United Kingdom (UK GAAP). These differ in significant respects to the accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (US GAAP). Thefollowing isasummary of significant differences applicable to the Group.

UK GAAP

Business combinations

For accounting periods beginning before 23 December 1994,
UK GAAP permitted merger accounting for business
combinations wherein the offeror acquired at least 90 per cent
of all equity sharesin issue and that equity shares comprised
not less than 90 per cent of the fair value of the consideration.

Goodwill / coredeposit intangibles

Following the implementation of Financia Reporting
Standard (FRS) 10 ‘Goodwill and intangible assets in 1998
goodwill arising on acquisitions of or by group and associated
undertakings is capitalised and amortised over its estimated
life. Thereis a presumption that the estimated life is limited
to 20 years or less, although this may be rebutted and alonger
or indefinite useful life considered. Goodwill is written off
when judged to be irrecoverable. For acquisitions prior to 1
January 1998 goodwill was charged directly against reserves
as permitted by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
22.  This goodwill was not reinstated following the
implementation of FRS 10, but in the event of a subsequent
disposd it will be written back and included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.

UK GAAP does not require a value to be placed upon the
retall depositor relationship in an acquired financid
ingtitution.

USGAAP

Under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 16
‘Business Combinations’, a business combination should be
accounted for as a pooling-of-interests if two previously
independent entities combine as a result of one entity issuing
common stock in exchange for substantially al the common
stock of the second entity. Whilst the offer may include
provisions to distribute cash for fractional shares or those held
by dissenting shareholders, the offer may not include a pro rata
distribution of cash or other consideration. In addition, no
changes in the equity interests of the common stock may be
made prior to the merger in contemplation of the transaction and
neither may the ratio of the interest of the individual common
stockholder to those of other common stockholders in a
combining company change as aresult of the exchange of stock.

APB No. 17 ‘Intangible Assets requires that goodwill arising
on acquisitions by group and associated undertakings be
capitalised and amortised over its estimated life, which should
not exceed 40 years. The Group amortises goodwill over
periods of up to 20 years. Under the transition requirements of
Statement of Financia Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142
‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets' goodwill acquired after
30 June 2001 is capitalised but not amortised and is subject to
review for impairment in accordance with APB 17 or SFAS No.
121 *Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of' as appropriate until
SFASNo. 142 isapplied initsentirety (from 1 January 2002).

SFAS No. 72 * Accounting for Certain Transactions of Banking
and Thrift Institutions requires that, when assessing the fair
value of the assets of an acquired financial institution, certain
identifiable intangible assets must be recognised. These include
the asset representing the value of retail depositor relationships,
termed the core deposit intangible, which is capitaised
separately and amortised through the profit and loss account
over the edtimated average life of the retail depositor
relationships.
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

UK GAAP

Pension costs

Pension costs relating to defined benefit schemes, calculated
using actuarial assumptions and methods, are charged so asto
alocate the cost of providing benefits over the average
remaining service lives of employees. Variations from
regular cost are spread in equal annua amounts over the
average remaining service lives of current employees.

Leasing

Finance lease income is recognised in proportion to the funds
invested in the lease using a method that results in a constant
rate of return on the net cash investment, which takes into
account tax payments and receipts.

Operating lease assets are depreciated such that rentals less
depreciation are recognised a a constant periodic rate of
return on the net cash invested in that asset.

Profits or losses arising on sale and leasebacks are taken to
profit asthey arise.

Property

Depreciation is charged on the cost of freehold and long
leasehold properties over their estimated useful economic
lives. Following the adoption of FRS 15, the Group
reassessed the useful economic lives and residua vaues of its
freehold and long-leasehold premises and, with effect from 1
January 2000, the cost of these properties, after deducting the
value of the land, is being depreciated over 50 years.
Previoudly it was considered that the residual values were
such that depreciation was not significant.

Share compensation schemes

Where shares are purchased to satisfy an actual, or
anticipated, requirement created by the exercise of options
under either the Group’'s Executive or Save-As-You-Earn
option schemes, the difference between the purchase price
and exercise price is charged to the profit and loss account on
a systematic basis over the period that the employees are
expected to benefit. Where shares are issued, no charge is
made to the profit and loss account.

USGAAP

SFAS No. 87 ‘Employers’ Accounting for Pensions’ prescribes
asimilar method of actuarial valuation but requires assets to be
assessed at fair value and the assessment of liabilities to be
based on current settlement rates. Certain variations from
regular cost are alocated in equal amounts over the average
remaining servicelives of current employees.

The application of SFAS No0.13 ‘Accounting for Leases gives
rise to alevel rate of return on the investment in the lease, but
without taking into account tax payments and receipts. This
results in income being recognised in different periods than
under UK GAAP.

Operating lease assets are depreciated such that the depreciation
charge is at least equal to that which would arise on a straight
line basis.

Under SFAS No. 28 ‘Accounting for Sales with Leasebacks
profits or losses arising on a sale and leaseback are deferred and
amortised. For leasebacks resulting in a finance lease, the
amounts are amortised in proportion to the amortisation of the
leased asset; for leasebacks resulting in an operating lease, the
amounts are amortised in proportion to the gross rental charged
to expense over theleaseterm.

Freehold and long leasehold properties are included in the
balance sheet at historical cost and depreciated over their
estimated useful economic lives.

The Group accounts for share compensation schemes based on
their estimated fair values at the date of the grant in accordance
with SFAS No. 123 ‘Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation’.
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

UK GAAP
Computer softwar e developed or obtained for internal use

All computer software costs are expensed as incurred except
for operating software and application software relating to
separable new systems, which are capitalised and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Derivative instruments held for

purposes

risk management

Derivatives used in the Group's trading activities are carried
at fair value and al changes in fair value are reported within
dealing profits in the profit and loss account. Derivatives
used in the group’ s non-trading activities are accounted for on
an accruas basis, in line with the treatment of the underlying
items which they are hedging. A derivative will only be
classified as a hedge in circumstances where there was
adequate evidence of the intention to hedge at the outset of
the transaction and the derivative substantially matches or
eliminates the exposure being hedged.

Foreign currency trandation

The assets, liabilities and results of the Group’'s overseas
operations are trandated into sterling at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, as permitted under UK
GAAP.

Investment securities

Debt securities and equity shares intended for use on a
continuing basis by the Group are treated as investment
securities and included in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for the amortisation of any premiums and discounts arising
upon acquisition, less provision for any permanent diminution
invalue.

Dividend payable

Dividends declared after the period end are recorded in the
period to which they relate.

USGAAP

The American Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants
Statement of Position 98-1 ‘Accounting for the costs of
computer software developed or obtained for interna use
requires certain costsincurred from 1 January 1999 in respect of
software developed for interna use to be capitaised and
subsequently amortised.

SFAS No. 133 *Accounting for Derivative Instruments and for
Hedging Activities' requires that all derivatives be recognised
on-balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are not hedges are reported in the income
statement. For derivatives which are hedges, depending on the
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives will
either be offset against the change in fair value of the hedged
assets, liahilities, or firm commitments through earnings or
recognised in other comprehensive income until the hedged
item isrecognised in earnings. The ineffectiveness portion of a
hedge's change in fair value is immediately recognised in
earnings.

Under SFAS No. 52 ‘Foreign Currency Trandation’, foreign
currency assets and liabilities are trandated at the year-end rate;
however, results are trandated at the average rate for the year.

SFAS No. 115 *Accounting for Certain Investmentsin Debt and
Equity Securities requires that debt securities which are
“available-for-sale” (where there is the absence of either the
intent or the ability to hold them to maturity) and equity shares
with a readily determinable market value should be recorded at
far value with unredlised gains and losses reflected in
shareholders' equity. All debt securities held as available-for-
sde are subject to assessment for other than temporary
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 115 and, for asset
backed securities, in accordance with the Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) Abstract No. 99-20 ‘Recognition of Interest
Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficia
Interestsin Securitized Financial Assets'.

Dividends are recorded in the period in which they are declared.
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UK GAAP

Own shares

Own shares held are included within equity and are reported
as an asset on the balance sheet.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on timing
differences where there is a reasonable probability that a
ligbility or asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future. No
deferred asset is created in respect of the general provision for
bad and doubtful debts which is not deductible in arriving at
UK taxable profits.

Provision for credit losses

A specific provision is made to cover the estimated loss as
soon as the recovery of an outstanding loan is considered
doubtful. General provisions are raised to cover losses
incurred but not yet identified as of the balance sheet date.

Acceptances

Acceptances are not recorded on the balance sheet.

I nsurance activities

The shareholder’s interest in the long-term assurance fund is
valued at the net present value of the profits inherent in such
policies.

USGAAP

Own shares held are reclassified as Treasury stock and deducted
from shareholders equity in accordance with Accounting
Research Bulletin (ARB) No.51 ‘Consolidated Financia
Statements'.

Under SFAS No. 109 ‘Accounting for Income Taxes, the
liability method is also used, but deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded for al temporary differences, including
the general provision for bad and doubtful debts. A vauation
allowance is recorded against a deferred tax asset where it is
more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax asset
will not be realised.

SFAS No. 114 *Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a
Loan’ requiresthe overal credit risk provision to be determined
based upon the present value of expected future cash flows,
discounted at the loan's effective interest rate or, as a practical

expedient, on the loan’s observable market value, or the fair

value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.
Smaller balance homogeneous consumer loans that are
collectively valued for impairment are outside the scope of

SFAS No. 114, as are debt securities and leases. General

provisions are made against such loans when losses have been
incurred but not yet identified as of the balance sheet date.

Acceptances and the related customer liabilities are recorded on
the balance sheet.

The net present value of the profits inherent in the policies of
the long-term assurance fund is not recognised. An adjustment
is made for the amortisation of acquisition costs and fees.

Additiona information on the differences between the UK and
US accounting for insurance activities is provided within the
Insurance section of this note on pages F-80 to F-83.
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Recent developments

United Kingdom

FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits

FRS 17 was issued in December 2000 and becomes fully effective no later than for Lloyds TSB Group’s 2003 financial
statements. The main requirement of FRS 17 is that it will be necessary to recognise on the balance sheet an asset or liability
with respect to the surplus or deficit on the Group’s defined benefit schemes and to recognise immediately actuarial gains and
losses in the statement of total recognised gains and losses. The FRS requires transitional disclosures in the Group’s 2001 and
2002 financial statements, before becoming fully effectivein 2003.

FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’

FRS 19 was issued in December 2000 and will be effective for the Group’s 2002 financia statements. The FRS requires
deferred tax to be provided on most types of timing differences. Currently, the Group recognises deferred tax assets and
liabilities only to the extent that it is considered probable that an asset or liability will crystallise. It isnot expected that adoption
will have amateria effect on Lloyds TSB Group’sfinancia statements.

UITF Abstract 33 *Obligationsin capital instruments

Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstract 33 was issued in February 2002 and deals with the classification of various types of
capital instruments in the balance sheet, whether as liabilities, shareholders’ funds or, in consolidated financial statements,
minority interests. The Abstract is effective for periods ending on or after 23 March 2002 and, upon adoption, LIoyds TSB Group
will reclassify those instruments affected from minority interests to subordinated debt. At 31 December 2001, the balance sheet
amount was £451 million and the related expense, which will be reclassified from minority interests to interest payable, was
£22 million.

United Sates

SFASNo. 141 ‘Business Combinations

SFAS No. 141 wasissued in July 2001 and requires that the purchase method be used for al business combinationsinitiated after
30 June 2001. Use of the pooling-of-interests method is no longer permitted. Adoption has not had a material impact on the
Lloyds TSB Group’'sUS GAAP financial statements.

SFAS No. 142 ‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

SFAS No. 142 was issued in July 2001 and became effective for the Lloyds TSB Group on 1 January 2002. Certain provisions
are applicable to transactions completed after 30 June 2001. The Statement requires that goodwill should no longer be amortised
to earnings, but instead reviewed for impairment and that any losses arising from such a review be charged to income as they
arise. Retrospective application is not permitted and certain disclosures will be provided until all reported periods reflect the
change in accounting treatment. The impact on the LIoyds TSB Group will be to increase US GAAP net income in the periods
from 1 January 2002 by the amount of amortisation previously charged to net income on goodwill capitalised under US GAAP.
For the year ended 31 December 2001, this amounted to £248 million. No impairment of goodwill is anticipated

SFASNo. 143 ‘Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

SFAS No. 143 was issued in June 2001 and requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation to be recorded
in the period in which it is incurred. When the ligbility is initially recorded, the cost is capitalised by increasing the carrying
amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the capitalised
cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, the obligation is either settled for its
recorded amount or again or lossisincurred upon settlement. SFAS No. 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 15 June
2002, with earlier application encouraged. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Lloyds TSB Group’'s US
GAAPfinancia statements.

SFASNo. 144 ‘ Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144 was issued in August 2001 and became effective for the Lloyds TSB Group on 1 January 2002. The Statement
supersedes SFAS No. 121 ‘ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of’
although it maintains many of its requirements. For long-lived assets to be held and used, an impairment is recognised only if the
carrying amount of along-lived asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows. For along-lived asset to be disposed
of by sale, the asset is measured at the lower of its carrying value or fair value (less costs to sell) and depreciation ceases. This
Statement does not apply to goodwill, core deposit intangibles, deferred acquisition costs or deferred tax assets. Adoptionis not
expected to have amaterial impact on the Lloyds TSB Group’s US GAAP financial statements.
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The following tables summarise the adjustments to net income and shareholders’ equity which would arise from the application
of USGAAP:

Reconciliation of net income 2001 2000 1999
Note £m £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders under UK GAAP 2,500 2,706 2,539
Insurance activities, before tax (see page F-80) (550) (528) 119
Banking and Group activities:
Goodwill amortisation @ (209) (188) (118)
Profit/loss on sale and closure of businesses (b) - 12 21
Amortisation of core deposit intangibles @ (219 (219 (219
Pension costs (© (16) (36) (39)
Leasing (131) (47) (20)
Property depreciation 3 3 (7
Share compensation schemes (d) (46) (31) (37)
Internal software costs 16 10 37
Derivative instruments held for risk management purposes (" (315) (168) 178
Foreign currency trandation differences 4 2 3
Total Banking and Group activities, before tax (921) (662) (201)
Taxation
- deferred taxation )] 38 (75) (207)
- deferred taxation on GAAP differences (i) 457 488 (202)
Total Taxation 495 413 (309)
Total adjustments, after tax (976) (777) (391)
Net income under US GAAP 1,524 1,929 2,148
Reconciliation of shareholders equity 2001 2000
Note £m £m
Shareholders' funds under UK GAAP 10,760 10,024
Insurance activities, before tax (see page F-80) (274) 399
Banking and Group activities:
Goodwill @ 1,312 1,533
Core deposit intangibles @ 772 991
Pension Costs (© 1,687 1,703
Leasing (274) (143)
Property depreciation (53) (56)
Internal software 63 47
Derivative instruments held for risk management purposes (" (578) (257)
Net unrealised gain on available-for-sale investment securities (9 242 480
Dividend payable 1,306 1,172
Own shares (h (251) (247)
Total Banking and Group activities, before tax 4,226 5,223
Taxation
- deferred taxation )] (45) (83)
- deferred taxation on GAAP differences )] (1,246) (1,855)
Total Taxation (1,291) (1,938)
Total adjustments, after tax 2,661 3,684

Shareholders equity under US GAAP 13,421 13,708
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Reconciliation of movementsin shareholders equity under USGAAP

Net incomein period
Dividends

New share capital subscribed

Movement in own shares

Share compensation schemes

Changeinthefair value of available-for-sale securities — Insurance activities
Changein thefair value of available-for-sale securities— Banking activities
Exchange differences

Shareholders' equity at beginning of period
Shareholders' equity at end of period

Accumulated other comprehensiveincome

Exchange trandation differences
Available-for-sale securities:
Net unrealised gains— Insurance activities
Related amortisation of deferred acquisition costs
Net unrealised gains— Banking activities
Taxation

Accumulated other comprehensive income under US GAAP
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2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
1,524 1,929 2,148
(1,738) (1,522) (1,285)
(214) 407 863
194 74 108
(4) (41) (14)

46 31 37
(46) 21 (50)
(165) 67 4
(98) (13) (58)
(287) 546 890
13,708 13,162 12,272
13,421 13,708 13,162
2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
(321) (223) (210)
49 98 68
(23) (7 ©)
242 480 386
(81) a73) (135)
187 398 310
(134 175 100
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

Condensed US GAAP Profit and loss account

The following table provides a condensed profit and loss account for the Group, incorporating the US GAAP adjustments arising.

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

Loan interest, including fees 10,317 10,218 9,778
Other interest and dividends 2,077 2,539 1,541
Insurance premiums 1,671 1,604 1,230
Commissions and fees 2,248 2,118 1,982
Realised gains from sales of investments 183 139 102
Foreign exchange trading income 158 141 133
Securities and other trading (losses)gains (2,307) (253) 328
Other income 1,260 838 880
Total revenues 15,607 17,344 15,974
Interest expense 6,427 7,046 6,259
Total revenues, net of interest expense 9,180 10,298 9,715
Policyholder benefits and claims expense 2,228 1,735 936
Movement in undistributed earnings to policyholders (2,427) (317) 3
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts 747 541 615
Amounts written off fixed asset investments 60 32 7
Total benefits, claimsand provisions 608 1,991 1,561
Non-insurance compensation and benefits 2,014 1,870 1,715
I nsurance underwriting, operating and acquisition expenses 511 552 345
Other operating expenses 2,418 1,899 1,781
Exceptional restructuring costs 217 188 -
Depreciation 622 414 284
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets

Goodwill 248 210 130

Core deposit intangibles 219 219 219

Value of long-term assurance business acquired 305 285 1

772 714 350
6,554 5,637 4,475

Profit (loss) on sale and closure of businesses 39 - (105)
Income before tax 2,057 2,670 3574
Provision for income taxes* 476 692 1,420
Minority interests, net of incometaxes 57 49 6
Net income under US GAAP 1,524 1,929 2,148
Exchange trandation differences (98) (13) (58)
Available-for-sale securities:

Net unrealised (losses) gains — Insurance activities (49) 30 (144

Related amortisation of deferred acquisition costs (16) 2 72

Net unrealised (losses) gains — Banking activities (238) 94 5

Taxation 92 (38) 21

(212) 88 (46)

Comprehensiveincome under US GAAP 1,215 2,004 2,044
Earnings per share (pence) 27.5p 35.2p 39.4p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 27.2p 34.8p 38.7p

* Significant items affecting the Group’s effective tax rate under US GAAP include the fact that tax is levied on UK life assurance and pension businesses under
specialised rules not based on the profit and loss account. In addition, under US GAAP atax provision is required for unrealised gains that are attributable to
the policyholders. The amount provided will vary depending upon the fluctuations of the stock market and this movement can result in significant changesin
the effective rate of tax.
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Condensed US GAAP Balance sheset

The following table provides a condensed balance sheet for the Group, incorporating the US GAAP adjustments arising.

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Deposits at interest with banks

Securities purchased under resale agreements

Treasury billsand other eligible bills

Trading account assets

Investments

Loans, net of provisions

Tangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets — goodwill
— core deposit intangibles
—value of long-term assurance business acquired

Deferred acquisition costs

Separate account assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits

Trading account liabilities

Debt securitiesin issue
Policyholder liahilities
Undistributed policyholder dlocations
Commitments and contingencies
Deferred tax

Long-term debt

Separate account liabilities
Other liabilities

Minority interests

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock
Additiona paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilitiesand shareholders equity
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2001 2000
£m £m
7,388 6,478
11,709 10,799
1,383 4,937
2,782 630
38,714 36,872
15,126 10,626
122,485 110,788
3,429 3,146
3,878 4,132
772 991
3,007 3,312
795 698
22,068 25,559
9,810 6,904
243,346 225,872
133,419 117,473
3,476 3,302
23,233 16,943
23,465 22,182
3,478 5,905
251 291
3,105 3,719
8,108 7,510
22,068 25,559
8,776 8,728
546 552
229,925 212,164
1,411 1,396
4,670 4,260
7,725 8,124
(251) (247)
(134) 175
13,421 13,708
243,346 225,872
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flowsin accor dance with SFAS No. 95

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income before minority interests

Adjustments required to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Change in trading account assets
Change in trading account liabilities
Change in deferred acquisition costs
Change in other assets
Changein policyholder liabilities
Change in undistributed policyholder allocations
Changein other liabilities
Net gain on sale of investment securities
(Profit) loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Other, net

Total adjustments

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in deposits at interest with banks

Change in securities purchased under resale agreements
Change in loans and advances to customers

Purchases of investment securities

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment securities
Purchases of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets

Additionsto interestsin joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings

Disposal of subsidiary undertakings

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid - equity

Dividends paid to minorities - equity
Dividends paid to minorities - non-equity
Issue of ordinary shares

Purchase of treasury stock

Issue of preferred securities

Issue of long-term debt

Redemption of long-term debt

Changein deposits

Change in short-term borrowings
Policyholders' deposits

Policyholders withdrawals

Net cash provided by financing activities

Changein cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash paid during the year for income taxes
Cash paid during the year for interest
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
L oan notes issued in respect of acquisitions

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
1,581 1,978 2,154
772 714 350
622 414 284
56 (39) 1
(2,004) 861 2,176
174 38 (2,242)
(97) (60) (74)
(2,910) 658 1,179
583 310 488
(2,427) (164) 24
279 (367) (1,336)
(183) (139) (102)
(67) (6) 2
(725) (50) 515
(5,927) 2,170 1,265
(4,346) 4,148 3,419
(986) 474 3,448
3,554 2,912 (4,816)
(12,211) (9,510) (5,146)
(48,842) (24,659) (25,871)
42,282 25,731 22,800
(1,140) (1,031) (639)
293 87 83
(44) - -
(180) (5,110) 27)
40 83 3
(17,234) (11,023) (10,165)
(1,738) (1,522) (1,285)
(17) (12) (11)
(40) (36) -
194 74 108
(4) (41) (14)
- 509 -
742 952 2,769
(131) (55) (228)
16,458 4,287 3,975
6,326 5,065 851
1,987 1,978 314
(1,287) (1,499) (752)
22,490 9,700 5727
910 2,825 (1,019)
6,478 3,653 4,672
7,388 6,478 3,653
829 864 807
6,755 6,102 5,935
9 1,077 -
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Balance sheet presentation

Certain classification differences exist in financia reporting under UK GAAP and US GAAP. For the Group, such differences
primarily arise in the balance sheet and the following comparison lists the line itemsin which such differences occur.

UK GAAP

Cash and balances at central banks
Itemsin course of collection from banks
Treasury billsand other eligible bills

L oans and advances to banks

L oans and advances to customers

Debt securities

Equity shares

Other assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Itemsin course of transmission to banks
Debt securitiesin issue

Other liabilities

Accruds and deferred income

Other provisionsfor liabilities and charges
Subordinated liabilities

Minority interests

Merger reserve

L ong-term assurance business

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

USGAAP

Cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks

Classified as “ Trading account assets” where appropriate

Loans to banks due on demand classified as “ Cash and due from
banks’; Reverse repos classified as “ Securities purchased under

resale agreements’

Reverse repos classified as* Securities purchased under resale
agreements’

Classified as“ Trading account assets’ and “Investments’ where
appropriate

Classified as“ Trading account assets’ and “Investments’ where
appropriate

Classified as“ Trading account assets” where appropriate
Other assets

Cash and due from banks

Classified as “ Trading account ligbilities’ where appropriate
Classified as “ Trading account ligbilities’ where appropriate
Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Long-term debt

Classified as“Long-term debt” where appropriate
Classified as“ Additional paid-in capita”

Classifications are discussed on pages F-81 to F-83

The Group's UK GAAP cash flow statement on page F- 7 is prepared under the provisions of FRS 1(Revised). Thisissimilarin
many respects to SFAS No. 95 ‘Statement of Cash Flows', as amended by SFAS No. 104 ‘Statement of Cash Flows - Net
Reporting of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments and Classification of Cash Flows from Hedging Transactions. Two
principal differences arise between the standards with regard to the definition of cash and the classification of items within the
cash flow statement.
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FRS 1 (Revised) defines cash as cash in hand and repayable on demand. Under SFAS No. 95, cash and cash equivaents are
defined as short term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash; and so near their
maturity that they present insignificant risk of changesin value because of changesin interest rates.

For the purposes of SFAS No. 95, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of £7,388 million (2000: £6,478 million; 1999:
£3,653 million) comprise items reported under the following UK balance sheet categories: cash and balances at central banks;
items in the course of collection from banks; loans and advances to banks repayable on demand and items in the course of
transmission to banks. Under UK GAAP the results, assets and liabilities of the long-term assurance business are presented on a
one-line basis and accordingly movements in cash flows are aggregated into one line within the reconciliation of operating profit.
Under US GAAP, the insurance activities have been disaggregated and accordingly the cash flows have been allocated to the
appropriate line items within the cash flow statement. Cash attributable to the long-term assurance business is included within
cash and cash equivalents above.

Differences between UK and US GAAP with regard to classification of items within the cash flow statement are summarised
below:

Classification under Classification under
Cash flow FRS 1 (Revised) SFASNo. 95
Net change in loans and advances, Operating activities Investing activities
including lease financing
Net change in deposits and debt Operating activities Financing activities
securitiesin issue
Dividends paid to equity and non- Returns on investments and servicing Financing activities
equity minority interests of finance
Tax pad Taxation Operating activities
Capital expenditure and financid Capital expenditure and financid Investing activities
investment investment
Purchases/proceeds from disposal of Acquisitions and disposals Investing activities
subsidiary and associated
undertakings
Dividends paid — equity Equity dividends paid Financing activities

Under FRS 1 (Revised), transactions designated as hedges are reported under the same heading as the related assets or liahilities.
Details of withdrawal and usage restrictions in respect of cash and balances at central banks are discussed on pages 84 and F-52.

Notesto the UK/US GAAP reconciliation

a Goodwill and coredeposit intangible assets

Under UK GAAP, on 1 January 1998, the Group adopted FRS 10, ‘ Goodwill and Intangible Assets'. In respect of acquisitions
since 1 January 1998, goodwill isincluded in the consolidated balance sheet under intangible fixed assets and amortised over its
estimated useful economic life on a straight-line basis. Prior to 1 January 1998, the Group charged goodwill directly against
reserves. In the case of the acquisition of Scottish Widows in 2000, in view of the strength of the Scottish Widows brand and the
position of the business as one of the leading providers of life, pensions, unit trust and fund management products, the directors
consider that it is appropriate to assign an indefinite life to the goodwill. This goodwill is not being amortised through the profit
and loss account; however it is subjected to annual impairment reviews in accordance with FRS 11 ‘ Impairment of Fixed Assets
and Goodwill’. Should any impairment be identified, it would be charged to the profit and loss account immediately.

Under US GAAP, al goodwill arising in respect of acquisitions before 30 June 2001 is capitalised and amortised over periods of
up to 40 years; goodwill arising after 30 June 2001 is capitalised but not amortised in accordance with the transition provisions of
SFAS No. 142. The Group amortises all goodwill arising before 30 June 2001, including that for Scottish Widows, over periods
of upto 20 years.
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
a Goodwill and coredeposit intangible assets (continued)
The treatment of the Group’ s major acquisitionsis detailed bel ow:

Abbey Life

In 1988, Lloyds Bank Plc transferred aminority interest in five businesses to Abbey Life Group plc, alife insurance company, in
return for a majority interest in the enlarged Abbey Life Group. Under UK GAAP, this transaction was accounted for as a
merger. Under US GAAP, the same transaction would be accounted for as an acquisition. Accordingly the net assets of Abbey
Life Group plc (later renamed Lloyds Abbey Life plc) have been fair valued in accordance with US GAAP and a purchase price
determined based on the fair value of the minority interest transferred.

In 1996, Lloyds TSB Group plc acquired the remaining minority interest in Lloyds Abbey Life plc. Under UK and US GAAP
the transaction is treated as an acquisition. However, certain differences arise under US GAAP regarding the determination of
fair value of life insurance companies and accordingly an adjustment has been made for the items affected. The goodwill arising
isbeing amortised over 20 years.

Cheltenham & Gloucester

Under UK and US GAAP, the purchase of the business of Cheltenham & Gloucester Building Society by Lloyds Bank Plc in
August 1995 istreated as an acquisition. Certain differences arise under US GAAP regarding the fair value of the net assets. In
addition, the net assets acquired include £521 million relating to core deposit intangibles, which is being amortised over 7 years.
The goodwill arising is being amortised over 20 years.

TSB Group plc

The business combination of Lloyds Bank Pic and TSB Group plc in December 1995 was accounted for as a merger as permitted
under UK GAAP at that time, although legally TSB Group plc was deemed to have acquired Lloyds Bank Plc. Under US
GAAP, the same transaction would have been accounted for as an acquisition of TSB Group plc by Lloyds Bank Plc.
Accordingly, for US GAAP, the net assets of TSB Group plc have been fair valued as at the date of the business combination and
a purchase price determined based on the value of TSB Group plc shares at that time. The net assets include £1,596 million
relating to core deposit intangibles, which is being amortised over 11 years. The resulting goodwill of £601 million is being
amortised over 20 years.

Scottish Widows

In March 2000, the Group acquired the business of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society, a life insurance and
pensions provider. Under UK and US GAAP, the purchase is treated as an acquisition. However certain differences arise under
US GAAP regarding the determination of fair value of the life insurance business. Accordingly adjustments have been made for
theseitems. Under US GAAP, the resulting goodwill is being amortised over 20 years.

The movement in US GAAP goodwill is summarised as follows:

2001 2000
UK USGAAP us UK USGAAP us
GAAP adjustment GAAP GAAP adjustment GAAP

Em £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Baance at 1 January 2,635 2,363 4,998 247 2,486 2,733
Exchange and other adjustments (3 (15) (18) a7 D (18)
Acquisitions 8 - 8 2,405 67 2,472
Disposals - - - - (189) (189)
Baance at 31 December 2,640 2,348 4,988 2,635 2,363 4,998
Amortisation
Balance at 1 January (36) (830) (866) (16) (734) (750)
Exchange and other adjustments 1 3 4 2 - 2
Chargefor theyear (39 (209) (248) (22 (188) (210
Disposals - - - - 92 92
Balance at 31 December (74) (1,036) (1,110) (36) (830) (866)
Net book value 2,566 1,312 3,878 2,599 1,533 4,132
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
a Goodwill and coredeposit intangible assets (continued)

Under US GAAP, the asset representing the value of retail depositor relationships associated with an acquisition of a savings
entity, termed the core deposit intangible, is capitalised separately and amortised in the consolidated statement of income over
the estimated average life of the retail depositor relationships. The average life of the retail depositor relationshipsis estimated at
between 7 and 11 years.

2001 2000
Em £m
Coredeposit intangibles
Balance at 1 January 991 1,210
Amortisation (219 (219
Balance at 31 December 772 991

b  Profit/losson sale and closur e of businesses

Under UK GAAP, upon disposal of a business or undertaking, goodwill written-off directly against reserves prior to the
implementation FRS 10 “Goodwill and Intangible Assets’, is included in the Group's share of the net assets of the business or
undertaking in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Under US GAAP, al goodwill is capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful life. Upon disposa of a business or
undertaking, the unamortised goodwill isincluded in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal. Compared to the treatment
under UK GAAP, the effect of this is to increase the profits, and reduce the losses, arising on the sale and closure of those
businesses acquired before the implementation of FRS 10.

On 1 February 2000 the Group announced the sale of Abbey Life's new business capability. In the Group's 1999 results
caculated under UK GAAP a provision of £98 million was made for asset impairment, of which £80 million related to the
impairment of goodwill previously written-off against reserves and £18 million to other asset write-offs. Under US GAAP this
provision would have been £21 million lower reflecting the cumulative effect of goodwill amortisation.

¢ Pension costs

The measurement of the US GAAP pension cost is undertaken in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 87 and SFAS
No. 109. The disclosures reflect the amendments arising from SFAS No. 132 ‘Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits'.

For the reconciliations below, the Group has applied SFAS No. 87 to the LIoyds TSB Group Pension Schemes No’s 1 and 2 with
effect from 31 December 1997 as it was not feasible to apply it as of January 1989, the date specified in the standard. The
Scottish Widows pension scheme has been included from 3 March 2000, the date of acquisition.

The components of the pension expense which arise under US GAAP are estimated as:

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Service cost 212 211 226
Interest cost 545 516 472
Expected return on plan assets (778) (720) (688)
Net amortisation and deferral (89) (92) (92)
Net pension credit (110) (85) (82
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
¢ Pension costs (continued)

Changein projected benefit obligation

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
Projected benefit obligation as at 1 January 9,222 8,527 7,861
Acquisition of Scottish Widows - 278 -
Service cost 212 211 226
Interest cost 545 516 472
Employee contributions - - 1
Amendments 67 - 120
Net actuarial loss (gain) 1,014 (7 84
Benefits paid (122) (303) (237)
Projected benefit obligation as at 31 December 10,939 9,222 8,527
Changein plan assets
2001 2000
£m £m
Plan assets at fair value as at 1 January 13,047 11,601
Acquisition of Scottish Widows - 499
Actual return on plan assets (1,597) 1,250
Benefits paid (121) (303)
Plan assets at fair value at 31 December 11,329 13,047
2001 2000
£m £m
Funded status 390 3,825
Unrecognised net actuarial loss (gain) 2,248 (1,241)
Unrecognised prior service cost 182 132
Unrecognised transition asset (213) (319)
Prepaid benefit cost 2,607 2,497
Recognised under UK GAAP (920) (768)
Recognised on acquisition of Scottish Widows under UK GAAP - (26)
US GAAP adjustment recognised 1,687 1,703

The assets of the pension schemes are invested primarily in equities and fixed interest securities.
In accordance with SFAS No. 87, the excess of the plan assets over the projected benefit obligation at the transition date
(1 January 1998) is recognised as a reduction to pension expense on a prospective basis over approximately 15 years, which was
the average remaining services period of employees expected to receive benefits under the plans.

Thefinancial assumptions used to calcul ate the projected benefit obligation at 31 December 2000 and 2001 are asfollows:

2001 2000
Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%
Return on assets 6.6% 6.6%
Rate of pay increase 4.0% 3.5%
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

d Sharecompensation schemes

In accordance with SFAS No. 123 the Group accounts for share compensation schemes based on their estimated fair value at the
date of grant. The following disclosures only reflect options granted from 1 January 1995 onwards. In theinitial phase-in period,
the amounts will not be representative of the effect on reported net income for future years. The SFAS No. 123 charge for the
fair value of share optionsissued since 1 January 1996 is:

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Balance at 1 January (118) (87) (50)
Charge for options granted in year (9) (13) 4
Charge for options granted in prior years (37) (18) (33)
Total charge for the year (46) (3D 37
Balance at 31 December (164) (118) (87)

During the period from 1 January 1995 to 31 December 2001 the Group operated the following stock compensation plans:

Executive scheme

The Executive share option schemes are long-term incentive schemes and are available to certain senior executives of the Group,
with grants usually made annually. Options are granted within limits set by the rules of the schemes. These limits relate to the
number of shares under option and the price payable on the exercise of options. From 18 April 2001, the aggregate value of the
award based upon the market price at the date of grant must not exceed four times the executive's annua remuneration and,
normally, the limit for the grant of options to an executive in any one year would be equal to one and a half year’s remuneration
with a maximum performance multiplier of three and a half. Prior to 18 April 2001, the normal limit was equal to one year's
remuneration and no performance multiplier was applied.

Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant. However, the exercise of the optionsis
subject to the satisfaction of the following performance conditions:

For optionsgranted after March 2001

The performance condition is linked to the performance of Lloyds TSB Group plc's total shareholder return (calculated by
reference to both dividends and growth in share price) against acomparator group of sixteen companies.

The performance condition is measured over athree year period commencing at the end of the financia year preceding the grant
of the option and continuing until the end of the third subsequent year. If the performance condition is not then met, it will be
measured at the end of the fourth financia year. If the condition has not then been met, the optionswill lapse.

To meet the performance conditions, the Group’s ranking against the comparator group must be at least ninth. The full grant of
options will only become exercisable if the Group is ranked first. A performance multiplier will be applied below this level to
calculate the number of shares in respect of which options granted to executive directors will become exercisable, and will be
caculated on adliding scale. If LIoyds TSB Group plc is ranked below median the options will not become exercisable.

Options granted to senior executives other than executive directors will not be so highly leveraged and as a result, different
performance multipliers may be applied to their options. For the majority of executives, options will be granted with the
performance condition but no performance multiplier.

For optionsgranted between 1997 and M ar ch 2001

Q) the company’ s ranking, based on total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share
price) over the relevant period, should bein the top fifty companieslisted in the FTSE 100; and

(i) there must have been growth in earnings per share which is at least equal to the aggregate percentage change in the
Retail Price Index plus three percentage points for each complete year of the relevant period. For options granted
between 1997 and 1999 there must have been growth in earnings per share which is at least equal to the aggregate
percentage change in the Retail Price Index plustwo percentage points for each complete year of the relevant period.
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
d  Sharecompensation schemes (continued)

Options granted in 1996 are only exercisable if there has been growth in earnings per share which is at least equa to the
aggregate percentage change in the Retail Price Index, plustwo percentage points for each complete year of the relevant period.

In respect of options granted between 1996 and March 2001, the relevant period for the performance conditions begins at the end
of thefinancia year of the date of grant and will continue until the end of the third financial year following commencement or, if
not met, the end of such later year in which the conditions are met. Once the conditions have been satisfied the options will
remain exercisable without further conditions. If they are not satisfied by the tenth anniversary of the grant the option will lapse.

For options granted in 1995, no performance conditions were attached to the exercise of options.

The effect of the performance conditions on the value of the executive share options has been determined by assuming that the
earnings per share condition will be satisfied at all times and by using a stochastic projection model to determine the effect of the
market-based condition. The compensation cost accrued in the US GAAP financia statements has therefore been based on a best
estimate of the number of optionsthat are likely to vest. To the extent that actual forfeitures are different from the estimate, the
calculation of the compensation cost will be revised as appropriate.

As at 31 December 2001, no options granted under the Executive share scheme have lapsed as aresult of afailure to satisfy the
performance conditions.

Executive scheme 2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
Number of €xerciseprice Number of €xerciseprice  Number of EXerciseprice
options (pence) options (pence) options (pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 11,216,636 615.23 8,472,746 623.44 9,828,305 489.52
Granted 6,067,500 687.22 4,260,747 553.92 1,677,700 870.67
Exercised (1,196,024) 387.11 (1,065,674) 43546  (2,836,443) 315.15
Forfeited (934,616) 793.48 (451,183) 614.97 (196,816) 486.64
Outstanding at 31 December 15,153,496 651.07 11,216,636 615.23 8,472,746 623.44

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £1.50 (2000: £1.29; 1999: £1.98)
Shareretention plan
During the year, the Group adopted the LIoyds TSB Group plc Share Retention Plan. Options granted under this scheme are not

subject to any performance conditions and are exercisable between 3 and 10 years from the date of grant. The option granted in
2001 was made specifically to facilitate the recruitment of Mr Daniels and has atotal exercise price of £1.

Share retention plan 2001
Number of

shares

Outstanding at 1 January -
Granted in the year 216,763
Outstanding at 31 December 216,763

The weighted average remaining vesting period as at 31 December 2001 was 3 years.
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

d Sharecompensation schemes (continued)

Save-As-You-Earn scheme

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-Y ou-Earn (SAY E) Scheme to save up to £250 per month and,

at the expiry of afixed term of three, five or seven years, have the option to use these savings to acquire sharesin the Group at a
discount, which is currently 20 per cent of the market price at the date the options were granted.

SAY E scheme 2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

Number of exerciseprice  Number of exerciseprice  Number of EXerciseprice

options (pence) options (pence) options (pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 136,169,743 404.03 141,451,803 393.90 133,795,429 354.86
Granted 23,850,747 548.29 55,205,646 45564 16,045,457 718.44
Exercised (44,897,336) 28369  (26,567,632) 17971 (2,140,791) 279.97
Forfeited (8,316,661) 500.73  (33,920,074) 621.48 (6,248,292) 430.38
Outstanding at 31 December 106,806,493 479.30 136,169,743 404.03 141,451,803 393.90

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £2.24 (2000: £1.65; 1999: £2.52).

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average fair values and weighted average contractual life for the options granted under
the Executive and SAY E schemes outstanding at 31 December 1999, 2000 and 2001 are shown in the table below:

2001 2000 1999
Executive SAYE Executive SAYE Executive SAYE

Exerciseprice (pence)  242.50-887.50  160.40-768.00 242.50-887.50 160.40-768.00 242.50-887.50 160.40-768.00
Fair value (pence) 64-209 67-295 64-209 63-295 64-209 63-295
Weighted average

remaining life (years) 7.9 2.3 7.6 2.1 8.3 2.6
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

d  Sharecompensation schemes (continued)

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaining contractua life and number of
options outstanding at 31 December 2001 for the Executive and SAY E schemes are asfollows:

Executive scheme SAYE Scheme
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
exercise remaining exercise remaining
price life Number price life Number
Exer cise pricerange (pence) (years) of options (pence) (years) of options
E£1t0£2 - - - 182.66 0.3 1,182,609
£2t0£3 244.83 3.2 452,412 266.40 11 5,738,021
£3t0£4 321.00 4.2 518,378 - - -
£410£5 - - - 434.61 20 55,331,066
£5t0£6 539.74 74 4,906,437 546.06 32 36,629,370
£6t0£7 661.32 9.3 4,159,217 632.00 17 4,023,108
£710£8 732.91 9.6 1,996,752 731.96 19 3,902,319
£81t0£9 873.82 6.7 3,120,300 - - -
Thefair value calculations are based on the following assumptions:
Share Retention
Executive Plan SAYE
Risk-freeinterest rate 5.0% 4.2% 5.0%
Expected life Syears 3years 3,50r 7years
Expected volatility 38-40% 40% 38-40%
Expected dividend yield 4.4% 4.4% 4.4%
Details of options outstanding in respect of stock compensation plans operated prior to 1 January 1995 are as follows:
2001 Weighted Number of
average sharesasto Number of Number of Weighted
option price which options options options average
Number of at were lapsed  exercised exercise
optionsat 31 December exercisable at during during prices
31 December (pence) 31 December year year (pence)
Lloyds TSB Group Staff Share Save
Scheme (1989) - - - 10,839 476,580 210.6
Lloyds TSB Group Staff Share Save
Scheme 65,955 161.0 65,955 7,190 755,460 161.0
Lloyds TSB Group plc Executive
Share Option Scheme (1989) 89,246 1773 89,246 - 95,070 203.3
Lloyds TSB Group plc Executive
Share Option Scheme 137,568 282.5 137,568 - 17,344 2825
Lloyds Bank Plc Senior Executives
UK Share Option Scheme 1987 123,032 200.7 123,032 2,704 200,096 1615
Lloyds TSB Group Rollover Scheme
(formerly Lloyds Abbey Life) 18,678 139.0 18,678 258,099 37,540 146.6
434,479 434,479 278,832 1,582,090
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

d  Sharecompensation schemes (continued)

2000 Number of
Weighted sharesasto Weighted
averageoption whichoptions Number of  Number of average
Number of price at were options options exercise
optionsat 31 December exercisable at lapsed  exercised prices
31 December (pence) 31 December duringyear during year (pence)
Lloyds TSB Group Staff Share Save
Scheme (1989) 487,419 210.7 27,550 311,687 1,263,356 1399
Lloyds TSB Group Staff Share Save
Scheme 828,605 161.0 - 2,556 14,153 161.0
Lloyds Bank Plc Staff Savings-
Related Share Option Scheme 1990 - - - 230,388 363,503 1694
Lloyds TSB Group plc Executive
Share Option Scheme (1989) 184,316 190.7 184,316 - 41,942 140.7
Lloyds TSB Group plc Executive
Share Option Scheme 154,912 282.5 154,912 - 56,712 2825
Lloyds Bank Plc Senior Executives
UK Share Option Scheme 1987 325,832 176.6 325,832 - 148,720 185.1
Lloyds TSB Group Rollover Scheme
(formerly Lloyds Abbey Life) 314,317 135.7 314,317 - - -
2,295,401 1,006,927 544,631 1,888,386

e Earningsper share

Basic earnings per share under US GAAP differs from UK GAAP (see Note 11) only to the extent that income cal culated under

US GAAP differsfrom UK GAAP.

Diluted earnings per share measures the effect that existing share options would have on the basic earnings per shareif they were
to be exercised, by increasing the number of ordinary shares athough any options that are anti-dilutive are excluded from this
calculation. An option is considered anti-dilutive when the value of the exercise price exceeds the market price. Under US
GAAP certain incentive plan shares, for which the trustees have waived al dividend and voting rights, have been included in the

calculation of diluted earnings per share.

2001 2000 1999
Basic
Net income (US GAAP) £1,524m £1,929m £2,148m
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesinissue 5,533m 5,487m 5,445m
Earnings per share 27.5p 35.2p 39.4p
Diluted
Net income (US GAAP) £1,524m £1,929m £2,148m
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesinissue 5,595m 5,548m 5,549m
Earnings per share 27.2p 34.8p 38.7p

The weighted average number of anti-dilutive shares excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share was 9 million at

31 December 2001 (2000: 14 million; 1999: 3 million).
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

f  Derivativesheld for risk management purposes

Under UK GAAP, the Group uses a variety of financial instruments to hedge exposures in its banking book; these hedges are
accounted for on an accruals basis, in line with the underlying instruments being hedged. Any gains or losses that would occur if
these instruments were carried at market value are therefore not recogni sed.

For the purposes of US GAAP, the Group believes that derivatives that are hedges under UK GAAP do not qualify for hedge
accounting under the provisions of SFAS No. 133; however prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 133, such exposures did not
qualify for hedge accounting under US GAAP either and therefore there is no transition adjustment in respect of SFAS No. 133.
Accordingly these exposures have been marked to market, with the resulting gains and losses taken directly to income. The
movement in the US GAAP adjustment arising is summarised below:

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

Balance at 1 January (257) (92) (272)
Exchange and other adjustments (6) 3 2
Net losses recognised in the year 88 32 136
Unrecognised (losses) gains arising during the year (403) (200) 42
(315) (168) 178

Balance at 31 December (578) (257) (92)

These activities are discussed more fully on pages 58 to 60 and in Note 45e on page F-51.
g Investment securities

Under UK GAAP investment securities are held at amortised cost except within the long-term insurance businesses where the
securities are held at market value, with unrealised gains and losses taken to the income statement in the period to which they
relate.

Under SFAS No. 115 all debt securities and equity shares are classified and disclosed as either held-to-maturity, available-for-
sdle or trading. Those classified as held-to-maturity are measured at amortised cost. Available-for-sale securities are measured at
fair value with unrealised gains and | osses excluded from the income statement and reported net of tax and minority interestsas a
separate component of other comprehensive income. Trading securities are measured at fair value with unrealised gains and
losses included in the income statement. Debt securities and equity shares categorised as available-for-sale under US GAAP give
rise to an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income as detailed on page F-60.

The disclosures for investment securities in the tables bel ow include those held within the banking business as reported in Notes
17 and 18 and those held within the insurance business. Securities held by the general insurance business are included within
Notes 17 and 18 under UK GAAP; for the purposes of US GAAP they have been reclassified into insurance activities. At
31 December 2001, the book and market values of these securities was £273 million (2000: £191 million). The Group had no
held-to-maturity securities at 31 December 2001 or 31 December 2000.

2001 2000

£m £m

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investment debt securities 15,989 17,349
Grossredlised gains (210) (170)
Gross realised osses 27 31
Net amount sold 15,806 17,210

Realised gains and losses are computed using the weighted average cost method. There were no material gains recorded on
securities transferred from available-for-sale to trading.
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g Investment securities(continued)

2001 Gross Gross
Amortised  unrealised unrealised Carrying
cost gains losses value
£m £m £m £m
Available-for-sale investment securities:
UK Government 516 24 3 537
Securities of the US Treasury and US government
agencies 13 - - 13
European governments 105 - - 105
Other Government securities 2,045 256 (53) 2,248
Other public sector securities 54 1 2 53
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 4,670 8 Q) 4,677
Corporate debt securities 3,214 64 (41) 3,237
Mortgage backed securities 521 6 - 527
Other asset backed securities 2,328 6 2 2,332
Other debt securities 1,326 3 4 1,325
Debt securities 14,792 368 (106) 15,054
Equity shares 41 29 - 70
14,833 397 (106) 15,124
Of which:
Banking 10,754 298 (56) 10,996
Insurance 4,079 99 (50) 4,128
14,833 397 (106) 15,124
2000 Gross Gross
Amortised unrealised unrealised Carrying
cost gans losses value
£m £m £m £m
Available-for-sale investment securities:
UK Government 886 58 4 940
Securities of the US Treasury and US
Government agencies 12 - - 12
European governments 112 1 - 113
Other Government securities 1,792 430 (3 2,219
Other public sector securities 58 - D 57
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 3,035 1 Q) 3,035
Corporate debt securities 2,297 41 (25) 2,313
Mortgage backed securities 18 - - 18
Other asset backed securities 574 1 D 574
Other debt securities 1,213 17 2 1,228
Debt securities 9,997 549 (37) 10,509
Equity shares 51 71 (5 117
10,048 620 (42 10,626
Of which:
Banking 6,245 490 (20) 6,725
Insurance 3,803 130 (32 3,901

10,048 620 (42) 10,626
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g Investment securities(continued)

Maturity of investment debt securities:

Due
Due between
Due within between 1 5and 10 Due over No fixed
1year and 5 years years 10 years maturity Tota
£m £m £m £m £m £m
2001
Available-for-sale
Amortised cost 5,068 2,189 3,213 4,145 177 14,792
Fair value 5,081 2,185 3,250 4,358 180 15,054
2000
Available-for-sale
Amortised cost 3,409 1,508 1,237 3,710 133 9,997
Fair value 3,426 1,576 1,382 3,995 130 10,509

h Ownshares

Own shares held of £251 million at 31 December 2001 (2000: £247 million) have been netted off against Additional Paid-in
Capital within Shareholders' equity in accordance with ARB No. 51.

i Deferred taxation

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, the US GAAP deferred tax liability is:

2001 2000
£m £m
Deferred tax liabilities:
Assets used in the business 2 76
Assets leased to customers 1,596 1,538
Pension schemes 776 758
Value of business acquired 728 799
Deferred acquisition costs 190 174
Pension profit recognition 102 268
Unrealised gains on trading securities 149 491
Other 353 334
Totd liabilities 3,896 4,438
Deferred tax assets:
Goodwill (333) (260)
Genera loan loss allowance (106) (108)
Tax losses - pensions business (1,230) (1,061)
- other (367) (299)
Specific loan loss allowance (92 (50)
Other (354) (316)
Total assets (2,482) (2,094)
Vauation alowance 1,691 1,375
3,105 3,719
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
i Deferred taxation (continued)

Valuation allowance

Scottish Widows has a significant with-profits pensions business. Thisbusinessis subject to UK corporation tax on the basis of a
notional return determined by the UK taxation authorities. To the extent that the actua return from the business is less than the
notional return, tax losses accumulate which may be carried forward and offset against excess returns in future years. The value
of these losses at 31 December 2001 was £1,230 million (2000: £1,061 million). Excess returns have only occurred once in the
thirteen years since this basis of taxation was introduced and are only likely to be triggered in the future if interest rates increase
significantly or the actuaria valuation basis aters significantly. Given the current low interest rate environment and in view of
the fact that the actuarial valuation basis is currently considered unlikely to ater significantly, in the opinion of management it is
more likely than not that these losses will not be realised and therefore a full valuation allowance has been established against
this balance.

A further valuation allowance of £128 million (2000: £54 million) has been established against other tax losses which are not
expected to be utilised in the foreseeable future. Under UK tax legidation, certain capital losses may only be offset against
taxable gains of a particular type and consequently the associated deferred tax assets are less certain of realisation. Assessments
have been made as to the likelihood of gains arising that can be offset against these losses and, to the extent that it is more likely
than not that these losses will not be realised, appropriate valuation alowances have been established. In relation to other tax
losses, the pattern of utilisation of losses over previous years has been reviewed together with gains that may be realised in the
foreseeable future and an appropriate valuation allowance established to the extent that it is more likely than not that these losses
will not be realised.

A deferred tax asset of £333 million (2000: £260 million) has been recognised as a result of the different accounting and tax
treatments for goodwill arising upon acquisition of companies and businesses. There is currently no expectation that these
businesses will be disposed of and therefore in the opinion of management it is more likely than not that these losses will not be
realised. Accordingly, afull valuation allowance has been established against this balance.

Tax losses
The Group has the following tax losses available to be carried forward and offset against the future taxable profits of certain
subsidiaries. The majority of the losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

2001 2000

£m £m

Trading losses 403 289
Capital losses 447 488
Pensions business 4,100 3,370
4,950 4,147

US GAAP reconciliation
The following tables reconcile the UK GAAP tax charge and deferred tax liability to the US GAAP tax charge and deferred tax
liability as disclosed on pages F-61 and F-62.

2001 2000 1999

£m £m £m

UK GAAP Profit and loss tax charge 971 1,105 1,111
Deferred tax — US GAAP (38) 75 107
Deferred tax — US GAAP reconciling items (457) (488) 202
US GAAP Profit and loss tax charge 476 692 1,420
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

i Deferred taxation (continued)

2001 2000

£m £m

UK GAAP Deferred tax liability 1,719 1,683
Deferred tax — US GAAP 45 83
Deferred tax - US GAAP reconciling items 1,246 1,855
Other items* 95 98
US GAAP Deferred tax liability 3,105 3,719

* Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, the Group accounts for its life assurance operations using the embedded value
basis of accounting and the shareholder’ s and policyholders’ interests are accounted for as one-line items. Under US GAAP the
constituent parts of the shareholder’s and policyholders’ interests are separately disclosed and as aresult of this reclassification
thetotal deferred tax liability has been increased. Thereisno impact on the underlying shareholder’ s equity.

i L oan impair ment

At 31 December 2001, the Group estimated that there was no difference between the carrying value of its loan portfolio on the
basis of SFAS No. 114 and its value in the UK GAAP financial statements. Impaired |oans are those reported as non-performing
on page F-21, less those loans which are outside the scope of SFAS No. 114, and amounted to £472 million (2000: £477 million).
The impairment reserve in respect of these loans estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 114 was £249 million
(2000: £235 million). During the year ended 31 December 2001, impaired loans, including those excluded from SFAS No. 114,
averaged £1,198 million (2000: £1,159 million) and interest income recognised on these loans was £27 million (2000:
£11 million).

k  Significant Group concentrationsof credit risk

SFAS No. 105 ‘Disclosure of Information about Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Financial Instruments
with Concentrations of Credit Risk’ states that concentrations of credit risk exist if a number of counterparties are engaged in
similar activities and have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changesin economic or other conditions. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is concentrated in the United
Kingdom where the mgority of the Group's activities are conducted and is detailed further in Note 16.

I Reposand rever serepos

The Group enters into reverse repo transactions which are accounted for as collateralised loans. It isthe Group’s policy to seek
collateral which is at least equal to the amount loaned. At 31 December 2001, the fair value of collateral accepted under reverse
repo transactions that the Group is permitted by contract or custom to sell or repledge was £1,042 million (2000: £4,673 million).
Of this, £230 million (2000: £3,488 million) was sold or repledged as at 31 December 2001. The remainder has been held for
continuing use within the business.

The Group also entersinto repos which are accounted for as secured borrowings. Asat 31 December 2001, the carrying value of
assets that have been pledged as collateral under repo transactions where the secured party is permitted by contract or custom to
sell or repledge was £1,408 million (2000: £3,803 million).

m  Segmental analysis

Under UK GAAP, if an entity has two or more classes of business, or operates in two or more geographical segments which
differ substantially from each other, Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No 25 “Segmental Reporting” requires that
information concerning the results and net assets of the different classes of business and geographical segments should be given
in the accounts. In determining whether an entity has different classes of business the accounting standard recommends that a
number of factors should be taken into account, including the nature of products and services, the markets in which they are sold,
the distribution channels for the products and the manner in which the entity’s activities are organised. Ultimately, however,
SSAP 25 states that the determination of an entity’s classes of business depends upon the judgement of the directors. The
Group’ s segmental analysis prepared in accordance with UK GAAP is shown in Note 2 on pages F-13 to F-15.

In order to give a more meaningful presentation of the performance of the Group's operations and to take into account the
similarities of products and services, customer bases, distribution channels and regulatory regimes, the results of a small number
of businesses have been reflected in different reporting segments for financial reporting purposes compared with the management
accounts. The effect of thisis shown below.
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

m  Segmental analysis(continued)

Under US GAAP, SFAS No. 131 “Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” defines an operating
segment as a component of the business that engages in business activities from which it may earn income or incur expenses and
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the enterprise’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resource allocation and to assess its performance. SFAS No. 131 permits the aggregation of operating segmentsiif the segments
demonstrate similar economic characteristics and if the segments are similar in the following respects: the nature of the products
and services offered; the nature of the production processes; the type or class of customer for their products or services; the
distribution channels; and the nature of the regulatory environment.

UK Retail Banking and

Mortgages 2001 2000 1999
Figures Figures Figures Figures Figures Figures
based on disclosed in based on disclosedin based on disclosedin
management Businesses  segmental management  Businesses  segmental management  Businesses  segmental
accounts transferred analysis accounts  transferred analysis accounts  transferred analysis
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 2,765 350 3,115 2,634 317 2,951 2,660 283 2,943
Other operating income 953 188 1,141 1,045 B 1,143 983 104 1,087
Total income 3,718 538 4,256 3,679 415 4,094 3,643 387 4,030
Exceptional restructuring
costs (150) - (150) (99) - (99) - - -
Other operating expenses (1,994) (249) (2,243) (1,921) (178) (2,099) (1,810) (141) (1,951)
Trading surplus 1,574 289 1,863 1,659 237 1,896 1,833 246 2,079
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (357) (58) (415) (288) (44) (332 (379) (46) (425)
Income from associated
undertakings and joint
ventures (10) - (10 2 - 2 3 - 3
Profit before tax 1,207 231 1,438 1,373 193 1,566 1,457 200 1,657
Wholesale Markets and
International Banking 2001 2000 1999
Figures Figures Figures Figures Figures Figures
based on disclosed in based on disclosedin based on disclosedin
management Businesses  segmental management  Businesses  segmental management  Businesses  segmental
accounts transferred analysis accounts  transferred analysis accounts  transferred analysis
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 2,205 (347) 1,858 1,970 (317) 1,653 1,947 (283) 1,664
Income from long-term
assurance business 12 - 12 8 - 8 8 - 8
Other operating income 1,448 (135) 1,313 1,156 (99) 1,057 980 (104) 876
Total income 3,665 (482) 3,183 3,134 (416) 2,718 2,935 (387) 2,548
Exceptional restructuring
costs (17) - (17) (30) - (30) - - -
Other operating expenses (1,667) 257 (1,410) (1,442) 188 (1,254) (1,285) 141 (1,144)
Trading surplus 1,981 (225) 1,756 1,662 (228) 1,434 1,650 (246) 1,404
Provisions for bad and
doubtful debts (390) 58 (332) (253) 4 (209) (236) 46 (190)
Amounts written-off
fixed asset investments (60) - (60) (32 - (32 (7 - (7
Profit before tax 1,531 (167) 1,364 1,377 (184) 1,193 1,407 (200) 1,207
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48 Differencesbetween UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)

I nsurance activities

The following tables summarise the adjustments to the profit and loss account and balance sheet which would arise from the
application of US GAAP to the Group’ sinsurance business.

Profit and loss account 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 1999 1999 1999
Life General Total Life  Genera Total Life  Genera Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Income from long-term assurance business (i) (193) - (193) (615) - (615) (227) - (227)
Other interest and dividends (i) 1,019 - 1,019 948 - 948 191 - 191
Insurance premiums (i) 1,232 - 1,232 1,205 - 1,205 840 - 840
Other income (i) (2,005) - (2,005) 258 - 258 363 - 363
Policyholder benefits and claims expense 0 (2,033) R (2,033) (1,585) (12) (1,597) (759) (11) (770)
Movement in the undistributed
policyholders liabilities 2,427 - 2,427 317 - 317 3) - 3)
Insurance underwriting, operating and
acquisition expenses 0) (697) (4) (701) (734) 13 (722) (287) 8 (279)
Depreciation (i) (23) - (23) (16) - (16) 9) - 9)
Amortisation of value of long-term
assurance business acquired (ii) (305) - (305) (285) - (285) 1) - 1)
Revenue and expense recognition - 24 24 - (26) (26) - 11 11
Equalisation provision - 8 8 - 4 4 - 3 3
Total adjustments before tax (578) 28 (550) (507) (21) (528) 108 11 119
Balance sheet 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000
Life General Total Life  Genera Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
L ong-term assurance business attributable to shareholders (i) (6,574) - (6,574) (6,549) - (6,549)
Long-term assurance assets attributable to policyholders (iii)  (46,389) - (46,389) (51,085) - (51,085)
Cash and due from banks 2,604 - 2,604 1,569 - 1,569
Trading account assets (iv) 25,620 - 25,620 28,591 - 28,591
Tangible fixed assets 163 - 163 156 - 156
Deferred acquisition costs (v) 660 (15) 645 572 (12) 561
Vaue of long-term assurance business acquired (i) 3,007 - 3,007 3,312 - 3,312
Separate account assets (viii) 22,067 - 22,067 25,559 - 25,559
Other assets 1,190 36 1,226 872 24 896
Indebtedness of related parties 1,919 - 1,919 1,478 - 1,478
Long-term assurance liabilities to policyholders (iii) 46,389 - 46,389 51,085 - 51,085
Debt securitiesinissue (99) - (99) (31) - (31)
Policyholder liabilities (vi)  (23,346) - (23,346) (22,059) - (22,059)
Undistributed policyholder allocations (vii) (3,478) - (3,478) (5,905) - (5,905)
Equalisation provision - 31 31 - 23 23
Other liabilities (969) - (969) (824) (12) (836)
Separate account liabilities (viii)  (22,067) - (22,067) (25,559) - (25,559)
Indebtednessto related parties (1,023) - (1,023) (807) - (807)
Total adjustments before tax (326) 52 (274) 375 24 399
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
(i) Revenuerecognition

Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, the Group accounts for its life assurance operations using the embedded value
basis of accounting. An embedded value is an actuarially determined estimate of the economic value of a life assurance
company, excluding any value which may be attributed to future new business. The embedded value is the sum of the net assets
of the life assurance company and the present value of the in-force business. The value of the in-force businessis calculated by
projecting future net cash flows using appropriate economic and actuarial assumptions and the result discounted at a rate which
reflects the shareholders’ overall risk premium. The change in the embedded value during any reporting period adjusted for any
dividends declared or capital injected, and grossed up at the underlying rate of corporation tax, is reflected in the Group's profit
and loss account as income from long-term assurance business.

US GAAP requires that results of the life assurance business should be reported on a gross basis and reflected in appropriate
captions in the income statement. Premiums from conventiona with-profits policies and other protection-type life insurance
policies are recognised as revenue when due from the policyholder. Premiums from unitised with-profits life insurance policies
and investment contracts, which have minima mortality risk, are reported as increases in policyholder account balances when
received. Revenues derived from these policies consist of mortality charges, policy administration charges, investment
management fees and surrender charges that are deducted from policyholders accounts and are disclosed within other income.

Under US GAAP, premiums and policy charges received that relate to future periods are deferred until the period to which they
relate. For limited payment annuities, the excess of the gross premium over the US GAAP net benefit premium is deferred and
amortised in relation to the expected future benefit payments. For investment contracts, policy charges that benefit future periods
are deferred and amortised in relation to expected gross profits.

(i) Valueof long term assurance business acquired

Under US GAAP the value of the long-term assurance business acquired (‘VOBA") is calculated at acquisition by discounting
future earnings to a present value. In subsequent years the VOBA is amortised over the premium recognition period for with-
profits life insurance and other protection-type insurance policies using assumptions consistent with those used in computing
policyholder benefit provisions. VOBA for investment-type policies and unitised insurance policies is amortised in relation to
expected gross profits. Expected gross profits are evaluated regularly against actual experience and revisions made to allow for
the effect of any changes.

2001 2000

£m £m

Balance at 1 January 3,312 701
Acquisition - 2,896
Interest accrued on unamortised balance (92 120
Amortisation (213) (405)
Balance at 31 December 3,007 3,312

Over the next 5 years the amount of VOBA expected to be amortised prior to interest accrualsis:

2002 £225m
2003 £216m
2004 £207m
2005 £203m
2006 £196m
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
(iii) Balance sheet

Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, in order to reflect the different nature of the shareholder’s and policyholders
interests in the long-term assurance business these are shown separately as one-line items in the Group’s balance sheet. The
value of the long-term assurance business attributable to shareholders comprises the net assets of the life assurance companies
and the value of thein-force business. The assets attributable to policyholders mainly comprise the investments held in the long-
term assurance funds either on behalf of policyholders, or which have not yet been alocated to either the policyholders or the
shareholder. Liabilitiesto policyholders mainly comprise policyholder benefit provisions.

Under US GAAP the constituent parts of the shareholder’s and policyholders’ interests in the long-term assurance business are
separately disclosed. Significant differences also arise regarding the valuation of the constituent assets and liabilities, which are
discussed further in the notes which follow.

(iv) Investments

Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, debt securities and equity shares held within the long-term assurance funds are
included in the Group’ s balance sheet at market value; investment properties are included at existing use value.

Under US GAAP, debt securities are classified as trading, available-for-sale or held-to-maturity; equity shares may only be
classified astrading or available-for-sale. Securities classified astrading are carried at current market value. Securities classified
as avallable-for-sale are carried at current market value, and unrealised gains and losses arising are held as a separate component
of shareholders' equity. Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortised cost. In addition, US GAAP requires
that all freehold and long leasehold properties should be carried at depreciated historic cost.

For those securities classified as available-for-sale, the disclosures required under SFAS No. 115 are presented in aggregate with
the banking business on pages F-74 to F-76.

(v) Deferred acquisition costs

Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, the cost of acquiring new and renewal life assurance business is recognised in
the embedded value calculation as incurred.

Under US GAAP the costs incurred by the Group in the acquisition of new and renewal life insurance business are capitalised.
These consist of the acquisition costs, principaly commissions, marketing and advertising and the administration costs
associated with the processing and policy issuance, typically underwriting, together these are capitalised as an asset and
amortised in relation to the profit margin of the policies acquired.

Deferred acquisition costs for conventional with-profits life insurance and other protection type insurance policies are amortised
in relation to premium income using assumptions consistent with those used in computing policyholder benefits provisions.
Investment, universal life, and separate account contracts are amortised in proportion to the estimated gross profits arising from
the contracts.

(vi) Policyholder liabilities

Under UK GAAP applicable to banking groups, future policyholder benefit provisions included in the Group’ s balance sheet are
caculated using net premium methods for conventional with-profits life insurance and other protection-type policies and are
based on fund value for unitised with-profits insurance policies and investment-type policies. Net premiums are calculated using
assumptions for interest, mortality, morbidity and expenses. These assumptions are determined as prudent best estimates at the
date of valuation. Liabilities are not established for future annual and terminal bonus declarations.

Under US GAAP, for unitised with-profits insurance and other investment-type policies, the liability is represented by the
policyholder’s account balance before any applicable surrender charges. Policyholder benefit liabilities for conventiona with-
profits life insurance and other protection-type insurance policies are developed using the net level premiums method.
Assumptions for interest, mortality, morbidity, withdrawals and expenses were prepared using best estimates at date of policy
issue (or date of company acquisition by the Group, if later) plus a provision for adverse deviation based on Group experience.
Interest assumptions range from 5 per cent to 11 per cent.
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48 Differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP (continued)
(vii) With profitsbusiness

With-profits policies entitle the policyholder to participate in the surplus within the with-profits life fund of the insurance
company which issued the policy. Regular bonuses are determined annually by the issuing company’s Appointed Actuary and
its board of directors. The bonuses that may be declared are highly correlated to the overall performance of the underlying assets
and liabilities of the fund in which the contracts participate and are the subject of normal variability and volatility. Terminal
bonuses are paid on maturity of the contract and are designed to provide policyholders with a share of the total performance of
the issuing company during the period of the contract.

The contract for conventional with-profits business written into the with-profits fund provides that approximately 90 per cent of
the surplus arising from the net assets of the fund are allocated to policyholdersin the form of annual bonuses. For unitised with-
profits business written into the with-profits fund all of the surplusisallocated to policyholders as bonus.

Under UK GAAP al amounts in the with-profits fund not yet allocated to policyholders or shareholders are recorded in the
liabilities attributable to policyholders on the Group's balance sheet.

Under US GAAP aliahility is established for undistributed policyholder allocations. The excess of assets over liabilities in the
with-profits fund is alocated to the policyholders and shareholders in accordance with the proportions prescribed by the
contracts. The remaining liability comprises the obligation of the insurance company to the policyholders.

(viil) Separate account assets and liabilities

Under UK GAAP, segregated accounts are established for policyholder business for which policyholder benefits are wholly or
partly determined by reference to specific investments or to an investment-related index. Thisis referred to as linked business.
Linked business can either be unit-linked, property-linked or index-linked. In the case of the unit-linked and property-linked
business the policyholders bear the investment risk. The Group bears the investment risk relating to the index-linked business.

Under US GAAP only those assets where the policyholder bears the investment risk are reported as separate account assets and
liabilities.

F-83



Notes to the accounts

49 Parent company disclosures

a Company profit and loss account

Net interest income

Dividends received from group undertakings
Total income

Operating expenses

Profit on ordinary activities before tax
Taxation credit

Profit on ordinary activities after tax
Dividends

Profit (loss) for the year

b  Company balance sheet

Fixed assets

Investments
Shares in group undertakings
Loans to group undertakings
Own shares

Current assets

Debtorsfalling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors
Tax recoverable

Cash balances with group undertakings

Current liabilities

Amounts falling due within one year
Short-term borrowings
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors
Dividend payable

Net current liabilities

Total assetslesscurrent liabilities

Creditors. amounts falling due after more than one year
Dated loan capital

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called-up share capita

Share premium account
Revaluation reserve

Profit and loss account
Shareholders' funds (equity)
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2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
6 8 8
1,872 1,685 1,300
1,878 1,693 1,308
(60) (39) (35
1,818 1,654 1,273
75 45 71
1,893 1,699 1,344
(1,872) (1,683) (1,451)
21 16 (107)

2001 2000

£m £m

11,960 11,152

759 759

23 24

12,742 11,935

1,369 1,233

47 42

29 16

114 66

1,559 1,357

- 1

1,760 1,811

62 62

1,306 1,172

3,128 3,046
(1,569) (1,689)

11,173 10,246

413 512

10,760 9,734

1,411 1,396

959 595

5,894 5,086

2,496 2,657

10,760 9,734
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49 Parent company disclosures (continued)

¢ Company cash flow statement

Net cash outflow from oper ating activities

Returns oninvestments and servicing of finance:

Dividends received from group undertakings

Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (loan capital)

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance
Taxation:

UK corporation tax received

Capital expenditure and financial investment:

Capital lending to subsidiaries

Repayments of capital lending by subsidiaries

Net cash inflow from capital expenditure and financia investment
Acquisitions and disposals:

Acquisition of group undertakings

Disposal of group undertakings

Net cash inflow from acquisitions and disposals

Equity dividends paid

Net cash (outflow) inflow before financing

Financing:

Issue of ordinary share capital net of £182million

(2000: £128 million;1999: £205 million) contribution to the QUEST
Repayments of subordinated liabilities (loan capital)

Net cash inflow from financing

I ncrease (decrease) in cash

d Reconciliation to USGAAP

Shareholders' funds (UK GAAP)
Dividends

Own shares

Revaluation of sharesin group undertakings
Shareholders’ equity (US GAAP)

e Reconciliation of themovementsin shareholders equity under USGAAP

Profit after tax (UK GAAP)
Share compensation schemes
Net income (US GAAP)
Dividends paid

Issue of shares

Movement in own shares

Share compensation schemes

Revaluation of sharesin group undertakings

Shareholders’ equity at 1 January
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December
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2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m
(68) (149) (815)

1,736 1,375 1,340
(41) (34 (25)

1,695 1,341 1,315

62 64 98
(100) - (150)
100 - 740
- - 590
- - (3,714)
- - 3,920
- - 206
(1,738) (1,522) (1,285)
(49) (266) 109
197 70 108

(100) - -
97 70 108
48 (196) 217

2001 2000
£m £m
10,760 9,734
1,306 1,172
(23) (24)
1,378 2,708
13,421 13,590

2001 2000 1999
£m £m £m

1,893 1,699 1,344
(46) (31) 37

1,847 1,668 1,307

(1,738) (1,522) (1,285)
109 146 22
194 70 108

1 11 (14
46 31 37

(519 383 709

(169) 641 862

13,590 12,949 12,087

13,421 13,590 12,949




GLOSSARY

Term Used USEquivalent or Brief Description

ACCOUNES ..ottt Financial statements.

ASSOCIAES ...t Long-term equity investments accounted for by the equity method.

ATM e Automatic Teller Machine.

Attributable profit ... Net income.

BrOKING ..ocveveieieieieieieieieieieieie e sesssesssesenas Brokerage.

BUIldiNg SOCIELY.......cceererereieieieieieieieieieieieiereeeseienenas A building society 5 a mutua institution set up to lend money to its
members for house purchases. See also “Demutuaisation”.

Caled-up share capital ..........ccceovvenrenrenenennenenns Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid.

L©00]0 11 =01 1 (=TT Leasing.

LOF2'S 91010 1 | (NN Automatic Teller Machine

CONrIBULION.......coveveieces s Profit before tax before taking into account the unusual items,

(O 1= ] (0] TN Payables.

DEaliNG...cccieiereieieieieieieieeie et Trading.

DEDLOIS......cooerieciereree e Receivables.

DemutualiSation..........ccceceveereeereeeeereresererenas Process by which a mutual society is converted into a public limited
company.

ECONOMIC Profit.....cccceceeeeineieieeeeeeiereseienenas See definition under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects -
Economic profit”.

Embedded ValUE .........ccceveeicnneeeeeeieieieieinas See definition under “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects -
Overview”.

Endowment MOrtgage ........cocvveeeeerereneenenenesesnenenens An interest-only mortgage to be repaid by the proceeds of an endowment

insurance policy which is assigned to the lender providing the mortgage.

The sum insured, which is payable on maturity or upon the death of the
policyholder, is used to repay the mortgage.

EState 80eNCY.....cocoeveeieieeeeeeeee e Readl estate agent.

Fees and commissions payable..........coccceeveneerennnn. Fees and commi ssions expense.

Fees and commissionsreceivable..........c.cocovenne. Fees and commissions income.

FINaNCe l@ase ... Capital lease.

Freehold.......coceevncenrece e Ownership with absolute rightsin perpetuity.

Guaranteed annUILY..........covverrervrrenesessesesesesenees See “Business- Guaranteed Annuity Options”.

Guaranteed annuity OptioN........cccoveceeerrereneenenenns See “Business- Guaranteed Annuity Options”.

Hire purchase.........cccoceeeieeeeeeeeee e See “Business- Wholesdle Markets and International Banking—Asset
finance’.

INLEFCENGE ...coveveeecie e System allowing customers of different Automatic Teller Machine (ATM)

operatorsto use any ATM that is part of the system. The LINK network is
aninterchangein the UK.



Term Used

Interest payable.........coovvvnnnnnnnenesesesese e

Interest recelVable........oooveeeevecieeee e

Share capitd ...

Shareholders fUNS........cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseeeens

Share premium acCount ..........covvveverervererereserenees

Sharesin issue

USEquivalent or Brief Description

Interest expense.

Interest income.

Individual Savings Account.

Land or property which is rented from the owner for a specified term under
alease. At the expiry of the term the land or property reverts back to the
owner.

Under UK law, aright to retain possession pending payment.
Lifeinsurance.

See“Interchange”.

Long-term debt.

Shareholders.

Articles and bylaws.

A form of taxation payable in the UK by employees, employers and the
self-employed, used to fund benefits a the nationa level including state
pensions, medica benefits through the National Health System (NHS),
unemployment and maternity. It is part of the UK's national socia
security system and ultimately controlled by the Department of Socid
Security.

The National Bank of New Zealand Limited.

Par value.

Non-recurring.

Common stock.

A line of credit, contractually repayable on demand unless a fixed-term has
been agreed, established through a customer’ s current account.

Preferred stock.
Real estate.
Income statement.
Retained earnings.
Reserves.

Premiums which are payable throughout the duration of a policy or for
some shorter fixed period.

The insuring again by an insurer of the whole or part of arisk that it has
already insured with another insurer called areinsurer.

State Earnings Related Pension Scheme, a UK government pension
scheme.

Capital stock.
Stockholders’ equity.
Additional paid-in capital.
Shares outstanding.
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Term Used

Single premium..

Stakeholder pPension.........ccovvvvvvrvnnsssesesenes

Superannuation...

Tangiblefixed assats........cccovviieieieerssieeseseeens

Undistributablereserves.......ooovveveeeeceeeeseeeeees

Unit-linked productS ...

Unit trust .............

Weighted sales....

With-profitsbond ...,

With-profits fund

USEquivalent or Brief Description

A premium in relation to an insurance policy payable once at the
commencement of the policy.

See “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects- Other Income- 2000
compared with 1999”.

An occupationa pension scheme.

Property and equipment.

Restricted surplus.

See “Business- Guaranteed Annuity Options”.
Mutua fund.

Value a Risk, see definition under “Operating and Financial Review and
Prospects- Market risk in banking operations- Trading Vaue a Risk
(VaR)".

Variance/covariance methodology, see definition under “Operating and
Financial Review and Prospects-Market risk in banking operations—
Trading Value at Risk (VaR)".

The sum of regular premiums plus one-tenth of single premiums paid by
customers on life insurance, pensions and unit trusts.

See “Operating and Financia Review and Prospects-Life, Pensions (and
unit trusts-2000 compared to 1999”.

See “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects- Liquidity and capita
resources- |nsurance and investments businesses’.
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FORM 20-F CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET

Form 20-F Item Number and Caption Location Page
Part |
Item 1. ldentity of Directors, Senior Management and
Advisers
A. Directors and senior management Not applicable.
B. Advisers Not applicable.
C. Auditors Not applicable.
Item 2. Offer Statisticsand Expected Timetable
A. Offer satistics Not applicable.
B. Method and expected timetable Not applicable.
Item 3. Key Information
A. Selected Financia Data “Selected Consolidated Financial Data’ ...........coooveveeeeeenen. 4
B. Capitalisation Not required for annual report.
C. Reason for the offer and use of Proceeds Not applicable.
D. Riskfactors “RISK FACLOIS ... 94
Item 4. Information on the Company
A. History and development of the Company “BUSINESS ..ot
B. Businessoverview “BUSINESS OVENVIEW ... sessee st sessee e
C. Organisation structure “Lloyds TSB Group StrUCLUre.........covvrrerneeenesseeens 97
D. Property, plants and equipment PrOPEITIES ...t 11
Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects
A. Operating results “Operating and Financia Review and Prospects’'............. 16
B. Liquidity and capital resources “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—
Liquidity and Capital RESOUICES' ........ccoveveverererererererererens 63
C. Research and devel opment, patents and licenses, Not applicable.
etc.
D. Trendinformation “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects’............. 16
Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
A. Directors and senior management “Management and Employees-Directors and senior 7
MANAGEMENT ... e e
B. Compensation “Management and Employees-Compensation” ................ 73
C. Board practices “Management and Employees—Board practices’ .............. 77
D. Employees “Management and Employees—Employees’.........ccouevrne. 78
E. Share ownership “Management and Employees-Share ownership”............. 79
Iltem7. Major Sh_areholdersand Related Party
Transactions
A. Magjor shareholders “Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions—
Major shareholders’ ..o 82
B. Related party transactions “Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions—
Related party transactions” .........cocovvvvvvvnvnsessesesenes 82

C. Interestsof expertsand counsel
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Form 20-F Item Number and Caption Location Page
Item 8. Financial Information
A. Consolidated Financial Statements “Consolidated Financial Statementsand Notes’ ............... F-1
B. Significant changes “Operating and Financia Review and Prospects’'............. 16
Item 9. TheOffer and Listing
A. Offer and listing details “Listing INformation” ..........ccovvenrnnenneenneneesesseseseeeens 86
B. Plan of distribution Not applicable.
C. Markets “Listing Information” ..........cccovveneenneneneeinneneesesseseseeenens 86
D. Sdling shareholders Not applicable.
E. Dilution Not applicable.
F. Expensesof theissue Not applicable.
Item 10. Additional Information
A. Share capitd Not required for annual report.
B. Memorandum and Articles of Association “Memorandum and Articles of Association” .........c..cccen.. 88
C. Materia contracts Not applicable.
D. Exchange controls “EXchange ControlS’ ........cccurrirrnensssssssssssssssens 88
E. Taxation LI L OTTTT 89
F. Dividends and paying agents “DIVIAENAS” ..ot 88
G. Statementsby experts Not applicable.
H. Documentson display “Where You Can Find More Information” ............ccccceun.. 93
I.  Subsidiary information “Lloyds TSB Group StrUCLUre.........ccvvreerreenesseeens 97
Item 11. Quantitati_ve and Quialitative Disclosur es about “Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—Risk a7
Market Risk MBNAGEMENT” ...
Item 12. D@cr_iption of Securities Other than Equity
Securities
A. Debt securities Not applicable.
B. Warrantsand rights Not applicable.
C. Other securities Not applicable.
D. American Depositary Shares Not applicable.
Part 11
Item 13. Defaults, Dividends Arrearagesand Delinquencies Not applicable.
Item 14. Material Modificationsto the Rights of Security Not applicable.
Holdersand Use of Proceeds
Item 15. [Reserved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission]
Item 16. [Reserved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission]
Part 111
Item 17. Financial statements Not applicable.
Item 18. Financial statements “Consolidated Financial Statementsand Notes’ ............... F-1
Item 19. Exhibits “List of Exhibits’, “Exhibits Index” and the pages
1011 Lo T o ST 104
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LIST OF EXHIBITS

Memorandum and articles of association of LIoyds TSB Group plc.*
(i) Limited Partnership Agreements dated 4 February 2000, relating to the preference securities.*
(i) Trust Deed dated 25 April 2001, relating to the perpetua capital securities.*

(®&(@i) Transfer Agreement between Scottish Widows' Fund and Life Assurance Society and Lloyds TSB Group plc
dated 23 June 1999, relating to the transfer of the business of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance
Society*

(i) Deed of Amendment between Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society and Lloyds TSB Group plc
dated 17 November 1999, amending the Transfer Agreement dated 23 June 1999, relating to the transfer of the
business of Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assurance Society.*

(iii) Share Purchase Agreement among Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Chartered Trust Holdings plc and others dated
31 August 2000, relating to the acquisition of the Chartered Trust Group plc.*

(b)(i) Service agreement dated 2 February 1999, as amended, between LlIoyds TSB Group plc and M Kent Atkinson.*
(i) Service agreement dated 19 June 1989, as amended, between Lloyds TSB Group plc and Peter B. Ellwood.*

(iii) Service agreement dated 6 September 1991, as amended, between Lloyds TSB Group plc and Michael E.
Fairey.*

(iv) Service agreement dated 9 February 2000, as amended, between Lloyds TSB Group plc and Archie G. Kane.*

W) Service agreement dated 13 February 1998, as amended, between Lloyds TSB Group plc and David P.
Pritchard.*

(i) Service agreement dated 7 March 2000, as amended, between Lloyds TSB Group plc and Michagl D. Ross.*
(vii)  Service agreement dated 19 October 2001 between Lloyds TSB Group plc and J Eric Daniels.

List of subsidiaries, their jurisdiction of incorporation and the names under which they conduct business.

Previoudly filed with the SEC, together with LIoyds TSB Group’ s registration statement, on 25 September 2001.
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SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused and
authorised the undersigned to sign this annual report.

LLOYDS TSB GROUP plc

By: /' M Kent Atkinson

Name: M. Kent Atkinson
Title: Group Finance Director

Dated: 3 May 2002
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